
 

Page 1 of 2 - Posted 10/23/2019 

Notice of Public Meeting 
 

The Board of Retirement 
of the San Mateo County Employees' Retirement Association will meet on 

Tuesday, October 29, 2019, at 10:00 A.M.  
PUBLIC SESSION – The Board will meet in Public Session at 10:00 a.m. 

1. Call to Order, Roll Call and Miscellaneous Business
1.1  Administration of the Oath of Office to Reappointed Trustee 

2. Oral Communications
2.1 Oral Communications from the Board 
2.2 Oral Communications from the Public 

3. Approval of the Minutes
3.1 Approval of Regular Board Meeting Minutes from September 24, 2019 

4. Approval of the Consent Agenda*
4.1 

4.2 
4.3  
4.4 
4.5 
4.6 
4.7 

Disability Retirements (1)
• Sergio Gonzalez-Pavez

Survivor Death Benefits  
Service Retirements 
Continuances 
Deferred Retirements 
Member Account Refunds 
Member Account Rollovers 

4.8     Member Account Redeposits 
4.9     Acceptance of Trustees’ Reports of 

Educational Activities 
4.10   Approval of Resolution Ratifying 

Agreement with K & L Gates LLP for 
Legal Services 

4.11   SACRS Business Meeting November 2019 
4.12   Legislation Update 

5. Benefit & Actuarial Services
5.1 Consideration of Agenda Items, if any, removed from the Consent Agenda 
5.2 Annual Review of SamCERA’s Actuarial Services Firm, Milliman, Inc (**Set for a time certain 

of 12:00 PM) 
6. Investment Services

6.1 Report on Preliminary Monthly Portfolio Performance for the Period Ended 9/30/19 
6.2 Report on Opportunistic Credit Manager Annual Reviews 
6.3 Report on Inflation Hedge Manager Annual Reviews 
6.4 Report on Midstream Energy Update 
6.5 Approval of Asset Allocation Policy Portfolio Implementation 

7. Board & Management Support
7.1 Presentation by Brown Armstrong of 2019 Financial Audit Management Reports 
7.2 Approval of SamCERA’s 2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 
7.3 Approval of Resolution adopting “Policy Allowing for The Use and Acceptance of Electronic 

Signatures for Documents Submitted by a Member” 
7.4 Approval of Board of Retirement Meeting Schedule for 2020 

** Matters set for a time certain. Time listed is approximate. In no case will any item be heard before the time it is scheduled. 



Notice of Public Meeting 
Page 2 of 2 

Page 2 of 2 - Posted 10/23/2019 

8. Management Reports
8.1 Chief Executive Officer's Report 
8.2 Assistant Executive Officer’s Report 
8.3 Chief Investment Officer’s Report 
8.4 Chief Legal Counsel's Report 

CLOSED SESSION – The Board may meet in closed session prior to adjournment 
C1 Consideration of Disability Items, if any, Removed from the Consent Agenda 
C2 Conference with Legal Counsel - Existing Litigation (Govt. Code section 54956.9) In Re Sheridan 

Holding Company II, LLC et al., US Bankruptcy Court-Southern District, Case No. 19-35198(MI) 
9. Report on Actions Taken in Closed Session

10. Adjournment in Memory of the Following Deceased Members:

Morrison, Nancy August 13, 2019 Courts 
Gomez, Herlin September 8, 2019 Hospital 
Schwartz, David September 8, 2019 Mental Health 
Garrett, Marilyn October 3, 2019 Social Services 
Howe, Anne October 4, 2019 Mental Health 
Guillory, Anthony October 9, 2019 Sheriff's 
Odenheimer, Edith October 11, 2019 Long Term Care 

Scott Hood, Chief Executive Officer 

(* ALL ITEMS ON THE CONSENT AGENDA ARE APPROVED BY ONE ROLL CALL MOTION UNLESS A REQUEST IS MADE BY A BOARD MEMBER 
THAT AN ITEM BE WITHDRAWN OR TRANSFERRED TO THE REGULAR AGENDA.  ANY ITEM ON THE REGULAR AGENDA MAY BE 
TRANSFERRED TO THE CONSENT AGENDA.  ANY 4.1 ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA WILL BE TAKEN UP UNDER CLOSED 
SESSION; ALL OTHER ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA WILL BE TAKEN UP UNDER ITEM 5.1.)  

THE BOARD MEETS AT 100 MARINE PARKWAY, SUITE 160, WHICH IS LOCATED ON THE SE CORNER OF TWIN DOLPHIN & MARINE PARKWAY IN 
REDWOOD CITY.  Detailed directions are available on the “Contact Us” page of the website www.samcera.org.  Free Parking is 
available in all lots in the vicinity of the building.   A copy of the Board of Retirement’s open session agenda packet is available 
for review at the SamCERA offices and on our website unless the writings are privileged or otherwise exempt from disclosure 
under the provisions of the California Public Records Act. Office hours are Monday through Thursday 7 a.m. – 6 p.m. 

IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE AND THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  SamCERA’s facilities and board and 
committee meetings are accessible to individuals with disabilities.  Contact SamCERA at (650) 599-1234 at least three 
business days prior to the meeting if (1) you need special assistance or a disability-related modification or accommodation, 
including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in this meeting; or (2) you have a disability and wish to receive the 
agenda, meeting notice, agenda packet or other writings that may be distributed at the meeting in an alternative format.  
Notification in advance of the meeting will enable SamCERA to make reasonable arrangements to ensure full accessibility to 
this meeting and the materials related to it. 

http://www.samcera.org/


SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Board of Retirement 

October 29, 2019 Agenda Item 1.1 

TO: Board of Retirement 

FROM: Scott Hood, Chief Executive Officer   

SUBJECT: Administration of the Oath of Office to Reappointed Trustee 

In this agenda item, the Trustee Oath of Office will be given to Ben Bowler reappointed 
by the Board of Supervisors.   

Enclosure 
Board of Supervisors Reappointment Memo 





 

Minutes of Regular Meeting, September 24, 2019  Page 1 of 5 

 SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION  
SEPTEMBER 24, 2019 – REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
1909.1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Call to Order, Roll Call and Miscellaneous Business 
  
Call to Order:  Mr. Hoefer, Chair, called the Regular Meeting of the Board of Retirement to order at 
10:00 a.m.  
 
Roll Call: 
Present: Mark Battey, Al David, Paul Hackleman, Kurt Hoefer, Katherine O’Malley and Robert Raw. 
Absent: Sandie Arnott, Ben Bowler and Eric Tashman. 
Alternates present: Susan Lee and Alma Salas. 
Staff:  Brenda Carlson, Michael Coultrip, Scott Hood, Elizabeth LeNguyen, JulieAnne Nagal, Gladys Smith 
and Anne Trujillo. 
Consultants and speakers: Nick Collier, Craig Glyde (Milliman, Inc.) and Margaret Jadallah (Verus). 

1909.1.1 Administration of Oath of Office to Elected and Reappointed Trustee:  Reappointed trustee, Ben 
Bowler (Fifth Member) was not present so the Oath of Office was not administered. 
 

1909.2.1 Oral Communications from the Board:  None. 
 

1909.2.2 Oral Communications from the Public:  None. 
 

1909.3.1 Approval of the Minutes:  Mr. Hoefer asked if there were any changes or corrections, or objections, to 
the meeting minutes from the Board meeting held on August 27, 2019.  
 
Action:  Mr. Hackleman moved to approve the minutes from the Board Meeting on August 27, 2019.  
The motion was seconded by Mr. David and carried with a vote of 5-0, with trustees David, Hackleman, 
Hoefer, O’Malley and Raw all in favor; none opposed; and Battey abstained. 
  

1909.4.0 Approval of the Consent Agenda:  Mr. Hoefer asked if there were any items to be removed for 
discussion from the Consent Agenda.  No items were removed. 
 
Action:  Ms. O’Malley moved to approve the Consent Agenda, and the motion was seconded by Mr. 
Hackleman.  The motion carried with a vote of 6-0, with trustees Battey, David, Hackleman, Hoefer, 
O’Malley and Raw all in favor; none opposed. 
  

1909.4.1 Disability Retirements:   
 

a) The Board found that Michelle Gemmet is (1) permanently incapacitated from the 
performance of her usual and customary duties as a Correctional Officer, (2) found that her 
disability was the result of an injury arising out of and in the course of her employment and (3) 
granted her application for a service-connected disability retirement. 

 
1909.4.2 Survivor Death Benefits: None. 

 



 

Minutes of Regular Meeting, September 24, 2019  Page 2 of 5 

1909.4.3 Service Retirements: 
 

Name  Effective Retirement Date  Department  

Aguirre, Leopoldo July 26, 2019 Probation 

Ashton, Neal July 27, 2019 Deferred from Social Services 
Carnock, Daniel  May 29, 2019 QDRO  
Casanova, Irene July 17, 2019 Deferred from Social Services 

Chung, Le July 15, 2019 

Def’d from San Mateo Medical 
Center 

Denton, Craig July 20, 2019 Sheriff's 
Gamber, Joyce July 2, 2019 District Attorney’s Office 

Harris, Mildred July 13, 2019 Library 

Hayes, Russell July 26, 2019 Office of Sustainability 

Kalkbrenner, Robert July 10, 2019 Dept of Public Works 

Mahaley, Stephen July 31, 2019 Sheriff's 
McGill, Ralph July 5, 2019 Probation 
Molina, Ana J August 1, 2019 Correctional Health 
Rogers, Erick August 1, 2019 Probation 
Sharp, Kathleen July 15, 2019 Deferred from H.S.A. 
Stone, Jennifer J July 21, 2019 Deferred from Health Services 
Thain, Lauri July 31, 2019 Deferred from Recorder's Office 
Toruno, Renald July 12, 2019 Agriculture 

 

   1909.4.4 Continuances:   
 

Survivor’s Name  Beneficiary of:  

Ford, Eva Ford, William 
Panaligan, Narcisa Panaligan, Ruben  

 

   1909.4.5 
 

Deferred Retirements: 
The Board ratified the actions as listed below for the following members regarding deferred 
retirements: 
 

Name  Retirement Plan Type  
Cavallero, Jennifer A.  G7, Non-vested- Reciprocity 

De La Rosa, Alma G4, Vested- Reciprocity 

Delgado, Mirta G4, Vested - Auto Defer - Code 31700 

Hernandez-Pena, Ramiro G7, Non-vested- Reciprocity 

Lainez, Yazmin G7, Vested - Auto Defer - Code 31700 

Lam, Gloria G7, Vested- Reciprocity 

Lee, Yick Yee G5, Vested - Auto Defer - Code 31700 

Martinez, William G7, Vested- Reciprocity 
McClure, Michelle G4, Vested 
Moffatt, Barbara L. G2, Vested - Reciprocity 
O’Malley-Riley G4, Vested 
Parala, Albert G4, Vested - Auto Defer - Code 31700 
Pollack, Nicole G5, Vested 
Ramirez, Maria G. G5, Vested- Reciprocity 
Tong, Sunny G7, Vested - Auto Defer - Code 31700 
Trehan, Michelle G4, Vested - Auto Defer - Code 31700 
Zacarias, Veronica G5, Vested - Auto Defer - Code 31700 

 



 

Minutes of Regular Meeting, September 24, 2019  Page 3 of 5 

1909.4.6 Member Account Refunds:  
The Board ratified the actions as listed below for the following members regarding refunds: 
 

Name  Retirement Plan Type  

Diallo, Demba S7, Non-vested 

Dizon, Paul Jorge G7, Non-vested 

Howard, Kimberley (QDRO) G2, Non-vested 

Lewis, Ivory G7, Non-vested 

Marquez, Javier G7, Non-vested 

Murillo, Daniel G4, Non-vested 

Naranjo, Natalie G7, Non-vested 

Szopa, Robert G7, Non-vested 
 

 1909.4.7 Member Account Rollovers: 
The Board ratified the actions as listed below for the following members regarding rollovers:   
 

Name  Retirement Plan Type  

Muse, Sara G7, Non-vested  
Satterwhite, Beverly G7, Non-vested  

 

1909.4.8 Member Account Redeposits:  None. 

1909.4.9 Acceptance of Trustees’ Reports of Educational Activities:  None. 
 

1909.5.1 Consideration of Agenda Items, if any, removed from the Consent Agenda:  None. 
 

1909.5.2 Presentation of the June 30, 2019, Actuarial Valuation Report by Milliman, Inc.:  Nick Collier and Craig 
Glyde of Milliman, Inc. presented the results and recommendations of SamCERA’s Actuarial Valuation 
Report as of June 30, 2019.  The report was accepted without objection by the Board. 
 

1909.5.3 Approval of Resolution Accepting Recommendations to Be Made for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Employer 
and Member Contribution Rates:  After Nick Collier and Craig Glyde’s presentation, Mr. Hoefer called 
for a motion on the resolution accepting recommendations made for fiscal year 2020-2021 Employer 
and Member Contribution Rates.  
 
Action:  Mr. Hackleman motioned to approve the resolution accepting recommendations made for 
fiscal year 2020-2021 Employer and Member Contribution Rates.  The motion was seconded by Mr. 
David and carried a vote of 6-0, with trustees Battey, David, Hackleman, Hoefer, O’Malley and Raw all in 
favor; none opposed. 
 

1909.6.1 Report on Preliminary Monthly Portfolio Performance Report for the Period Ended August 31, 2019:  
Mr. Coultrip informed the Board that the preliminary monthly performance report could be found in the 
Board’s Day of folder.  Mr. Coultrip discussed the preliminary monthly performance report with the 
Board.  He reported that SamCERA’s net preliminary return for August was -1%, bringing the preliminary 
trailing twelve-month return ending August 2019 to 4% net.  This item was informational and for 
discussion only, no action was taken. 
 

1909.6.2 Discussion and Approval of New Asset Allocation Policy Portfolio:  Ms. Jadallah presented the results 
of the refined asset mixes not containing risk parity and answered questions from the Board. 
 



 

Minutes of Regular Meeting, September 24, 2019  Page 4 of 5 

Action:  Mr. David motioned to approve the new asset allocation policy portfolio not containing risk 
parity.  The motion was seconded by Mr. Raw and carried a vote of 6-0, with trustees Battey, David, 
Hackleman, Hoefer, O’Malley and Raw all in favor; none opposed. 
 

1909.7.1 Discussion and Approval of Interest Crediting Policy:  After a review of the policy with the Board, Mr. 
Hood noted that there are no recommended changes to the current methodology but rather just 
amendments to the Policy’s verbiage for ease of administration and to reflect the current account 
structure.  Mr. Hood reviewed the proposed language changes with the Board.  
 
Action:  Mr. David motioned to approve the resolution amending the Interest Crediting Policy.  The 
motion was seconded by Mr. Raw and carried a vote of 6-0, with trustees Battey, David, Hackleman, 
Hoefer, O’Malley and Raw all in favor; none opposed. 
 
This item was taken out of order and heard after item 5.3. 
 

1909.7.2 Approval of SACRS Voting Delegate and Alternates for the SACRS Fall 2019 Business Meeting:  Mr. 
Hood and the Board discussed the upcoming SACRS Fall Conference taking place November 12-15 in 
Monterey, CA.  Staff recommended the Board designate Al David as the Voting Delegate, Katherine 
O’Malley, as the First Delegate Alternate and Scott Hood, CEO as the Second Delegate Alternate to cast 
SamCERA’s votes at the SACRS Fall Conference.  
 
Action:  Mr. Battey motioned to approve staff’s recommendation to designate Al David as the Voting 
Delegate, Katherine O’Malley as the First Delegate Alternate and Scott Hood, CEO as the Second 
Delegate Alternate to cast SamCERA’s votes at the SACRS Fall 2019 Conference.  The motion was 
seconded by Mr. Raw and carried a vote of 6-0, with trustees Battey, David, Hackleman, Hoefer, 
O’Malley and Raw all in favor; none opposed. 
 

1909.8.1  Chief Executive Officer’s Report:  Mr. Hood informed the Board that SamCERA’s lease agreement had 
recently been signed and that construction may begin in October.  Mr. Hood reported his attendance at 
the CALAPRS Administrator’s Institute in Carmel, CA.  He noted the items in the Day of folder including 
the Board of Retirement Workplan and draft copy of the 2020 Meeting Schedule.  He noted that the 
Board of Supervisors had approved the amended Board of Retirement regulations.  He also mentioned 
Mr. Paulden of Brown Armstrong, will attend next month’s meeting to present the CAFR and Audit 
Management Report and that the Audit Committee would meet before the October Board Meeting.  
 

1909.8.2  Assistant Executive Officer’s Report:  Ms. Smith informed the Board of the County’s Employees 
Engagement Survey and reported that 100% of staff had completed it.  Ms. Smith updated the Board on 
staff’s visit with Santa Barbara and Los Angeles retirement systems regarding their processing of 
disability retirement applications.  
 

1909.8.3 Chief Investment Officer’s Report:  Mr. Coultrip called to attention the June 2019 Performance Pulse in 
the Board’s Day Of folder.  Mr. Coultrip informed the Board that staff will be conducting manager 
reviews on October 3rd and October 10th.   
 

1909.8.4   Chief Legal Counsel’s Report:  Ms. Carlson informed the Board that she plans to provide a legislative 
update on the chaptered bills at next month’s Board meeting.  
 

  C1 Consideration of Disability Items, if any, removed from the Consent Agenda:  None. 
 

1909.10 Adjournment:  Mr. Hoefer adjourned the meeting at 11:28 a.m. in memory of the deceased members 
listed below.   



 

Minutes of Regular Meeting, September 24, 2019  Page 5 of 5 

 

Hansen, Carl September 2, 2019 Mental Health 

Gomes, Rita August 4, 2019 Social Services 
 

 

 
 
 

____________________________                               __________________________________     
Scott Hood       Anne Trujillo 
Chief Executive Officer      Retirement Executive Secretary 

 



 

                     
                    SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

Board of Retirement 

 

 

October 29, 2019    Agenda Items 4.1- 4.9  
  
   
TO:               Board of Retirement 

FROM:         Elizabeth LeNguyen, Retirement Benefits Manager      
 
SUBJECT:     Approval of Consent Agenda Items 4.1 – 4.9 
 
 
4.1 Disability Retirements 

 
a) The Board find that Sergio Gonzalez-Pavez (1) is permanently incapacitated from the 

performance of his usual and customary duties as a Mental Health Program Specialist, (2) 
find that his disability was not the result of an illness arising out of and in the course of his 
employment and (3) grant his application for a non-service-connected disability retirement. 
 

 
4.2 Survivor Death Benefits 

 None. 
 
 

4.3 Service Retirements 
The Board ratifies the service retirement for the individuals listed below as follows: 
 

Name Effective Retirement Date Department 

Bise, Eugene August 27, 2019 San Mateo Medical Center 

Cabebe, Elisa August 24, 2019 Sheriff's Dept. 

Cobb, Robert August 11, 2019 Human Service Agency 

Fan, Li-Ping August 3, 2019 Behavioral Health and Recovery 

Lasker, Paul August 2, 2019 Agriculture 

Mastrangelo, Maria August 10, 2019 Agriculture 

Mejia, Ingrid August 10, 2019 Dept of Public Works 

O'Brien, Victoria August 24, 2019 Sheriff's Dept. 

Raji, Fatna August 11, 2019 Correctional Health 

Ramdas, Raksha August 8, 2019 Deferred from Public Health 

Sudano, Patrina August 18, 2019 Sheriff's Dept. 

Wilson, Sebastian August 31, 2019 San Mateo Superior Court 

 
 
4.4 Continuances 



   

2 

 

 The Board ratifies the granting of a continuance to the following individuals: 

Survivor’s Name Beneficiary of: 

Green, Joann Green, Raymond 

Loeb, Peter Morrison, Nancy 

Sacher, Edward Mastrangelo, Maria 

 
 
4.5 Deferred Retirements 
 The Board ratifies the deferred retirements as listed below for the following individuals: 

Name Retirement Plan Type 

Balbona, Erin G7, Non-vested- Reciprocity 

Catbagan, John G4, Vested - Auto Defer - Code 31700 

Hall, Rosa G7, Vested - Auto Defer - Code 31700 

Feng, Tzu-Ying G5, Vested - Auto Defer - Code 31700 

Keovongsa, Karen G7, Non-vested- Reciprocity 

Mair, Aaron G4, Vested- Reciprocity 

Raffin, Eric G7, Vested- Reciprocity 

Redding, Michael G7, Vested - Auto Defer - Code 31700 

Sadarangani-Holte, Rakhi G4, Vested - Auto Defer - Code 31700 

Tomas, Ruby G4, Vested - Auto Defer - Code 31700 

Vera Cruz, Enrique G5, Non-vested- Reciprocity 

Williams, Nicole G4, Vested - Auto Defer - Code 31700 

 
4.6 Member Account Refunds 
 The Board ratifies the refunds as listed below for the following individuals: 

Name Retirement Plan Type 

Castillo, Martha G7, Non-vested 

Gunther, Daniel G5, Non-vested 

Leuck, Grace G7, Non-vested 

Lee, Amarra G5, Vested 

Ramirez de Cartagena, Michael G5, Non-vested 

Ramirez de Cartagena, Michael (QDRO) G4, Vested 



   

3 

 

Vera-Garcia, Javier G5, Non-vested 

 
 
4.7 Member Account Rollovers 
 The Board ratifies the rollovers as listed below for the following individuals:    

Name Retirement Plan Type 

Harnish, Regina G7, Non-vested 

Mefford, Tatiana G7, Non-vested 

 
  
4.8 Member Account Redeposits 
 None. 
 
 
4.9 Acceptance of Trustees’ Reports of Educational Activities Through Outside Provider 
 None. 
 



 SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Board of Retirement 

October 29, 2019 Agenda Item 4.10 

TO: Board of Retirement 

FROM: Scott Hood, Chief Executive Officer  

SUBJECT:  Agreement with K &L Gates, LLP For Bankruptcy Counsel Services. 

Recommendation  
Approve a resolution ratifying an agreement with K &L Gates, LLP For Bankruptcy Counsel 
Services.  

Background    
SamCERA is a limited partner in Sheridan II, an alternative investment. Recently, a bankruptcy 
petition was filed in the matter of Sheridan Holding Company II, LLC et al.  

Discussion 
Staff determined that it would be in SamCERA’s best interest if bankruptcy counsel was 
promptly retained to provide timely advice on the Sheridan Holding Company II bankruptcy. 

Staff conferred with another public entity that is a limited partner in Sheridan II.  This entity had 
retained K &L Gates, LLP and staff determined that it would be efficient and economical to use 
the same counsel.  

The retainer agreement sets forth a discounted current hourly billing rate of: $540 per hour for 
the primary partner assigned to the case as well as other partners; $626 for senior partners; 
$390 for junior associates; $460 for associates; and $490 senior associates. We are only billed 
for requested services provided and it is anticipated that this bankruptcy matter will be 
completed within three years.   

The resolution provides that the Board of Retirement ratifies the agreement with SamCERA and 
K & L Gates LLP for bankruptcy counsel services giving approval up to $75,000.  

Attachment 
Resolution Authorizing the Chief Executive Officer to Execute an Agreement for with K & L 
Gates, LLP for bankruptcy counsel services 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

 

 

RESOLUTION RATIFYING AGREEMENT WITH K&L GATES LLP FOR BANKRUPTCY 
COUNSEL SERVICES.  

 
RESOLUTION 2019-__ 

 

 
WHEREAS, Article XVI, §17 of the Constitution of the State of California vests the Board 

with plenary authority and fiduciary responsibility for the investment of 
moneys and the administration of the system; and 

WHEREAS, the Board adopted a resolution making Government Code section 31529.9 
effective for SamCERA, and by such action, the Board is authorized to contract 
with attorneys in private practice; and  

WHEREAS, the Chief Executive Officer determined that it was in the best interest of 
SamCERA to enter into a retainer agreement with K & L Gates LLP for 
bankruptcy legal services in the bankruptcy of Sheridan Holding Company II, 
and such agreement was needed prior to the next regular Board meeting; and  

WHEREAS, the Board desires to ratify that agreement with K & L Gates LLP for services 
in regard to the matter of Sheridan Holding Company II and it is anticipated 
that the matter will be resolved within three years, therefore, be it  

RESOLVED, that the Board of Retirement hereby ratifies the agreement with SamCERA 
and K & L Gates LLP for bankruptcy counsel services giving approval up to 
$75,000.   

 
Regularly passed and adopted, by the San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement 

Association, Board of Retirement, on October 29, 2019. 

 

Ayes, Trustees:                  

Noes, Trustees:             

Absent, Trustees:         

Abstain, Trustees:        

 

_______________________________ 

Al David, Board Secretary 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

Board of Retirement 

1 

October 29, 2019      Agenda Item 4.11 

TO: Board of Retirement  

FROM: Scott Hood, Chief Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: SACRS Business Meeting Topics for the Fall 2019 Conference 

Recommendation 
Authorize SamCERA’s Voting Delegate and Alternate to Approve the Minutes of the SACRS May 
2019 Business Meeting and to vote in favor of SACRS Omnibus Bill SB 783 and Los Angeles County 
Employees’ Retirement System (LACERA) proposal as well as voting in the best interest of 
SamCERA on any new action items that may be added to the November 2019 Business Meeting 
Agenda. 

Background 
The SACRS Business Meeting will be held Friday, November 15, 2019.  Prior to each Business 
Meeting, the Board discusses items to be voted on and gives SamCERA’s Voting Delegate and 
Alternates direction.   

Discussion 
There are two proposed legislative changes that will require a vote.  The first item, SB 783, is a 
SACRS bill that the legislative committee worked on to develop technical and/or clarifying 
amendments to the CERL.  The highlights are: 

• Consolidate the military service-credit statues to better conform to federal law and
ensure members who are called to duty are made whole for their time away.

• Affirm the recent Mijares v. OCERS appellate case regarding an employer’s liability and
obligation to make contributions for pension benefits.

• Allow counties to authorize members to purchase parental leave service credit, aligning
with CalPERS and CalSTRS statutes and evolving law about family leave.

• Clarify existing law regarding which benefit tier a member rejoins when reinstated to
active service after an involuntary separation is overturned.

• Allow Boards to delegate to staff the authority to finalize retirement applications and put
retirees on payroll, in compliance with the Wilmot v. CCCERA ruling.

• Provide flexibility to systems to accept retirement applications earlier than the current
60-day limit.

• Allow for the lump-sum distribution of contributions when a member reaches mandatory
distribution age instead of requiring a monthly pension benefit that may be only a few
dollars.

• Update incorrect statutory references and make other technical changes.



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

Board of Retirement 

2 

 

 
 
The second item is a legislative proposal from LACERA to amend sections 31726 and 31726.5 to  
eliminate the limitation on the disability benefits should a member be found disabled due to their 
intemperate use of alcoholic liquor or drugs.    
 
Additionally, per SamCERA tradition, because additional items could be added prior to the vote, 
if the Voting Delegate wishes to vote, the Voting Delegate is bound to vote in a manner that the 
delegate considers to be in the best interests of SamCERA. 
 
Attachment 
SACRS Business Agenda Packet  



 

SACRS Business Meeting Packet 
 
 

Friday, November 15, 2019 
 

10:00 AM - Upon Adjournment 
 

Hyatt Regency Monterey Hotel and Spa 
 

1 Old Golf Course Rd  
Monterey, CA  93940 

 

 



 
SACRS Business Meeting Agenda  

Friday, November 15, 2019 
10:00 AM - Upon Adjournment 

Hyatt Regency Monterey 
Monterey, CA 

SACRS Parliamentarian – TBD  
Sergeant at Arms – Bob Goodchild, San Diego CERA  
 
1. SACRS System Roll Call 
Kathryn Cavness, Mendocino CERA, SACRS Secretary 
 
2. Secretary’s Report - Receive and File 
Kathryn Cavness, Mendocino CERA, SACRS Secretary 
 

A. May 2019 SACRS Business Meeting Minutes  
  

3. Treasurer’s Report - Receive and File 
Harry Hagen, Santa Barbara CERS, SACRS Treasurer 
 

A. July 2019 – August 2019 Financials 
 

4. SACRS President Report - No Action 
Dan McAllister, San Diego CERA, SACRS President 
 

A. SACRS President Update 
 

5. SACRS Legislative Committee Update - Vote 
Eric Stern, Sacramento CERS and Dave Nelsen, Alameda CERA – SACRS Legislative Committee 
Co-Chairs 
 

A. 2019 Legislative Report – No Action 
B. SACRS Omnibus Bill SB 783- Vote 
C. Los Angeles CERA Proposal – Vote  

 

6. SACRS Nomination Committee - 2020-2021 SACRS Election Notice – No Action 
Ray McCray, San Joaquin CERA, SACRS Nomination Committee Chair 
 

A. SACRS Election Notice 2020-2021 
 

7. SACRS Audit Report – No Action 
Steve Delaney, Orange CERS, SACRS Audit Committee Chair 
 

A. SACRS Audit Committee Update 
 



 
8. SACRS Education Committee Report – No Action 
JJ Popowich, Los Angeles CERA, SACRS Education Committee Chair 
 

A. SACRS Fall Conference Evaluations 2019 
 

9. SACRS Program Committee Report – No Action 
Vivian Gray, Los Angeles CERA, SACRS Program Committee Chair 
 

A. SACRS Fall Conference Report 2019 
 

10. SACRS Affiliate Committee Report – No Action 
Ben Lazarus, Parametric, SACRS Affiliate Committee Chair 

 
A. Affiliate Committee Update 

 

11. SACRS Bylaws Committee Report – No Action  
 Johanna Fontenot, Los Angeles CERA, SACRS Bylaws Committee Chair 
 

A. Bylaws Committee Update 
 

12. SACRS Fall Conference Breakout Reports – No Action 
A representative from each breakout will give report on their meetings.  
 

A. Administrators 
B. Counsel 
C. Disability/ Operations & Benefits Combo 
D. Internal Auditors 
E. Investment Officers 
F. Safety Trustees 
G. General Trustees 

 

13. Adjournment 
Next scheduled SACRS Association Business Meeting will be held Friday, May 15, 2020 at the 
Paradise Point Hotel and Resort in San Diego, CA.  

 
 



 
1. SACRS System Roll Call 
Kathryn Cavness, Mendocino CERA, SACRS Secretary 

 



 
1. SACRS System Roll Call 
Kathryn Cavness, SACRS Secretary 
 
 
System In Attendance Absent Delegate/Alternate Name 
Alameda    
Contra Costa    
Fresno    
Imperial    
Kern    
Los Angeles    
Marin    
Mendocino    
Merced    
Orange    
Sacramento    
San 
Bernardino 

   

San Diego    
San Joaquin    
San Mateo    
Santa Barbara    
Sonoma    
Stanislaus    
Tulare    
Ventura    
Total    

 
 
 
 



 
2. Secretary’s Report - Receive and File 
Kathryn Cavness, Mendocino CERA, SACRS Secretary 
 

A. May 2019 SACRS Business Meeting Minutes  

 



 
SACRS Business Meeting Minutes  

Friday, May 10, 2019 
10:00 AM - Upon Adjournment 

Resort at Squaw Creek 
Lake Tahoe, CA 

SACRS Parliamentarian – Lance Kjeldgaard  
Sergeant at Arms – Bob Goodchild, San Diego CERA  
 
Meeting called to order at 9:48 AM by President Dan McAllister  
 
SACRS Board Members Present: Dan McAllister, President; Vivian Gray, Vice President; Kathryn 
Cavness, Secretary; Harry Hagen, Treasurer; Chris Cooper, Board Member; Roger Hilton, Board 
Member; Ray McCray, Immediate Past President; and Ben Lazarus, Affiliate Chair  
 
1. SACRS System Roll Call 
Kathryn Cavness, Mendocino CERA, SACRS Secretary 
 
20 SACRS Member Systems Present 
Alameda, Contra Costa, Fresno, Imperial, Kern, Los Angeles, Marin, Mendocino, 
Merced, Orange, Sacramento, San Bernardino, San Diego, San Joaquin, San Mateo, Santa 
Barbara, Sonoma, Stanislaus, Tulare and Ventura 

At the time of roll call, San Bernardino CERA did not have a voting proxy present. Louis 
Fiorino arrived as SBCERA’s delegate after the meeting was called to order and item 4.  

 
2. Secretary’s Report - Receive and File 
Kathryn Cavness, Mendocino CERA,  SACRS Secretary 
 

A. November 2018 SACRS Business Meeting Minutes  
Motion: A motion to adopt the November 2018 Business Meeting Minutes was made by San 
Diego CERA. 
2nd: Santa Barbara CERS 
Yes: 19 
No: 0 
Abstain: 0 
Absent: 1 - San Bernardino CERS 
Motion Passes 
 
 
 
  



 
3. Treasurer’s Report - Receive and File 
Harry Hagen, Santa Barbara CERS, SACRS Treasurer 
 

A. July 2018 – February 2019 Financials 
Motion: A motion to approve the Treasurers report was made by Los Angeles CERA.  
2nd: Imperial CERS 
Yes: 19 
No: 0 
Abstain: 0 
Absent: 1 - San Bernardino CERS 
Motion Passes 
 
4. SACRS President Report - No Action 
Dan McAllister, San Diego CERA, SACRS President 
 

A. SACRS President Update 
Discussion: No action taken, information only.  
 
5. SACRS Legislative Committee Update – No Action 
Eric Stern, Sacramento CERS & Dave Nelsen, Alameda CERA, SACRS Legislative Committee Co-
Chairs 
 

A. 2019 Legislative Report  
Discussion: No action taken, information only. Bills to watch; SACRS Bill SB 783 is a technical 
cleanup bill for the CERL; AB 664 (Cooper) County Employees Permanent Incapacity; AB 1212 
(Levine) Infrastructure Investment; AB 1320 (Nazarian) Divestment in Turkey; ab 233 (Bonta) 
Divestment in Private Prisons; AB 1332 (Bonta) Sanctuary State Contracting.  
 
6. SACRS Nomination Committee - 2019-2020 SACRS Elections – Action 
Ray McCray, San Joaquin CERA, SACRS Nomination Committee Chair 
 

A. SACRS Election 2019-2020 
Motion: A motion to approve the Nomination Committee recommendation for the 2019-2020 
Board of Directors was made by Fresno CERA. Recommendation includes - Dan McAllister, 
President; Vivian Gray, Vice President; Kathryn Cavness, Secretary; Harry Hagen, Treasurer; Chris 
Cooper, Board Member and Roger Hilton, Board Member.  
2nd: San Diego CERA 
Yes: 20 
No: 0 
Abstain: 0 
Motion Passes 



 
7. SACRS Audit Report – Action 
Steve Delaney, Orange CERS, SACRS Audit Committee Chair 
 

A. SACRS 2017-2018 Audit Report 
Motion: A motion to approve the Audit report was made by Los Angeles CERA. 
2nd: Imperial CERS 
Yes: 19 
No: 0 
Abstain: 1 - Contra Costa 
Motion Passes 
 
8. SACRS Education Committee Report – No Action 
JJ Popowich, Los Angeles CERA, SACRS Education Committee Chair 
 

A. SACRS Spring Conference Evaluations 2019 
Discussion: No action taken, information only, a verbal report was provided by JJ Popowich, 
Committee Chair. Feedback was positive and the committee had many attendees at their 
meeting. Many attendees utilized the online survey during the conference, more 
communication/instructions on how to access accounts will be needed in future conferences. 
Attendees were reminded to complete their evaluations online to receive credit toward their 24 
hours of required continuing education.   
 
9. SACRS Program Committee Report – No Action 
Vivian Gray, Los Angeles CERA, SACRS Program Committee Chair 
 

A. SACRS Spring Conference Report 2019 

Discussion: No action taken, information only, a verbal report was provided by Vivian Gray, 
Committee Chair. Vivian thanked the committee members for their efforts and hard work 
developing a great program. Vivian asked members to please submit ideas for topics and 
suggestion online at the sacrs.org website.  
  
10. SACRS Affiliate Committee Report – No Action 
Ben Lazarus, Parametric, SACRS Affiliate Committee Chair 

 

A. Affiliate Committee Update 
Discussion: No action taken, information only, a verbal report was provided by Ben Lazarus, 
Committee Chair. Ben thanked the Affiliate Committee members and Tim Price for assisting with 
the developing the Affiliate Breakout session on Wednesday. The Affiliates also discussed the UC 
Berkeley program, Affiliate Member Guideline amendments and elections for the committee.  
 



 
11. SACRS Bylaws Committee Report – No Action  
 Johanna Fontenot, Los Angeles CERA, SACRS Bylaws Committee Chair 
 

A. Bylaws Committee Update 

Discussion: No action taken, information only, a verbal report was provided by Sulema 
Peterson. Update on bylaw amendments are forthcoming, the committee is reviewing for 
changes in management and structure for committees.  
 
12. SACRS Fall Conference Breakout Reports – No Action 
A representative from each breakout will give report on their meetings.  

A. Administrators – Eric Stern reported that Debby Cherney will moderate the 
Administrators session at the Fall 2019 Conference.  

B. Counsel – Johanna Fontenot will moderate the Counsel session at the Fall 2019 
Conference.  

C. Disability/ Operations & Benefits Combo – No Report, Arlene Owens will moderate 
the Tuesday Disability/Ops session at the Fall 2019 Conference.  

D. Internal Auditors – No Report 
E. Investment Officers – Tim Price will moderate the Investment session at the Fall 

2019 Conference. They will have a closed-door session separate from the Affiliate 
breakout.  

F. Safety Trustees – Brian Williams will moderate the Safety session at the Fall 2019 
Conference.  

G. General Trustees – Dan McAllister reported that Gina Sanchez will moderate the 
Tuesday Trustee session at the Fall 2019 Conference.  

 
13. Adjournment 
Next scheduled SACRS Association Business Meeting will be held Friday, November 15, 2019, 
Hyatt Regency Hotel & Spa, Monterey, CA.  
 
Motion: A motion to adjourn at 10:08 am was made by Mendocino CERA. 
2nd: Fresno CERA 
Yes: 20 
No: 0 
Motion Passes 

 
 



 
3. Treasurer’s Report - Receive and File 
Harry Hagen, Santa Barbara CERS, SACRS Treasurer 
 

A. July 2019 – August 2019 Financials 

 



 9:44 PM

 09/30/19

 Accrual Basis

 STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

 Balance Sheet
 As of August 31, 2019

Aug 31, 19

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

1000 · First Foundation Bank-Checking 263,995.07

1001 · BofA Interest Checking 4389 363,111.91

1002 · First Foundation Bank  ICS Acct 57,453.38

1107 · CalTrust Liquidity Fund 8,131.39

Total Checking/Savings 692,691.75

Other Current Assets

1100 · CalTrust - Medium Term 1,189,358.25

1104 · CalTrust - BlackRock FedFund 781,346.23

1201 · Deposits in Transit 10,534.17

Total Other Current Assets 1,981,238.65

Total Current Assets 2,673,930.40

TOTAL ASSETS 2,673,930.40

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Other Current Liabilities

2100 · Unrealized Gain (Loss) 89,757.88

2150 · Refund Liability 2,510.00

Total Other Current Liabilities 92,267.88

Total Current Liabilities 92,267.88

Total Liabilities 92,267.88

Equity

32000 · Retained Earnings 2,298,166.07

Net Income 283,496.45

Total Equity 2,581,662.52

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 2,673,930.40

 Page 1 of 1



 10:02 PM

 09/30/19

 Accrual Basis

 STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

 Profit & Loss
 July through August 2019

Jul - Aug 19

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4100 · Membership Dues

4101 · Affiliates 173,750.01

4102 · Non Profit - Organizations 2,000.00

4103 · Non Profit - Systems 6,000.00

4104 · Systems - Medium 52,000.00

4105 · Systems - Large 42,000.00

Total 4100 · Membership Dues 275,750.01

4270 · UC Berkeley Program

4271 · Registrations 7,500.00

4272 · Sponsorships 20,500.00

4270 · UC Berkeley Program - Other -2,500.00

Total 4270 · UC Berkeley Program 25,500.00

4300 · Fall Conference Registration

4301 · Affiliates - Early 142,790.00

4304 · Non Profit 240.00

4305 · Systems 5,400.00

4306 · Non-Members 125,490.00

4300 · Fall Conference Registration - Other -2,670.00

Total 4300 · Fall Conference Registration 271,250.00

4350 · Spring Conference Registration

4352 · Affiliates - Regular 30,510.00

4356 · Non-Members 0.00

4357 · Fun Run 150.00

4358 · Yoga 100.00

Total 4350 · Spring Conference Registration 30,760.00

4900 · Interest Earned 129.22

Total Income 603,389.23

Gross Profit 603,389.23

Expense

5000 · Administrative Fee 15,000.00

5001 · Administrative Services 825.70

5002 · Awards 387.35

5003 · Bank Charges/Credit Card Fees 12,005.02

5010 · Berkeley & Symposium

5013 · Hotel 10,625.53

5015 · Materials/Printing/Design 570.94

5016 · Travel 510.53

Total 5010 · Berkeley & Symposium 11,707.00

5041 · Consulting 9,332.00

5050 · Fall Conference

5054 · Hotel

5054.2 · Conference 2,000.00

Total 5054 · Hotel 2,000.00

 Page 1 of 2



 10:02 PM

 09/30/19

 Accrual Basis

 STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

 Profit & Loss
 July through August 2019

Jul - Aug 19

5056 · Speakers 5,385.00

5058 · Travel 813.87

Total 5050 · Fall Conference 8,198.87

5071 · Legal & Professional Fees 2,744.00

5072 · Legislative Advocacy 10,002.00

5080 · Magazine

5082 · Design/Printing/Etc. 2,640.00

Total 5080 · Magazine 2,640.00

6000 · Board & Committees

6001 · Board of Directors

6001.1 · Food & Beverage 4,733.62

6001.2 · Printing/Supplies 598.13

6001.3 · Travel - BOD Meetings 1,854.11

6001 · Board of Directors - Other 698.82

Total 6001 · Board of Directors 7,884.68

6002 · Legislative Committee Meetings 10.95

Total 6000 · Board & Committees 7,895.63

6010 · Office Expenses / Supplies 1,929.58

6011 · Postage & Delivery 368.50

6020 · Spring Conference

6021 · Audio/Visual 6,155.29

6022 · Delivery & Shipping 5,966.48

6024 · Hotel

6024.1 · Wednesday Night Event 72,476.97

6024.2 · Conference 8,306.40

6024.3 · Food & Beverage 100,844.41

6024 · Hotel - Other 8,476.54

Total 6024 · Hotel 190,104.32

6025 · Program Material 3,573.24

6026 · Speakers 10,875.84

6028 · Travel 8,855.81

Total 6020 · Spring Conference 225,530.98

6053 · Technology/AMS/Website 10,223.07

6054 · Travel 1,103.14

66900 · Reconciliation Discrepancies -0.06

Total Expense 319,892.78

Net Ordinary Income 283,496.45

Net Income 283,496.45

 Page 2 of 2



 11:02 PM

 09/30/19

 Cash Basis

 STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 July through August 2019

Jul - Aug 19 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4100 · Membership Dues

4101 · Affiliates 173,750.01 268,750.00 -94,999.99 64.65%

4102 · Non Profit - Organizations 2,000.00 3,000.00 -1,000.00 66.67%

4103 · Non Profit - Systems 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 100.0%

4104 · Systems - Medium 52,000.00 52,000.00 0.00 100.0%

4105 · Systems - Large 42,000.00 42,000.00 0.00 100.0%

Total 4100 · Membership Dues 275,750.01 371,750.00 -95,999.99 74.18%

4250 · Product Income

4255 · Magazine Advertising 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0%

Total 4250 · Product Income 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0%

4270 · UC Berkeley Program

4271 · Registrations 7,500.00 100,000.00 -92,500.00 7.5%

4272 · Sponsorships 20,500.00 55,000.00 -34,500.00 37.27%

4270 · UC Berkeley Program - Other -2,500.00

Total 4270 · UC Berkeley Program 25,500.00 155,000.00 -129,500.00 16.45%

4300 · Fall Conference Registration

4301 · Affiliates - Early 142,790.00 165,230.00 -22,440.00 86.42%

4302 · Affiliates - Regular 0.00 100,000.00 -100,000.00 0.0%

4303 · Affiliates - Late/Onsite 0.00 35,000.00 -35,000.00 0.0%

4304 · Non Profit 240.00 1,000.00 -760.00 24.0%

4305 · Systems 5,400.00 25,000.00 -19,600.00 21.6%

4306 · Non-Members 125,490.00 255,000.00 -129,510.00 49.21%

4307 · Fun Run 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%

4308 · Yoga 0.00 300.00 -300.00 0.0%

4300 · Fall Conference Registration - Other -2,670.00

Total 4300 · Fall Conference Registration 271,250.00 582,530.00 -311,280.00 46.56%

4350 · Spring Conference Registration

4351 · Affiliates - Early 0.00 160,000.00 -160,000.00 0.0%

4352 · Affiliates - Regular 30,510.00 100,000.00 -69,490.00 30.51%

4353 · Affiliates - Late/Onsite 0.00 35,000.00 -35,000.00 0.0%

4354 · Non Profit 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%

4355 · Systems 0.00 22,500.00 -22,500.00 0.0%

4356 · Non-Members 0.00 255,000.00 -255,000.00 0.0%

4357 · Fun Run 150.00 1,000.00 -850.00 15.0%

4358 · Yoga 100.00 350.00 -250.00 28.57%

Total 4350 · Spring Conference Registration 30,760.00 574,850.00 -544,090.00 5.35%

4900 · Interest Earned 129.22

Total Income 603,389.23 1,686,130.00 -1,082,740.77 35.79%

Gross Profit 603,389.23 1,686,130.00 -1,082,740.77 35.79%

Expense

5000 · Administrative Fee 15,000.00 180,000.00 -165,000.00 8.33%

5001 · Administrative Services 825.70 500.00 325.70 165.14%

 Page 1 of 3



 11:02 PM

 09/30/19

 Cash Basis

 STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 July through August 2019

Jul - Aug 19 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

5002 · Awards 387.35 500.00 -112.65 77.47%

5003 · Bank Charges/Credit Card Fees 12,005.02 36,000.00 -23,994.98 33.35%

5010 · Berkeley & Symposium

5011 · Audio/Visual 0.00 2,200.00 -2,200.00 0.0%

5013 · Hotel 10,625.53 12,000.00 -1,374.47 88.55%

5014 · Food & Beverage 0.00 13,000.00 -13,000.00 0.0%

5015 · Materials/Printing/Design 570.94 2,900.00 -2,329.06 19.69%

5016 · Travel 510.53 2,500.00 -1,989.47 20.42%

5017 · UC Berkeley 0.00 206,000.00 -206,000.00 0.0%

Total 5010 · Berkeley & Symposium 11,707.00 238,600.00 -226,893.00 4.91%

5030 · CERL

5031 · Materials/Printing/Design 0.00 16,500.00 -16,500.00 0.0%

5032 · Shipping 0.00 1,300.00 -1,300.00 0.0%

Total 5030 · CERL 0.00 17,800.00 -17,800.00 0.0%

5040 · Commissions & Fees 0.00 20,000.00 -20,000.00 0.0%

5041 · Consulting 9,332.00 19,992.00 -10,660.00 46.68%

5042 · Dues & Subscriptions 0.00 3,700.00 -3,700.00 0.0%

5050 · Fall Conference

5051 · Audio/Visual 0.00 50,000.00 -50,000.00 0.0%

5052 · Delivery & Shipping 0.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00 0.0%

5053 · Entertainment 0.00 6,500.00 -6,500.00 0.0%

5054 · Hotel

5054.1 · Wednesday Night Event 0.00 75,000.00 -75,000.00 0.0%

5054.2 · Conference 2,000.00 15,000.00 -13,000.00 13.33%

5054 · Hotel - Other 0.00 275,000.00 -275,000.00 0.0%

Total 5054 · Hotel 2,000.00 365,000.00 -363,000.00 0.55%

5055 · Program Material 0.00 30,000.00 -30,000.00 0.0%

5056 · Speakers 5,385.00 50,000.00 -44,615.00 10.77%

5057 · Supplies 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%

5058 · Travel 813.87 15,000.00 -14,186.13 5.43%

Total 5050 · Fall Conference 8,198.87 520,000.00 -511,801.13 1.58%

5070 · Insurance 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%

5071 · Legal & Professional Fees 2,744.00 35,000.00 -32,256.00 7.84%

5072 · Legislative Advocacy 10,002.00 60,012.00 -50,010.00 16.67%

5080 · Magazine

5081 · Delivery & Shipping 0.00 600.00 -600.00 0.0%

5082 · Design/Printing/Etc. 2,640.00 20,000.00 -17,360.00 13.2%

5080 · Magazine - Other 0.00 5,200.00 -5,200.00 0.0%

Total 5080 · Magazine 2,640.00 25,800.00 -23,160.00 10.23%

6000 · Board & Committees

6001 · Board of Directors

6001.1 · Food & Beverage 4,733.62 8,500.00 -3,766.38 55.69%

6001.2 · Printing/Supplies 598.13 4,000.00 -3,401.87 14.95%

6001.3 · Travel - BOD Meetings 1,854.11 11,000.00 -9,145.89 16.86%

 Page 2 of 3



 11:02 PM

 09/30/19

 Cash Basis

 STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
 July through August 2019

Jul - Aug 19 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

6001.4 · Travel - Miscellaneous BOD 0.00 1,200.00 -1,200.00 0.0%

6001 · Board of Directors - Other 698.82 3,000.00 -2,301.18 23.29%

Total 6001 · Board of Directors 7,884.68 27,700.00 -19,815.32 28.47%

6002 · Legislative Committee Meetings 10.95 250.00 -239.05 4.38%

6003 · Program Committee Meetings 0.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00 0.0%

6000 · Board & Committees - Other 0.00 175.00 -175.00 0.0%

Total 6000 · Board & Committees 7,895.63 30,625.00 -22,729.37 25.78%

6010 · Office Expenses / Supplies 1,929.58 2,500.00 -570.42 77.18%

6011 · Postage & Delivery 368.50 2,500.00 -2,131.50 14.74%

6020 · Spring Conference

6021 · Audio/Visual 6,155.29 50,000.00 -43,844.71 12.31%

6022 · Delivery & Shipping 5,966.48 3,000.00 2,966.48 198.88%

6023 · Entertainment 0.00 6,500.00 -6,500.00 0.0%

6024 · Hotel

6024.1 · Wednesday Night Event 72,476.97 75,000.00 -2,523.03 96.64%

6024.2 · Conference 8,306.40

6024.3 · Food & Beverage 100,844.41

6024 · Hotel - Other 8,476.54 275,000.00 -266,523.46 3.08%

Total 6024 · Hotel 190,104.32 350,000.00 -159,895.68 54.32%

6025 · Program Material 3,573.24 35,000.00 -31,426.76 10.21%

6026 · Speakers 10,875.84 50,000.00 -39,124.16 21.75%

6027 · Supplies 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%

6028 · Travel 8,855.81 15,000.00 -6,144.19 59.04%

Total 6020 · Spring Conference 225,530.98 510,500.00 -284,969.02 44.18%

6050 · Strategic Facilitator 0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.0%

6051 · Taxes & Licenses 0.00 50.00 -50.00 0.0%

6053 · Technology/AMS/Website 10,223.07 30,000.00 -19,776.93 34.08%

6054 · Travel 1,103.14 10,000.00 -8,896.86 11.03%

66900 · Reconciliation Discrepancies -0.06

Total Expense 319,892.78 1,759,079.00 -1,439,186.22 18.19%

Net Ordinary Income 283,496.45 -72,949.00 356,445.45 -388.62%

Net Income 283,496.45 -72,949.00 356,445.45 -388.62%

 Page 3 of 3



Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4100 · Membership Dues

4101 · Affiliates 268,750.00

4102 · Non Profit - Organizations 3,000.00

4103 · Non Profit - Systems 6,000.00

4104 · Systems - Medium 52,000.00

4105 · Systems - Large 42,000.00

Total 4100 · Membership Dues 371,750.00

4250 · Product Income

4255 · Magazine Advertising 2,000.00

Total 4250 · Product Income 2,000.00

4270 · UC Berkeley Program

4271 · Registrations 100,000.00

4272 · Sponsorships 55,000.00

4270 · UC Berkeley Program - Other

Total 4270 · UC Berkeley Program 155,000.00

4300 · Fall Conference Registration

4301 · Affiliates - Early 165,230.00

4302 · Affiliates - Regular 100,000.00

4303 · Affiliates - Late/Onsite 35,000.00

4304 · Non Profit 1,000.00

4305 · Systems 25,000.00

4306 · Non-Members 255,000.00

4307 · Fun Run 1,000.00

4308 · Yoga 300.00

4300 · Fall Conference Registration - Other

Total 4300 · Fall Conference Registration 582,530.00

4350 · Spring Conference Registration

4351 · Affiliates - Early 160,000.00

4352 · Affiliates - Regular 100,000.00

4353 · Affiliates - Late/Onsite 35,000.00

4354 · Non Profit 1,000.00

4355 · Systems 22,500.00

4356 · Non-Members 255,000.00

4357 · Fun Run 1,000.00

4358 · Yoga 350.00

Total 4350 · Spring Conference Registration 574,850.00

4900 · Interest Earned

Total Income 1,686,130.00

Gross Profit 1,686,130.00

Expense

5000 · Administrative Fee 180,000.00

5001 · Administrative Services 500.00

STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY 
RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

2019-2020 Budget



5002 · Awards 500.00

5003 · Bank Charges/Credit Card Fees 36,000.00

5010 · Berkeley & Symposium

5011 · Audio/Visual 2,200.00

5013 · Hotel 12,000.00

5014 · Food & Beverage 13,000.00

5015 · Materials/Printing/Design 2,900.00

5016 · Travel 2,500.00

5017 · UC Berkeley 206,000.00

Total 5010 · Berkeley & Symposium 238,600.00

5030 · CERL

5031 · Materials/Printing/Design 16,500.00

5032 · Shipping 1,300.00

Total 5030 · CERL 17,800.00

5040 · Commissions & Fees 20,000.00

5041 · Consulting 19,992.00

5042 · Dues & Subscriptions 3,700.00

5050 · Fall Conference

5051 · Audio/Visual 50,000.00

5052 · Delivery & Shipping 2,500.00

5053 · Entertainment 6,500.00

5054 · Hotel

5054.1 · Wednesday Night Event 75,000.00

5054.2 · Conference 15,000.00

5054 · Hotel - Other 275,000.00

Total 5054 · Hotel 365,000.00

5055 · Program Material 30,000.00

5056 · Speakers 50,000.00

5057 · Supplies 1,000.00

5058 · Travel 15,000.00

Total 5050 · Fall Conference 520,000.00

5070 · Insurance 5,000.00

5071 · Legal & Professional Fees 35,000.00

5072 · Legislative Advocacy 60,012.00

5080 · Magazine

5081 · Delivery & Shipping 600.00

5082 · Design/Printing/Etc. 20,000.00

5080 · Magazine - Other 5,200.00

Total 5080 · Magazine 25,800.00

6000 · Board & Committees

6001 · Board of Directors

6001.1 · Food & Beverage 8,500.00

6001.2 · Printing/Supplies 4,000.00

6001.3 · Travel - BOD Meetings 11,000.00

6001.4 · Travel - Miscellaneous BOD 1,200.00

6001 · Board of Directors - Other 3,000.00



Total 6001 · Board of Directors 27,700.00

6002 · Legislative Committee Meetings 250.00

6003 · Program Committee Meetings 2,500.00

6000 · Board & Committees - Other 175.00

Total 6000 · Board & Committees 30,625.00

6010 · Office Expenses / Supplies 2,500.00

6011 · Postage & Delivery 2,500.00

6020 · Spring Conference

6021 · Audio/Visual 50,000.00

6022 · Delivery & Shipping 3,000.00

6023 · Entertainment 6,500.00

6024 · Hotel

6024.1 · Wednesday Night Event 75,000.00

6024.2 · Conference

6024.3 · Food & Beverage

6024 · Hotel - Other 275,000.00

Total 6024 · Hotel 350,000.00

6025 · Program Material 35,000.00

6026 · Speakers 50,000.00

6027 · Supplies 1,000.00

6028 · Travel 15,000.00

Total 6020 · Spring Conference 510,500.00

6050 · Strategic Facilitator 10,000.00

6051 · Taxes & Licenses 50.00

6053 · Technology/AMS/Website 30,000.00

6054 · Travel 10,000.00

66900 · Reconciliation Discrepancies

Total Expense 1,759,079.00

Net Ordinary Income -72,949.00

Net Income -72,949.00



 
4. SACRS President Report - No Action 
Dan McAllister, San Diego CERA, SACRS President 
 

A. SACRS President Update 

 



 
No Printed Materials For This Item 

 



 
5. SACRS Legislative Committee Update - Vote 
Eric Stern, Sacramento CERS and Dave Nelsen, Alameda CERA – SACRS Legislative Committee 
Co-Chairs 
 

A. 2019 Legislative Report – No Action 
B. SACRS Omnibus Bill SB 783- Vote 
C. Los Angeles CERA Proposal – Vote  

 



 
SACRS Legislative Committee 

Ad Hoc Committee on Employer Liabilities 
August 2019 

 
 
On February 15, 2019, the Legislative Committee established an ad hoc committee to 
study the statutory tools that county retirement systems can use to ensure payment of 
contributions from employers.  Dave Nelsen (Alameda), Gina Ratto (Orange), Eric Stern 
(Sacramento), Julie Wyne (Sonoma), and actuarial adivisor Andy Yeung (Segal 
Consulting) were appointed to the ad hoc committee.   
 
This memo reflects the ad hoc committee’s findings and recommendations. 
 
Background 
 
This issue gained media attention in recent years as CalPERS exercised its statutory 
authority for the first time to reduce benefit payments for retirees after two employers 
terminated membership and stopped making required pension payments.  CalPERS 
also has statutory authority to place a lien on the assets of a terminating agency. 
 
County retirement systems do not have the same enforcement tools as CalPERS, 
though several CERL statutes address the retirement board’s authority to require 
payments from counties and districts. 
 

• Policy question:  Is more legislation needed to provide CERL systems with 
sufficient tools to ensure payments from employers? 

 
Recommendations 
 
The ad hoc committee does not recommend any significant legislative changes. 
 

• We believe the current statutory structure and case law provide the necessary 
legal support for collecting contributions from employers. 

• We advise CERL systems to adopt declining employer payroll and/or terminating 
employer liability policies to establish a process to identify liabilities and collect 
payments from employers.  

• We also recommend that CERL systems use strong language in participation 
agreements with district employers that include contractual remedies for a 
breach. 

• We recommend affirming the Mijares ruling in the CERL omnibus bill, SB 783, to 
emphasize the Board’s authority to collect contributions from employers, 



 
regardless of whether the county or district has active employees participating in 
the retirement system. 

• We do not recommend pursuing CalPERS-type remedies, such as reducing 
member’s benefits or securing a lien for collection purposes, though those tools 
may be appropriate for a larger system like CalPERS, with 3,000 participating 
employers and more resources. 

 
Analysis 
 

• Public employees have a contractual right to an actuarially sound retirement 
system.  Board of Administration v. Wilson (1997) 52 Cal.App.4th 1109 at 1137 

• Retirement Boards have the sole and exclusive duty to administer the system in 
a manner that will assure prompt delivery of benefits and to provide for actuarial 
services to assure the competency of assets.  County of Orange v. Association of 
Orange County Deputy Sheriffs (2011) 192 Cal.App.4th 21 at 34; Cal. 
Constitution Article XVI, Sec. 17 

• Contribution rates are binding on the County and participating districts and are 
set by law. City of Oakland v. PERS (2002) 95 Cal.App.4th 29 at 49; In re 
Retirement Cases (2003) 110 Cal.App.4th 421 at 453 and CERL Section 31586 

• The obligation to pay the unfunded liability arises from predictions and future 
estimates about often-fluctuating factors over the years and is a highly variable 
amount.  Orange, supra at 37 

• The court in the Mijares case that OCERS took up on appeal found that Section 
31453.5 applied to both active and inactive employers who have retired 
employees currently receiving benefits from the County retirement 
system.  Mijares v. Orange County Employees Retirement System, 32 Cal.App. 
5th 316 

• The Mijares court also found that the unfunded liability payment is not required to 
be deducted from active employee payroll and recognized the system’s right to 
recommend changes in county and district appropriations as necessary. (Section 
31453) 

• The Mijares court also found that the board’s plenary constitutional authority to 
administer the system in a manner that will assure prompt delivery of benefits 
and related services to participants and beneficiaries supports the ability to 
collect from an employer that has no active payroll but still has deferred or retired 
members.  

  





 
2020 CERL Clean-Up/Omnibus Bill 

 
August 28, 2019 
 
Dear SACRS Board of Directors:  
 
At its August 16, 2019 meeting, the Legislative Committee approved bill language for a CERL 
Omnibus Bill and recommended approval by the SACRS Board of Directors.   
 
A “shell” bill – SB 783 – has been filed on behalf of SACRS by the Senate Committee on Labor, 
Public Employment and Retirement.  If approved by the SACRS membership at the Fall 
Conference, SB 783 can be amended in January 2020 for consideration during the 2020 
legislative session. 
 
The enclosed language reflects the work of Legislative Committee members, in collaboration 
with system administrators, over the past six months to develop non-controversial, technical, 
and clarifying amendments to the CERL.  The proposed amendments will help the 1937 Act 
systems administer benefits in accordance with changes in federal law and recent appellate 
court rulings, provide more flexibility to Retirement Boards, and add parity to the CERL by 
aligning certain statutes with CalPERS and CalSTRS laws.  Specifically, the amendments: 
 

• Consolidate the military service-credit statues to better conform to federal law and 
ensure members who are called to duty are made whole for their time away. 

• Affirm the recent Mijares v. OCERS appellate case regarding an employer’s liability and 
obligation to make contributions for pension benefits.   

• Allow counties to authorize members to purchase parental leave service credit, aligning 
with CalPERS and CalSTRS statutes and evolving law about family leave.  

• Clarify existing law regarding which benefit tier a member rejoins when reinstated to 
active service after an involuntary separation is overturned. 

• Allow Boards to delegate to staff the authority to finalize retirement applications and put 
retirees on payroll, in compliance with the Wilmot vs CCCERA ruling.   

• Provide flexibility to Retirement Boards to accept retirement applications earlier than the 
current 60-day limit.  

• Allow for the lump-sum distribution of contributions when a member reaches mandatory 
distribution age instead of requiring a pension benefit that may be only a few dollars. 

• Update incorrect statutory references, and make other technical changes. 

 
The bill language and a summary matrix are enclosed. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
Dave Nelsen and Eric Stern 
Legislative Committee Co-Chairs 



Page 1 of 8 
 

Amendments to SB 783 
 

VERSION 5 
 

As Adopted by SACRS Legislative Committee  
August 16, 2019 

 
 

 
Additional Member Contributions; Removes Incorrect Cross Reference  
 
Amend Section 31465: 
 
 “Additional contributions” means contributions made by members in addition to normal 
contributions under Sections 31504 and  Section  31627. 
 
 
Additional Member Contributions; Removes Incorrect Cross Reference  
 
Amend Section 31627.1: 
 
 A member who has additional contributions under Section 31627 of the 
Government Code, or under Section 31504 of the Government Code,  Code  may, within 
30 days prior to retirement, elect in writing to have all or any part of his  the 
member’s  accumulated additional contributions returned to him.  the member.  The 
portion returned shall not be included in the calculation of the member’s annuity. 
 
Additional Member Contributions; Removes Incorrect Cross Reference  
 
Amend Section 31627.2: 
 
In any county in which the provisions of Section 31676.1 apply, any member who has 
additional contributions under Section 31504 of the Government Code, or under 
Section  31627 of the Government Code, Code  may elect in writing to have all or any 
part of his  the member’s  accumulated additional contributions returned to him.  the 
member.  The portion returned shall not be included in the calculation of the member’s 
annuity. The board may order payment in whole or in part withheld for a period not to 
exceed 90 days after receipt of such written election. 
 
Amend Section 31631.5: 
 
Member Contributions; Removes Incorrect Cross Reference  
 
 (a) (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, a board of supervisors or the 
governing body of a district may require that members pay 50 percent of the normal cost 
of benefits. However, that contribution shall be no more than 14 percent above the 



Page 2 of 8 
 

applicable normal rate of contribution of members established pursuant to this article for 
local general members, no more than 33 percent above the applicable normal rate of 
contribution of members established pursuant to Article 6.8 (commencing with 
Section 21639) 31639)  for local police officers, local firefighters, county peace officers, 
and no more than 37 percent above the applicable normal rate of contribution of members 
established pursuant to Article 6.8 (commencing with Section 31639) for all local safety 
members other than police officers, firefighters, and county peace officers. 
(2) Before implementing any change pursuant to this subdivision for any represented 
employees, the public employer shall complete the good faith bargaining process as 
required by law, including any impasse procedures requiring mediation and factfinding. 
This subdivision shall become operative on January 1, 2018. This subdivision shall not 
apply to any bargaining unit when the members of that unit are paying at least 50 percent 
of the normal cost of their pension benefit or are subject to an agreement reached 
pursuant to paragraph (1). Applicable normal rate of contribution of members means the 
statutorily authorized rate applicable to the member group as the statutes read on 
December 31, 2012. 
(b) Nothing in this section shall modify a board of supervisors’ or the governing body of a 
district’s authority under law as it existed on December 31, 2012, including any restrictions 
on that authority, to change the amount of member contributions. 
 
Employer Liabilities; Affirming the Mijares vs OCERS Ruling 
 
Amend Section 31453: 
 
(a) An actuarial valuation shall be made within one year after the date on which any 
system established under this chapter becomes effective, and thereafter at intervals not 
to exceed three years. The valuation shall be conducted under the supervision of an 
actuary and shall cover the mortality, service, and compensation experience of the 
members and beneficiaries, and shall evaluate the assets and liabilities of the 
retirement fund. Upon the basis of the investigation, valuation, and recommendation of 
the actuary, the board shall, at least 45 days prior to the beginning of the succeeding 
fiscal year, recommend to the board of supervisors the changes in the rates of interest, 
in the rates of contributions of members, and in county and district appropriations as are 
necessary. With respect to the rates of interest to be credited to members and to the 
county or district, the board may, in its sound discretion, recommend a rate which is 
higher or lower than the interest assumption rate established by the actuarial survey. No 
adjustment shall be included in the new rates for time prior to the effective date of the 
revision. (b)(1) Upon the basis of the investigation, valuation, and recommendation of 
the actuary, the board shall, at least 45 days prior to the beginning of the succeeding 
fiscal year, recommend to the governing body of a district within the county system that 
is not governed by the board of supervisors the changes in the rates of contributions of 
district members and in district appropriations as are necessary. (2) This subdivision 
shall not be operative in any county until the board of supervisors, by resolution adopted 
by majority vote, makes the provisions applicable in that county. 
 



Page 3 of 8 
 

(c) The legislature affirms the ruling of Mijares v. Orange County Employees 
Retirement System (2019) 32 Cal.App.5th 316 with respect to the board’s plenary 
authority to recommend adjustments to county and district contributions as 
necessary to ensure the appropriate funding of the system, and with respect to 
the mandate of Section 31454 that the county and districts adjust the rates of 
contributions of members and appropriations in accordance with the board’s 
recommendations.   Under all circumstances, the county and districts shall each 
remain liable to the retirement system for their respective share of any unfunded 
actuarial liability of the system, as determined by the board. 
 
 
Member Refunds; Removes Incorrect Cross Reference 
 
Amend Section 31641.45: 
 
Whenever a member is entitled to redeposit funds previously withdrawn from a 
retirement system and thereby becomes eligible to receive a pension or retirement 
allowance for the service for which he was granted public service credit as authorized in 
Section 31641.1, regardless of whether or not the member elects to exercise such 
entitlement, the member shall be refunded the amount deposited by him in accordance 
with Section 31641.2 plus interest which has been credited to such amount and shall 
receive no credit in the system for such service. 
 
This section applies only to a member who would be eligible to receive the benefit of 
Section 31835 or 20023.120638 on making the redeposit. 
 
 
Concurrent Retirement; Clarifies Age Requirement for PEPRA members 
 
Amend Section 31835.1 to read: 
 
Notwithstanding the provisions of Sections 31835 and 31836, a member of a retirement 
system established under this chapter who is eligible to retire at age 50 pursuant to 
Section 31672 or Section 7522.25, or at age 52 pursuant to Section 7522.20, or who 
is required to retire because of age while a member of the Public Employees’ 
Retirement System, a retirement system established under this chapter in another 
county, the State Teachers’ Retirement System, or a retirement system of any other 
public agency of the state that has established reciprocity with the Public Employees’ 
Retirement System subject to the conditions of Section 31840.2, but who cannot retire 
concurrently from the Public Employees’ Retirement System, a retirement system 
established under this chapter in another county, the State Teachers’ Retirement 
System, or a retirement system of any other public agency of the state that has 
established reciprocity with the Public Employees’ Retirement System subject to the 
conditions of Section 31840.2, shall be entitled to have his final compensation and 
service determined under Sections 31835 and 31836 as if he had retired concurrently 
under such other system. 



Page 4 of 8 
 

 
 
Service Credit Purchases for Parental Leave 
 
Amend 31646:  
 

(a) A member who returns to active service following an uncompensated leave of 
absence on account of illness may receive service credit for the period of such 
absence upon the payment of the contributions that the member would have paid 
during such period, together with the interest that such contributions would have 
earned had they been on deposit, if the member was not absent. The 
contributions may be paid in a lump sum or may be paid on a monthly basis for a 
period of not more than the length of the period for which service credit is 
claimed. Credit may not be received for any period of such absence in excess of 
12 consecutive months.  

(b) (1) A member who returns to active service following an uncompensated 
leave of absence on account of parental leave, may receive service credit 
for the period of such absence upon the payment of the contributions that 
the member and the employer would have paid during such period, 
together with the interest that such contributions would have earned had 
they been on deposit, if the member was not absent. For purposes of this 
subsection, parental leave is defined as any time, up to one year, during 
which a member is granted an approved maternity or paternity leave and 
returns to employment at the end of the approved leave for a period of time 
at least equal to that leave. The contributions may be paid in a lump sum or 
may be paid on a monthly basis for a period of not more than the length of 
the period for which service credit is claimed. Credit may not be received 
for any period of such absence in excess of 12 consecutive months. 
(2) This subsection shall not be operative until the board of supervisors, by 
resolution adopted by majority vote, makes the provisions applicable to 
that county, and applies to parental leave that commences after the 
adoption by the board of supervisors. 

 
Military Leave; Streamlines Military Service Credit Provisions 
 
Government Code section 31649 should be amended to read: 
 

(a)  Any member who resigns to enter and does enter the Armed Forces of 
the United States on a voluntary or involuntary basis, and within 90 days 
after the termination of that service under honorable conditions, reenters 
county service, or  

(b) Any member who obtains a leave of absence to enter and does enter the 
Armed Forces of the United States on a voluntary or involuntary basis, 
and within one year after the termination under honorable conditions of 



Page 5 of 8 
 

leave of absence reenters county service, if he or she has not contributed 
to the retirement fund the total percentage of his or her compensation 
earnable due pursuant to Section 31461 or pensionable compensation as 
defined in Section 7522.34, whichever is applicable, due under this 
chapter for the entire period during which he or she was out of county 
service and in military service, may, not more than 90 days after his or her 
reentrance into county service, file with the board his or her election that 
no further contributions be deducted from his or her compensation except 
contributions due because of current service.  

(c) A member who reenters county service under either (a) or (b) above may 
be allowed up to five years credit for vesting in the system 

 
 
(a) This chapter shall comply with the Uniformed Services Employment 

and Reemployment Act of 1994 (USERRA) (38 U.S.C. § 4301 et. seq.) 
as amended from time to time.  Any member who was absent from 
county or district employment for military service and is eligible for 
reemployment benefits pursuant to USERRA, may, as provided in 
USERRA, make contributions and receive service credit for the time 
absent. 

(b) Any member who does not qualify for reemployment benefits under 
(a) due to the length of the military service and who returns to county 
or district employment within one year of being honorably 
discharged from the Armed Forces of the United States, shall receive 
credit for service for all or any part of his or her military service, if, 
before retirement from the county or district, he or she contributes 
what he or she would have paid to the fund based on his or her 
compensation earnable as defined by section 31461 or pensionable 
compensation as defined in section 7522.34, whichever is applicable, 
at the time of the beginning of the absence together with regular 
interest thereon. 

(c) Nothing in this section shall affect any arrangement to pay 
contributions pursuant to section 31653. 

 
Sections 31649.5, 31649.6, 31650, and 31651 should be repealed. 
 
Board Approval/Notification of Retirement Applications; Delegation to Staff 
 
Amend Section 31670:   
 

(a) Retirement of a member who has met the requirements for age and service shall 
be made by the board pursuant to this article or pursuant to the California Public 
Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013, whichever is applicable.  

(b) The board may authorize the administrator or other personnel to exercise 
the board’s power and perform its duty to retire members under this 
section.  The administrator or other personnel shall report service 



Page 6 of 8 
 

retirements to the board at the next public meeting of the board after the 
retirement.   

 
 
Amend Section 31662.2: 
 

(a) Retirement of a safety member in a county subject to the provisions of 31676.1, 
or of Section 31695.1, if applicable, who has met the requirements for age and 
service shall be made by the board pursuant to this article or pursuant to the 
California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013, whichever is 
applicable. 

(b) The board may authorize the administrator or other personnel to exercise 
the board’s power and perform its duty to retire members under this 
section.  The administrator or other personnel shall report service 
retirements to the board at the next public meeting of the board after the 
retirement.   

 
60-Day Application Window; Provides Option for Longer Period 
 
Amend Sections 31672, 31672.1, 31672.2, 31672.3 et al:  
 
…may be retired upon filing with the board a written application, setting forth the date 
upon which he or she desires his or her retirement to become effective not earlier than 
the date the application is filed with the board and not more than 60 days after the date 
of filing the application.  That effective retirement date shall not be:  

(a) earlier than the date the application is filed with the board, and  
(b) more than 60 days after the date of filing the application, or such number of 

days as approved by the Board.    
 
Reinstatement to Prior Benefit Level 
 
Add Section 31680.10:  
 

(a) A person who has been retired under this chapter for service following an 
involuntary termination of his or her employment, and who is subsequently 
reinstated to that employment pursuant to an administrative or judicial 
proceeding that is final and not subject to appeal, shall be reinstated from 
retirement as if there were no intervening period of retirement. Except as 
provided in subdivision (b), the requirements of Sections 31680.4, 31680.5, 
and 31680.7 shall not apply to that reinstatement.  

(b) The allowance received by the person during retirement shall be repaid by 
him or her to the retirement system from which he or she retired in 
accordance with the retirement system’s repayment policy. Contributions 
shall be made for any period for which salary is awarded in the 
administrative or judicial proceedings in the amount that would have 
contributed had the member’s employment not been terminated, and he or 



Page 7 of 8 
 

she shall receive credit for the period for which salary is awarded. If the 
person fails to repay the allowance received during retirement, then his or 
her contributions and allowance upon retirement subsequent to 
reinstatement shall be calculated under Sections 31680.5 or 31680.7, as 
applicable.  

(c) As used in this section, “administrative proceeding” means the process for 
appeal of an involuntary termination established by county or district 
ordinance or charter.  

(d) This section shall only apply to persons reinstated to such employment by 
final action on or after the effective date of this section pursuant to an 
administrative or judicial proceeding.  

 
 
Minimum Age Distributions; Timing and Lump-Sum Option 
 
 
Amend Section 31706: 
 
Any member who has left county service and has elected to leave accumulated 
contributions in the retirement fund or who is deemed to have elected a deferred 
retirement pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 31700 and has attained age 70 but has 
not yet applied for a deferred retirement allowance and who is not a reciprocal member 
of a retirement system established pursuant to this chapter or the Public Employees’ 
Retirement Law shall be notified in writing by the treasurer, or other entity authorized by 
the board, that the member is eligible to apply for and shall begin receiving either; a 
deferred retirement allowance by April 1 of the year following the year in which the 
member attains age 70 ½, or, a one-time distribution of all accumulated 
contributions and interest. The notification shall be made at the time the deferred 
member attains age 70 and shall be sent by certified mail to the member’s last known 
address, or to the member’s last known employer, as shown by the records of the 
retirement system. If the member can be located but does not make proper application 
for a deferred retirement allowance with retirement to be effective by April 1 of the year 
following the year in which the member attains age 70 ½, the retirement system shall 
commence paying either an unmodified allowance to the member if the member was 
eligible to begin receiving a deferred retirement allowance under the provisions 
of 31485.22, or, a one-time distribution of all accumulated contributions and 
interest if the member is otherwise ineligible for a deferred retirement allowance. 
If the member cannot be located by April 1 of the year following the year in which the 
member attains age 70 ½, all of the member’s accumulated contributions and interest 
thereon shall be deposited in, and become a part of, the current pension reserve fund of 
the retirement system. The board may at any time after transfer of proceeds to the 
reserve fund upon receipt of proper information satisfactory to it, redeposit the proceeds 
to the credit of the claimant, to be administered in the manner provided under this law. 
This section shall not apply to a member while the member is actively employed past 
mandatory retirement age in a retirement system established under the provisions of 
this chapter or the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.  



Page 8 of 8 
 

 
 
Optional Retirement Allowances and Survivor Benefits; Clarifies Age for Children 
 
Amend sections 31760.1, 31760.2, 31765, 31765.1, 31781.1, 31781.2, 31785, 31785.1, 
31786, 31786.1, 31787, and 31787.5: 

 
…Notwithstanding any other provisions of this section, the benefits otherwise payable to 
the children of the member shall be paid to such children through the age of 21those 
children up to the 22nd birthday of the children if such children remain unmarried and 
are regularly enrolled as full-time students in and accredited school as determined by 
the board. 

 
And, amend section 31855.3 (c) to read: 

 
(c) Between 18 and 22 years of age, Over age 18 but under age 22, and enrolled as a 
full-time student in an accredited school, as determined by the board. 
 
 



As
 A

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 L

eg
isl

at
iv

e 
Co

m
m

itt
ee

 A
ug

us
t 1

6,
 2

01
9

SB
 7

83
 --

 1
93

7 
Ac

t O
m

ni
bu

s B
ill

G
ov

 C
od

e
To

pi
c

Is
su

e/
Ju

st
ifi

ca
tio

n
31

46
5

Ad
di

tio
na

l m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

Re
m

ov
es

 in
co

rr
ec

t r
ef

er
en

ce
 to

 G
C 

31
50

4,
 w

hi
ch

 w
as

 re
pe

al
ed

31
62

7.
1

Ad
di

tio
na

l m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

, r
ef

un
ds

Re
m

ov
es

 in
co

rr
ec

t c
ro

ss
 re

fe
re

nc
e 

to
 G

C 
31

50
4;

 a
dd

s g
en

de
r n

eu
tr

al
 la

ng
ua

ge
31

62
7.

2
Ad

di
tio

na
l m

em
be

r c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
, r

ef
un

ds
Re

m
ov

es
 in

co
rr

ec
t c

ro
ss

 re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 G
C 

31
50

4;
 a

dd
s g

en
de

r n
eu

tr
al

 la
ng

ua
ge

31
63

1.
5

M
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

, n
or

m
al

 c
os

t-
sh

ar
in

g
Fi

xe
s i

nc
or

re
ct

 c
ro

ss
 re

fe
re

nc
e 

to
 G

C 
31

63
9 

(c
ur

re
nt

ly
 2

16
39

)
31

45
3

W
ith

dr
aw

n 
Em

pl
oy

er
 L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s
Af

fir
m

s M
ija

re
s v

s.
 O

CE
RS

 ru
lin

g 
to

 e
m

ph
as

ize
 B

oa
rd

's 
au

th
or

ity
 to

 se
t c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 fo
r 

em
pl

oy
er

s (
ev

en
 if

 th
ey

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 h

av
e 

ac
tiv

e 
m

em
be

rs
) t

o 
en

su
re

 su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
of

 th
e 

fu
nd

.
31

64
1.

45
Re

fu
nd

s
Re

m
ov

es
 in

co
rr

ec
t c

ro
ss

 re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 2
00

23
.1

, w
hi

ch
 w

as
 re

pe
al

ed
 in

 1
99

5.
 

31
64

6
Se

rv
ic

e 
Pu

rc
ha

se
 fo

r U
nc

om
pe

ns
at

ed
 Il

ln
es

s
Al

lo
w

s m
em

be
rs

 to
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

pa
re

nt
al

 le
av

e 
tim

e,
 si

m
ila

r t
o 

Ca
lP

ER
S 

(G
C 

21
01

3)
 a

nd
 

Ca
lS

TR
S 

(E
C 

22
80

3)
.  

Cu
rr

en
t s

ta
tu

te
 d

oe
s n

ot
 p

er
m

it 
pu

rc
ha

se
s f

or
 u

np
ai

d 
ab

se
nc

es
 

ot
he

r t
ha

n 
fo

r i
lln

es
s.

  T
hi

s a
m

en
dm

en
t a

dd
s p

ar
ity

 fo
r c

ou
nt

y 
re

tir
em

en
t s

ys
te

m
s i

n 
an

 
ar

ea
 o

f l
aw

 a
nd

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
th

at
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ev
ol

vi
ng

 re
ga

rd
in

g 
pa

re
nt

al
 le

av
e.

  U
nl

ik
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

st
at

ut
e 

th
at

 re
qu

ire
s o

nl
y 

m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 fo
r s

er
vi

ce
 p

ur
ch

as
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 u

np
ai

d 
m

ed
ic

al
 le

av
e,

 th
is 

am
en

dm
en

t r
eq

ui
re

s t
he

 m
em

be
r t

o 
pa

y 
AL

L 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 

(e
m

pl
oy

ee
 a

nd
 e

m
pl

oy
er

). 
 T

hi
s p

ro
vi

sio
n 

al
so

 re
qu

ire
 B

O
S 

ap
pr

ov
al

, a
nd

 a
pp

lie
s 

pr
os

pe
ct

iv
el

y 
to

 fu
tu

re
 p

ar
en

ta
l l

ea
ve

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

EP
RA

's 
ba

n 
on

 
re

tr
oa

ct
iv

e 
be

ne
fit

 in
cr

ea
se

s.

31
64

9
31

64
9.

5,
 

31
64

9.
5,

 
31

64
9.

6,
 

31
65

0,
 a

nd
 

31
65

1 

M
ili

ta
ry

 L
ea

ve
Co

ns
ol

id
at

es
 m

ili
ta

ry
 se

rv
ic

e 
cr

ed
it 

st
at

ut
es

 to
 c

on
fo

rm
 to

 fe
de

ra
l l

aw
s t

o 
en

su
re

 
m

em
be

rs
 w

ho
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
al

le
d 

to
 d

ut
y 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
 to

 w
or

k 
ca

n 
be

 m
ad

e 
w

ho
le

 fo
r 

re
tir

em
en

t p
ur

po
se

s d
ue

 to
 th

ei
r l

ea
ve

 o
f a

bs
en

ce
. T

he
se

 a
m

en
dm

en
ts

 d
o 

no
t c

on
ta

in
 

po
lic

y 
ch

an
ge

s,
 b

ut
 a

dd
 c

la
rit

y 
an

d 
re

m
ov

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l c

on
fli

ct
 w

ith
 fe

de
ra

l l
aw

 re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

e 
tr

ea
tm

en
t o

f m
ili

ta
ry

 se
rv

ic
e 

pu
rc

ha
se

s.

Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 3



As
 A

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 L

eg
isl

at
iv

e 
Co

m
m

itt
ee

 A
ug

us
t 1

6,
 2

01
9

31
66

2.
2

31
67

0
Bo

ar
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f R

et
ire

m
en

ts
De

le
ga

te
s a

ut
ho

rit
y 

to
 th

e 
sy

st
em

 a
dm

in
ist

ra
to

r o
r o

th
er

 p
er

so
nn

el
 to

 a
cc

ep
t a

nd
 

pr
oc

es
s s

er
vi

ce
 re

tir
em

en
t a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
, a

pp
ro

ve
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

re
tir

em
en

t d
at

es
, a

nd
 p

ay
 

m
em

be
rs

, a
nd

 d
ire

ct
s s

ta
ff 

to
 n

ot
ify

 B
oa

rd
 a

t t
he

 n
ex

t p
ub

lic
 m

ee
tin

g.
  T

he
 re

ce
nt

 
W

ilm
ot

 v
. C

CC
ER

A 
ap

pe
lla

te
 ru

lin
g 

ra
ise

d 
a 

qu
es

tio
n 

as
 to

 w
he

n 
a 

m
em

be
r o

ffi
ci

al
ly

 
re

tir
es

. T
he

 c
ou

rt
, c

iti
ng

 se
ct

io
n 

31
67

0,
 h

el
d 

th
at

 a
 m

em
be

r w
as

 n
ot

 re
tir

ed
 u

nt
il 

th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
fo

rm
al

ly
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

th
e 

m
em

be
r’s

 re
tir

em
en

t a
pp

lic
at

io
n.

 T
he

re
 a

re
 v

ar
io

us
 

ap
pr

oa
ch

es
 th

at
 re

tir
em

en
t b

oa
rd

s c
ur

re
nt

ly
 u

se
 to

 a
pp

ro
ve

, r
at

ify
, o

r r
ev

ie
w

 se
rv

ic
e 

re
tir

em
en

t a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

. B
y 

fo
rm

al
ly

 d
el

eg
at

in
g 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 to
 st

af
f t

o 
pr

oc
es

s s
er

vi
ce

 
re

tir
em

en
ts

, c
ur

re
nt

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 c

an
 b

e 
co

di
fie

d 
to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 se
ct

io
n 

31
67

0 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

m
em

be
rs

 c
an

 b
e 

pa
id

 in
 a

 ti
m

el
y 

m
an

ne
r. 

31
67

2,
 

31
67

2.
1,

 
31

67
2.

2,
 

31
67

2.
3

60
-D

ay
 A

dv
an

ce
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
W

in
do

w
Al

lo
w

s e
ac

h 
sy

st
em

 to
 se

t a
n 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

w
in

do
w

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
bu

sin
es

s n
ee

ds
/a

bi
lit

y.
 

St
at

ut
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 p
ro

hi
bi

ts
 m

em
be

rs
 fr

om
 su

bm
itt

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 m
or

e 
th

an
 6

0 
da

ys
 

be
fo

re
 re

tir
em

en
t, 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 re

m
ai

n 
th

e 
de

fa
ul

t u
nl

es
s p

ro
ac

tiv
el

y 
ch

an
ge

d 
by

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d.
  T

he
 6

0-
da

y 
ru

le
 is

 a
rb

itr
ar

y 
an

d 
lik

el
y 

re
fle

ct
ed

 th
e 

co
ns

tr
ai

nt
s o

n 
a 

m
an

ua
l 

pr
oc

es
se

s.
  T

ec
hn

ol
og

y 
so

lu
tio

ns
 to

da
y 

ca
n 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fi

le
d 

ea
rli

er
, 

w
hi

ch
 c

an
 h

el
p 

fa
ci

lit
at

e 
re

tir
em

en
t p

la
nn

in
g 

fo
r t

he
 in

di
vi

du
al

 a
nd

 su
cc

es
sio

n 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

fo
r t

he
 e

m
pl

oy
er

.  
  

31
68

0
Re

in
st

at
em

en
t f

ro
m

 R
et

ire
m

en
t

Re
in

st
at

es
 to

 p
rio

r s
ta

tu
s m

em
be

rs
 w

ho
 h

ad
 in

vo
lu

nt
ar

ily
 te

rm
in

at
io

n 
ov

er
tu

rn
ed

 b
y 

ad
m

in
ist

ra
tiv

e 
or

 ju
di

ci
al

 p
ro

ce
ed

in
g.

  T
hi

s a
m

en
dm

en
t c

la
rif

ie
s w

ha
t T

ie
r t

he
 m

em
be

r 
sh

ou
ld

 re
tu

rn
 to

, i
f t

he
 m

em
be

r w
as

 se
pa

ra
te

d 
fr

om
 se

rv
ic

e 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ap
pe

al
 th

at
 m

ay
 

ha
ve

 st
re

tc
he

d 
fo

r l
on

g 
pe

rio
ds

.  
Si

m
ila

r t
o 

Ca
lP

ER
S 

(G
C 

21
19

8)

31
70

6
M

in
im

um
 A

ge
 D

ist
rib

ut
io

n
Co

nf
or

m
s t

o 
IR

C 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 th
e 

tim
in

g 
of

 n
ot

ic
e 

fo
r m

an
da

to
ry

 d
ist

rib
ut

io
n 

by
 c

la
rif

yi
ng

 
th

at
 m

em
be

r d
ea

dl
in

e 
to

 re
tir

e/
ta

ke
 a

ct
io

n 
is 

Ap
ril

 1
 o

f  
ye

ar
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 in
 w

hi
ch

 
th

e 
m

em
be

r a
tt

ai
ns

 a
ge

 7
0 

½
.  

Ad
ds

 la
ng

ua
ge

 fo
r f

le
xi

bi
lit

y 
fo

r l
um

p 
su

m
 d

ist
rib

ut
io

n 
of

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 in

st
ea

d 
of

 a
n 

"a
llo

w
an

ce
."

  T
he

re
 a

re
 fr

eq
ue

nt
 si

tu
at

io
ns

 in
 w

hi
ch

 a
 d

ef
er

re
d 

m
em

be
r w

ho
 w

or
ke

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

un
ty

 m
an

y 
ye

ar
s a

go
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

a 
sm

al
l a

m
ou

nt
 o

f m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 o
n 

fil
e.

  I
t 

is 
cu

m
be

rs
om

e 
an

d 
in

ef
fic

ie
nt

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

n 
an

nu
al

 p
en

sio
n 

on
 w

ha
t m

ay
 a

m
ou

nt
 to

 a
 

fe
w

 d
ol

la
rs

, i
ns

te
ad

 o
f p

ro
vi

di
ng

 a
 lu

m
p 

su
m

 d
ist

rib
ut

io
n.

Pa
ge

 2
 o

f 3



As
 A

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 L

eg
isl

at
iv

e 
Co

m
m

itt
ee

 A
ug

us
t 1

6,
 2

01
9

31
76

0.
1,

31
76

0.
2,

31
76

5,
 

31
76

5.
1,

 
31

78
1.

1,
 

31
78

2.
2,

 
31

78
5,

 
31

78
5.

1,
 

31
78

7,
 

31
78

7.
5,

 
31

85
3.

3

O
pt

io
na

l R
et

ire
m

en
t A

llo
w

an
ce

s a
nd

 D
ea

th
 B

en
ef

its
: 

Ag
e 

21
Am

en
ds

 C
ER

L 
se

ct
io

ns
 to

 c
la

rif
y 

su
rv

iv
or

 b
en

ef
it 

ar
e 

to
 b

e 
pa

id
 u

p 
to

 th
e 

ch
ild

’s
 2

2n
d 

bi
rt

hd
ay

 a
s l

on
g 

as
 th

e 
ch

ild
 re

m
ai

ns
 u

nm
ar

rie
d 

an
d 

en
ro

lle
d 

fu
ll 

tim
e.

 C
ER

L 
pr

ov
id

es
 fo

r 
a 

be
ne

fit
 to

 b
e 

pa
id

 to
 a

 c
hi

ld
 o

ve
r t

he
 a

ge
 o

f 1
8 

w
ho

 is
 re

gu
la

rly
 e

nr
ol

le
d 

as
 a

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

st
ud

en
t i

n 
an

 a
cc

re
di

te
d 

sc
ho

ol
.  

Th
e 

be
ne

fit
 is

 to
 b

e 
pa

id
 “

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

ag
e 

of
 2

1.
” 

  
“T

hr
ou

gh
 th

e 
ag

e 
of

 2
1”

 c
ou

ld
 m

ea
n 

up
 to

 th
e 

da
te

 th
at

 th
e 

ch
ild

 tu
rn

s 2
1 

be
ca

us
e 

as
 o

f 
th

at
 d

at
e 

th
e 

ch
ild

 is
 2

1 
pl

us
 o

ne
 d

ay
.  

O
n 

th
e 

ot
he

r h
an

d,
 it

 c
ou

ld
 m

ea
n 

up
 to

 th
e 

ch
ild

’s
 

22
nd

 b
irt

hd
ay

.  
Th

is 
am

en
dm

en
t r

ef
le

ct
s t

he
 m

aj
or

ity
 in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

pr
ac

tic
e.

31
83

5.
1

Co
nc

ur
re

nt
 R

et
ire

m
en

t: 
PE

PR
A 

m
em

be
rs

Ad
ds

 c
la

rif
yi

ng
 la

ng
ua

ge
 re

ga
rd

in
g 

ea
rly

 re
tir

em
en

t f
or

 P
EP

RA
 m

em
be

rs
 w

ho
 a

lso
 h

av
e 

le
ga

cy
 st

at
us

 in
 a

no
th

er
 sy

st
em

.  
Th

is 
se

ct
io

n 
de

al
s w

ith
 c

on
cu

rr
en

t r
et

ire
m

en
t f

or
 

re
ci

pr
oc

al
 m

em
be

rs
 w

ho
 c

an
 re

tir
e 

in
 o

ne
 sy

st
em

 a
t a

ge
 5

0 
bu

t a
re

n’
t e

lig
ib

le
 to

 re
tir

e 
in

 
th

e 
re

ci
pr

oc
al

 sy
st

em
 u

nt
il 

af
te

r a
ge

 5
0,

 a
nd

 e
ns

ur
es

 re
ci

pr
oc

ity
 is

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

if 
th

ey
 

re
tir

e 
in

 th
e 

ea
rli

er
 e

lig
ib

le
 sy

st
em

.  
Th

er
e 

co
ul

d 
be

 a
 si

tu
at

io
n 

w
he

re
 a

 m
em

be
r i

s a
 

Le
ga

cy
 m

em
be

r i
n 

th
e 

fir
st

 sy
st

em
, a

nd
 le

av
es

 fo
r m

or
e 

th
an

 1
80

 d
ay

s a
nd

 e
nt

er
s t

he
 

se
co

nd
 sy

st
em

 a
s a

 P
EP

RA
 m

em
be

r. 
 If

 th
e 

Le
ga

cy
 sy

st
em

 h
as

 n
ot

 p
as

se
d 

a 
re

so
lu

tio
n 

to
 

lo
w

er
 a

ge
 5

5 
to

 a
ge

 5
0,

 th
en

 th
e 

m
em

be
r c

ou
ld

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
an

 a
ge

 5
5 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t i

n 
on

e 
sy

st
em

, a
nd

 a
n 

ag
e 

50
 o

r 5
2 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
ot

he
r s

ys
te

m
.  

Th
is 

am
en

dm
en

ts
 

ad
ds

 P
EP

RA
 re

fe
re

nc
e 

to
 a

ge
 5

2.

Pa
ge

 3
 o

f 3





Q1 Title of Issue:

Nonservice-connected Disability Retirement and Intemperate Use of Alcoholic Liquor or Drugs

Q2 Retirement Association/System:

Los Angeles County Employees Retirement Association

Q3 Contact Person:

Barry Lew, Legislative Affairs Officer

Q4 Contact e-mail:

blew@lacera.com

Q5 Contact Phone #:

626-564-2370

Q6 Description of issue:

Government Code Sections 31726 and 31726.5 were added to CERL in 1937 and 1951, respectively. These sections limit a member’s 
nonservice-connected disability retirement allowance to an annuity that is the actuarial equivalent of his accumulated contributions if the 
member’s disability is due to intemperate use of alcoholic liquor or drugs, willful misconduct, or violation of law on the member’s part.  In 
the successive decades since 1937 and 1951, views on alcohol and drug use have evolved from a legal and moral perspective to a 
medical, scientific, and public health perspective—from temperance and prohibition to treatment, recovery, and counseling. The public 
policy underlying the limitation on nonservice-connected disability retirement allowances due to intemperate use of alcoholic liquor or 
drugs may no longer reflect contemporary views of alcohol and drug use. If alcohol and drug use were viewed from a disease 
perspective rather than a moral failure, the benefit limitation as a consequence would be financially punitive and discriminatory for 
members.

##71
COMPLETECOMPLETE

Collector:Collector:   Web Link 1 Web Link 1 (Web Link)(Web Link)
Started:Started:   Wednesday, September 04, 2019 4:23:53 PMWednesday, September 04, 2019 4:23:53 PM
Last Modified:Last Modified:   Wednesday, September 04, 2019 4:49:26 PMWednesday, September 04, 2019 4:49:26 PM
Time Spent:Time Spent:   00:25:3300:25:33
IP Address:IP Address:   63.193.71.363.193.71.3

Page 1

1 / 3

SACRS Legislative Proposals SurveyMonkey



Q7 Recommended solution:

Amend the CERL sections related to nonservice-connected disability retirement to remove the element related to intemperate use of 
alcoholic liquor or drugs.

Q8 Specific language that you would like changed in, or added to, ’37 Act Law, and suggested code section
numbers:

Section 31726:  Upon retirement for nonservice-connected disability a member who has attained age 65 shall receive his or her service 
retirement allowance.   Every member under age 65 who is retired for nonservice-connected disability and who is not simultaneously 
retired as a member on deferred retirement of the State Public Employees’ Retirement System or a retirement system established under 
this chapter in another county shall receive a disability retirement allowance which shall be the greater of the following:  (a) The sum to 
which he or she would be entitled as service retirement.  (b) A sum which shall consist of any of the following:  (1) An annuity which is 
the actuarial equivalent of his or her accumulated contributions at the time of his or her retirement.  (2) If, in the opinion of the board, his 
or her disability is not due to intemperate use of alcoholic liquor or drugs, willful misconduct, willful misconduct or violation of law on his 
or her part, a disability retirement pension purchased by contributions of the county or district.  (3) If, in the opinion of the board, his or 
her disability is not due to conviction of a felony or criminal activity which caused or resulted in the member’s disability, a disability 
retirement pension purchased by contributions of the county or district. This paragraph shall only apply to a person who becomes a 
member of the system on or after January 1, 1988.  Section 31726.5:  Upon retirement for nonservice-connected disability a safety 
member who has attained age 55 shall receive his or her service retirement allowance. Every safety member under age 55 who is 
retired for nonservice-connected disability and who is not simultaneously retired as a member on deferred retirement of the Public 
Employees’ Retirement System or a retirement system established under this chapter in another county shall receive a disability 
retirement allowance which shall be the greater of:  (a) The sum to which he or she would be entitled to as service retirement; or  (b) A 
sum which shall consist of:  (1) An annuity which is the actuarial equivalent of his or her accumulated contributions at the time of his or 
her retirement.  (2) If, in the opinion of the board, his or her disability is not due to intemperate use of alcoholic liquor or drugs, willful 
misconduct, willful misconduct or violation of law on his or her part, a disability retirement pension purchased by contributions of the 
county or district.  (3) If, in the opinion of the board, his or her disability is not due to conviction of a felony or criminal activity which 
caused or resulted in the member’s disability, a disability retirement pension purchased by contributions of the county or district. 
Paragraph (3) shall only apply to a person who becomes a member of the association on or after January 1, 1988  Section 31728:  If, in 
the opinion of the board, the disability is due to intemperate use of alcoholic liquor or drugs, willful misconduct, willful misconduct or 
violation of law on the part of the member, and his annuity is less than two hundred forty dollars ($240) a year, the board may pay the 
member his accumulated contributions in one lump sum in lieu of his annuity.  Section 31838:  Every safety member under age 55 years
and every other member under age 65 years who is retired for nonservice-connected disability and who is retired simultaneously under a
disability retirement allowance from the Public Employees’ Retirement System or a retirement system established under this chapter in 
another county shall receive a retirement allowance equal to the greater of the following amounts:  (1) The sum to which he would be 
entitled as service retirement; or  (2) A sum which shall consist of:  (a) An annuity which is the actuarial equivalent of his accumulated 
contributions at the time of his retirement, and  (b) If, in the opinion of the board, his disability is not due to intemperate use of alcoholic 
liquor or drugs, willful misconduct, willful misconduct or violation of law on his part, a disability retirement pension purchased by 
contributions of the county or district, all computed as provided in Sections 31727 or 31727.2.

Q9 Why should the proposed legislation be sponsored by SACRS rather than by your individual retirement
association/system?

The nonservice-connected disability retirement provisions apply to all SACRS systems.

2 / 3

SACRS Legislative Proposals SurveyMonkey



Q10 Do you anticipate that the proposed legislation would create any major problems such as conflicting with
Proposition 162 or create a problem with any of the other 19 SACRS retirement associations/systems?

As plan administrators, the other SACRS systems may not be amenable to this proposal that would substantively change the policy 
underlying the benefit structure for nonservice-connected disability retirements. This proposal may put a plan administrator at odds with 
its plan sponsor.

Q11 Who will support or oppose this proposed change in the law?

SACRS systems that view the benefit limitation as financially punitive and discriminatory may support this proposal. Plan sponsors may 
oppose this proposal because it is a substantive change to the benefit structure of a nonservice-connected disability retirement 
allowance.

Q12 Who will be available from your retirement association/system to testify before the Legislature?

Barry Lew, Legislative Affairs Officer Joe Ackler, Ackler & Associates

3 / 3

SACRS Legislative Proposals SurveyMonkey



Page 1 of 4 

SACRS 2020 Legislative Platform 

Submission Information 

 

 

• Title of Issue 

Nonservice-connected Disability Retirement and Intemperate Use of Alcoholic 

Liquor or Drugs 

• Retirement Association/Name 

Los Angeles County Employees Retirement Association 

• Contact Name 

Barry Lew, Legislative Affairs Officer 

• Contact Phone Number 

626-564-2370 

• Contact Email Address 

blew@lacera.com 

• Description of Issue 

Government Code Sections 31726 and 31726.5 were added to CERL in 1937 

and 1951, respectively. These sections limit a member’s nonservice-connected 

disability retirement allowance to an annuity that is the actuarial equivalent of his 

accumulated contributions if the member’s disability is due to intemperate use of 

alcoholic liquor or drugs, willful misconduct, or violation of law on the member’s 

part. 

 

In the successive decades since 1937 and 1951, views on alcohol and drug use 

have evolved from a legal and moral perspective to a medical, scientific, and 

public health perspective—from temperance and prohibition to treatment, 

recovery, and counseling. The public policy underlying the limitation on 

nonservice-connected disability retirement allowances due to intemperate use of 

alcoholic liquor or drugs may no longer reflect contemporary views of alcohol and 

drug use. If alcohol and drug use were viewed from a disease perspective rather 

than a moral failure, the benefit limitation as a consequence would be financially 

punitive and discriminatory for members. 

• Recommended Solution 

Amend the CERL sections related to nonservice-connected disability retirement 

to remove the element related to intemperate use of alcoholic liquor or drugs. 

• Specific language changed or added to the 1937 Act and suggested code 

section number(s) 

mailto:blew@lacera.com


Page 2 of 4 

Section 31726 

Upon retirement for nonservice-connected disability a member who has attained 

age 65 shall receive his or her service retirement allowance.  

 

Every member under age 65 who is retired for nonservice-connected disability 

and who is not simultaneously retired as a member on deferred retirement of the 

State Public Employees’ Retirement System or a retirement system established 

under this chapter in another county shall receive a disability retirement 

allowance which shall be the greater of the following: 

 

(a) The sum to which he or she would be entitled as service retirement. 

 

(b) A sum which shall consist of any of the following: 

 

(1) An annuity which is the actuarial equivalent of his or her accumulated 

contributions at the time of his or her retirement. 

 

(2) If, in the opinion of the board, his or her disability is not due to intemperate 

use of alcoholic liquor or drugs, willful misconduct,willful misconduct or violation 

of law on his or her part, a disability retirement pension purchased by 

contributions of the county or district. 

 

(3) If, in the opinion of the board, his or her disability is not due to conviction of a 

felony or criminal activity which caused or resulted in the member’s disability, a 

disability retirement pension purchased by contributions of the county or district. 

This paragraph shall only apply to a person who becomes a member of the 

system on or after January 1, 1988. 

 

Section 31726.5 

Upon retirement for nonservice-connected disability a safety member who has 

attained age 55 shall receive his or her service retirement allowance. Every 

safety member under age 55 who is retired for nonservice-connected disability 

and who is not simultaneously retired as a member on deferred retirement of the 

Public Employees’ Retirement System or a retirement system established under 

this chapter in another county shall receive a disability retirement allowance 

which shall be the greater of: 

 

(a) The sum to which he or she would be entitled to as service retirement; or 

 

(b) A sum which shall consist of: 

 

(1) An annuity which is the actuarial equivalent of his or her accumulated 

contributions at the time of his or her retirement. 



Page 3 of 4 

 

(2) If, in the opinion of the board, his or her disability is not due to intemperate 

use of alcoholic liquor or drugs, willful misconduct,willful misconduct or violation 

of law on his or her part, a disability retirement pension purchased by 

contributions of the county or district. 

 

(3) If, in the opinion of the board, his or her disability is not due to conviction of a 

felony or criminal activity which caused or resulted in the member’s disability, a 

disability retirement pension purchased by contributions of the county or district. 

Paragraph (3) shall only apply to a person who becomes a member of the 

association on or after January 1, 1988 

 

Section 31728 

If, in the opinion of the board, the disability is due to intemperate use of alcoholic 

liquor or drugs, willful misconduct,willful misconduct or violation of law on the part 

of the member, and his annuity is less than two hundred forty dollars ($240) a 

year, the board may pay the member his accumulated contributions in one lump 

sum in lieu of his annuity. 

 

Section 31838 

Every safety member under age 55 years and every other member under age 65 

years who is retired for nonservice-connected disability and who is retired 

simultaneously under a disability retirement allowance from the Public 

Employees’ Retirement System or a retirement system established under this 

chapter in another county shall receive a retirement allowance equal to the 

greater of the following amounts: 

 

(1) The sum to which he would be entitled as service retirement; or 

 

(2) A sum which shall consist of: 

 

(a) An annuity which is the actuarial equivalent of his accumulated contributions 

at the time of his retirement, and 

 

(b) If, in the opinion of the board, his disability is not due to intemperate use of 

alcoholic liquor or drugs, willful misconduct,willful misconduct or violation of law 

on his part, a disability retirement pension purchased by contributions of the 

county or district, all computed as provided in Sections 31727 or 31727.2. 

 

• Why should the proposed legislation be sponsored by SACRS rather than 

by your individual retirement association/system? 

The nonservice-connected disability retirement provisions apply to all SACRS 

systems. 



Page 4 of 4 

• Do you anticipate the proposed legislation would create any major 

problems such as conflicting with Proposition 162 or create a problem with 

any of the other 19 SACRS retirement associations/systems? 

As plan administrators, the other SACRS systems may not be amenable to this 

proposal that would substantively change the policy underlying the benefit 

structure for nonservice-connected disability retirements. This proposal may put 

a plan administrator at odds with its plan sponsor. 

• Who will support or oppose this proposed change in the law? 

SACRS systems that view the benefit limitation as financially punitive and 

discriminatory may support this proposal. Plan sponsors may oppose this 

proposal because it is a substantive change to the benefit structure of a 

nonservice-connected disability retirement allowance. 

• Who will be available from your association/system to testify before the 

Legislature? 

Barry Lew, Legislative Affairs Officer 

Joe Ackler, Ackler & Associates 



 
6. SACRS Nomination Committee - 2020-2021 SACRS Election Notice – No Action 
Ray McCray, San Joaquin CERA, SACRS Nomination Committee Chair 
 

A. SACRS Election Notice 2020-2021 

 



 
October 1, 2019 

 
To:  SACRS Trustees & SACRS Administrators/CEO’s 
From:  Ray McCray, SACRS Immediate Past President, Nominating Committee Chair 
 SACRS Nominating Committee 
Re: SACRS Board of Director Elections 2020-2021 - Elections Notice  
 
SACRS BOD 2020-2021 election process will begin January 2020. Please provide this elections notice to 
your Board of Trustees and Voting Delegates.   
 

DEADLINE DESCRIPTION 
March 1, 2020 Any regular member may submit nominations for the election of a 

Director to the Nominating Committee, provided the Nominating 
Committee receives those nominations no later than noon on 
March 1 of each calendar year regardless of whether March 1 is 
a Business Day. Each candidate may run for only one office. 
Write-in candidates for the final ballot, and nominations from the 
floor on the day of the election, shall not be accepted. 

March 25, 2020 The Nominating Committee will report a final ballot to each 
regular member County Retirement System prior to March 25 

May 15, 2020 Nomination Committee to conduct elections during the SACRS 
Business Meeting at the Spring Conference (May 12-15, 2020) 

May 15, 2020 Board of Directors take office for 1 year 
 
 
Per SACRS Bylaws, Article VIII, Section 1. Board of Director and Section 2. Elections of Directors: 
 
Section 1. Board of Directors. The Board shall consist of the officers of SACRS as described in 
Article VI, Section 1, the immediate Past President, and two (2) regular members 
 

A. Immediate Past President. The immediate Past President, while he or she is a regular 
member of SACRS, shall also be a member of the Board. In the event the immediate Past 
President is unable to serve on the Board, the most recent Past President who qualifies shall 
serve as a member of the Board. 
B. Two (2) Regular Members. Two (2) regular members shall also be members of the Board 
with full voting rights. 

 
Section 2. Elections of Directors. Any regular member may submit nominations for the election of a 
Director to the Nominating Committee, provided the Nominating Committee receives those nominations 
no later than noon on March 1 of each calendar year regardless of whether March 1 is a Business Day. 
Each candidate may run for only one office. Write-in candidates for the final ballot, and nominations from 
the floor on the day of the election, shall not be accepted. 
 
The Nominating Committee will report its suggested slate, along with a list of the names of all members 
who had been nominated, to each regular member County Retirement System prior to March 25.  
The Administrator of each regular member County Retirement System shall be responsible for 
communicating the Nominating Committee’s suggested slate to each trustee and placing the election of 
SACRS Directors on his or her board agenda. The Administrator shall acknowledge the completion of 
these responsibilities with the Nominating Committee. 



 
 
Director elections shall take place during the first regular meeting of each calendar year. The election 
shall be conducted by an open roll call vote, and shall conform to Article V, Sections 6 and 7 of these 
Bylaws. 
 
Newly elected Directors shall assume their duties at the conclusion of the meeting at which they are 
elected, with the exception of the office of Treasurer. The incumbent Treasurer shall co-serve with the 
newly elected Treasurer through the completion of the current fiscal year. 
 
The elections will be held at the SACRS Spring Conference May 12-15, 2020 at the Paradise Point Hotel 
and Spa, San Diego, CA.  Elections will be held during the Annual Business meeting on Friday, May 15, 
2020.  
 
If you have any questions, please contact me at Ray McCray, raym1@sbcglobal.net or (209) 471-4472.    
 
Thank you for your prompt attention to this timely matter. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Ray McCray 
 
Ray McCray, San Joaquin CERA Trustee 
SACRS Nominating Committee Chair 
 
CC:  SACRS Board of Directors 
        SACRS Nominating Committee Members 
 Sulema H. Peterson, SACRS Administrator  
 

mailto:raym1@sbcglobal.net


 
7. SACRS Audit Report – No Action 
Steve Delaney, Orange CERS, SACRS Audit Committee Chair 
 

A. SACRS Audit Committee Update 

 



 
No Printed Materials For This Item 

 



 
8. SACRS Education Committee Report – No Action 
JJ Popowich, Los Angeles CERA, SACRS Education Committee Chair 
 

A. SACRS Fall Conference Evaluations 2019 

 



 
No Printed Materials For This Item 

 



 
9. SACRS Program Committee Report – No Action 
Vivian Gray, Los Angeles CERA, SACRS Program Committee Chair 
 

A. SACRS Fall Conference Report 2019 

 



 
No Printed Materials For This Item 

 



 
10. SACRS Affiliate Committee Report – No Action 
Ben Lazarus, Parametric, SACRS Affiliate Committee Chair 

 

A. Affiliate Committee Update 

 



 
No Printed Materials For This Item 

 



 
11. SACRS Bylaws Committee Report – No Action  
 Johanna Fontenot, Los Angeles CERA, SACRS Bylaws Committee Chair 
 

A. Bylaws Committee Update 

 



 
No Printed Materials For This Item 

 



 
12. SACRS Fall Conference Breakout Reports – No Action 
A representative from each breakout will give report on their meetings.  

A. Administrators 
B. Counsel 
C. Disability/ Operations & Benefits Combo 
D. Internal Auditors 
E. Investment Officers 
F. Safety Trustees 
G. General Trustees 

 



 
13. Adjournment 
Next scheduled SACRS Association Business Meeting will be held Friday, May 15, 2020 at the 
Paradise Point Hotel and Resort in San Diego, CA.  

 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

Board of Retirement 

1 

October 29, 2019 Agenda Item 4.12 

TO:  Board of Retirement 

FROM: Brenda B. Carlson, Chief Legal Counsel 

SUBJECT: Legislative Update   

Recommendation 
Accept report of California legislation chaptered in 2019 relating to public pension systems. 

Background  
After the end of each Legislative session, we provide the Board with a summary of chaptered 
legislation in relation to county retirement systems (CERL), the Public Employees’ Pension 
Reform Act (PEPRA), and legislation of interest that is applicable to CalPERS (PERL).  We also 
address legislation, if any, that addresses public agencies in general that is either applicable to 
or of interest to SamCERA.   

Discussion 
There has been minimal legislative activity this year. 

CERL OR OTHER LEGISLATION ADDRESSING COUNTY RETIREMENT BOARDS 

There is no chaptered legislation amending the CERL. Please note that SB 783, a cleanup bill for 
the CERL, was not acted upon but is a two-year bill and may be acted upon in 2020. 

PEPRA LEGISLATION (of interest) 

There was no PEPRA related Legislation that would be applicable to CERL systems. 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT LAW (PERL) OR OTHER CALPERS LEGISLATION (of interest) 

AB 672 -Adds section 21233 to the PERL.  This section prohibits a member who has retired for 
disability from being employed by any employer without reinstatement from retirement if the 
position is the position from which the member retired or if the position includes duties or 
activities that the member was previously restricted from performing at the time of retirement, 
unless an exception applies. 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

Board of Retirement 

2 

 

 

AB 1320 adds and amends sections 7513.74, 16642.  These sections, upon the passage of a 
federal law that imposes sanctions on the government of Turkey for failure to officially 
acknowledge its responsibility for the Armenian Genocide, would prohibit these Boards of 
Administration from making additional or new investments, or renewing existing investments in 
an investment vehicle in the government of Turkey that is issued by the government of Turkey 
or that is owned by the government of Turkey.  Additionally, the Boards are required to 
liquidate existing investments in the government of Turkey within 18 months of the passage of 
the above-described federal law.   

PUBLIC RECORDS ACT 

AB 1819 amends section 6253, which requires state and local agencies to make public records 
available upon receipt of a request for a copy that reasonably describes an identifiable record 
not otherwise exempt from disclosure, and upon payment of fees to cover costs.  This section 
allows a requester who inspects a disclosable record on the premises of the agency the right to 
use the requester’s equipment on those premises, without being charged any fees or costs, to 
photograph or otherwise copy or reproduce the record in a manner that does not require the 
equipment to make physical contact with the record, unless the means of copy or reproduction 
would result in damage to the record, or unauthorized access to a computer system of the 
agency or secured network, as specified.   



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Board of Retirement 

 

 
October 29, 2019 Agenda Item 5.2 
 
 
TO: Board of Retirement 

FROM:              Gladys Smith, Assistant Executive Officer    
  
SUBJECT: Annual Review of SamCERA’s Actuarial Services Firm, Milliman, Inc. 
 
 
Recommendation 
Accept the annual performance report of Milliman, Inc.’s actuarial services. 
 
Background 
The annual evaluation of Milliman has three parts: 
 
     1.  A survey completed by trustees, staff and the actuary; 
 

     2.  Responses to questions submitted to the actuary; 
 

     3.  A discussion at the Board meeting with Milliman, Inc. regarding its performance as  
          reflected in the surveys and responses to the questions. 
 
Discussion 
Milliman, Inc. has consistently received high marks, throughout the years, from the 
Board and staff or the actuarial services it provides to SamCERA.  Ratings this year were 
similar to those of the past. 
 
Overall, Milliman received high marks form the Board and staff.  The rating structure 
was from 1 to 5 with 1 being Low (poor rating) to 5 (high rating).  The average self-
assessment rating by Milliman was 4.3 while the Board’s was 4.8 and staff’s 4.9.  No 
concerns or issues were raised by the Board or staff. 
 
Attachments 
Milliman Questionnaire  



 
 
 

sme0307.docx - 1 
003 SME 12 / .003.SME.10.2017 /  

 
1301 Fifth Avenue 

Suite 3800 

Seattle, WA 98101-2605 

USA 

Tel +1 206 624 7940 
Fax +1 206 623 3485 

milliman.com 

Offices in Principal Cities Worldwide 

 
October 17, 2019 
 
To:  Gladys Smith 
 
From:  Nick Collier, Craig Glyde 
 
Subject: Actuarial Review – Milliman Inc.  
 
As requested, we have completed the questionnaire form. Please note that Milliman is a large, multi-office 
firm with services covering a variety of types of actuarial and other consulting issues. For purposes of this 
review we have responded with answers that apply to the Western Region Employee Benefits practice 
and have provided client information regarding only the public sector clients. If additional information on 
other offices or other clients is needed, please let us know.  
 
Organizational Update 

1) Has the ownership structure of your firm changed? If so, describe. 

Milliman’s ownership structure has not changed since last year. Milliman is a corporate 
organization owned by its approximate 400 Principals. No Principal owns 5% or more of the 
firm. The firm is comprised of profit centers overseen by Principals who have a considerable 
amount of flexibility with respect to the management of their profit centers. 

2) Provide an update on your firm’s organization, with particular emphasis on (a) changes 
to your management structure over the past eighteen months, and (b) clients gained or 
lost in the past eighteen months. All significant changes should be accompanied by an 
explanation. An organizational chart should accompany this response. 
 
Milliman is a firm of actuaries and consultants providing actuarial and risk management 
services, and a range of consulting and technology solutions to private and public 
businesses, non-profit enterprises, government, and financial organizations in approximately 
40 offices around the United States, and worldwide. 
 
(a) Other than the normal growth of the firm, there have been no changes in the management 
structure of Milliman in the last 18 months. Normal growth includes new Principals being 
nominated and a few Principals leaving the firm, primarily due to retirement. 
 
(b) The Western Region Employee Benefits has not had any significant gains or losses in 
clients over the past 18 months. If requested, we can provide a list of public clients added or 
lost over the past 18 months, but the only one of any note is that we were recently selected to 
perform an actuarial audit of the Washington State Retirement Systems; however, we already 
have staff in place to perform this work, so it should not impact our ability to deliver service to 
other clients.  
 
(c) Below is an organizational chart of Milliman. The Principals of the firm as a whole are 
responsible for establishing the governing principles of Milliman. Principals are active senior 
professionals within Milliman who have been elected in recognition of their technical, 
professional and business achievements. The Board of Directors of Milliman and the officers 
of Milliman are delegated the authority by the Principals to assume day-to-day responsibilities 
for carrying out the management directives established by the Principals. The Board of 



 
 

Ms. Gladys Smith 
October 17, 2019 

Page 2 
 
 

sme0307.docx - 2 
003 SME 12 / .003.SME.10.2017 /  

Directors of Milliman consists of 11 Principals including the President, the Chairman, four 
National Directors of our major practice areas, and five rotating positions. 

 

 

3) What is your firm’s philosophy and current policy regarding new business? 
 
The West Region Employee Benefits practice believes we can add new business only when 
we have the capacity to maintain the high level of service we promise to all clients. Within the 
public sector, the opportunity to attain new business is driven by the RFP process. In order to 
respond to any RFP situations, we are continuing hiring new actuarial analysts – at the rate of 
about two per year within the west region, and growing from within. In addition, Milliman has 
access to additional staff from other offices if special projects create a need for a temporary 
increase in staffing support. We have on occasion, when needed, hired additional experienced 
staff from other firms, but our preferred method of growth is from within our own staff. 
 

4) Update all significant personnel changes or expected changes to the "SamCERA 
Team." Describe the relative strength and longevity of your staff.  
 
Most of the senior staff in our practice have been with Milliman for more than 15 years. 

The SamCERA team consists of Nick Collier, Craig Glyde, John Talbot, and James Galbraith. 
Julie Smith, who had worked on the SamCERA team is now working part time and is no 
longer involved in the core SamCERA work, but she is available if needed. John now has an 
increased roll and we have added James to the team. 

Nick (30 years with Milliman) and Craig (16 years with Milliman plus additional experience 
with a prior firm) have extensive experience. John Talbot (4 years with Milliman) and James 
Galbraith (recent hire) perform most of the valuation calculations and provide support to Nick 
and Craig. Nick, Craig and John have been together on the SamCERA team for about four 
years. James joined the team this year and has been a strong contributor and asset.  

5) Has your firm or any of its employees been involved in regulatory or litigation actions 
related to your business in the past eighteen months? 



 
 

Ms. Gladys Smith 
October 17, 2019 

Page 3 
 
 

sme0307.docx - 3 
003 SME 12 / .003.SME.10.2017 /  

 
Neither the West Region Employee Benefits practice, nor any members of the SamCERA 
actuarial team have been involved in any litigation of any kind against Milliman. Milliman does 
not normally provide disclosures with respect to other litigation which may be pending for 
other offices or practices not involved in the services for a specific client. 

6) Are any of your operations outsourced? If the answer is yes, provide details regarding 
the firm(s) with which your firm has contracted. 
 
No. None of our work with SamCERA is outsourced. 

7) Other than the actuarial audit performed by Segal Inc. on your SamCERA actuarial 
services, has an actuarial audit been performed on any of your firm’s actuarial products 
in the past twelve months? If yes, discuss the audit and the findings. Any material 
findings or recommendations must be accompanied by an explanation. 
 
The following client(s) from our practice have had actuarial audits performed within the past 12 
months: Tacoma Employees Retirement System (by GRS). There were no material issues 
found in any of the audit(s). 

8) What are your mission critical systems? Has your firm experienced any problems with 
these systems in the past twelve months? When were these systems implemented and 
when were they last upgraded? Do you anticipate any changes to these systems in the 
next twelve months? 
 
The only critical system we use to perform services for SamCERA at the current time is our 
valuation system called ProVal. We moved to this valuation system in 2017 as it is the most 
common system used by pension actuaries and has an extensive support network. This 
system is continuously being updated and improved to reflect changes in the employee benefit 
arena. 
 

  



 
 

Ms. Gladys Smith 
October 17, 2019 

Page 4 
 
 

sme0307.docx - 4 
003 SME 12 / .003.SME.10.2017 /  

9) Please describe how your firm monitors and manages cyber security risks as they relate 
to confidential SamCERA data/information. Has your firm experienced any problems 
with cyber security in the past 18 months? What is your cyber security breach policy? 
What procedures do you have in place for a cyber security breach? 

Data security is important and Milliman maintains physical, electronic, and managerial 
safeguards to prevent unauthorized access to confidential, sensitive, and personal 
information. Milliman has a comprehensive information security policy based on the ISO 
27001 risk management framework. Milliman has implemented a number of layered controls 
and safeguards, including administrative polies and procedures and automated systems. 
These controls are employed in a defense in depth arrangement to secure electronic 
information stored on our systems.  

Milliman’s data handling policy requires that all confidential data be transmitted using an 
approved, secure method. We also maintain security protocols for our servers and e-mail 
system, and physical records retention and destruction policies. All hardware and software to 
be used for this project reside in our Seattle office. We do not contract with a separate entity 
for computer services. 

In addition, we will comply with any written standards communicated to us by our clients. Our 
preferred data transmittal method is to use Milliman’s Secured File Transfer Protocol (SFTP) 
server. This method only requires that the user be able to access the internet through an 
internet browser. No software needs to be installed on the user’s computer. Milliman will 
issue the user a user name, a password, and provide the Internet address for the SFTP site. 
Using Milliman’s SFTP server ensures that user names, passwords, and data files are 
encrypted while traveling through the internet. Milliman has other alternatives available, which 
can also include using file encryption or a client-provided encrypted method. Depending on 
the nature and sensitivity of the data sent, file encryption at rest may also be appropriate. We 
comply with any written standards communicated to us by our clients. 

Once data has been securely obtained by Milliman, we undertake extensive precautions to 
ensure the continuing security of sensitive information. This includes logical security, 
firewalls, anti-malware software, employee security protocols, and full-disk encryption of 
personal desktop and laptop computers used by Milliman staff. In addition, we maintain 
physical security measures for building and data storage facilities, and maintain internal 
policies to ensure privacy for sensitive client and participant data. 

Other security measures we have in place, include: 

• Staff. Milliman performs employee background checks on all employees before they are 
allowed to start work. Every Milliman employees signs Milliman’s Employee Trade Secret 
and Client Information Agreement. Mandatory data-handling security training is required 
for all staff. Security training is monthly for all employees. Milliman has written policies on 
data handling and acceptable computer use. Terminated users’ access is removed on 
their last day. For involuntary terminations, all access is removed immediately and 
employees are escorted off the premises. 

• Physical security. The Seattle office of Milliman is located at 1301 Fifth Avenue, Suite 
3800. Keycard access is required to enter the building after hours. The building has 
security guards on duty 7 days a week, 24 hours a day. The elevators are secured after-
hours and only the keycards of Milliman employees and security personnel are code to 



 
 

Ms. Gladys Smith 
October 17, 2019 

Page 5 
 
 

sme0307.docx - 5 
003 SME 12 / .003.SME.10.2017 /  

allow access a Milliman floor. Milliman floors are secured with keycards and door codes 
that are individualized to each employee. The data center is locked 24/7. It is secured on 
a separate keycard/door code system with extremely limited access, controlled by the 
Information Technology Manager. Each door entry system tracks who opens a door. 
There are cameras in the elevator lobbies and in the data center. The data center uses a 
motion detection system to monitor access. The data center has no walls on the outside 
of the building, and no walls are connected to the elevator lobby. 

• PC security. All PCs lock after 15-minutes of non-use. All PCs use full-disk hardware 
encryption. All Notebook PCs use personal firewalls. All PCs and servers utilize anti-
malware software. 

• Data access security. System access requires valid user IDs and passwords. Forced 
password changes are required every 90 days. Complex password rules are in place. (A 
minimum of eight characters are required. Passwords must contain three of four 
categories of characters: uppercase, lowercase, numeric value or symbol. No part of the 
user’s name exceeding two characters is allowed to be part of the password. Passwords 
in history cannot be re-used. Twenty-five passwords retained in history.) Data access is 
limited by role. This is controlled by two levels of security. Active Directory group 
permissions are used to control allowed access to applications. Then role-based 
permissions are used inside the applications themselves to allow very granular access 
control. 

• Firewalls, intrusion prevention, and detection, etc. The database is housed behind an 
intrusion prevention system is in place. It is updated within a day of newly published 
patterns. Milliman actively blocks tens of thousands of known malicious IP addresses. 
Intrusion detection monitoring and alerting is provided 24 hours a day. Operating 
Systems and application security patches are installed within a few days of release and 
pushed out from a central server to machines automatically. Anti-malware provides anti-
virus and anti-SPAM blocking before mail is routed to Milliman. All PCs and Servers run 
Anti-virus/Anti-Spyware/Malware software. Every file is scanned upon opening. A central 
server checks for pattern updates multiple times per day and pushes updates out to all 
machines. 

• Vulnerability scans, penetration testing, audits. Periodic vulnerability scanning is 
performed monthly to find and mitigate risks. Penetration testing is performed annually by 
an external auditing firm. An annual SSAE16 audit of IT systems is performed annually 
by an external auditing firm. In addition, Milliman has an Information Security Policy 
which is reviewed internally on a periodic basis and annually by a third party to ensure it 
is up to date and continues to cover the appropriate scope, and to identify any existing 
gaps between the security policy and industry practices. 

All security incidents are promptly reported to management, including the chief legal officer 
and information security officer.  

In addition, Milliman has an Information Security Policy which is reviewed internally on a 
periodic basis and annually by a third party to ensure it is up to date and continues to cover 
the appropriate scope, and to identify any existing gaps between the security policy and 
industry practices. 



 
 

Ms. Gladys Smith 
October 17, 2019 

Page 6 
 
 

sme0307.docx - 6 
003 SME 12 / .003.SME.10.2017 /  

We have an annual independent assessment made of our cyber security processes including 
annual security penetration testing performed by a third-party. We also have an SSAE18 
audit which includes a review of our cyber security controls. 

Milliman’s cyber security breach policy requires us to notify clients within 48 hours of a 
confirmed breach. In the event of a cyber security incident, Milliman follows the laws 
applicable in each state where affected participants reside to notify clients and participants of 
security breaches. Milliman has a documented Cyber Security Incident Response Plan and a 
Cyber Security Incident Response Team. Cyber security monitoring and incident response 
includes the following: 

• Preparation & Prevention – includes maintaining a cyber security response team, 
maintaining firewalls, maintaining access control security, maintaining monitoring 
systems and alerts 

• Identification/Detection – includes user reports, monitoring ingress and egress sensors, 
event correlation, categorization of incidents by severity (triage) which determines 
incident response 

• Containment – includes possibly isolating hosts depending on the nature of activity 
associated with a given incident 

• Investigation – includes analyzing logs, documenting findings, transferring evidence as 
needed to law enforcement 

• Eradication – includes the use of cleaning utilities, manual reconfigurations, vendor or 
other approved patches, updated service packs, updated device images 

• Post-Incident Recovery – includes verifying that the threat and enabling environment are 
clear, performing vulnerability scanning and device hardening as applicable, restoring 
data  

• Follow-up – includes conducting effectiveness reviews during each incident response to 
identify any inadequacies within the process 

We have not experienced any cyber security incidents in the past 18 months. 

10) Provide an overview of your firm's business continuity plan. Please describe any 
changes in the last year. 

Business continuity and disaster recovery are critical elements of Milliman’s strategy to 
safeguard client information and ensure timely service delivery. Our business unit maintains a 
formal disaster recovery plan that is periodically tested and updated to ensure its accuracy.  

Milliman’s servers replicate to multiple Milliman offices throughout the western US. In the 
event of a server failure, employees access a replica in another city. Data changes are 
automatically replicated to all servers as the changes are made. Also to minimize downtime, 
our servers are standardized with the highest level of fault tolerance, redundancy and hot-
swappable components are integrated into the servers. Spare servers and components are 
kept on-site. Dedicated electrical circuits are used to power all data center equipment. All 
servers are protected by Uninterruptible Power Supplies which protect the systems against 
surges and spikes and can power servers for a short time. Additionally, they provide orderly 
shutdown of systems in a power failure to protect against data loss. The data center is 
equipped with redundant air conditioning systems and redundant chilled water sources. A 
hardware monitoring system pages technicians 24 hours a day in the event of hardware pre-



 
 

Ms. Gladys Smith 
October 17, 2019 

Page 7 
 
 

sme0307.docx - 7 
003 SME 12 / .003.SME.10.2017 /  

failures and failures. Technicians are also paged if something affects system uptime, website 
uptime, air temperature or chilled water temperature, and for data center entry and motion 
detection outside of business hours. 

Milliman does nightly full tape backups that are encrypted. A tape rotation is stored on-site in 
fireproof safes and also off-site at a secure data storage facility. 

 

Actuarial Process  

11) Provide a description, in detail, of your actuarial process.  
 
The following summarizes our standard valuation procedures (as stated in our proposal): 

1.  Data Checking and Preliminary Processing 
SamCERA supplies us with information for each active, vested, and retired member, 
along with certain financial items. The data is checked for reasonableness and any data 
questions and issues are submitted to SamCERA staff for verification.  

2.  Choosing Assumptions 
Actuarial valuations are necessarily based on assumptions as to future rates of 
retirement, disablement and death among active members, rates of mortality after 
retirement, rates of investment income, rates of salary increases, and rates of increase in 
the Consumer Price Index, where applicable. In valuing SamCERA’s benefits, we use the 
assumptions adopted by the Board, based on the most recent experience investigation. 

3.  Valuation Calculations 
Each valuation determines the actuarial present value of all future benefits payable from 
SamCERA. These benefits are those provided to members under current law. We 
determine the actuarial present value of future benefit payments using our valuation 
program. The program can calculate costs under the entry age normal cost method, 
which is specified in the ‘37 Act. Liability calculations are checked for accuracy and 
reasonableness on both an individual and aggregate basis. 

We then calculate each valuation group’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) as 
the value of the benefits in excess of the sum of the future normal cost contributions and 
the current value of assets. Finally, we determine the contribution rate needed for each 
group to satisfy the amortization period requirements. 

4.  Funding Valuation Report 
Our report includes our conclusions regarding the financial condition SamCERA, the 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability, recommendations as to future contribution rates, 
discussion of the calculations, descriptions of the benefit provisions of the applicable laws 
and summaries of assumptions and data. Our report typically shows a breakdown of 
liabilities by source of decrement for active members, as well as subtotals for inactive 
members. We are open to discuss with SamCERA staff and the Board regarding possible 
changes in the reporting format for their particular needs. We reflect each system’s own 
characteristics in our report. 

Our goal is to provide enough information for the Board to make reasonable financial 
decisions without becoming too complex to undermine the basic intent of disclosing the 
valuation results. However, we are always open to suggestions for improving the 
communications of our valuation work, if a modified approach is preferred.  



 
 

Ms. Gladys Smith 
October 17, 2019 

Page 8 
 
 

sme0307.docx - 8 
003 SME 12 / .003.SME.10.2017 /  

5.  GASB Report 
We develop the information required to be disclosed by Statement Nos.67 and 68 of the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). We provide this information both for 
the system and the participation employers. 

12) Describe your peer review procedures in detail, and include whether and the extent it 
involves other actuarial firms. Highlight any changes to that process.  
 
Peer review is not actually a separate step in our valuation process. Rather it is an ongoing 
process. We review and check our work at every step of the project.  

Our internal peer review processes provide assurances that the highest quality standards are 
being maintained at all times. Each valuation, study, or projections will be reviewed by at least 
two consultants. The first level of review will occur within the SamCERA team. Two of the 
three consultants on the project team will review each step of the project. The final internal 
SamCERA team review will be performed by Nick Collier and Craig Glyde. Additionally, 
another Milliman public sector consultant who did not work on the project will review the work 
prior to its final release. This provides the project with an independent set of eyes. This review 
will not only verify the calculations, but will evaluate whether or not the assumptions, methods, 
and results are reasonable, and all appropriate issues are considered. 

  
Outlook 

13) What current issues are other clients concerned with in regards to products, services, 
education and governance?  
 
The following are some of issues concerning our public sector clients right now.  

� Investment Return Assumption – Always a hot topic in the public sector, recent declines in 
interest rates will continue to put pressure on systems to reduce their return assumptions.  

� Travel Expenses – In light of the recent Los Angeles Times article scrutinizing the travel 
expenses of LACERA Board members, we expect our clients will be reviewing their travel 
policies. 

  



 
 

Ms. Gladys Smith 
October 17, 2019 

Page 9 
 
 

sme0307.docx - 9 
003 SME 12 / .003.SME.10.2017 /  

14) Describe your assessment of the relationship between your firm and SamCERA. How 
can SamCERA better assist you in accomplishing the goals it has established for your 
firm? How can we better utilize your firm’s capabilities? 
 
We believe we have a strong relationship with SamCERA. As with all relationships, 
communication is the key factor. We have attempted to reply promptly and effectively to all 
inquiries. We have attempted to alert SamCERA of any relevant issues as they become 
apparent to us or are reported to us. Similarly, SamCERA staff has kept us up-to-date on 
issues that affect our work. We have felt very positive about being supported by SamCERA 
and we hope the relationship will continue to grow.  
 
We have the actuarial data process working fairly smoothing with SamCERA’s new pension 
administration system. By continuing to improve the consistency and quality of data included 
in the extract files, SamCERA will help us continue to provide quality service. On the asset 
side, it is always helpful for us to get the financial information as early as possible in the 
valuation process. 

Probably the most significant way we can continue to assist SamCERA is in the understanding 
of the volatility of future investment returns and the impact on future contribution rates. We 
have provided SamCERA some fairly simple projections in the past, but have the capability to 
do more sophisticated analysis as the need arises.  

Conclusion  

15) What actuarial related changes should SamCERA consider? 
 
We do not believe there are any actuarially related changes that need to be made at this 
moment. 

16) Relative to your expertise, what trends are occurring in the retirement industry that 
SamCERA should be tracking? 
 
We believe the key trends are as follows: 

� Lower CPI / wage growth / Investment Return Assumptions – In response to economic 
experience and trends, changes in asset allocation, and future expectations of CPI and 
investment returns of asset classes, retirement systems have been adopting lower CPI, 
wage growth and investment return assumptions over the last 10 years. We believe there 
will continue to be downward pressure on economic assumptions. 

� Plan Maturity – Plans are continuing to become more mature. For example, within the next 
few years, we project the number of SamCERA retirees will exceed the number of active 
members. This is not necessarily a problem, but it may increase volatility of contribution 
rates for SamCERA (and the majority of public sector retirement systems). To address this, 
we will continue to provide SamCERA with sensitivity analysis showing the impact of 
various future investment returns on contribution rates. We will also work with Verus when 
they do their asset allocation study to reflect this impact, as well as look at the how to 
address negative cash flow, which is likely to occur in a few years. 

 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

Board of Retirement 

October 29, 2019  Agenda Item 6.1 

TO: Board of Retirement   

FROM: Michael Coultrip, Chief Investment Officer 

SUBJECT: Preliminary Monthly Portfolio Performance Report for the Period Ended 
September 30, 2019 

Recommendation  
Accept the preliminary performance report dated September 30, 2019. 

Background  
This preliminary report is intended to provide a high-level view of the portfolio and its trends.  It is 
not intended to provide short-term performance upon which the Board would act.  As discussed 
previously, preliminary performance estimates are now included for AQR Risk Parity, AQR Delta, 
PanAgora Risk Parity, and Beach Point Select.  The quarterly performance metrics are not yet 
available for our private equity, private credit, private real asset, and real estate portfolios.  The 
performance for these portfolios will be reflected in the quarterly performance report generated 
by Verus.   

The attached performance report shows both net and gross of fee returns for the total plan on 
page one, with net composite returns (pages 2-3) and net manager returns (pages 4-11) also 
shown.   

Discussion  
The fund’s net preliminary return for September was 0.9%, bringing the preliminary trailing 
twelve-month return ending September 2019 to 4.8% net.  The preliminary twelve-month net 
return is below both SamCERA’s Plan Benchmark return of 5.1% and SamCERA’s Actuarial Assumed 
Earnings Rate of 6.5%.    

September saw reduced volatility in general, as equity returns were positive and U.S. Treasury 
yields rose modestly.  In line with expectations, the U.S. Federal Reserve cut rates by 25 basis 
points during the month.  The broad U.S. equity market (as measured by the Russell 3000 Index) 
was up 1.8%.  International markets were also higher on the month.  Developed international 
equity (as measured by MSCI EAFE) was up 2.9%, while emerging markets were up 1.9%.   

Economic data was somewhat weaker in September.  Manufacturing activity and consumer 
confidence continued their slump in September from August, while non-farm payrolls increased. 



2 

 

The general U.S. fixed income market was down 0.5% during the month as rates rose across the 
board.  The 10-year U.S. Treasury yield increased during the month, with the yield increasing 17 
basis points and ending at 1.67% by month-end.  
 
Attachments    

Verus Capital Markets Update  
Northern Trust Performance Report  
 



SEPTEMBER 2019
Capital Markets Update



Market commentary

September 2019
Capital Markets Update 2

U.S. ECONOMICS

― Nonfarm payrolls increased by 136,000 in September (exp. +145,000) 
while additions in July and August were revised higher by 45,000 in 
total. Nonfarm payroll growth has averaged 157,000 over the past 
three months. The Healthcare (+39,000) and Professional and 
Business Services (+34,000) sectors led job gains for the month. 

― The ISM Manufacturing PMI remained under the neutral level of 50.0 
and fell from 49.1 to 47.8 (exp 50.0), the second consecutive month 
of contraction and the lowest reading since June 2009. Trade remains 
the most significant issue with new export orders component falling 
from 43.3 to 41.1.

― Consumer confidence indicators declined and significantly missed 
estimates. The Conference Board Consumer Confidence Index fell 
from 134.2 to 125.1 (exp. 133.2), its largest drop in nine months and 
its largest miss relative to economists’ estimates since 2010.

U.S. EQUITIES

― The S&P 500 Index rebounded +1.9% following two consecutive 
months of decline.  At the end of the period, the S&P 500 Index had 
generated a year-to-date total return of +20.6%.

― The CBOE VIX index faded its gains from August and fell from 19.0 to 
16.2 in September. The trailing 30- and 90-day realized volatility on 
the S&P 500 Index fell to 12.7% and 14.3%, respectively.

― Per FactSet, the Q3 2019 estimated earnings for the S&P 500 is -4.1%. 
If earnings contract -4.1% in Q3, it will mark the third straight quarter 
of year-over-year earnings contraction, which hasn’t happened since 
Q4 2015. All eleven sectors have seen downward revisions to EPS 
estimates, led by Energy (-31.8%) and Materials (-8.1%).  

U.S. FIXED INCOME

― The Federal Open Market Committee cut its range for the 
benchmark rate by 0.25% to 1.75% - 2.00%, in line with 
expectations. Voting committee members’ opinions on the 
decision were dispersed: seven were in favor of the 0.25% cut, 
two sought no changes, and one preferred a 0.50% cut. 

― Ten-year Treasury yields rose from 1.50% to 1.67% and touched 
intra-month highs of 1.90%. The +0.17% move higher over the 
month marked the largest monthly advance since last September.

― Riskier credit outperformed safer credit within U.S. markets. The 
average option-adjusted spread on corporate bonds in the 
Bloomberg Barclays High Yield Index fell from 3.93% to 3.73%, 
while the average option-adjust spread on corporate bonds in the 
Bloomberg Barclays Aggregate Index fell from 1.20% to 1.15%.

INTERNATIONAL MARKETS

― European PMI data continued to paint a gloomy picture for the 
global manufacturing outlook. Markit’s Manufacturing PMI 
readings plunged to 41.7 in Germany, fell to 47.8 in Italy, faded to 
47.7 in Spain, and remained in contraction in the United Kingdom.

― The MSCI Emerging Markets Currency Index gained 0.8% in 
September, notching its third best monthly performance of the 
year, and its third month of positive performance in the last four.

― The Supreme Court of the United Kingdom ruled the British Prime 
Minister Boris Johnson’s 5-week suspension of government as 
illegal. Following the ruling, British lawmakers returned to 
Parliament, and continued to work toward reaching a deal ahead 
of the looming October 31st deadline for the U.K. to leave the E.U.



ONE YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER

Major asset class returns

Capital Markets Update

Source: Morningstar, as of 9/30/19 Source: Morningstar, as of 9/30/19

3

TEN YEARS ENDING SEPTEMBER

September 2019

-4.3%

2.0%

3.1%

3.4%

3.7%

4.9%

5.3%

7.9%

10.1%

11.2%

11.5%

12.2%

13.1%

13.2%

14.9%

-10% -5% 0% 5% 10% 15% 20%

 Bloomberg Commodity

 BBgBarc US Agency Interm

 BBgBarc US Treasury

 MSCI EM

 BBgBarc US Agg Bond

 MSCI EAFE

 BBgBarc US Credit

 BBgBarc US Corp. High Yield

 Russell 2000 Value

 Russell 2000

 Russell 1000 Value

 Russell 2000 Growth

 Wilshire US REIT

 S&P 500

 Russell 1000 Growth

-9.6%

-8.9%

-8.2%

-6.6%

-2.0%

-1.3%

3.7%

4.0%

4.3%

5.8%

6.4%

10.3%

10.5%

12.6%

18.4%

-15% -10% -5% 0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25%

 Russell 2000 Growth

 Russell 2000

 Russell 2000 Value

 Bloomberg Commodity

 MSCI EM

 MSCI EAFE

 Russell 1000 Growth

 Russell 1000 Value

 S&P 500

 BBgBarc US Agency Interm

 BBgBarc US Corp. High Yield

 BBgBarc US Agg Bond

 BBgBarc US Treasury

 BBgBarc US Credit

 Wilshire US REIT



S&P 500 PRICE INDEX IMPLIED VOLATILITY (VIX INDEX) S&P 500 VALUATION SNAPSHOT

U.S. large cap equities
— The S&P 500 Index gained 1.9% in September, 

rebounding from its -1.6% decline last month. Ten of 
eleven sectors posted positive performance for the 
month and the Financials (+4.6%) and Utilities (+4.3%) 
sectors outperformed.

— According to FactSet, the bottom-up September 30th
2020 target price for the S&P 500 Price Index is 3322, 
which would imply a year-over-year price appreciation 
of 14.2%. The Energy sector (+25.5%) is expected to 
see the largest price increase while the Utilities sector 
(+1.6%) is expected to see the smallest appreciation. 

— The Healthcare sector (-0.2%) underperformed over 
the month, extending its year-to-date 
underperformance of the S&P 500 Index to 15.0%. The 
sector has faced headwinds from increased political 
pressure over drug pricing, opiates and insurance costs. 

— At month-end, the forward one-year P/E ratio of the 
S&P 500 Index was 16.9, which exceeded both its 5-
and 10-year averages of 16.6 and 14.8, respectively. 
The Consumer Discretionary (20.7) and Financials 
(11.7) sectors have the highest and lowest forward 
one-year P/E ratios.

September 2019
Capital Markets Update

Source: Bloomberg, as of 9/30/19 Source: CBOE, as of 9/30/19 Source: Bloomberg, as of 9/30/19

4

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Sep-17 Mar-18 Sep-18 Mar-19 Sep-19

19.6

16.9

1.9 2.1

5.1 5.9

0

5

10

15

20

25

Trailing
 1 Yr P/E

Forward
 1 Yr P/E

Current
 Div. Yld

(%)

Implied
 Div. Yld

(%)

Trailing
Earnings
Yld (%)

Implied
Earnings
Yld (%)

2200

2300

2400

2500

2600

2700

2800

2900

3000

3100

3200

Sep-17 Mar-18 Sep-18 Mar-19 Sep-19



VALUE VS. GROWTH RELATIVE VALUATIONS
VALUE VS. GROWTH 1-YR ROLLING RELATIVE 
PERFORMANCE

SMALL VS. LARGE 1-YR ROLLING RELATIVE 
PERFORMANCE

Domestic equity size and style
— Value significantly outperformed growth over the 

period, across both large- and small-cap universes. The 
Russell 3000 Value Index advanced 3.7% and fared 
better than the Russell 3000 Growth Index (unchanged) 
for just the second time this year. 

— The outperformance of the value factor over the 
growth factor was most pronounced within the 
Financials sector. The Financials Sub-Index within the 
Russell 3000 Value advanced 5.4%, significantly 
outpacing its growth counterpart, which registered a 
1.0% decline.

— Small-cap equities outperformed large-cap equities for 
the fourth month this year. The Russell 2000 Index 
returned 2.1% while the Russell 1000 Index gained 
1.7%. Year-to-date, small-cap equities (+14.2%) have 
underperformed large-cap equities (+20.5%) by 6.3%.

— The S&P 500 Price Index closed the month at 2976, 
above its 50-, 100-, and 200-day moving-averages, 
indicating that there has been an upward price trend 
over the past six months.

September 2019
Capital Markets Update

Source: Russell, Bloomberg, as of 9/30/19 Source: FTSE, Bloomberg, as of 9/30/19 Source: FTSE, Bloomberg, as of 9/30/19

5

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

Sep-09 Sep-11 Sep-13 Sep-15 Sep-17 Sep-19

Russell 2000 minus Russell 1000

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

Sep-09 Sep-11 Sep-13 Sep-15 Sep-17 Sep-19

R3000 Value minus R3000 Growth

-15%

-10%

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

Relative P/E (Value/Growth) (Left)
Relative Average Valuation (Left)
Subsequent 5 Year Rolling Excess Returns (Value/Growth) (Right)



— The European Central Bank delivered a fresh stimulus 
package in its September meeting, in line with 
expectations. The ECB cut its main deposit rate from     
-0.40% to -0.50% and announced it would restart asset 
purchases to the tune of €20 billion per month 
beginning November 1st, and with no stated end date.

— At the end of the period, the futures implied 
probability of the fed funds range being cut by at least 
0.25% by the end of the year sat at 72%. There was a 
21% probability of at least 0.50% in cuts by year-end.

― Repo rates, which represent the overnight rate paid by 
short-term borrowers of cash, reached as high as 8.8% 
as liquidity was strained in the short-term funds 
market. Officials at the Federal Reserve Bank of New 
York responded, providing liquidity and stating that the 
dislocation was merely a financial “plumbing” issue.

― Local-currency denominated emerging market debt 
outperformed spread-sector U.S. fixed income. The J.P. 
Morgan GBI-EM Global Diversified Index (+1.0%) 
outpaced the S&P/LSTA Leveraged Loan (+0.5%), and 
Bloomberg Barclays U.S. High Yield (+0.4%) indices.

U.S. TREASURY YIELD CURVE NOMINAL YIELDS BREAKEVEN INFLATION RATES

Fixed income

September 2019
Capital Markets Update

Source: Bloomberg, as of 9/30/19 Source: Morningstar, as of 9/30/19 Source: Bloomberg, as of 9/30/19

6

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

Sep-19 Mar-19 Sep-18

2.0%
1.8%

1.3%

2.1%
1.9%

1.5%

0.0%

0.6%

1.2%

1.8%

2.4%

12 Months Prior 6 Months Prior Sep-19

5-Year Breakeven 10-Year Breakeven

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

BBgBarc US
Treasury

Index

BBgBarc US
Agg Index

BBgBarc US
Credit Index

BBgBarc US
High Yield

Index

EMBI-Global
Index

Sep-19 Sep-18 20-Year Average



GLOBAL SOVEREIGN 10-YEAR YIELDS U.S. DOLLAR MAJOR CURRENCY INDEX MSCI VALUATION METRICS (3-MONTH AVG)

Global markets
— Emerging market currency exposure dampened EM 

equity performance. The MSCI EM Index gained 1.9% in 
U.S. dollar terms and only 1.5% in local currency terms.

— In a gesture of good will, President Trump announced 
that the effective date of the tariff rate hike from 25% 
to 30% on $250 billion of Chinese imports would be 
delayed from October 1st to October 15th. China also 
made several good will gestures as the two sides laid 
the groundwork for the resumption of high-level trade 
talks in Washington at the beginning of October.

— Following approval by the World Trade Organization, 
the U.S. announced duties on $7.5 billion of European 
exports. The new tariffs will take effect October 18th

and will start at 25% for several European food 
products including wines and cheese, and at 10% for 
commercial aircraft.

— The global bond rally showed signs of slowing in 
September. Ten-year German bund yield, which started 
the month only two basis points above all-time-lows at 
-0.70%, rose to -0.58% by the end of the month.

September 2019
Capital Markets Update

Source: Bloomberg, as of 9/30/19   Source: Federal Reserve, as of 9/30/19                Source: Bloomberg, as of 9/30/19

7

-6%

-4%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

60

80

100

120

140

Oct-74 Oct-88 Oct-02 Oct-16
US Major Currency Index (real) Average Currency Index Value
Subsequent 10 Year Return

3.4

19.9

24.0

1.9
5.0

1.6

16.5 17.8

3.5
6.1

1.5

13.4 14.8

2.9

7.5

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

P/B P/E P/FCF Dividend
Yield (%)

Earnings
Yield (%)

United States EAFE Emerging Markets

1.7%
1.4%

0.8%

0.5%

-0.2% -0.3%
-0.6%

-1.0%

-0.5%

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%



Commodities
— The Bloomberg Commodity Index advanced 1.2% over the 

period, bringing its year-to-date performance to 3.1%. 
Grains (+5.2%), as well as Livestock (+7.5%) propelled the 
index higher, while Precious Metals (-4.4%) presented 
headwinds for performance.

— The Livestock Sub-Index rebounded from its poor 
performance in August with a 7.5% return in September. 
Lean hog futures prices boosted the sub-index higher on 
reports that African swine fever had spread into Southeast 
Asia and South Korea, and that local governments had 
begun to cull pig populations.

— Brent crude oil futures contracts spiked nearly 10% and 
reached as high as $71.95 per barrel following drone 
attacks on several Saudi Arabian oil processing plants 
which resulted in the temporary reduction of daily global 
oil output by 5%. As production was brought back online, 
oil prices settled and ended the month up only 1.7%. 

— Precious Metals (-4.4%) was the worst performing group 
within the commodities basket. Dollar strength in 
September made holding gold and silver more expensive 
in U.S.-dollar terms and rising yields increased the 
opportunity cost of holding assets not providing income.

September 2019
Capital Markets Update

Source: Morningstar, as of 9/30/19 Source: Bloomberg, as of 9/30/19

8

INDEX AND SECTOR PERFORMANCE COMMODITY PERFORMANCE

Month QTD YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year

Bloomberg Commodity 1.2 (1.8) 3.1 (6.6) (1.5) (7.2) (4.3)

Bloomberg Agriculture 4.2 (6.1) (5.0) (4.9) (9.6) (7.3) (3.6)

Bloomberg Energy 1.1 (4.5) 5.6 (21.6) (0.8) (16.8) (11.9)

Bloomberg Grains 5.2 (6.5) (4.5) (3.8) (6.7) (6.7) (3.7)

Bloomberg Industrial Metals 0.5 2.4 7.2 (2.1) 5.8 (1.7) (2.0)

Bloomberg Livestock 7.5 0.8 (6.1) (5.5) 5.8 (6.6) (1.4)

Bloomberg Petroleum 1.3 (5.3) 18.0 (23.2) 4.2 (14.5) (6.4)

Bloomberg Precious Metals (4.4) 5.3 12.8 20.5 0.9 2.2 2.3 

Bloomberg Softs 4.2 (8.6) (8.5) (7.8) (18.7) (11.5) (6.2)

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

Sep-16 Mar-17 Sep-17 Mar-18 Sep-18 Mar-19 Sep-19
Oil Gold Copper Natural Gas Agriculture



Appendix

Capital Markets Update 9
September 2019



Periodic table of returns

Capital Markets Update

Source Data: Morningstar, Inc., Hedge Fund Research, Inc. (HFR), National Council of Real Estate Investment Fiduciaries (NCREIF).  Indices used: Russell 1000, Russell 1000 Value, Russell 1000 Growth, Russell 2000, 
Russell 2000 Value, Russell 2000 Growth, MSCI EAFE, MSCI EM, BBgBarc US Aggregate, T-Bill 90 Day, Bloomberg Commodity, NCREIF Property, HFRI FOF, MSCI ACWI, BBgBarc Global Bond. NCREIF Property Index 
performance data as of 6/30/19.

10

Large Cap Equity Small Cap Growth Commodities

Large Cap Value International Equity Real Estate

Large Cap Growth Emerging Markets Equity Hedge Funds of Funds

Small Cap Equity US Bonds 60% MSCI ACWI/40% BBgBarc Global Bond

Small Cap Value Cash

BE
ST

W
O

RS
T

September 2019

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 YTD 5-Year 10-Year

Large Cap Growth 38.7 66.4 31.8 14.0 25.9 56.3 26.0 34.5 32.6 39.8 5.2 79.0 29.1 14.3 18.6 43.3 13.5 13.3 31.7 37.3 6.7 23.3 13.4 14.9

Large Cap Equity 27.0 43.1 22.8 8.4 10.3 48.5 22.2 21.4 26.9 16.2 1.4 37.2 26.9 7.8 18.1 38.8 13.2 5.7 21.3 30.2 1.9 20.5 10.6 13.2

Large Cap Value 20.3 33.2 12.2 7.3 6.7 47.3 20.7 20.1 23.5 15.8 -6.5 34.5 24.5 2.6 17.9 34.5 13.0 0.9 17.3 25.0 0.0 17.8 9.1 12.2

Small Cap Growth 19.3 27.3 11.6 3.3 1.6 46.0 18.3 14.0 22.2 11.8 -21.4 32.5 19.2 1.5 17.5 33.5 11.8 0.6 12.1 22.2 -1.5 15.3 8.8 11.5

Small Cap Equity 16.2 26.5 7.0 2.8 1.0 39.2 16.5 7.5 18.4 11.6 -25.9 28.4 16.8 0.4 16.4 33.1 6.0 0.0 11.8 21.7 -3.5 14.2 8.2 11.2

Small Cap Value 8.7 21.3 4.1 -2.4 -6.0 29.9 14.3 6.3 15.5 10.3 -33.8 23.3 16.1 -2.1 15.3 23.3 4.9 -0.8 11.2 14.6 -6.0 12.8 7.8 10.1

International Equity 15.6 24.3 6.0 2.5 -5.9 30.0 14.5 7.1 16.6 10.9 -28.9 27.2 16.7 0.1 16.3 32.5 5.6 -0.4 11.3 17.1 -4.8 12.8 7.2 9.3

60/40 Global Portfolio 4.9 20.9 -3.0 -5.6 -11.4 29.7 12.9 5.3 15.1 7.0 -35.6 20.6 15.5 -2.9 14.6 12.1 4.2 -1.4 8.0 13.7 -8.3 12.4 4.9 6.1

US Bonds 1.2 13.2 -7.3 -9.1 -15.5 25.2 11.4 4.7 13.3 7.0 -36.8 19.7 13.1 -4.2 11.5 11.0 3.4 -2.5 7.1 7.8 -9.3 8.5 3.4 4.9

Emerging Markets Equity -2.5 11.4 -7.8 -9.2 -15.7 23.9 9.1 4.6 10.4 5.8 -37.6 18.9 10.2 -5.5 10.5 9.0 2.8 -3.8 5.7 7.7 -11.0 5.9 3.3 3.7

Hedge Funds of Funds -5.1 7.3 -14.0 -12.4 -20.5 11.6 6.9 4.6 9.1 4.4 -38.4 11.5 8.2 -5.7 4.8 0.1 0.0 -4.4 2.6 7.0 -11.2 5.0 2.3 3.4

Real Estate -6.5 4.8 -22.4 -19.5 -21.7 9.0 6.3 4.2 4.8 -0.2 -38.5 5.9 6.5 -11.7 4.2 -2.0 -1.8 -7.5 1.0 3.5 -12.9 3.3 1.9 2.7

Commodities -25.3 -0.8 -22.4 -20.4 -27.9 4.1 4.3 3.2 4.3 -1.6 -43.1 0.2 5.7 -13.3 0.1 -2.3 -4.5 -14.9 0.5 1.7 -13.8 3.1 1.0 0.5

Cash -27.0 -1.5 -30.6 -21.2 -30.3 1.0 1.4 2.4 2.1 -9.8 -53.2 -16.9 0.1 -18.2 -1.1 -9.5 -17.0 -24.7 0.3 0.9 -14.6 1.7 -7.2 -4.3



Q3

S&P 500 sector returns

Capital Markets Update

Source: Morningstar, as of 9/30/19                                                                                           Source: Morningstar, as of 9/30/19

11

ONE YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER

September 2019

-19.2%

-3.6%

1.4%

2.4%

2.7%

3.9%

4.3%

5.7%

8.6%

16.9%

24.7%

27.1%

-25%-20%-15%-10% -5% 0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35%

 Energy

 Health Care

 Industrials

 Consumer Discretionary

 Materials

 Financials

 S&P 500

 Telecom

 Information Technology

 Consumer Staples

 Real Estate

 Utilities

-6.3%

-2.2%

-0.1%

0.5%

1.0%

1.7%

2.0%

2.2%

3.3%

6.1%

7.7%

9.3%

-10% -5% 0% 5% 10% 15%

 Energy

 Health Care

 Materials

 Consumer Discretionary

 Industrials

 S&P 500

 Financials

 Telecom

 Information Technology

 Consumer Staples

 Real Estate

 Utilities



Detailed index returns

Capital Markets Update

Source: Morningstar, HFR, as of 9/30/19

12
September 2019

DOMESTIC EQUITY FIXED INCOME
Month QTD YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Month QTD YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year

 Core Index  Broad Index
 S&P 500 1.9 1.7 20.6 4.3 13.4 10.8 13.2  BBgBarc  US  TIPS (1.4) 1.3 7.6 7.1 2.2 2.4 3.5 
 S&P 500 Equal Weighted 3.1 0.8 20.1 3.4 11.1 9.5 13.4  BBgBarc US Treasury Bills 0.2 0.6 1.9 2.4 1.5 1.0 0.6 
 DJ Industrial Average 2.1 1.8 17.5 4.2 16.4 12.3 13.6  BBgBarc US Agg Bond (0.5) 2.3 8.5 10.3 2.9 3.4 3.7 
 Russell Top 200 1.6 1.8 20.0 4.1 14.2 11.2 13.3  Duration
 Russell 1000 1.7 1.4 20.5 3.9 13.2 10.6 13.2  BBgBarc US Treasury 1-3 Yr (0.1) 0.6 3.1 4.4 1.5 1.3 1.2 
 Russell 2000 2.1 (2.4) 14.2 (8.9) 8.2 8.2 11.2  BBgBarc US Treasury Long (2.5) 7.9 19.8 24.8 4.1 6.8 6.9 
 Russell 3000 1.8 1.2 20.1 2.9 12.8 10.4 13.1  BBgBarc US Treasury (0.8) 2.4 7.7 10.5 2.2 2.9 3.1 
 Russell Mid Cap 2.0 0.5 21.9 3.2 10.7 9.1 13.1  Issuer
 Style Index  BBgBarc US MBS 0.1 1.4 5.6 7.8 2.3 2.8 3.1 
 Russell 1000 Growth 0.0 1.5 23.3 3.7 16.9 13.4 14.9  BBgBarc US Corp. High Yield 0.4 1.3 11.4 6.4 6.1 5.4 7.9 
 Russell 1000 Value 3.6 1.4 17.8 4.0 9.4 7.8 11.5  BBgBarc US Agency Interm (0.2) 1.0 4.1 5.8 1.9 2.0 2.0 
 Russell 2000 Growth (0.8) (4.2) 15.3 (9.6) 9.8 9.1 12.2  BBgBarc US Credit (0.7) 3.0 12.6 12.6 4.3 4.5 5.3 
 Russell 2000 Value 5.1 (0.6) 12.8 (8.2) 6.5 7.2 10.1 

INTERNATIONAL EQUITY OTHER
 Broad Index  Index
 MSCI ACWI 2.1 (0.0) 16.2 1.4 9.7 6.7 8.3  Bloomberg Commodity 1.2 (1.8) 3.1 (6.6) (1.5) (7.2) (4.3)
 MSCI ACWI ex US 2.6 (1.8) 11.6 (1.2) 6.3 2.9 4.5  Wilshire US REIT 2.8 7.9 27.2 18.4 7.2 10.2 13.1 
 MSCI EAFE 2.9 (1.1) 12.8 (1.3) 6.5 3.3 4.9  CS Leveraged Loans 0.4 0.9 6.4 3.1 4.7 4.1 5.4 
 MSCI EM 1.9 (4.2) 5.9 (2.0) 6.0 2.3 3.4  Alerian MLP 0.8 (5.1) 11.8 (6.4) (2.7) (8.2) 7.0 
 MSCI EAFE Small Cap 2.8 (0.4) 12.1 (5.9) 5.9 6.0 7.5  Regional Index
 Style Index  JPM EMBI Global Div (0.5) 1.5 13.0 11.6 4.6 5.7 6.9 
 MSCI EAFE Growth 1.1 (0.4) 17.9 2.2 7.8 5.5 6.5  JPM GBI-EM Global Div 1.0 (0.8) 7.9 10.1 3.1 0.6 2.5 
 MSCI EAFE Value 4.8 (1.7) 7.7 (4.9) 5.1 1.0 3.2  Hedge Funds
 Regional Index  HFRI Composite (0.3) (0.5) 6.7 0.3 3.8 2.9 4.0 
 MSCI UK 4.2 (2.5) 10.1 (2.9) 4.6 0.4 4.8  HFRI FOF Composite (0.6) (1.1) 5.0 (0.2) 3.1 1.9 2.7 
 MSCI Japan 4.0 3.1 11.1 (4.7) 6.2 5.6 5.5  Currency (Spot)
 MSCI Euro 2.8 (2.0) 13.9 (1.1) 7.1 2.4 3.1  Euro (1.8) (0.3) 1.5 5.1 (2.1) 0.3 (1.9)
 MSCI EM Asia 2.0 (3.4) 6.0 (3.9) 6.3 4.1 5.2  Pound 1.2 (3.2) (3.2) (5.5) (1.7) (5.3) (2.6)
 MSCI EM Latin American 2.6 (5.6) 6.3 6.7 6.8 (0.8) (0.5)  Yen (1.0) (4.3) (4.6) (6.1) (1.0) (2.9) (2.9)



Notices & disclosures
Past performance is no guarantee of future results. This document is provided for informational purposes only and is directed to institutional clients and eligible 
institutional counterparties only and is not intended for retail investors. Nothing herein constitutes investment, legal, accounting or tax advice, or a recommendation to 
buy, sell or hold a security or pursue a particular investment vehicle or any trading strategy. This document may include or imply estimates, outlooks, projections and 
other “forward-looking statements.” No assurance can be given that future results described or implied by any forward looking information will be achieved. Investing 
entails risks, including possible loss of principal. Verus Advisory Inc. (“Verus”) file a single form ADV under the United States Investment Advisors Act of 1940, as amended. 
Additional information about Verus Advisory, Inc. available on the SEC’s website at www.adviserinfo.sec.gov. 

Verus – also known as Verus Advisory™.

Capital Markets Update 13
September 2019



San Mateo County

Composite Return Summary
9/30/2019

--

-2.00

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

TOTAL FUND - Gross 0.9 1.3 12.0 1.3 4.9 7.5 6.5 8.5 6.8

TOTAL FUND - Net 0.9 1.3 11.9 1.3 4.8 7.4 6.3 8.2 6.7

SAMCERA PLAN
BENCHMARK

1.6 1.0 11.7 1.0 5.1 8.1 6.6 8.6 7.0

Excess (Net) -0.6 0.3 0.2 0.3 -0.3 -0.7 -0.3 -0.4 -0.3

R
e
tu

rn
 (

%
)

Total Fund Performance

-1.4 -1.2 -1.0
-0.3

-0.9 -0.7 -0.9 -0.9 -1.3
-0.6

0.0

-0.3

-6.00

-4.00

-2.00

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19

R
e
tu

rn
 (

%
)

Rolling Month End Annual Returns

EXCESS

TOTAL FUND

2.1%

0.8%

1.6%

7.9%

21.3%

6.6%

5.1%

8.4%

6.6%

18.4%

21.3%

0.0% 5.0% 10.0% 15.0% 20.0% 25.0%

 Cash and Cash Overlay  $101,795,909

 TIPS  $37,278,220

 PRIVATE REAL ASSETS  $75,072,742

 REAL ESTATE  $379,453,655

 FIXED INCOME  $1,018,533,736

 PUBLIC REAL ASSETS  $316,558,836

 ABSOLUTE RETURN  $242,993,006

 RISK PARITY  $399,513,505

 PRIVATE EQUITY  $313,908,358

 INTERNATIONAL EQUITY  $880,240,676

 DOMESTIC EQUITY  $1,016,946,470

Asset Allocation

1 of 16



San Mateo County

Composite Return Summary
September 30,2019

Composite Returns (Net of Manager Fees) Market Value ($) 1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

San Mateo County ERA 4,782,295,114 0.9 1.3 11.9 1.3 4.8 7.4 6.3 7.7 8.2 6.7

Samcera Total Plan Benchmark 1.6 1.0 11.7 1.0 5.1 8.1 6.6 8.0 8.6 7.0

Excess -0.6 0.3 0.2 0.3 -0.3 -0.7 -0.3 -0.3 -0.4 -0.3

San Mateo Ex-Clifton Overlay 4,766,605,150 0.9 1.3 11.6 1.3 4.5 7.3 6.2 7.6 8.1 6.6

Samcera Total Plan Benchmark 1.6 1.0 11.7 1.0 5.1 8.1 6.6 8.0 8.6 7.0

Excess -0.7 0.3 -0.1 0.3 -0.6 -0.8 -0.4 -0.4 -0.5 -0.4

Total Equity 1,897,187,146 2.1 0.5 16.6 0.5 1.5 10.0 7.6 9.9 9.7 7.7

Samcera Total Equity Benchmark 2.2 0.4 16.7 0.4 1.4 10.7 8.5 10.8 10.6 8.3

Excess -0.0 0.1 -0.1 0.1 0.1 -0.7 -0.9 -0.9 -0.9 -0.6

Fixed Income 1,018,533,736 -0.3 1.0 6.7 1.0 7.2 4.7 4.0 3.9 5.5 5.5

Samcera Fixed Income Benchmark -0.3 2.1 9.7 2.1 9.9 3.6 3.9 2.9 4.1 5.1

Excess -0.1 -1.1 -3.1 -1.1 -2.7 1.0 0.1 1.0 1.4 0.4

Risk Parity 399,513,505 0.0 2.7 19.8 2.7 15.1 7.3 6.4 5.9 -- 6.8

Samcera Risk Parity Benchmark 0.9 0.6 13.2 0.6 4.5 8.0 7.2 8.5 -- 8.3

Excess -0.8 2.1 6.7 2.1 10.6 -0.7 -0.8 -2.6 -- -1.5

0.9 1.3

11.9

1.3

4.8

7.4
6.3

7.7 8.2
6.7

1.6 1.0

11.7

1.0

5.1

8.1
6.6

8.0 8.6
7.0

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

Return Comparison

San Mateo County ERA

2 of 16



San Mateo County

Composite Return Summary
September 30,2019

Composite Returns (Net of Manager Fees) Market Value ($) 1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

0.9 1.3

11.9

1.3

4.8

7.4
6.3

7.7 8.2
6.7

1.6 1.0

11.7

1.0

5.1

8.1
6.6

8.0 8.6
7.0

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

Return Comparison

San Mateo County ERA

Alternatives 556,901,365 0.2 8.1 11.2 8.1 10.4 8.3 6.6 5.5 -3.2 -1.5

Samcera Alternatives Benchmark 4.1 3.4 4.8 3.4 9.9 11.1 7.8 8.8 9.6 7.9

Excess -3.9 4.6 6.4 4.6 0.5 -2.8 -1.2 -3.3 -12.7 -9.3

Inflation Hedge 808,363,453 0.5 -1.3 5.2 -1.3 1.7 4.6 -- -- -- 6.3

SamCERA Inflation Hedge Index 0.9 -0.5 6.1 -0.5 3.5 5.7 -- -- -- 6.4

Excess -0.4 -0.9 -0.9 -0.9 -1.8 -1.2 -- -- -- -0.0

Cash 86,105,945 0.1 0.3 0.9 0.3 1.2 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 1.9

Samcera Cash Benchmark 0.2 0.6 1.8 0.6 2.4 1.5 1.0 0.7 0.5 1.9

Excess -0.1 -0.3 -0.9 -0.3 -1.2 -0.7 -0.3 -0.0 0.2 0.0

3 of 16



San Mateo County

Composite Return Summary
September 30,2019

Composite Returns (NET) Market Value ($) 1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

Total Equity 1,897,187,146 2.1 0.5 16.6 0.5 1.5 10.0 7.6 9.9 9.7 7.7

Samcera Total Equity Benchmark 2.2 0.4 16.7 0.4 1.4 10.7 8.5 10.8 10.6 8.3

Excess -0.0 0.1 -0.1 0.1 0.1 -0.7 -0.9 -0.9 -0.9 -0.6

Domestic Equity 1,016,946,470 1.9 1.7 19.7 1.7 2.5 13.0 10.4 12.6 12.6 8.7

Samcera Dom. Equity Benchmark 1.8 1.2 20.1 1.2 2.9 12.8 10.5 12.9 13.0 9.0

Excess 0.1 0.5 -0.4 0.5 -0.4 0.2 -0.1 -0.3 -0.4 -0.3

Large Cap Equity 932,834,714 1.7 1.9 20.5 1.9 4.0 13.8 11.2 13.3 12.9 9.5

Russell 1000 1.7 1.4 20.5 1.4 3.9 13.2 10.6 13.2 13.2 9.8

Excess -0.0 0.5 -0.0 0.5 0.1 0.6 0.5 0.1 -0.3 -0.3

Blackrock Russell 1000 488,761,017 1.7 1.4 20.5 1.4 3.8 -- -- -- -- 12.6

Russell 1000 1.7 1.4 20.5 1.4 3.9 -- -- -- -- 12.5

Excess 0.0 0.0 -0.0 0.0 -0.0 -- -- -- -- 0.1

DE Shaw Commingled Fund 147,342,913 1.9 1.4 17.3 1.4 0.7 13.0 -- -- -- 10.8

Russell 1000 1.7 1.4 20.5 1.4 3.9 13.2 -- -- -- 10.1

Excess 0.1 0.0 -3.3 0.0 -3.2 -0.2 -- -- -- 0.7

Acadian US MGD V-SL 145,139,425 1.7 2.8 19.2 2.8 -- -- -- -- -- 21.2

Russell 1000 1.7 1.4 20.5 1.4 -- -- -- -- -- 21.5

Excess -0.0 1.4 -1.3 1.4 -- -- -- -- -- -0.3

Panagora Defuseq -SL 151,591,359 1.6 3.2 25.3 3.2 -- -- -- -- -- 27.3

Russell 1000 1.7 1.4 20.5 1.4 -- -- -- -- -- 21.5

Excess -0.2 1.8 4.7 1.8 -- -- -- -- -- 5.8

Small Cap Equity 84,111,756 3.8 -0.9 11.7 -0.9 -11.3 6.6 4.8 8.1 10.1 6.0

Russell 2000 2.1 -2.4 14.2 -2.4 -8.9 8.2 8.2 10.4 11.2 7.5

Excess 1.7 1.5 -2.5 1.5 -2.4 -1.6 -3.4 -2.3 -1.1 -1.6

QMA US Small Cap 84,111,756 3.8 -0.9 11.7 -0.9 -11.3 6.6 -- -- -- 7.1

Russell 2000 2.1 -2.4 14.2 -2.4 -8.9 8.2 -- -- -- 8.4

Excess 1.7 1.5 -2.5 1.5 -2.4 -1.6 -- -- -- -1.3

4 of 16



San Mateo County

Composite Return Summary
September 30,2019

Composite Returns (NET) Market Value ($) 1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

International Equity 880,240,676 2.5 -0.8 13.1 -0.8 0.3 6.0 3.7 5.6 4.5 5.3

SamCERA Custom Hedge Intl 2.7 -0.6 12.7 -0.6 -0.5 6.6 3.3 5.4 4.8 4.9

Excess -0.3 -0.3 0.4 -0.3 0.8 -0.6 0.4 0.3 -0.3 0.4

Developed Markets Equity 792,869,333 2.6 -0.4 14.1 -0.4 0.4 6.2 4.1 6.1 4.9 4.3

MS AC WldxUS IMI Nt 2.6 -1.7 11.4 -1.7 -1.8 6.1 3.0 5.2 4.7 4.6

Excess 0.0 1.3 2.7 1.3 2.2 0.1 1.1 1.0 0.2 -0.3

Baillie Gifford 254,643,977 1.0 -1.0 18.7 -1.0 0.6 6.5 5.7 7.4 -- 7.2

MSCI ACWI ex US Growth -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --

Excess -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --

Blackrock EAFE Index Fund 253,027,327 2.9 -1.0 13.1 -1.0 -1.1 6.8 3.6 -- -- 2.9

MSCI EAFE ND 2.9 -1.1 12.8 -1.1 -1.3 6.5 3.3 -- -- 2.6

Excess 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.0 0.3 0.4 0.3 -- -- 0.3

Mondrian Investment Partners 245,630,074 3.6 -2.8 7.6 -2.8 -2.0 4.5 2.0 4.6 4.2 4.9

MSCI ACWI ex US Value -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --

Excess -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --

Parametriccurr Ovrla 39,567,954 4.8 31.3 39.6 31.3 57.1 -- -- -- -- 63.7

-- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --

Excess -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --

Emerging Markets Equity 87,371,343 1.5 -4.3 5.1 -4.3 -1.0 4.2 0.1 1.7 -- 1.4

MSCI Emerging Markets ND 1.9 -4.2 5.9 -4.2 -2.0 6.0 2.3 2.4 -- 2.0

Excess -0.5 -0.1 -0.7 -0.1 1.0 -1.8 -2.2 -0.7 -- -0.6

EV Parametric EM 87,371,343 1.5 -4.3 5.1 -4.3 -1.0 4.2 -- -- -- 3.8

MSCI Emerging Markets GD 1.9 -4.1 6.2 -4.1 -1.6 6.4 -- -- -- 5.4

Excess -0.5 -0.2 -1.1 -0.2 0.6 -2.2 -- -- -- -1.6

Fixed Income 1,018,533,736 -0.3 1.0 6.7 1.0 7.2 4.7 4.0 3.9 5.5 5.5

Samcera Fixed Income Benchmark -0.3 2.1 9.7 2.1 9.9 3.6 3.9 2.9 4.1 5.1

Excess -0.1 -1.1 -3.1 -1.1 -2.7 1.0 0.1 1.0 1.4 0.4

Core Fixed Income 661,853,112 0.0 1.6 7.1 1.6 8.6 3.3 3.6 3.3 4.9 5.3

5 of 16



San Mateo County

Composite Return Summary
September 30,2019

Composite Returns (NET) Market Value ($) 1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

BBG Barclays US Aggregate -0.5 2.3 8.5 2.3 10.3 2.9 3.4 2.7 3.7 5.0

Excess 0.5 -0.7 -1.4 -0.7 -1.7 0.4 0.2 0.5 1.2 0.3

6 of 16



San Mateo County

Composite Return Summary
September 30,2019

Composite Returns (NET) Market Value ($) 1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

FIAM Core Bond 287,349,195 -0.5 2.2 9.0 2.2 10.2 3.3 3.8 3.2 4.6 4.8

BBG Barclays US Aggregate -0.5 2.3 8.5 2.3 10.3 2.9 3.4 2.7 3.7 4.4

Excess 0.1 -0.1 0.5 -0.1 -0.1 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.9 0.4

Western Total Return 137,965,723 1.8 1.0 6.4 1.0 7.2 4.7 -- -- -- 4.3

BBG Barclays US Aggregate -0.5 2.3 8.5 2.3 10.3 2.9 -- -- -- 3.5

Excess 2.4 -1.3 -2.1 -1.3 -3.1 1.7 -- -- -- 0.8

Blackrock Inter Gov 236,538,193 -0.4 1.2 5.3 1.2 7.6 -- -- -- -- 2.9

BBG Barclays US Aggregate -0.5 2.3 8.5 2.3 10.3 -- -- -- -- 4.4

Excess 0.1 -1.1 -3.2 -1.1 -2.7 -- -- -- -- -1.5

Opportunistic Credit 356,680,624 -1.0 -0.1 5.9 -0.1 4.5 6.9 5.7 7.0 -- 8.8

BB Barc BA Intermediate HY Ind 0.3 1.8 12.1 1.8 9.1 5.5 5.5 5.6 -- 7.3

Excess -1.2 -1.9 -6.2 -1.9 -4.6 1.4 0.2 1.4 -- 1.5

Pimco Private Income 22,116,753 0.0 0.5 -- 0.5 -- -- -- -- -- 0.5

BB Barc BA Intermediate HY Ind 0.3 1.8 -- 1.8 -- -- -- -- -- 4.8

Excess -0.3 -1.3 -- -1.3 -- -- -- -- -- -4.2

AG Opportunistic Whole Loan 4,754,287 0.0 6.2 7.7 6.2 14.3 21.9 13.0 -- -- 11.5

BB Barc BA Intermediate HY Ind 0.3 1.8 12.1 1.8 9.1 5.5 5.5 -- -- 5.1

Excess -0.3 4.3 -4.4 4.3 5.2 16.3 7.5 -- -- 6.4

Angelo Gordon 3,619,298 0.0 8.0 18.0 8.0 26.6 25.4 16.6 -- -- 15.4

BB Barc BA Intermediate HY Ind 0.3 1.8 12.1 1.8 9.1 5.5 5.5 -- -- 5.5

Excess -0.3 6.2 5.9 6.2 17.5 19.9 11.1 -- -- 9.9

Beach Point Select Fund 52,539,185 0.0 0.0 5.1 0.0 3.7 7.2 -- -- -- 7.7

BB Barc BA Intermediate HY Ind 0.3 1.8 12.1 1.8 9.1 5.5 -- -- -- 5.5

Excess -0.3 -1.8 -7.0 -1.8 -5.4 1.6 -- -- -- 2.2

Brigade Cap Mngmt 78,434,634 -1.2 -1.1 5.0 -1.1 -0.8 4.8 3.9 4.8 -- 6.1

BB Barc BA Intermediate HY Ind 0.3 1.8 12.1 1.8 9.1 5.5 5.5 5.6 -- 6.7

Excess -1.5 -2.9 -7.1 -2.9 -9.9 -0.8 -1.6 -0.7 -- -0.6

7 of 16



San Mateo County

Composite Return Summary
September 30,2019

Composite Returns (NET) Market Value ($) 1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

White Oak Yield Spec 34,301,530 0.0 1.6 4.2 1.6 5.5 -- -- -- -- --

BB Barc BA Intermediate HY Ind 0.3 1.8 12.1 1.8 9.1 -- -- -- -- 5.7

Excess -0.3 -0.2 -7.9 -0.2 -3.6 -- -- -- -- --

PIMCO Div. Income Fund 88,839,498 -0.2 1.2 10.9 1.2 9.5 -- -- -- -- 5.3

BB Barc BA Intermediate HY Ind 0.3 1.8 12.1 1.8 9.1 -- -- -- -- 5.0

Excess -0.4 -0.6 -1.2 -0.6 0.4 -- -- -- -- 0.3

TCP Direct Lending VIII 31,425,376 0.0 0.0 4.7 0.0 6.3 5.9 -- -- -- --

BB Barc BA Intermediate HY Ind 0.3 1.8 12.1 1.8 9.1 5.5 -- -- -- 6.4

Excess -0.3 -1.8 -7.4 -1.8 -2.8 0.4 -- -- -- --

Franklin Templeton 40,650,063 -5.5 -4.0 -1.0 -4.0 1.2 3.1 0.8 2.3 -- 3.3

BB Barclays Multiverse Index -0.9 0.6 6.4 0.6 7.5 1.8 2.1 1.4 -- 2.3

Excess -4.6 -4.6 -7.4 -4.6 -6.4 1.3 -1.3 0.9 -- 1.0

Risk Parity 399,513,505 0.0 2.7 19.8 2.7 15.1 7.3 6.4 5.9 -- 6.8

Samcera Risk Parity Benchmark 0.9 0.6 13.2 0.6 4.5 8.0 7.2 8.5 -- 8.3

Excess -0.8 2.1 6.7 2.1 10.6 -0.7 -0.8 -2.6 -- -1.5

AQR Global Risk III 198,846,488 0.1 1.2 17.4 1.2 12.9 8.0 4.8 4.7 -- 5.8

Samcera Risk Parity Benchmark 0.9 0.6 13.2 0.6 4.5 8.0 7.2 8.5 -- 8.3

Excess -0.8 0.6 4.2 0.6 8.4 -0.0 -2.3 -3.8 -- -2.5

Panagora 200,667,017 -0.0 4.2 22.4 4.2 17.4 6.8 7.8 -- -- 7.4

Samcera Risk Parity Benchmark 0.9 0.6 13.2 0.6 4.5 8.0 7.2 -- -- 6.8

Excess -0.9 3.5 9.2 3.5 12.9 -1.1 0.7 -- -- 0.5

Alternatives 556,901,365 0.2 8.1 11.2 8.1 10.4 8.3 6.6 5.5 -3.2 -1.5

Samcera Alternatives Benchmark 4.1 3.4 4.8 3.4 9.9 11.1 7.8 8.8 9.6 7.9

Excess -3.9 4.6 6.4 4.6 0.5 -2.8 -1.2 -3.3 -12.7 -9.3

Private Equity 313,908,358 0.2 15.0 23.0 15.0 24.6 18.6 16.5 15.1 -- -14.6

Samcera PE Benchmark 2.0 1.9 22.7 1.9 6.0 16.2 13.7 16.3 -- 16.3

Excess -1.8 13.1 0.3 13.1 18.6 2.4 2.8 -1.2 -- -30.9

8 of 16



San Mateo County

Composite Return Summary
September 30,2019

Composite Returns (NET) Market Value ($) 1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

Absolute Return 242,993,006 0.1 -0.0 -1.6 -0.0 -4.6 -2.2 1.5 3.0 -- 2.4

Samcera LIBOR + 4% 0.5 1.6 4.8 1.6 6.4 5.7 5.1 4.9 -- 4.8

Excess -0.4 -1.6 -6.4 -1.6 -11.1 -7.9 -3.6 -1.9 -- -2.4

AQR Delta XN 138,918,173 0.2 -1.2 -7.6 -1.2 -10.9 -5.3 -0.3 1.7 -- 1.3

Samcera LIBOR + 4% 0.5 1.6 4.8 1.6 6.4 5.7 5.1 4.9 -- 4.8

Excess -0.3 -2.7 -12.4 -2.7 -17.4 -11.0 -5.4 -3.2 -- -3.5

Aberdeen Std GARS 104,074,833 0.0 1.6 7.8 1.6 5.4 2.4 -- -- -- 0.7

Samcera LIBOR + 4% 0.5 1.6 4.8 1.6 6.4 5.7 -- -- -- 5.4

Excess -0.5 0.1 2.9 0.1 -1.1 -3.3 -- -- -- -4.6

Inflation Hedge 808,363,453 0.5 -1.3 5.2 -1.3 1.7 4.6 -- -- -- 6.3

SamCERA Inflation Hedge Index 0.9 -0.5 6.1 -0.5 3.5 5.7 -- -- -- 6.4

Excess -0.4 -0.9 -0.9 -0.9 -1.8 -1.2 -- -- -- -0.0

TIPS 37,278,220 -1.0 0.6 6.2 0.6 5.4 2.4 -- -- -- 2.6

BBG Barclays US TIPS -1.4 1.3 7.6 1.3 7.1 2.2 -- -- -- 2.7

Excess 0.3 -0.8 -1.4 -0.8 -1.8 0.2 -- -- -- -0.0

BBH Inflation Indexed 37,278,215 -1.0 0.6 -- 0.6 -- -- -- -- -- 4.6

BBG Barclays US TIPS -1.4 1.3 -- 1.3 -- -- -- -- -- --

Excess 0.3 -0.8 -- -0.8 -- -- -- -- -- --

Real Estate 379,453,655 0.1 0.1 4.6 0.1 7.1 7.6 -- -- -- 7.9

Samcera NCREIF ODCE EW (gross) 0.0 0.0 3.1 0.0 4.7 7.1 -- -- -- 7.4

Excess 0.1 0.1 1.5 0.1 2.4 0.5 -- -- -- 0.5

Invesco Core Real Estate 269,029,611 0.0 -0.1 4.1 -0.1 6.7 7.6 9.8 10.1 10.4 7.7

Samcera NCREIF ODCE EW (gross) 0.0 0.0 3.1 0.0 4.7 7.1 9.3 10.2 10.7 7.6

Excess 0.0 -0.1 1.1 -0.1 2.0 0.5 0.5 -0.1 -0.3 0.1

Invesco US Val IV 19,091,001 0.0 1.1 9.8 1.1 12.6 10.6 -- -- -- 11.7

Samcera NCREIF ODCE EW (gross) 0.0 0.0 3.1 0.0 4.7 7.1 -- -- -- 8.3

Excess 0.0 1.1 6.8 1.1 7.9 3.5 -- -- -- 3.4

9 of 16



San Mateo County

Composite Return Summary
September 30,2019

Composite Returns (NET) Market Value ($) 1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

PGIM Real Estate US Debt Fund 83,935,594 -0.0 -0.0 4.7 -0.0 6.7 -- -- -- -- 4.3

Samcera NCREIF ODCE EW (gross) 0.0 0.0 3.1 0.0 4.7 -- -- -- -- 6.9

Excess -0.0 -0.0 1.6 -0.0 2.0 -- -- -- -- -2.5

Invesco US VAL V 7,397,449 5.4 5.4 -- 5.4 -- -- -- -- -- 0.7

Samcera NCREIF ODCE EW (gross) 0.0 0.0 -- 0.0 -- -- -- -- -- --

Excess 5.4 5.4 -- 5.4 -- -- -- -- -- --

Public Real Assets 316,558,836 1.9 -2.9 10.1 -2.9 -2.2 3.7 -- -- -- --

SamCera Liquid Real Asset Inde 1.8 -2.6 9.8 -2.6 -0.1 4.5 -- -- -- 6.9

Excess 0.1 -0.3 0.3 -0.3 -2.1 -0.7 -- -- -- --

CUSHING MLP ALPHA TR 71,794,625 2.4 -3.7 12.2 -3.7 -7.6 -- -- -- -- -8.3

50% BC US TIPS/50% SamCERA CRA 0.2 -0.6 8.9 -0.6 3.7 -- -- -- -- 2.2

Excess 2.1 -3.2 3.3 -3.2 -11.3 -- -- -- -- -10.5

SSGA CST REAL ASSET NL 244,764,211 1.8 -2.6 9.5 -2.6 -0.5 4.5 -- -- -- --

SamCera Liquid Real Asset Inde 1.8 -2.6 9.8 -2.6 -0.1 4.5 -- -- -- 5.2

Excess -0.0 -0.1 -0.2 -0.1 -0.4 -0.0 -- -- -- --

Private Real Assets 75,072,742 -2.5 -3.0 -13.1 -3.0 -9.9 -2.2 -- -- -- 7.9

SamCERA Private Real Asset Idx 3.8 2.1 4.2 2.1 4.4 6.0 -- -- -- 7.7

Excess -6.4 -5.1 -17.4 -5.1 -14.3 -8.2 -- -- -- 0.2

Cash 86,105,945 0.1 0.3 0.9 0.3 1.2 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 1.9

Samcera Cash Benchmark 0.2 0.6 1.8 0.6 2.4 1.5 1.0 0.7 0.5 1.9

Excess -0.1 -0.3 -0.9 -0.3 -1.2 -0.7 -0.3 -0.0 0.2 0.0

General Account 43,725,703 0.2 0.6 1.8 0.6 2.4 1.7 1.2 0.9 0.7 2.0

Transition Account 406 -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- --

County Treasury Pool 42,380,647 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.4 2.4

Ex-Parametric MN Overlay 15,689,964 17.1 -5.3 68.7 -5.3 69.0 23.5 35.5 -- -- 24.0

San Mateo County ERA 4,782,295,114 0.9 1.3 11.9 1.3 4.8 7.4 6.3 7.7 8.2 6.7

10 of 16



San Mateo County

Composite Return Summary
September 30,2019

Composite Returns (NET) Market Value ($) 1 Mth. 3 Mth. YTD FYTD 1 Yr. 3 Yr. 5 Yr. 7 Yr. 10 Yr. ITD

Samcera Total Plan Benchmark 1.6 1.0 11.7 1.0 5.1 8.1 6.6 8.0 8.6 7.0

Excess -0.6 0.3 0.2 0.3 -0.3 -0.7 -0.3 -0.3 -0.4 -0.3

11 of 16



San Mateo County

Composite Return Summary
September 30,2019

Record of Asset Growth

Three Months One Year

TOTAL FUND

Beginning Market Value 4,663,332,993 4,495,299,772

Contributions 126,933,492 558,381,099

Withdrawals -69,694,285 -497,437,343

Income Received 9,886,173 54,779,759

Gain/Loss 52,068,975 170,737,193

Ending Market Value 4,782,295,114 4,782,295,114

 -

 1,000.00

 2,000.00

 3,000.00

 4,000.00

 5,000.00

 6,000.00

M
il
li
o

n
s

Net Asset Values Over Time ($000)

12 of 16



San Mateo County

Composite Return Summary
September 30,2019

Min Actual Target Deviation Max

Domestic Equity 20.0 21.3 22.0 -0.7 24.0

International Equity 17.0 18.4 19.0 -0.6 21.0

Fixed Income 19.0 21.3 21.0 0.3 23.0

Private Equity 4.0 6.6 6.0 0.6 8.0

Risk Parity 6.0 8.4 8.0 0.4 10.0

Absolute Return 4.0 5.1 6.0 -0.9 8.0

TIPS 0.0 0.8 2.0 -1.2 4.0

Public Real Assets 4.0 6.6 6.0 0.6 8.0

Real Estate 6.0 7.9 8.0 -0.1 10.0

Private Real Assets 0.0 1.6 2.0 -0.4 4.0

21.3

18.4

21.3

6.6
8.4

5.1

0.8

6.6
7.9

1.6

22.0

19.0

21.0

6.0

8.0

6.0

2.0

6.0

8.0

2.0

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

25.0

Domestic Equity International
Equity

Fixed Income Private Equity Risk Parity Absolute Return TIPS Public Real
Assets

Real Estate Private Real
Assets

Actual vs Target Weights

Actual Target

13 of 16



San Mateo County

Composite Return Summary
September 30,2019

--

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

12/31/2018 3/31/2019 6/30/2019 9/30/2019

Asset Allocation over Time

Alternatives Cash Cash Overlay Fixed Income Inflation Hedge Risk Parity Total Equity

14 of 16



San Mateo County

Composite Return Summary
September 30,2019

--

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

12/31/2018 3/31/2019 6/30/2019 9/30/2019

Sub-Asset Class Allocation Over Time

Absolute Return Cash Cash Overlay Domestic Equity Fixed Income International Equity

Private Equity Private Real Assets Public Real Assets2 Real Estate Risk Parity TIPS

15 of 16



Disclaimer(s)

N O R T H E R N T R U S T

The Global Industry Classification Standard ("GICS") was developed by and is the exclusive property and a service 
mark of Morgan Stanley Capital International Inc.("MSCI") and Standard & Poor's, a division of The McGraw-Hill 
Companies, Inc.("S&P") and is licensed for use by The Northern Trust Corporation and its wholly owned 
subsidiaries. Neither MSCI, S&P, nor any other party involved in making or compiling the GICS or any GICS 
classifications makes any express or implied warranties or representations with respect to such standard or 
classification (or the results to be obtained by the use thereof), and all such parties hereby expressly disclaim all 
warranties of originality, accuracy, completeness, merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose with respect 
to any of such standard or classification. Without limiting any of the foregoing, in no event shall MSCI, S&P, any of 
their affiliates or any third party involved in making or compiling the GICS or any GICS classifications have any 
liability for any direct, indirect, special, punitive, consequential or any other damages (including lost profits) even if 
notified of the possibility of such damages. 

The Dow Jones Wilshire Indexes are calculated, distributed and marketed by Dow Jones & Company, Inc. 
pursuant to an agreement between Dow Jones and Wilshire and have been licensed for use. All content of the 
Dow Jones Wilshire Indexes © 2005 Dow Jones & Company, Inc. & Wilshire Associates Incorporated.

Standard and Poor's including its subsidiary corporations ("S&P") is a division of the McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. 
Reproduction of S&P Index Alerts in any form is prohibited except with the prior written permission of S&P. 
Because of the possibility of human or mechanical error by S&P sources, S&P or others, S&P does not guarantee 
the accuracy, adequacy, completeness or availability of any information and is not responsible for any errors or 
omissions or for the results obtained from the use of such information. S&P gives not express or implied 
warranties, including, but not limited to, any warranties or merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose or use. 
In no event shall S&P be liable for any indirect, special or consequential damages in connection with subscriber's 
or others' use of S&P Index Alerts.

All MSCI equity characteristic results except for Dividend Yield, Price to Book Value, Price to Cash Earnings and 
Price Earnings Ratio were calculated by The Northern Trust Company.
FTSE ® is a trade mark of London Stock Exchange Plc and The Financial Times Limited and is used by FTSE 
under license. All rights in the FTSE Indices vest in FTSE and/or its licensors. Neither FTSE nor its licensors 
accept any liability for any errors or omissions in the FTSE Indices or underlying data.

The Merrill Lynch Indices are used with permission. Copyright 2007, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith 
Incorporated. All rights reserved. The Merrill Lynch Indices may not be copied, used, or distributed without Merrill 
Lynch's prior written approval.

The Citi Index data is provided to you on an "AS IS" basis and you agree that use of the index data is at your sole 
risk. Citi Index makes no representations or warranties, express or implied, to you or any other person or entity, 
including without limitation any warranty of merchantability, originality, suitability or fitness for a particular purpose 
of the index data or any other matter and no warranty is given that the index data will conform to any description 
thereof or be free of omissions, errors, interruptions or defects. 4. In no event shall Citi Index be liable to you or any 
other person or entity for any direct, incidental, indirect, special or consequential damages (including, without 
limitation,

lost profits or revenues, loss of data, loss of use or claims of third parties), 
arising out of or in any manner in connection with your use of (or inability to 
use) the index data, whether or not you have been advised of, or otherwise 
might have anticipated the possibility of, such damages. Without limitation on 
the foregoing, you acknowledge that the index data may be incomplete or 
condensed, is for information purposes only and is not intended as, and shall 
not be construed to be, an offer or solicitation with respect to the purchase or 
sale of any security. All opinions and estimates provided constitute judgments 
as of their respective dates and are subject to change without notice. Such 
data, information, opinions and estimates are furnished as part of a general 
service, without regard to your particular circumstances, and Citi Index shall 
not be liable for any damages in connection therewith. Citi Index is not 
undertaking to manage money or act as a fiduciary with respect to your 
accounts or any of your managed or fiduciary accounts and you acknowledge 
and agree that the index data does not and shall not serve as the primary 
basis for any investment decisions made with respect to such accounts.

iShares® and BlackRock® are registered trademarks of BlackRock, Inc. and 
its affiliates ("BlackRock") and are used under license. BlackRock has licensed 
certain trademarks and trade names of BlackRock to The Northern Trust 
Company. The Northern Trust Company's products and services are not 
sponsored, endorsed, sold, or promoted by BlackRock, and BlackRock makes 
no representations or warranties related to such products or services either to 
The Northern Trust Company or any other person or entity, including but not 
limited to the advisability of investing in the products of The Northern Trust 
Company. BlackRock has no obligation or liability in connection with the 
operation, marketing, trading or sale of the products or services from The 
Northern Trust Company.

Please note that this report has been prepared using best available data. This 
report may also contain information provided by third parties, derived by third 
parties or derived from third party data and/or data that may have been 
categorized or otherwise reported based upon client direction - Northern Trust 
assumes no responsibility for the accuracy, timeliness or completeness of any 
such information. If you have questions regarding third party data or direction 
as it relates to this report, please contact your Northern Trust relationship 
team.

INVESTMENT ADVICE NOTICE:  The data and analysis contained in this 
report is for informational purposes only.  In providing the information 
contained herein, The Northern Trust Company is not undertaking to provide 
“investment advice” or to give advice in a fiduciary capacity for purposes of the 
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.  Nothing in 
this report is  intended as, or should be understood as, a recommendation to 
hire, retain, or terminate an investment manager or engage in any purchase or 
sale transaction with  such a manager or any fund that it manages.  The 
Northern Trust Company and/or its affiliates may have business relationships 
with one or more investment managers or funds for included in this report, and 
may receive compensation for providing custody, administration, banking, 
brokerage, foreign exchange or other services to such investment managers 
or funds. The Northern Trust Company and its affiliates shall have no 
responsibility for the consequences of investment decisions made in reliance 
on information contained in this report.



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

Board of Retirement 

October 29, 2019  Agenda Item 6.2

TO: Board of Retirement   

FROM: Doris Ng, Investment Analyst 

SUBJECT: Report on Opportunistic Credit Manager Annual Reviews 

Recommendation  
Review the report on the annual reviews of SamCERA’s Opportunistic Credit managers:  Brigade 
Capital Management, White Oak and Blackrock (formerly known as Tennenbaum Capital Partners). 

Background     
SamCERA staff and consultant held annual review meetings in SamCERA’s office with White Oak, 
BlackRock and Brigade Capital Management on September 12th. 

Each meeting lasted approximately 1.5 hours, and consisted of a firm/organizational update, 
investment process review, performance review and attribution, and current positioning/market 
outlook.   

Discussion   
On September 12th, White Oak’s Yield Spectrum Fund was reviewed first.  The White Oak Yield 
Spectrum Fund is a private investment fund that invests primarily in senior-secured corporate 
credit and debt instruments, including term loans, asset-based loans, and equipment financing to 
small and middle-market companies.   

Next, Tennenbaum Capital Partners’ Direct Lending Fund VIII was reviewed.  The TCP Direct 
Lending Fund VIII is a private investment fund that invests in privately originated, performing 
senior secured debt in middle-market companies, with a value-oriented approach.   

Lastly, Brigade Capital Management’s Opportunistic Credit product, which is a fundamental, 
bottom-up strategy focused on high yield corporate bonds and bank loans with tactical allocations 
to structured securities, convertibles and other sectors of the bond markets, was reviewed.  The 
firm added additional resources in research.   

There were no significant concerns identified during the portfolio reviews.  Attached you will find 
meeting notes from Verus summarizing the findings from the annual reviews. 

AttachmentS  
White Oak Annual Review Meeting Notes (Confidential) 
Tennenbaum Capital Partners Annual Review Meeting Notes (Confidential) 
Brigade Capital Management Opportunistic Credit Annual Review Meeting Notes (Confidential) 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

Board of Retirement 

October 29, 2019  Agenda Item 6.3

TO: Board of Retirement   

FROM: Doris Ng, Investment Analyst 

SUBJECT: Report on Inflation Hedge Manager Annual Reviews 

Recommendation  
Review the report on the annual reviews of SamCERA’s public real assets managers (part of 
inflation hedge), State Street Global Advisors (SSgA) and Cushing Asset Management. 

Background     
The annual manager reviews occurred on October 3, 2019.  Each meeting lasted approximately 1.5 
hours and consisted of a firm/organizational update, an investment process review, and a review 
of performance and attribution.  Current positioning and market outlook were also discussed.   

Discussion   
The SSgA custom real asset strategy, which is a passive account for SamCERA that seeks to 
replicate exposure to three underlying indices in approximately equal weights (1/3 S&P Global 
LargeMidCap Commodity and Resources Index, 1/3 S&P Global Infrastructure Index, and 1/3 
Bloomberg Roll Select Commodity Index), was reviewed first.    

Next, the Cushing MLP Alpha Total Return strategy, which combines fundamental, bottom-up 
stock selection and top-down analysis to invest in publicly-listed MLPs (master limited 
partnerships) and other MLP-related equities within midstream energy, was reviewed.  In early 
2019, there was a personnel change on the investment team.  

Attached you will find meeting notes from Verus summarizing the findings from the annual 
reviews. 

Attachments  
SSgA Annual Review Meeting Notes 
Cushing Annual Review Meeting Notes 



 

1 

 

Research Meeting Notes 

Investment Organization State Street Global Advisors (SSGA) 

Business Type Publicly Traded 
 

Firm Inception Date 1935 

Firm $AUM $2.9T 

Investment Org Attendees Kimberly Cook, Rob Guiliano 

Verus Attendees John Nicolini, Margaret Jadallah 

SamCERA Attendees Scott Hood, Michael Coultrip, Lilibeth Dames, Doris Ng 

Interview Date(s) 10/3/19 

Meeting Type In office 

Meeting Purpose Update 

Strategy Name SSgA Custom Real Assets 

 Strategy Inception Date 2016 

Asset Class (Style) Real Assets 
  

If other, please name  

Sub-Style Equity & Commodities 
 

Strategy $AUM $4.6B 

SamCERA $AUM (8/31/2019) $240.4M 

IC Approved (Yes or No) No 

 
Notes and Analysis 

 

Firm: 
SSgA is a wholly-owned subsidiary of State Street Bank and Trust Company, which is a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of State Street Corporation, a publicly traded company.  SSgA manages over $2.9 trillion in 
assets, making it the third largest asset manager globally.  SSgA manages capital across the risk spectrum 
in equity, fixed income, multi-asset and alternatives.   
  

Team/People: 
The Investment Solutions Group (ISG), which oversees the SamCERA liquid real assets portfolio manages 
$155 billion in AUM across a number of strategies.  Dan Farley serves as CIO for the ISG team and heads 
all investment-related decisions.  There are two portfolio managers overseeing the SamCERA portfolio, 
Rob Guiliano and Mike Narkiewicz.  Rob was one of the lead researchers in developing the SSgA Real 
Asset strategy and has managed the portfolio since inception (2005).  Mike has been managing the Real 
Asset strategy alongside Rob since 2010.  The portfolio that SSgA runs for SamCERA is a custom 
allocation of three products that Rob and Mike also manage within their more diversified SSgA Real 
Asset product.   



 

2 

 

 
  

Process/Philosophy 
The SamCERA liquid real asset portfolio is a customized account managed by SSgA that includes the 
following allocation. 
 

1/3rd Bloomberg Roll Select Commodities 
1/3rd S&P Global LargeMid Commodity and Resources Index 
1/3rd S&P Global Infrastructure Index   
 

The three strategies are passive investments meant to replicate their respective indices.  SSgA’s Global 
Beta Solutions team manages the three individual products in daily-valued institutional commingled 
funds.  The three index products have a targeted tracking error of 30bps or less.  The Bloomberg Roll 
Select product seeks to replicate the Bloomberg Roll Select index which will optimize the futures 
contract trading process by maximizing backwardation impact and minimizing contango, subject to risk 
constraints.  The Roll Select product is meant to enhance returns above the standard Bloomberg 
Commodity Index.  The S&P Global LargeMid Commodity & Resources Index is a global stock portfolio of 
companies that derive revenue from natural resource commodities.  The index equally allocates to three 
natural resource buckets, energy, materials and agriculture.  The country exposures are split roughly by 
1/3rd US and 2/3rd non-US domiciled.  S&P Global Infrastructure is a global stock index comprised of 
three primary sectors, energy, transportation and utilities.  On a country-weighted basis, the US 
comprises around 40% of the index with the remainder in non-US companies.   
 
The ISG team will handle allocating, rebalancing and trading the three index products with a goal of 
minimizing tracking error to the policy index.  SSgA will rebalance the portfolio semi-annually back to 
target.  SSgA manages the portfolio for an all-in fee of 19bps.    
 

Performance 
The inception date for the SSgA custom liquid real assets portfolio was October 2016.  As of August 
2019, the strategy has returned +4.18% vs a return of +4.05% for the benchmark, since inception (net of 
fees).  The largest contributor to returns have been the S&P Global Infrastructure product which is up 
8.4%, since inception.  The largest detractor to returns is the Bloomberg Roll Select strategy which has 
returned -2.0% over the same time period.  Over the last 12 months, the portfolio returned -0.9% (net of 
fees) driven by the Global Infrastructure strategy which was up 10.5%.  The largest detractor over the 
last 12 months was the Bloomberg Roll Select strategy which was down 7.7%.  
 
The Global LargeMid Commodity & Resources product is allocated equally to three natural resources 
buckets, energy, materials and agriculture.  Over the last year, the strategy has benefited from exposure 
to gold miners and agriculture-related companies.  The products energy exposure has largely detracted 
from returns over the trailing 1 year.  The Bloomberg Commodities product was down largely due to 
falling oil/gas prices and metals.  Infrastructure has been a bright spot in the portfolio as declining 
interest rates created renewed demand for yield-oriented securities.           



 

1 

 

Research Meeting Notes 

Investment Organization Cushing Asset Management 

Business Type Privately-held 
 

Firm Inception Date 2003 

Firm $AUM $2.3B 

Investment Org Attendees Tim Muffley, Paul Euseppi, John Musgrave 

Verus Attendees John Nicolini, Margaret Jadallah 

SamCERA Attendees Michael Coultrip, Lilibeth Dames, Doris Ng 

Interview Date(s) 10/3/19 

Meeting Type In office 

Meeting Purpose Update 

Strategy Name Cushing MLP Alpha Total Return 

 Strategy Inception Date 2006 

Asset Class (Style) Liquid Real Assets 
  

If other, please name  

Sub-Style Midstream equities 
 

Strategy $AUM $400M 

SamCERA $AUM (8/31/2019) $70.1M 

IC Approved (Yes or No) Yes 

 
Notes and Analysis 

 

Firm: 
Jerry Swank founded Cushing Asset Management, LP in 2003 to focus on constructing and managing 
master limited partnership (MLP) portfolios for individuals and institutions.  The Firm’s first product 
offering was The Cushing MLP Fund, a hedge fund, which launched in January 2003.  Several other MLP-
focused hedge funds followed in subsequent years.  In 2007, the Firm launched its first of three publicly 
traded closed end funds.  In 2010, the Firm launched its first of three open-end mutual funds.  Today, 
the Firm remains strategically located in Dallas, Texas, a major hub to energy infrastructure.  Cushing is 
100% employee owned by 11 partners.  Jerry Swank remains the majority owner. 
 
Cushing’s AUM in the MLP Alpha product has fallen since SamCERA funded the strategy from $800 
million to around $400 million, mostly due to a large client redeeming their allocation this quarter.  We 
will be monitoring Cushing’s AUM levels more closely going forward but as of now, feel comfortable that 
the total Firm’s assets are sufficient to retain talent.     
  



 

2 

 

Team/People: 
Cushing MLP Alpha Total Return is led by portfolio manager John Musgrave and co-PM Paul Euseppi.  
John and Paul are partners at Cushing and have been with the Firm for 11 and 10 years, respectively.    
Supporting John and Paul are a team of analysts covering upstream, midstream and downstream energy 
companies.  There are four analysts that cover midstream stocks.  In January 2019, Libby Toudouze, co-
PM on the MLP Alpha strategy, left Cushing to pursue an entrepreneurial opportunity outside of listed 
midstream equities.  Soon after Libby’s departure, Cushing promoted Paul Euseppi as co-PM alongside 
John Musgrave.   
 
  

Process/Philosophy 
The strategy blends bottom-up company analysis with top-down energy industry analysis to build 
portfolios.  The MLP Alpha strategy is focused on midstream energy, primarily master limited 
partnerships (MLPs) and MLP-related equities.  The Firm is focused on research across the energy supply 
chain to better understand the dynamics of the entire industry.  The strategy will build a portfolio of 25-
35 companies that can deliver high levels of growth and are priced at levels that do not yet reflect the 
anticipated future growth.  The strategy will target the highest absolute return, giving up some yield and 
liquidity seeking the highest total return potential.  
 
The firm’s investment process is centered around a comprehensive research approach. They use 
fundamental analysis, combined with a macro-driven thematic overlay to identify the MLPs with the 
best total return prospects. They are looking to identify both value and growth factors with an overall 
tilt towards growth opportunities. 
 
Bottom-up fundamental analysis includes financial statement analysis as well as quantitative and 
qualitative assessments of the companies and their management teams.  Fundamental analysis 
comprises 60% to 80% of the stock selection decision.  Thematic view and valuations factor into the 
balance of the stock selection and portfolio construction process. Technical analysis plays a small role 
and is used as one of several inputs that help create buy and sell disciplines.  
 
Cushing has analysts who cover all energy MLP sectors within an investment universe of ~150 
companies.  These analysts create an in-depth financial model for each company.    Portfolio managers 
identify a small subsector universe (a “buy list”) that they believe will provide the best total return 
prospects.  The next step is to identify a portfolio candidate list based on the specific portfolio mandate 
and risk tolerance.  In order to establish this list, each company goes through three levels of review, 
including: 

• Fundamental Analysis – Cash flow variability, level and longevity of growth opportunities and 
balance sheet flexibility 

• Quantitative Analysis – Review of liquidity, correlations and value-at-risk metrics (VaR) 

• Valuation Analysis – including P/DCF, EV/EBITDA, Coverage ratios and leverage 
 
Securities are ranked on the buy list based on five main criteria: 

• High level of sustained distribution growth 

• Compelling valuation 

• Confidence in managements’ ability to execute 

• Low levels of cash flow variability 

• High level of liquidity 



 

3 

 

  

Performance 
SamCERA funded their account with Cushing in July of 2018.  The strategy has returned -7.3% vs a return 
of -3.86% for the benchmark, since inception (net of fees).  Cushing’s underperformance largely stems 
from the 3rd quarter in 2018 when a confluence of events among the largest midstream companies in 
the index led to relative underperformance for Cushing.  Cushing places a 7.0% cap on position sizes for 
risk management purposes while the index has at least 5 positions with a 10% weighting.  Cushing has 
clawed back some of the underperformance in 2019, helped by exposure to C-corp listed midstream 
equities which have outperformed listed MLPs, in general.  Cushing’s flexibility to own both MLPs and C-
corps was an attractive attribute when we recommended this strategy and as more MLPs transition 
towards traditional corporate structures, we believe their strategy will have a competitive edge over the 
index.   



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

Board of Retirement 

October 29, 2019  Agenda Item 6.4

TO: Board of Retirement   

FROM: Michael Coultrip, Chief Investment Officer 

SUBJECT: Report on Midstream Energy Investment Update 

Recommendation  
Participate in the presentation on the midstream energy investment update 

Background     
In June 2018, the Board approved an $80 million allocation to Cushing MLP Alpha Total Return to 
take advantage of an attractive investment opportunity in listed midstream energy companies.  
This allocation is a tactical (approx. 2-4 year holding period) opportunity in publicly traded 
midstream energy (e.g. pipeline and storage) stocks that trade in the U.S.   

Discussion   
John Nicolini from Verus will provide an update on the midstream energy market, including 
current valuations and growth prospects, provide an update on Cushing’s performance, and briefly 
discuss a new potential private real asset manager in the midstream energy space.   

Attachment 
Verus Midstream Energy Investment Update 



 

 

 

Memorandum 
 

To: San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement Association  

From: Verus Staff  

Date: October 29th, 2019    

RE: Midstream Energy Investment Update 

 

In June 2018, SamCERA approved an $80 million allocation to Cushing MLP Alpha Total Return to 

take advantage of an attractive entry point in listed midstream energy companies.  Verus 

believed then and now that midstream energy equities are trading at historically cheap 

valuations, despite a number of improving business fundamentals in the sector.  Verus’ tactical 

investment recommendation in midstream equities was/is meant to be a medium-term 

investment trade (2-3 years) as the out-of-favor sector stabilizes its investor base.  Since the 

investment by SamCERA, midstream equities experienced a further sell-off in late 2018 and then 

rebounded sharply in the first half of 2019.  Given the volatility experienced since funding the 

midstream investment, we wanted to provide a market update as we pass the 1-year mark on 

this investment idea.   

MIDSTREAM MARKET UPDATE: 

Midstream equities rebounded the first half of 2019 following a sharp sell-off in Q4 2018.  The 

sectors recovery experienced a reversal in late July as markets sold-off once again on fears of a 

global economic slowdown.  Oil prices retreated as markets anticipated slowing demand for 

crude, which sent shares in energy-related companies sharply lower.  Simultaneously, shares in 

yield-oriented equities (Utilities & REITs) have outperformed the broader equity market in 2019 

but the rally in high income sectors has not materialized for midstream companies.  Instead, 

midstream shares continue trading closer to commodity prices which have little impact on 

company earnings in the short-to-medium term.   

There should be little doubt that the energy industry is under a cloud of negative sentiment 

which has intensified recently with climate change discussions and election year politics.  How 

much those issues weigh on midstream shares is hard to measure but one thing is clear, the 

market does not appear to appreciate that midstream fundamentals continue improving even in 

a mostly stagnant commodity price market.   

Valuations in midstream remain compelling and relative to projected returns in other asset 

classes, the sector offers an attractive yield and total return potential.  While we would have 

preferred midstream equities receive a re-rating higher in the last year that we’ve owned them, 

we take comfort that we are being paid an attractive carry while we wait.  The chart below 

highlights the yield advantage within midstream equities and the sectors valuation.   



2 

 

VALUATIONS: 

Exhibit 1: MLP Valuation Metrics 

MLP Valuation Metrics Current 5-Year 

Avg. 

Premium/ 

(Discount) 

10-Year 

Avg. 

Premium/ 

(Discount) 

Midstream MLP Yield 9.1% 7.0% (22.8%) 7.2% (20.5%) 

Price to DCF 8.0x 11.1x (27.8%) 11.7x (31.5%) 

EV-to-EBITDA 9.9x 12.2x (19.4%) 12.5x (21.1%) 

Spread to Treasury (bps) 704 516 +188 473 +231 

Spread to IG Bonds (bps) 486 282 +203 209 +277 

Spread to High Yield (bps) 340 166 +174 53 +287 

 

Unlike upstream energy equities, which also appear cheap relative to their own history and the 

broader equity market, midstream companies are growing both top and bottom-line cash flows 

and improving their balance sheets.  One measure of financial health for midstream companies 

is their distribution coverage ratio.  Distribution coverage ratio measures how much cash flow a 

company generates relative to its stated dividend.  A coverage ratio above 1 implies that the 

company generates more cash flow than is needed to pay its dividend/distribution.  One of the 

strategies that midstream companies relied upon previously was to issue equity (diluting 

shareholders) to fund their capex and then distribute all or most of the cash flow they earned as 

dividends.  Today, midstream companies have largely stopped issuing equity and instead funded 

both capex and distributions from operating cash flow.  The chart below highlights the 

improving distribution coverage ratio within midstream companies.   

FINANCIAL HEALTH: 

Exhibit 2: Median Distribution Coverage 

 

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

1

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019E2020E

Distribution Coverage



3 

 

 

Growth rates for distributions have recovered from their lows set in 2017 and are projected to 

remain fairly steady around 5-6% going forward.   

Exhibit 3: Distribution Growth Rates – Distributable Cash Flow per Unit/Share Growth Rate 

 

Improving corporate governance has been another area that we’ve seen meaningful reforms 

within the MLP sector.  The corporate structure of an MLP includes a GP/LP partnership that 

historically created a conflict between the listed LP units and private or listed GP units.  The LP 

units would pay the GP incentive distribution rights (IDRs) that consumed as much as 50% of the 

operating cash flows of the assets held by the LP.  This was large drag on cash flows and forced 

the MLP to issue equity and debt in order to fund Capex and distributions.  The industry has 

largely done away with IDRs and simplified the GP/LP structure.  No longer having to pay IDRs, 

MLPs are able to retain operating cash flows and fund both distributions and Capex.   

Exhibit 4: Percentage of MLPs by market cap with no IDRs 

 

1%

13%

16%

10%

-1% -1%

5%
6% 6%

5% 5%

-2%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019E 2020E 2021E 2022E

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

2014 2017 2018 2019

%
 o

f 
M

LP
s 

w
it

h
 n

o
 ID

R
s

MLP w/ No IDRs



4 

 

When we recommended the midstream investment, our expected return for the trade was a 

low-to-mid teen return.  Our return expectation has not changed as yields, valuations and 

company financials remain as attractive or more from our initial recommendation.  Today, yields 

in other asset classes are lower and valuations richer which should make midstream a more 

compelling opportunity for market participants.  As our expected return falls in the asset class, 

we will recommend redeeming the investment from client portfolios.   

CUSHING PERFORMANCE UPDATE: 

Since SamCERA funded their investment with Cushing, the strategy has returned a negative 9.3% 

(net) vs. -6.3% for the Alerian MLP Index.  Most of the underperformance can be attributed to 

the 3rd quarter in 2018 when a series of corporate mergers among the largest MLPs led to strong 

performance for the index which held a higher weighting to those MLPs relative to Cushing.  

Cushing places a 7.0% cap on any stock within their portfolio, while the index has 10.0% 

positions in 5 of the top 10 names.  Year to date, Cushing is slightly ahead of the index and 

should be well positioned if we continue to see take-privates and consolidation in the MLP 

market.  Private equity has been an active buyer within the MLP market and smaller companies 

will be the likeliest target for M&A activity.  We also believe that there could be additional MLP-

to-C-Corp transitions which reduces the number of traded MLPs and further concentrates the 

Alerian MLP Index.  Cushing’s strategy has the flexibility to own MLPs and/or C-Corps which 

provides more diversification and a greater ability to add value via active management.   

As seen in the chart below, relative to oil prices and upstream energy stocks, midstream 

companies have held up considerably better as we would expect given their cash flows tend to 

be stable and less correlated to oil prices.  The market, in our opinion, still values midstream 

companies too closely to movements in commodity prices but even still they exhibit greater 

downside protection which in the current environment is an attractive attribute.   

Cushing Performance – SamCERA Inception to 9/30/19 (net of fees) 

As of 9/30/19 
YTD  

Since Inception 

(annualized) 

Since Inception 

(cumulative) 

Cushing - SamCERA (net) 11.7% -9.3% -10.9% 

Alerian MLP Index 11.1% -6.3% -7.4% 

Russell 3000 20.1% 4.7% 5.6% 

WTI Oil 19.5% -17.3% -20.1% 

S&P Oil & Gas E&P -1.0% -27.6% -31.7% 

 

ENERGY SPECTRUM VIII: 

Verus recently approved Energy Spectrum Partners (ESP) Fund VIII, a private midstream 

infrastructure strategy that seeks to invest in onshore North American midstream assets utilizing 



5 

 

a buy-and-build or greenfield development approach.  Given the exposure that SamCERA has to 

midstream through the Cushing investment, we wanted to discuss ESP’s strategy and the 

Board’s comfort with additional exposure to the sector.  If recommended, ESP would be 

SamCERA’s first dedicated private midstream infrastructure investment and fulfill part of 2019’s 

planned infrastructure commitment.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Past performance is no guarantee of future results. This document is provided for informational purposes only and is directed to 
institutional clients and eligible institutional counterparties only and is not intended for retail investors. Nothing herein constitutes 
investment, legal, accounting or tax investment vehicle or any trading strategy. This document may include or imply estimates, 
outlooks, projections and other “forward-looking statements.” No assurance can be given that future results described or implied by 
any forward looking information will be achieved. Investing entails risks, including possible loss of principal. Verus Advisory Inc. and 
Verus Investors, LLC (“Verus”) file a single form ADV under the United States Investment Advisors Act of 1940, as amended.  



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

Board of Retirement 

Page 1 of 2 

October 29, 2019 Agenda Item 6.5 

TO: Board of Retirement   

FROM: Michael Coultrip, Chief Investment Officer 

SUBJECT: Approval of Asset Allocation Policy Portfolio Implementation 

Recommendation  
Approve the implementation plan for the new asset allocation policy. 

Background  
As the final part of its asset liability study, the Board approved a new asset allocation policy 
portfolio in September.  The new policy eliminates the 8% allocation to Risk Parity and reduces 
Inflation Hedge by 3%, with a corresponding 8% increase to Diversifying assets and a 3% 
increase to Growth assets.  

Current Long-Term New

Policy Policy Change (%)

Growth 52.0% 55.0% 3.0%

Total Equity 43.0% 45.0% 2.0%

Dom Equity 19.0% 21.0% 2.0%

Core Domestic Equity 11.0% 11.0% -

Low Volatility Equity 6.0% 8.0% 2.0%

Small-Cap Equity 2.0% 2.0% -

Intl Equity 18.0% 18.0% -

Developed Equity 16.0% 15.0% -1.0%

Emerging Equity 2.0% 3.0% 1.0%

Private Equity 6.0% 6.0% -

Total Opp Credit 9.0% 10.0% 1.0%

Public Opp Credit 7.0% 7.0% -

Private  Opp Credit 2.0% 3.0% 1.0%

Diversifying 20.0% 28.0% 8.0%

Core Fixed Income 14.0% 21.0% 7.0%

Liquidity 0.0% 1.0% 1.0%

Absolute Return 6.0% 6.0% -

Inflation Hedge 20.0% 17.0% -3.0%

Public Real Assets 6.0% 4.0% -2.0%

Real Estate 10.0% 10.0% -

Private Real Assets 4.0% 3.0% -1.0%

Risk Parity 8.0% 0.0% -8.0%

SamCERA Updated Asset Allocation Policy - October 2019



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

Board of Retirement 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 
Discussion  
Implementation of the new policy is anticipated to consist of multiple phases, with the final 
phase expected to be complete by the beginning of the third quarter of 2020. The phases 
discussed below reflect movements from the current interim policy to the new policy.  The 
proposed 1st phase will be effective in the 4th quarter of 2019 and will add Cash (titled 
Liquidity), which will increase Diversifying by 1% while reducing Inflation Hedge by 1%.   The 2nd 
phase will be effective in the first quarter of 2020 and will adjust allocation weights within 
Inflation Hedge.  The 3rd phase will consist of increasing Diversifying by 4% and reducing Risk 
Parity by 4%.   The 4th and final proposed phase will consist of increasing Diversifying by 3% and 
Growth by 1%, while reducing Risk Parity by 4%.  The implementation plan will be distributed 
the day of the meeting.   
 
 
 
 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

Board of Retirement 

October 29, 2019  Agenda Item 7.1 

TO: Board of Retirement 

FROM: Tat-Ling Chow, Finance Officer 

SUBJECT: Financial Audit Management Reports for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Recommendation  
Accept Brown Armstrong’s Financial Audit Reports for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. 

Discussion 
Brown Armstrong performed an independent financial audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2019. Mr. Andy Paulden, Certified Public Accountant of Brown Armstrong Accounting 
Corporation, will discuss the purpose of the audit, the audit process, the scope of audit work, and 
the following four audit reports:  

1) Independent Auditor’s Report on Financial Statements. This report provides an
unmodified (a clean) opinion on SamCERA’s financial statements as follows: “In our
opinion, the financial statements and the other information referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the fiduciary net position of SamCERA as of June 30, 2019;
its changes in fiduciary net position for the fiscal year then ended; the Schedule of Cost
Sharing Employer Allocations; and the Schedule of Employer Pension Amounts Allocated
by Cost Sharing Plan totals for all entities of the columns titled net pension liability, total
deferred outflows of resources, total deferred inflows of resources, and total pension
expense excluding that attributable to employer-paid member contributions (specified
column totals) as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.”  This report is
included in SamCERA’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2019.

2) Required Communication to the Members of the Board of Retirement and Audit
Committee in Accordance with Professional Standards.  This document is to communicate
to those charged with governance the scope of audit procedures performed, significant
audit matters, and other information that are not communicated in the audited financial
statements.

3) Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.  This report discloses that there are (1)
no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting considered to be



material weaknesses and (2) no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 

4) Agreed Upon Conditions Report Designed to Increase Efficiency, Internal Controls, and/or 
Financial Reporting. This report discloses matters that may provide opportunities for 
improving internal controls and/or operating efficiency. Based on the results of the audit, 
there are no recommendations for the current year. 

 
Attachments 
Reports under 2, 3, and 4 listed above  
 



 

 

SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ 
RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

 
REPORT TO THE BOARD OF RETIREMENT  

AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 



 

 

SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ 
RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

 Page 
 
I. Required Communication to the Members of the Board of Retirement 
   and Audit Committee in Accordance with Professional Standards (SAS 114) .........................  1 
 
II. Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
   Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
   Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards ..............................................  4 
 
III. Agreed Upon Conditions Report Designed to Improve Efficiency,  
   Internal Controls, and/or Financial Reporting (Management Letter) .........................................  6 

  



 

1 

REQUIRED COMMUNICATION TO THE MEMBERS OF THE  
BOARD OF RETIREMENT AND AUDIT COMMITTEE  

IN ACCORDANCE WITH PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS (SAS 114) 
 
 
To the Board of Retirement and Audit Committee of 
San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement Association 
Redwood City, California 
 
 
We have audited the financial statements and other information (financial statements) 
of the San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement Association (SamCERA) as of and 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, and have issued our report dated October 
21, 2019. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about 
our responsibilities under auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain information 
related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such 
information in our letter to you dated July 17, 2019. Professional standards also 
require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 
 
Significant Audit Matters 
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting 
policies. The significant accounting policies used by SamCERA are described in Note 
2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to the financial statements. No new 
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not 
changed during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. We noted no transactions 
entered into by SamCERA during the fiscal year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been 
recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by 
management and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about 
past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting 
estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial 
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting 
SamCERA’s financial statements were: 
 

 Management’s estimate of the fair value of investments was derived by 
various methods as detailed in the notes to the financial statements. We 
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimate 
of the fair value of investments in determining that it is reasonable in 
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 

 The contribution amounts and net pension liability as detailed in the 
notes to the financial statements are based on the actuarially-presumed 
interest rate and assumptions.  We evaluated the key factors and 
assumptions used to develop the estimates of the contribution amounts 
and net pension liability in determining that they are reasonable in 
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 



 

2 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were: 
 

 The disclosures for deposits and investments in Notes 2 and 6 to the financial statements, 
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Deposits and Investments, respectively, 
were derived from SamCERA’s investment policy.  Management’s estimate of the fair value 
of investments was derived by various methods as detailed in the notes to the financial 
statements.  
 

 Additionally, the disclosures related to the funding policies, net pension liability, and actuarial 
methods and assumptions in Note 1, Plan Description; Note 3, Funding Policy; Note 4, 
Member Contributions; Note 5, Employer Contributions; and Note 7, Pension Disclosures, 
were derived from actuarial valuations, which involved estimates of the value of reported 
amounts and probabilities about the occurrence of future events far into the future.  
 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit. 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management. No misstatements were detected during the audit. 
 
Disagreements with Management 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the 
course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated October 21, 2019. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application 
of an accounting principle to SamCERA’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s 
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting 
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, 
there were no such consultations with other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as SamCERA’s auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our retention. 
 
Other Matters 
We applied certain limited procedures to the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Schedule of 
Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios of Participating Employers, Schedule of Employer 
Contributions, Schedule of Investment Returns, and Notes to the Required Supplementary Information, 
which are Required Supplementary Information (RSI) that supplement the basic financial statements. Our 
procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and  



 

3 

comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during the audit of the basic financial statements. 
We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 
 
We were engaged to report on the Schedule of Administrative Expenses, Schedule of Information 
Technology Expenses, Schedule of Investment Expenses, Schedule of Payments to Consultants, and 
Notes to the Supplementary Information, which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With 
respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the 
form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has 
not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit 
of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying 
accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.  
 
We were not engaged to report on the introductory, investment, actuarial, statistical, and compliance 
sections, which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. Such information has not been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and 
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.  
 
Restriction on Use 
 
This information is intended solely for the use of the Members of the Board of Retirement, Audit 
Committee, and management of SamCERA and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone 
other than these specified parties.  
 

BROWN ARMSTRONG  
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION 
 

  
 
 
 
Bakersfield, California 
October 21, 2019 
 
 



 

4 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
 
To the Board of Retirement and Audit Committee of 
San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement Association 
Redwood City, California 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States, the financial statements and other information (financial 
statements) of the San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement Association 
(SamCERA) as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise SamCERA’s basic financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 21, 2019. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered 
SamCERA’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of SamCERA’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of SamCERA’s 
internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely 
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of SamCERA’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material 
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these 
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that 
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist 
that have not been identified. 
 



 

5 

Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether SamCERA’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of SamCERA’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering SamCERA’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
 BROWN ARMSTRONG  
 ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bakersfield, California 
October 21, 2019 
 



 

6 

AGREED UPON CONDITIONS REPORT DESIGNED TO IMPROVE 
EFFICIENCY, INTERNAL CONTROLS, AND/OR FINANCIAL REPORTING 

(MANAGEMENT LETTER) 
 
 
To the Board of Retirement and Audit Committee of 
San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement Association 
Redwood City, California 
 
 
We have audited the financial statements and other information (financial statements) 
of the San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement Association (SamCERA) as of and 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, and have issued our report dated October 
21, 2019.  In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of 
SamCERA, we considered its internal control structure over financial reporting 
(internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of SamCERA’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of SamCERA’s 
internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely 
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected on a timely basis. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that 
might be material weaknesses.  In addition, because of inherent limitations in internal 
control, including the possibility of management override of controls, misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected by such controls. Given these 
limitations during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that 
we considered to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist 
that have not been identified. 
 
The results of our audit disclosed no recommendations for the current year, and we 
are providing the disposition of the prior year comments. 
 
Restriction on Use 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit Committee, 
Board of Retirement, and management of SamCERA and is not intended to be, and 
should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 BROWN ARMSTRONG  
 ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION 
  
 
Bakersfield, California 
October 21, 2019 



 

7 

Current Year Agreed Upon Conditions and Recommendations 
 
No agreed upon conditions and recommendations in the current year 
 
 

Status of Prior Year Agreed Upon Conditions and Recommendations 
 
Agreed Upon Condition 1 – Formalized Information Technology (IT) Risk Assessments  
 
Although SamCERA IT staff assess general IT-related risks during their yearly IT staff retreat, such 
assessments have not been performed using a comprehensive or formal methodology, and the identified 
risks, their associated remediation plans, and progress towards remediation of identified risks are not 
formally documented.  A complete and formal risk assessment of IT-related risk has not been conducted.  
Having a complete and formal risk assessment will help SamCERA management identify and/or mitigate 
potential IT-related risks that may prevent the organization from fulfilling its financial reporting 
requirements and/or performing its day-to-day business processes effectively. 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that SamCERA perform a full IT risk assessment, including an evaluation of its control 
activities as they relate to significant applications that support SamCERA’s financial reporting procedures. 
These assessments should include all areas of IT risk, including those not pertaining to cybersecurity. 
The IT risk assessment should result in a comprehensive IT risk matrix that lists all known IT risks and the 
actions and/or activities that SamCERA performs to mitigate the risks. SamCERA should conduct the 
process of evaluating IT-related risks on an annual basis to ensure that any new IT-related risks 
associated with changes to the IT environment and IT staffing, as well as any that may have been missed 
in prior year assessments, are identified and addressed. If appropriate, SamCERA may want to consider 
outsourcing the risk assessment to a third-party with knowledge of similar organizations and who can 
assist SamCERA in identifying and evaluating significant risks and developing cost-effective solutions to 
address these areas. 
 
Management Response 
 
SamCERA has adequate application controls built in its Pension Administration System Software (PASS) 
to address risks. Such controls were part of the PASS requirements, and these controls were reviewed by 
a third party and found to be adequate before SamCERA went live.  Additionally, SamCERA’s access to 
internet and remote access to its network is controlled by the County of San Mateo (the County), which 
monitors unauthorized access with its own internal control protocols and policies. In July of 2017, 
SamCERA staff commenced an entity-wide internal control review using the Association of Public 
Pension Fund Auditors’ tool to assess internal controls and risk. After staff completes its review, an 
independent consultant will be utilized to perform an external review of our internal controls and risks. 
Internal control review is in progress and expected to be completed by December 2018. 
 
Current Year Status 
 
Implemented. 
 
 
Agreed Upon Condition 2 – Journal Entries  
 
During our inquires and documentation of controls over journal entries and the financial reporting process, 
we noted journal entries for investments are initiated and posted by the senior accountant. Due to the 
amount of journal entries processed by SamCERA, the Finance Officer will review significant items on the 
journal entry transaction report for irregular and unusual transactions and underlying documents in detail 
if the journal entry looks unusual or illogical. The Finance Officer also reviews semi-annual financial 
reports, reconciliations, and explanations for significant changes over the reporting period for 
reasonableness. After receiving the adjusted trial balance for the audit, we received a few journal entries 
which resulted in adjustments and/or reclassifications to the investment related accounts. These journal 
entries were not significant in nature, but possibly could have been caught with a detailed review. 



 

8 

Recommendation 
 
To prevent unintentional errors, adjustments to the amounts reported by the Custodian should be 
independently reviewed. We understand a significant amount of the journal entries for investments are a 
replication of what the Custodian has reported, which is reconciled and verified by the senior accountant. 
However, when the Custodian is reporting the fair value of an investment on a lag, manual adjustments 
are necessary to reflect the up-to-date value for tracking and financial reporting purposes. The adjusting 
journal entries are initiated and reviewed by the same person, the senior accountant.  We recommend 
SamCERA assign another individual, independent of initiation, to review journal entries.  
 
Management Response 
 
As recommended, SamCERA will assign an individual, independent of journal entry initiation, to review 
journal entries. 
 
Current Year Status 
 
Implemented. 
 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

Board of Retirement 

October 29, 2019  Agenda Item 7.2 

TO: Board of Retirement   

FROM: Tat-Ling Chow, Finance Officer  

SUBJECT: Approval of SamCERA’s 2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

Recommendation  
Approve SamCERA’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2019. 

Background 
The CAFR is divided into six sections: 

• Introduction:  SamCERA’s Mission and Goals, Administrator’s Letter of Transmittal, the
Government Finance Officers Association Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting (22nd consecutive year for SamCERA), the Public Pension Coordinating
Council Public Pension Standards Award for Funding and Administration, Members of
SamCERA’s Board of Retirement, and SamCERA’s Organizational Chart.

• Financial:  Independent Auditors’ Report, Management’s Discussion and Analysis,
SamCERA’s Basic Financial Statements, Required Supplementary Information,
Supplementary Information, and Other Information.

• Investment:  Chief Investment Officer’s Report, Investment Consultant’s Report,
Investment Allocation, and other investment-related information.

• Actuarial:  Actuary’s Certification Letter, results of the most recent annual actuarial
valuation, an overview of the plan funding status, and other actuarial-related information.

• Statistical:  Statistical data pertaining to SamCERA’s activities.

• Compliance:  Independent auditor’s report on internal control over financial reporting
and on compliance and other matters based on the most recent audit of financial
statements performed in accordance with government auditing standards.

Discussion 
Staff will provide an oral report on this year’s CAFR financial highlights.  

Attachment 

2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 



 

 

C E L E B R A T I N G  

1 9 4 4 - 2 0 1 9  

San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement Association 

Redwood City, State of California 

A Pension Trust Fund of the County of San Mateo and Participating Employers 

 

2019 Comprehensive  

Annual Financial Report 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 



 

 

&Žƌ� ϳϱ� ǇĞĂƌƐ͕� ^Ăŵ��Z�� ŚĂƐ� ƐĞƌǀĞĚ� ĂƐ� ƚŚĞ� ƌĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ�
ĨƵŶĚ� ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŽƌ� ƐĞƌǀŝŶŐ� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ� ĨƌŽŵ�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ�
�ŽƵŶƚǇ͕� ƚŚĞ�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�^ƵƉĞƌŝŽƌ��ŽƵƌƚ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�
^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�DŽƐƋƵŝƚŽ�ĂŶĚ�sĞĐƚŽƌ��ŽŶƚƌŽů��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ͘� 

KǀĞƌ� ƚŚĂƚ� ƟŵĞ� ŽƵƌ� ŵĞŵďĞƌƐŚŝƉ� ŚĂƐ� ŐƌŽǁŶ� ĨƌŽŵ� ůĞƐƐ�
ƚŚĂŶ� ϵϬϬ� ƚŽ� ŽǀĞƌ� ϭϮ͕ϬϬϬ� ĚĞĚŝĐĂƚĞĚ� ƉƵďůŝĐ� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ�
ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ďĞŶĞĮĐŝĂƌŝĞƐ͘� 

KŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŵŝůĞƐƚŽŶĞ�ĂŶŶŝǀĞƌƐĂƌǇ͕�ǁĞ�ƌĞŇĞĐƚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞĐƵƌĞ�
ĨŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶ� ƚŚĂƚ� ďƌŽƵŐŚƚ� ƵƐ� ƚŽ� ƚŽĚĂǇ͕� ŚŽŶŽƌŝŶŐ� ƚŚŽƐĞ�
ǁŚŽ�ĐĂŵĞ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�ƵƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�
ǁĞ�ĂƌĞ�ůƵĐŬǇ�ƚŽ�ƐĞƌǀĞ͘� 

tĞ� ĂƌĞ� ƉƌŽƵĚ� ƚŚĂƚ� ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞŝƌ� ďĞŶĞĮĐŝĂƌŝĞƐ�
ŚĂǀĞ� ďĞĞŶ� ĂďůĞ� ƚŽ� ƌĞůǇ� ŽŶ� ŽƵƌ� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ� ĂŶĚ� ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ�
ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƐƚ�ϳϱ�ǇĞĂƌƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ĂƐ�ǁĞ�ŵŽǀĞ�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ͕�
ǁĞ� ƌĞŵĂŝŶ�ĐŽŵŵŝƩĞĚ� ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�
ŝŶƚĞŐƌŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌƵĚĞŶƚůǇ�ŵĂŶĂŐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�&ƵŶĚ  ͘

Power of the Past | Force of the Future 



 

 

 

^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͛�ZĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ��ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ 

��WĞŶƐŝŽŶ�dƌƵƐƚ�&ƵŶĚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�ŽĨ�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ�ĂŶĚ�WĂƌƟĐŝƉĂƟŶŐ��ŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ 
 

 

 

 

 

 

�ÊÃÖÙ�«�ÄÝ®ò� 
�ÄÄç�½�&®Ä�Ä�®�½�Z�ÖÊÙã 

&ŝƐĐĂů�zĞĂƌ��ŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

 
^ĐŽƩ�,ŽŽĚ 

�ŚŝĞĨ��ǆĞĐƵƟǀĞ�KĸĐĞƌ 

DŝĐŚĂĞů��ŽƵůƚƌŝƉ 
�ŚŝĞĨ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�KĸĐĞƌ 

dĂƚ->ŝŶŐ��ŚŽǁ� 
&ŝŶĂŶĐĞ�KĸĐĞƌ 

 

 
^Ăŵ��Z� 

ϭϬϬ�DĂƌŝŶĞ�WĂƌŬǁĂǇ͕�^ƵŝƚĞ�ϭϮϱ� 

ZĞĚǁŽŽĚ��ŝƚǇ͕��ĂůŝĨŽƌŶŝĂ�ϵϰϬϲϱ 



 

 

dŚŝƐ�ƉĂŐĞ�ŝƐ�ŝŶƚĞŶƟŽŶĂůůǇ�ůĞŌ�ďůĂŶŬ͘ 



 

 

d��>��K&��KEd�Ed^ 

 

/ÄãÙÊ�ç�ãÊÙù�^��ã®ÊÄ 
�ĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŽƌ͛Ɛ�>ĞƩĞƌ�ŽĨ�dƌĂŶƐŵŝƩĂů ......................................................................... ϭϭ 

'&K���ĞƌƟĮĐĂƚĞ�ŽĨ��ĐŚŝĞǀĞŵĞŶƚ ............................................................................... ϭϵ 

WW���WƵďůŝĐ�WĞŶƐŝŽŶ�^ƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ��ǁĂƌĚ ....................................................................... ϮϬ 

^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�DŝƐƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�'ŽĂůƐ .................................................................................... Ϯϭ 

DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŽĨ�ZĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ ........................................................................ ϮϮ 

^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�KƌŐĂŶŝǌĂƟŽŶĂů��ŚĂƌƚ ................................................................................ Ϯϰ 

>ŝƐƚ�ŽĨ�WƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂů��ŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚƐ .................................................................................. Ϯϱ 

 

&®Ä�Ä�®�½�^��ã®ÊÄ 
/ŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ��ƵĚŝƚŽƌ͛Ɛ�ZĞƉŽƌƚ .................................................................................... Ϯϵ 

DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ͛Ɛ��ŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ ..................................................................... ϯϮ 

�ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

����������^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�&ŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�EĞƚ�WŽƐŝƟŽŶ .................................................................. ϰϭ 

����������^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ��ŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�&ŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�EĞƚ�WŽƐŝƟŽŶ ............................................... ϰϮ 

����������EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

����������EŽƚĞ�ϭ͗�WůĂŶ��ĞƐĐƌŝƉƟŽŶ ........................................................................ ϰϯ 

����������EŽƚĞ�Ϯ͗�^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�^ŝŐŶŝĮĐĂŶƚ��ĐĐŽƵŶƟŶŐ�WŽůŝĐŝĞƐ ............................. ϰϳ 

����������EŽƚĞ�ϯ͗�&ƵŶĚŝŶŐ�WŽůŝĐǇ ........................................................................... ϱϭ 

����������EŽƚĞ�ϰ͗�DĞŵďĞƌ��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ ............................................................. ϱϮ 

����������EŽƚĞ�ϱ͗��ŵƉůŽǇĞƌ��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ ............................................................ ϱϮ 

����������EŽƚĞ�ϲ͗��ĞƉŽƐŝƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ ........................................................ ϱϰ 

����������EŽƚĞ�ϳ͗�WĞŶƐŝŽŶ��ŝƐĐůŽƐƵƌĞƐ .................................................................. ϲϱ 

����������EŽƚĞ�ϴ͗�WůĂŶ�ZĞƐĞƌǀĞƐ ............................................................................ ϲϳ 

����������EŽƚĞ�ϵ͗��ĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟǀĞ��ǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ ........................................................... ϳϬ 

����������EŽƚĞ�ϭϬ͗�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�dĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ��ǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ .......................................... ϳϮ 

����������EŽƚĞ�ϭϭ͗�ZŝƐŬ�DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ ................................................................... ϳϯ 

����������EŽƚĞ�ϭϮ͗�ZĞůĂƚĞĚ�WĂƌƚǇ�dƌĂŶƐĂĐƟŽŶƐ ..................................................... ϳϯ 

����������EŽƚĞ�ϭϯ͗��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ ......................................................................... ϳϯ 

����������EŽƚĞ�ϭϰ͗��ŽŶƟŶŐĞŶƚ�>ŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ ................................................................. ϳϯ 



 

 

&®Ä�Ä�®�½�^��ã®ÊÄ�;�ÊÄã®Äç��Ϳ 
ZĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƌǇ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ 

����������^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ��ŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�EĞƚ�WĞŶƐŝŽŶ�>ŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ZĞůĂƚĞĚ�ZĂƟŽƐ�ŽĨ� 

����������WĂƌƟĐŝƉĂƟŶŐ��ŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ ...................................................................................... ϳϰ 

����������^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ��ŵƉůŽǇĞƌ��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ .................................................................. ϳϲ 

����������^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ZĞƚƵƌŶƐ ........................................................................ ϳϳ 

����������EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ZĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƌǇ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ .......................................... ϳϳ 

^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƌǇ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ 

����������^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ��ĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟǀĞ��ǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ ................................................................. ϳϵ 

����������^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�dĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ��ǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ.................................................. ϳϵ 

����������^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ��ǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ ...................................................................... ϴϬ 

����������^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ�WĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ��ŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚƐ ................................................................ ϴϬ 

����������EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƌǇ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ .......................................................... ϴϭ 

KƚŚĞƌ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ 

����������^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ��ŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�WĞŶƐŝŽŶ��ŵŽƵŶƚƐ��ůůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ďǇ��ŽƐƚ�^ŚĂƌŝŶŐ�WůĂŶ.......... ϴϮ 

����������^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ��ŽƐƚ�^ŚĂƌŝŶŐ��ŵƉůŽǇĞƌ��ůůŽĐĂƟŽŶƐ ................................................. ϴϯ 

����������EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�KƚŚĞƌ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ ......................................................................... ϴϯ 

������������ 

/Äò�ÝãÃ�Äã�^��ã®ÊÄ 
�ŚŝĞĨ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�KĸĐĞƌ͛Ɛ�ZĞƉŽƌƚ ............................................................................... ϴϳ 

/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ��ŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚ͛Ɛ�ZĞƉŽƌƚ�ŽŶ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ��ĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ .......................................... ϵϮ 

/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�WŚŝůŽƐŽƉŚǇ͕�KďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ͕�WŽůŝĐǇ͕�ĂŶĚ��ůůŽĐĂƟŽŶ ......................................... ϵϲ 

/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ................................................................................................... ϵϴ 

�ƐƐĞƚ��ůůŽĐĂƟŽŶ ........................................................................................................... ϵϵ 

�ĞŶĐŚŵĂƌŬƐ ...............................................................................................................ϭϬϭ 

^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ�WŽƌƞŽůŝŽ�ZĞƚƵƌŶƐ ....................................................................................ϭϬϮ 

^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ�dŽƉ�dĞŶ��ƋƵŝƟĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�&ŝǆĞĚ�/ŶĐŽŵĞ�^ĞĐƵƌŝƟĞƐ ......................................ϭϬϯ 

>ŝƐƚ�ŽĨ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�DĂŶĂŐĞƌƐ .....................................................................................ϭϬϰ 

^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ�WƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂů�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�&ĞĞƐ ..............................................................ϭϬϱ 

dŽƉ�ϭϬ��ƌŽŬĞƌ��ŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶƐ ......................................................................................ϭϬϱ 

 



 

 

��ãç�Ù®�½�^��ã®ÊÄ 
�ĐƚƵĂƌǇ͛Ɛ��ĞƌƟĮĐĂƟŽŶ ...............................................................................................ϭϬϵ 

�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�sĂůƵĂƟŽŶ ....................................................................................................ϭϭϮ 

�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�DĞƚŚŽĚƐ�ĂŶĚ��ƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ.........................................................................ϭϭϯ 

ZĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�^ĞƉĂƌĂƟŽŶ�ĨƌŽŵ��ĐƟǀĞ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ .....................................................................ϭϭϴ 

^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�^ŝŐŶŝĮĐĂŶƚ��ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�^ƚĂƟƐƟĐƐ�ĂŶĚ�DĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ .......................................ϭϮϬ 

sĂůƵĂƟŽŶ��ƐƐĞƚƐ.........................................................................................................ϭϮϭ 

�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�sĂůƵĂƟŽŶ�-�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ZĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�>ŝĂďŝůŝƟĞƐ� ......................................ϭϮϮ 

^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ��ĐƟǀĞ�DĞŵďĞƌ�sĂůƵĂƟŽŶ��ĂƚĂ .............................................................ϭϮϯ 

^ŽůǀĞŶĐǇ�dĞƐƚ .............................................................................................................ϭϮϰ 

^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ�ZĞƟƌĞĞƐ�ĂŶĚ��ĞŶĞĮĐŝĂƌŝĞƐ��ĚĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂŶĚ�ZĞŵŽǀĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ZŽůůƐ� ......ϭϮϰ 

�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů��ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ�ŽĨ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů��ǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ .................................................................ϭϮϱ 

^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ�&ƵŶĚŝŶŐ�WƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ....................................................................................ϭϮϱ 

 

^ã�ã®Ýã®��½�^��ã®ÊÄ 
�ŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�&ŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�EĞƚ�WŽƐŝƟŽŶ� ............................................................................ϭϮϵ 

^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ��ĚĚŝƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�&ŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�EĞƚ�WŽƐŝƟŽŶ�ďǇ�^ŽƵƌĐĞ ......................................ϭϯϭ 

^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ��ĞĚƵĐƟŽŶƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�&ŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�EĞƚ�WŽƐŝƟŽŶ�ďǇ�dǇƉĞ ..................................ϭϯϭ 

dŽƚĂů�&ŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�EĞƚ�WŽƐŝƟŽŶ .......................................................................................ϭϯϮ 

�ŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�&ŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�EĞƚ�WŽƐŝƟŽŶ .............................................................................ϭϯϮ 

^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�ZĞƟƌĞĚ��ĞŶĞĮƚƐ͕�ZĞĨƵŶĚƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�/ŶĂĐƟǀĞ�DĞŵďĞƌƐ ...............................ϭϯϯ 

^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ��ǀĞƌĂŐĞ�WĞŶƐŝŽŶ��ĞŶĞĮƚ�WĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ .......................................................ϭϯϰ 

EƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ZĞƟƌĞĞƐ� ...................................................................................................ϭϯϲ 

�ǀĞƌĂŐĞ�DŽŶƚŚůǇ�ZĞƟƌĞĞ��ĞŶĞĮƚ� .............................................................................ϭϯϲ 

^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ��ǀĞƌĂŐĞ�DŽŶƚŚůǇ�^ĂůĂƌǇ�ŽĨ��ĐƟǀĞ�DĞŵďĞƌƐ .........................................ϭϯϳ 

^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ��ĐƟǀĞ�DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�WĂƌƟĐŝƉĂƟŶŐ��ŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ .......................................ϭϯϵ 

�ŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�DĞŵďĞƌ��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ZĂƚĞƐ ..............................................................ϭϰϬ 

,ŝƐƚŽƌǇ�ŽĨ��ŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�^ƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ZĂƚĞƐ....................................................ϭϰϭ 

 

�ÊÃÖ½®�Ä���^��ã®ÊÄ 
^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�&ƵŶĚĞĚ�ZĂƟŽ ...........................................................................................ϭϰϱ 

�ĚĚŝƟŽŶƐ�dŽ�ĂŶĚ��ĞĚƵĐƟŽŶƐ�&ƌŽŵ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�EĞƚ�WŽƐŝƟŽŶ ...................................ϭϰϱ 

/ŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ��ƵĚŝƚŽƌ͛Ɛ�ZĞƉŽƌƚ�ŽŶ�/ŶƚĞƌŶĂů��ŽŶƚƌŽů�KǀĞƌ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ZĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ĂŶĚ� 
ŽŶ��ŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�KƚŚĞƌ�DĂƩĞƌƐ��ĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ĂŶ��ƵĚŝƚ�ŽĨ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 
WĞƌĨŽƌŵĞĚ�ŝŶ��ĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ƵĚŝƟŶŐ�^ƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ .............................ϭϰϲ 



 

 

dŚŝƐ�ƉĂŐĞ�ŝƐ�ŝŶƚĞŶƟŽŶĂůůǇ�ůĞŌ�ďůĂŶŬ͘ 



 

 

INTRODUCTORY 
SECTION 



 

 



/ŶƚƌŽĚƵĐƚŽƌǇ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  11 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

�ĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŽƌ͛Ɛ�>ĞƩĞƌ�ŽĨ�dƌĂŶƐŵŝƩĂů 

�ŽĂƌĚ�ŽĨ�ZĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ 
^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͛�ZĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ��ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ 
 
�ĞĂƌ�dƌƵƐƚĞĞƐ͗ 
 
/�Ăŵ�ƉůĞĂƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽŵƉƌĞŚĞŶƐŝǀĞ��ŶŶƵĂů�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ZĞƉŽƌƚ�;��&ZͿ�
ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ� �ŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͛� ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ� �ƐƐŽĐŝĂƚŝŽŶ� ;^Ăŵ��Z�Ϳ�
ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͘�dŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ŝƐ�ŝŶƚĞŶĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�
ĂŶ�ŽǀĞƌǀŝĞǁ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů͕�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ͕�ĂŶĚ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ƐƚĂƚƵƐ͘ � 
  
hŶĚĞƌ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŽĚĞ�ϯϭϱϵϯ͕�^Ăŵ��Z��ŝƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶĚƵĐƚ�ĂŶ�ĂƵĚŝƚ�
ĞǀĞƌǇ�ϭϮ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ƵƉŽŶ�ŝƚƐ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ĐŽŶĚŝƚŝŽŶ͘�dŚĞ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ĂƵĚŝƚ�
ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĞĚ� ďǇ� �ƌŽǁŶ� �ƌŵƐƚƌŽŶŐ� �ĐĐŽƵŶƚĂŶĐǇ� �ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚŝŽŶ� ƐƚĂƚĞƐ� ƚŚĂƚ�
^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ� ĂƌĞ� ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ� ĨĂŝƌůǇ͕� ŝŶ� Ăůů� ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂů�
ƌĞƐƉĞĐƚƐ͕� ŝŶ� ĐŽŶĨŽƌŵŝƚǇ� ǁŝƚŚ� 'ĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ� �ĐĐĞƉƚĞĚ� �ĐĐŽƵŶƚŝŶŐ� WƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞƐ�
;'��WͿ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�hŶŝƚĞĚ�^ƚĂƚĞƐ�ŽĨ��ŵĞƌŝĐĂ͘ �dŚĞ�ĂƵĚŝƚŽƌ͛Ɛ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ŝƐ�ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ŽŶ�
ƉĂŐĞ�Ϯϵ͘� 
  
DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂĐŬŶŽǁůĞĚŐĞƐ�ŝƚƐ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶƚŝƌĞ�ĐŽŶƚĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
��&Z͕� ĂŶĚ� ĂůƐŽ� ŝƚƐ� ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ� ĨŽƌ� ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶŝŶŐ� ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ� ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů�
ĐŽŶƚƌŽůƐ� ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ� ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ͕� ƌĂƚŚĞƌ� ƚŚĂŶ�ĂďƐŽůƵƚĞ͕� ĂƐƐƵƌĂŶĐĞ� ƚŚĂƚ� ƚŚĞ�
ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ� ĂƌĞ� ĨƌĞĞ� ŽĨ� ĂŶǇ� ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂů� ĞƌƌŽƌƐ͘ � DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ͛Ɛ�
�ŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ�;D�Θ�Ϳ�ŝƐ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƉĂŐĞƐ�ϯϮ-ϰϬ͕�ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�Ă�
ŶĂƌƌĂƚŝǀĞ�ĂŶĂůǇƐŝƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ďĂƐŝĐ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘ �D�Θ��ĐŽŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚƐ�
ƚŚŝƐ�ůĞƚƚĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƚƌĂŶƐŵŝƚƚĂů�ĂŶĚ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƌĞĂĚ�ŝŶ�ĐŽŶũƵŶĐƚŝŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŝƚ͘ 

“2019 marks SamCERA’s 75th 
anniversary, and on this milestone, we 
remain committed in our mission: to 
serve as a loyal fiduciary to our 
members and as a prudent 
administrator of the retirement system.” 

^ĐŽƩ�,ŽŽĚ 
^Ăŵ��Z� 

�ŚŝĞĨ��ǆĞĐƵƟǀĞ�KĸĐĞƌ 



12  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

ϮϬϭϵ�ŵĂƌŬƐ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ϳϱƚŚ� ĂŶŶŝǀĞƌƐĂƌǇ͕� ĂŶĚ� ŽŶ� ƚŚŝƐ�ŵŝůĞƐƚŽŶĞ͕�ǁĞ� ƌĞŵĂŝŶ� ĐŽŵŵŝƩĞĚ� ŝŶ�
ŽƵƌ�ŵŝƐƐŝŽŶ͗�ƚŽ�ƐĞƌǀĞ�ĂƐ�Ă�ůŽǇĂů�ĮĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�ƚŽ�ŽƵƌ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƐ�Ă�ƉƌƵĚĞŶƚ�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŽƌ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ� ƌĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͘� /Ŷ� ƚŚĞ� ĐŽƵƌƐĞ� ŽĨ� ĨƵůĮůůŝŶŐ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ŵŝƐƐŝŽŶ͕� ǁĞ� ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�
ĐŽŵƉƌĞŚĞŶƐŝǀĞ�ĐƵƐƚŽŵĞƌ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƚŽ�ŵŽƌĞ�ƚŚĂŶ�ϭϮ͕ϬϬϬ�ĂĐƟǀĞ͕�ƌĞƟƌĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�
ĂŶĚ�ďĞŶĞĮĐŝĂƌŝĞƐ͘ 

 
�ƵƚŚŽƌŝƚǇ͕�ZĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďŝůŝƟĞƐ�Θ��ƵƟĞƐ 
dŚĞ�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�;ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇͿ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŽĨ�^ƵƉĞƌǀŝƐŽƌƐ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ�ƌĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�
�ŽƵŶƚǇ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ�ĞīĞĐƟǀĞ�:ƵůǇ�ϭ͕�ϭϵϰϰ͕�ĂƐ�ƉƌĞƐĐƌŝďĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ�ŽĨ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŽĚĞ�
^ĞĐƟŽŶ�ϯϭϰϱϬ�Ğƚ�ƐĞƋ͕͘�ĂůƐŽ�ŬŶŽǁŶ�ĂƐ��ĂůŝĨŽƌŶŝĂ͛Ɛ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ�ZĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ�>Ăǁ�ŽĨ�ϭϵϯϳ�
;ƚŚĞ���Z>Ϳ͘��^Ăŵ��Z��ŝƐ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�ƌĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ͕�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͕�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞĂƚŚ�ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ�ƚŽ�
ŝƚƐ� ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ� ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ� ĂŶĚ� ďĞŶĞĮĐŝĂƌŝĞƐ� ŝŶ� ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ� ǁŝƚŚ� ƚŚĞ� ��Z>͕� ƚŚĞ� �ĂůŝĨŽƌŶŝĂ� WƵďůŝĐ�
�ŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͛�WĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ZĞĨŽƌŵ��Đƚ�ŽĨ�ϮϬϭϯ� ;W�WZ�� -�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŽĚĞ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ�ϳϱϮϮ�Ğƚ� ƐĞƋ͘Ϳ͕�
ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ�ƐƚĂƚƵƚĞƐ͕�ƌĞŐƵůĂƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĐĂƐĞ�ůĂǁ͘ 

 
dŚĞ� ^Ăŵ��Z�� �ŽĂƌĚ� ŽĨ� ZĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ;ƚŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚͿ͕� ƐĞƌǀŝŶŐ� ĂƐ� ĮĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ� ĨŽƌ� Ăůů� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�
ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ďĞŶĞĮĐŝĂƌŝĞƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ��ĂůŝĨŽƌŶŝĂ��ŽŶƐƟƚƵƟŽŶ͕��ƌƟĐůĞ�ys/͕�^ĞĐƟŽŶ�ϭϳ�ĂŶĚ�
ƚŚĞ���Z>͕� ŝƐ� ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďůĞ� ĨŽƌ�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚĞƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͘� �dŚĞ�ĚƵƟĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ͕� ŝƚƐ�ŽĸĐĞƌƐ͕�
ĂŶĚ� ŝƚƐ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ�ĂƌĞ� ƚŽ�ƉƌƵĚĞŶƚůǇ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞ�ƉůĂŶ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ� ƚŚĞ�ĂďŝůŝƚǇ� ƚŽ�ƉĂǇ�Ăůů�
ĞĂƌŶĞĚ�ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ�ǁŚŝůĞ�ŵŝŶŝŵŝǌŝŶŐ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞĨƌĂǇŝŶŐ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�
ŽĨ�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͘ 

 
dŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚƐ�ŽĨ�ŶŝŶĞ�dƌƵƐƚĞĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚǁŽ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƚĞƐ͘��&ŽƵƌ�ƉŽƐŝƟŽŶƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�
�ŽĂƌĚ� ŽĨ� ^ƵƉĞƌǀŝƐŽƌƐ͘� � &ŽƵƌ� dƌƵƐƚĞĞƐ� ĂƌĞ� ĞůĞĐƚĞĚ� ĨƌŽŵ� ƚŚĞŝƌ� ƌĞƐƉĞĐƟǀĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐŚŝƉ͗� � ƚǁŽ�
ĨƌŽŵ� ƚŚĞ� 'ĞŶĞƌĂů� DĞŵďĞƌƐ͕� ŽŶĞ� ĨƌŽŵ� ƚŚĞ� ^ĂĨĞƚǇ� DĞŵďĞƌƐ͕� ĂŶĚ� ŽŶĞ� ĨƌŽŵ� ƚŚĞ� ZĞƟƌĞĞ�
DĞŵďĞƌƐ͘��dŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�dƌĞĂƐƵƌĞƌ�ŝƐ�Ă�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ďǇ�ǀŝƌƚƵĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƵďůŝĐůǇ�ĞůĞĐƚĞĚ�
ŽĸĐĞ͖�Ăůů�ŽƚŚĞƌ�dƌƵƐƚĞĞƐ� ƐĞƌǀĞ� ĨŽƌ�Ă� ƚĞƌŵ�ŽĨ� ƚŚƌĞĞ�ǇĞĂƌƐ͘� � /Ŷ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶ͕� ƚŚĞƌĞ� ŝƐ�ŽŶĞ�ĞůĞĐƚĞĚ�
^ĂĨĞƚǇ�DĞŵďĞƌ��ůƚĞƌŶĂƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŽŶĞ�ĞůĞĐƚĞĚ�ZĞƟƌĞĞ�DĞŵďĞƌ��ůƚĞƌŶĂƚĞ͘� �dŚĞ�ŽĸĐĞƌƐ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ�
�ŽĂƌĚ� ĨŽƌ� ĮƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ� ϮϬϭϴ-ϭϵ�ǁĞƌĞ͗� � ^ĂŶĚŝĞ� �ƌŶŽƩ͕� �ŚĂŝƌ͖� <Ƶƌƚ� ,ŽĞĨĞƌ͕� sŝĐĞ� �ŚĂŝƌ͖� ĂŶĚ� �ů�
�ĂǀŝĚ͕� ^ĞĐƌĞƚĂƌǇ͘� � KƚŚĞƌ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ�ǁĞƌĞ͗� � <ĂƚŚĞƌŝŶĞ�K͛DĂůůĞǇ͕� �ƌŝĐ� dĂƐŚŵĂŶ͕�
�ĞŶĞĚŝĐƚ�:͘��ŽǁůĞƌ͕�DĂƌŬ��ĂƩĞǇ͕�ZŽďĞƌƚ�ZĂǁ͕�ĂŶĚ�WĂƵů�,ĂĐŬůĞŵĂŶ͘���ůƚĞƌŶĂƚĞ�dƌƵƐƚĞĞƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�
^ƵƐĂŶ�>ĞĞ�ĂŶĚ��ůŵĂ�^ĂůĂƐ͘ 

 
dŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ŚĂƐ� ĂĚŽƉƚĞĚ� ƚŚĞ� ZĞŐƵůĂƟŽŶƐ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ŽĨ� ZĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ͕� ĂŶĚ� ĂŵŽŶŐ� ŽƚŚĞƌ�
ƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐ͕� ŝƚƐ�DŝƐƐŝŽŶ� Θ� 'ŽĂůƐ͖� /ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� WŽůŝĐǇ� ^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ͖� �ŽŶŇŝĐƚ� ŽĨ� /ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ� �ŽĚĞ͖� ĂŶĚ�
�ŽĚĞ�ŽĨ��ŽŶĚƵĐƚ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƌĞŇĞĐƚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ͛Ɛ�ŐƵŝĚŝŶŐ�ƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐ͘� �dŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ĂŶŶƵĂůůǇ�ĂĚŽƉƚƐ�ĂŶ�
ŽƉĞƌĂƟŶŐ� ďƵĚŐĞƚ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟŽŶ� ŽĨ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͕� ǁŚŝĐŚ� ŝƐ� ĚŝƐĐƵƐƐĞĚ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� &ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�
^ĞĐƟŽŶ�ďĞŐŝŶŶŝŶŐ�ŽŶ�ƉĂŐĞ�ϰϭ͘���ďƌĞĂŬĚŽǁŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵĚŐĞƚ�ĂůůŽƚŵĞŶƚ�ǀĞƌƐƵƐ�ĂĐƚƵĂů�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�
ŝƐ� ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ� ŽŶ� ƉĂŐĞƐ� ϳϭ-ϳϮ͘� � /Ŷ� ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶ͕� ƚŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ŚĂƐ� ĂƵƚŚŽƌŝǌĞĚ� ƚŚĞ� ĞǆĞĐƵƟŽŶ� ŽĨ�
ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂů� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ŽĨ�ĂŶ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌǇ͕�ĂŶ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚ͕� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�

�ĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŽƌ͛Ɛ�>ĞƩĞƌ�ŽĨ�dƌĂŶƐŵŝƩĂů 



/ŶƚƌŽĚƵĐƚŽƌǇ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  13 

ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌƐ͕� Ă� ŐůŽďĂů� ĐƵƐƚŽĚŝĂŶ͕� Ă� ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ĂƵĚŝƚŽƌ͕� ĂŶĚ� Ă�ŵĞĚŝĐĂů� ĂĚǀŝƐŽƌ� ĚĞůĞŐĂƚĞĚ� ďǇ� ƚŚĞ�
�ŽƵŶƚǇ�,ĞĂůƚŚ�KĸĐĞƌ�ƚŽ�ŚĞůƉ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ĨƵůĮůů� ŝƚƐ�ĚƵƟĞƐ͘� �dŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ͛Ɛ�ƉƌŝŵĂƌǇ�ƉƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂů�
ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŚŝŐŚůŝŐŚƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝǌĂƟŽŶĂů�ĐŚĂƌƚ�ŽŶ�ƉĂŐĞ�Ϯϰ͘ 

 
^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� �ŚŝĞĨ� �ǆĞĐƵƟǀĞ� KĸĐĞƌ� ;��KͿ� ƐĞƌǀĞƐ� Ăƚ� ƚŚĞ� ƉůĞĂƐƵƌĞ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ĂŶĚ� ŝƐ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďůĞ� ĨŽƌ�ŵĂŶĂŐŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ�ĚĂǇ-ƚŽ-ĚĂǇ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ� ƌĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͘� �^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�
ƐƚĂī� ŽĨ� Ϯϯ� ĨƵůů-ƟŵĞ� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ� ŝƐ� ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďůĞ� ĨŽƌ� ŵĞĞƟŶŐ� ƚŚĞ� ŶĞĞĚƐ� ŽĨ� ŝƚƐ� ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ� ĂŶĚ�
ďĞŶĞĮĐŝĂƌŝĞƐ͕�ƉĂƌƟĐŝƉĂƟŶŐ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŝŶ�ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŚŝŐŚ�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ�
ƐĞƚ�ĨŽƌƚŚ�ŝŶ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�DŝƐƐŝŽŶ�Θ�'ŽĂůƐ�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘��^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ƐƚĂī�ŝƐ�ƐǁŽƌŶ�ƚŽ�ĐĂƌƌǇ�ŽƵƚ�ŝƚƐ�
ĮĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ� ĚƵƟĞƐ� ŝŶ� ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ� ǁŝƚŚ� ƚŚĞ� ŐŽǀĞƌŶŝŶŐ� ůĂǁ� ĂŶĚ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ƌĞŐƵůĂƟŽŶƐ� ĂŶĚ�
ƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐ͘ 

 
�ŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ�ƉĂƌƟĐŝƉĂƟŶŐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ͕�ƚŚĞ�^ƵƉĞƌŝŽƌ��ŽƵƌƚ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ� ŽĨ� ^ĂŶ� DĂƚĞŽ� ;ƚŚĞ� �ŽƵƌƚͿ͕� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� ^ĂŶ� DĂƚĞŽ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ� DŽƐƋƵŝƚŽ� ĂŶĚ� sĞĐƚŽƌ�
�ŽŶƚƌŽů��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ�;ƚŚĞ��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚͿ͘��^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�Ăůů�ĂĐƟǀĞ�ƉĞƌŵĂŶĞŶƚ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ�
ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƌƟĐŝƉĂƟŶŐ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ͕�ŝŶĂĐƟǀĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ͕�ƌĞƟƌĞĞƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ďĞŶĞĮĐŝĂƌŝĞƐ͘���ďŽƵƚ�ϴϲй�ŽĨ�
^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ� ĂƌĞ� ĐůĂƐƐŝĮĞĚ� ĂƐ� 'ĞŶĞƌĂů� DĞŵďĞƌƐ� ǁŚŝůĞ� ƚŚĞ� ƌĞŵĂŝŶŝŶŐ� ĂƌĞ� ƉƵďůŝĐ�
ƐĂĨĞƚǇ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ�ĐůĂƐƐŝĮĞĚ�ĂƐ�^ĂĨĞƚǇ�Žƌ�WƌŽďĂƟŽŶ�DĞŵďĞƌƐ͘ 

 
&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů 
dŚĞ�ĐĞƌƟĮĞĚ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƟŶŐ�Įƌŵ�ŽĨ��ƌŽǁŶ��ƌŵƐƚƌŽŶŐ��ĐĐŽƵŶƚĂŶĐǇ��ŽƌƉŽƌĂƟŽŶ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ�
ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ĂƵĚŝƚ� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ� ƚŽ�^Ăŵ��Z�͘� �dŚĞ�ŽďũĞĐƟǀĞ�ŽĨ� ƚŚŝƐ�ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ĂƵĚŝƚ� ŝƐ� ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�
^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ� ĂƌĞ� ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ� ŝŶ� ĐŽŶĨŽƌŵŝƚǇ� ǁŝƚŚ� '��W� ĂŶĚ� ĂƌĞ� ĨƌĞĞ� ŽĨ�
ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂů� ŵŝƐƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘� /ŶƚĞƌŶĂů� ĐŽŶƚƌŽůƐ� ĂƌĞ� ƌĞǀŝĞǁĞĚ� ƚŽ� ĞŶƐƵƌĞ� ƚŚĂƚ� ^Ăŵ��Z�� ŚĂƐ�
ƐƵĸĐŝĞŶƚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŽůƐ�ŝŶ�ƉůĂĐĞ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƌĞůŝĂďůĞ�ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽ�ƐĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚ�ŝƚƐ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ͘��
^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ�ĂƌĞ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĐĐƌƵĂů�ďĂƐŝƐ�ŽĨ�
ĂĐĐŽƵŶƟŶŐ͘� DĞŵďĞƌ� ĂŶĚ� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ� ĂƌĞ� ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞĚ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ƉĞƌŝŽĚ� ǁŚŝĐŚ�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ� ĂƌĞ� ĚƵĞ͘� �ĞŶĞĮƚƐ� ĂŶĚ� ƌĞĨƵŶĚƐ� ĂƌĞ� ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞĚ� ǁŚĞŶ� ĚƵĞ� ĂŶĚ� ƉĂǇĂďůĞ� ŝŶ�
ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƉůĂŶ�ƚĞƌŵƐ͘��/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�Ăƚ�ĨĂŝƌ�ǀĂůƵĞ͘ 

 
/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ 
dŚŝƐ�ǇĞĂƌ͛Ɛ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐ�ŽĨ�ϱ͘ϰй͕�ŶĞƚ�ŽĨ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌ�ĨĞĞƐ͕�ĨĞůů�ƐůŝŐŚƚůǇ�ƐŚŽƌƚ�ŽĨ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�
ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ�ƌĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ŽĨ�ϲ͘ϳϱй�ĂŶĚ�ůŽǁĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ďĞŶĐŚŵĂƌŬ�ŽĨ�ϲ͘ϳй͕�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŽŶĞ-
ǇĞĂƌ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ĞŶĚĞĚ� ŝŶ� :ƵŶĞ�ϮϬϭϵ͘� � &Žƌ�ĮƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ�ϮϬϭϴ-ϭϵ͕�Ăůů�ŽĨ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ĮǀĞ�ĂƐƐĞƚ� ĐůĂƐƐ�
ĐŽŵƉŽƐŝƚĞƐ� ;WƵďůŝĐ� �ƋƵŝƚǇ͕� &ŝǆĞĚ� /ŶĐŽŵĞ͕��ůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞƐ͕� /ŶŇĂƟŽŶ�,ĞĚŐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ZŝƐŬ�WĂƌŝƚǇͿ� ŚĂĚ�
ƉŽƐŝƟǀĞ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐ͘� �ZŝƐŬ�WĂƌŝƚǇ�ǁĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞƐƚ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵŝŶŐ�ĐŽŵƉŽƐŝƚĞ͕�ǁŚŝůĞ�/ŶŇĂƟŽŶ�,ĞĚŐĞ�ǁĂƐ�
ƚŚĞ� ůŽǁĞƐƚ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶŝŶŐ� ĂƐƐĞƚ� ĐůĂƐƐ� ĐŽŵƉŽƐŝƚĞ͘� � dŚŝƐ� ĮƐĐĂů-ǇĞĂƌ� ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ� ƌĞƐƵůƚĞĚ� ŝŶ� ŶĞĂƌ�
ŵĞĚŝĂŶ� ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ͕� ƌĞůĂƟǀĞ� ƚŽ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ƉĞĞƌƐ͕� ĂƐ� ĚĞĮŶĞĚ� ďǇ� ůĂƌŐĞ� ;ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌ� ƚŚĂŶ� Ψϭ�
ďŝůůŝŽŶ� ŝŶ� ĂƐƐĞƚƐͿ� ƉƵďůŝĐ� ƉůĂŶƐ͘� � �ůƚŚŽƵŐŚ� ƚŚĞ� ƉůĂŶ� ŚĂƐ� ƵŶĚĞƌƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĞĚ� ƌĞůĂƟǀĞ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ�
ďĞŶĐŚŵĂƌŬ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƐƚ�ƚǁŽ�ǇĞĂƌƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂŶ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƐŚŽǁ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ŵĞĚŝĂŶ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�
ŽǀĞƌ�ůŽŶŐĞƌ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚƐ͘ 

�ĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŽƌ͛Ɛ�>ĞƩĞƌ�ŽĨ�dƌĂŶƐŵŝƩĂů 



14  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

^Ăŵ��Z��ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞƐ�ƚŽ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƉƉƌŽǀĞĚ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ƉŽƌƞŽůŝŽ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁĂƐ�ĂƉƉƌŽǀĞĚ�
ŝŶ�ĮƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ϮϬϭϳ-ϭϴ͕�ŽǀĞƌ�Ă�ŵƵůƟƉůĞ�ǇĞĂƌ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͘��/ƚ�ŝƐ�ĂŶƟĐŝƉĂƚĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĮŶĂů�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ�
ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ǁŝůů�ƚĂŬĞ�ƉůĂĐĞ�ďǇ�ǇĞĂƌ-ĞŶĚ�ϮϬϮϬ͘��dŚŝƐ�ƉĂƐƚ�ĮƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ͕�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�
ƚǁŽ�ŶĞǁ�ůŽǁ-ǀŽůĂƟůŝƚǇ�ĞƋƵŝƚǇ�ŵĂŶĚĂƚĞƐ͕�ŝŶ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƟŶŐ�Ă�ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ�ŚĞĚŐĞ�ĨƵŶĚ�
ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵ͘���ůŽŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĞƋƵŝƚǇ�ŵĂŶĚĂƚĞƐ͕�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ĂůƐŽ�ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ƌĞĂů�
ĂƐƐĞƚ�ŵĂŶĚĂƚĞ� ĂŶĚ�ŵĂĚĞ� Ă� ĐŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ� ƚŽ� Ă�ƉƌŝǀĂƚĞ� ĐƌĞĚŝƚ�ŵĂŶĚĂƚĞ͘� � dŚĞƐĞ� ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ� ĂŶĚ�
ŽƚŚĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ŚŝĞĨ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�KĸĐĞƌ͛Ɛ�ZĞƉŽƌƚ�ŽŶ�ƉĂŐĞ�ϴϳ͘ 

 
��ŵĂũŽƌ�ĨŽĐƵƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǆƚ�ĨĞǁ�ĮƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŝƐ�ƚŽ�ƉůĂŶ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐĂůůǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŽŶŐŽŝŶŐ�
ŵĂƚƵƌĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ƉůĂŶ͘����ŵĂƚƵƌĞ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ƉůĂŶ�;ŝ͘Ğ͕͘�ŽŶĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵŽƌĞ�ŝŶĂĐƟǀĞ�
ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ƚŚĂŶ�ĂĐƟǀĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐͿ�ŚĂƐ�ĚŝīĞƌĞŶƚ�ƐĞŶƐŝƟǀŝƟĞƐ�ƚŽ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ƌŝƐŬƐ�ƚŚĂŶ�Ă�ƉůĂŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�
ŶŽƚ� ŵĂƚƵƌĞ͘� � /Ŷ� ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶ͕� ƚŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ŝƐ� ĂŶƟĐŝƉĂƟŶŐ� ƚŚĂƚ� ƚŚĞ� ƉůĂŶ� ǁŝůů� ďĞĐŽŵĞ� ĐĂƐŚ� ŇŽǁ�
ŶĞŐĂƟǀĞ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǆƚ�ĮǀĞ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ĂƐ� ŝƚ�ďĞĐŽŵĞƐ�ŵŽƌĞ�ŵĂƚƵƌĞ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂŶ�ŵŽǀĞƐ�ĐůŽƐĞƌ�ƚŽ�
ƉĂǇŝŶŐ�ĚŽǁŶ� ŝƚƐ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ƵŶĨƵŶĚĞĚ� ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ͘� �dŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ŽŶ�ŚŽǁ�ƚŽ�ĂůŝŐŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ĂƐƐĞƚ�ĂůůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�ŝŶ�ŽƌĚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ�ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŵĂƚƵƌĞ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ƉůĂŶƐ͘��� 

 
�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů 

^Ăŵ��Z��ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�Ă�ƐƚĂƚĞǁŝĚĞ�ůĞĂĚĞƌ�ŝŶ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ǁĂƐ�ƉůĞĂƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�
ƌĂŶŬĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ϰƚŚ�ŵŽƐƚ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂůůǇ�ĐŽŶƐĞƌǀĂƟǀĞ�ĂŵŽŶŐ��ĂůŝĨŽƌŶŝĂ�ƌĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�ŝŶ�Ă�DĂǇ�
ϮϬϭϵ� ƐƵƌǀĞǇ� ĨƌŽŵ� ZŽĞĚĞƌ� &ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů͘� � dŚĞ� ƐƵƌǀĞǇ� ƌĂŶŬƐ� ƚŚĞ� ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ� ĂƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ� ƵƐĞĚ� ďǇ�
�ĂůŝĨŽƌŶŝĂ͛Ɛ� ƉƵďůŝĐ� ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ� ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ� ĨƌŽŵ� ͞ŵŽƐƚ� ĐŽŶƐĞƌǀĂƟǀĞ͟� ƚŽ� ͞ŵŽƐƚ� ŽƉƟŵŝƐƟĐ͘͟��
^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ŚŝŐŚ�ƌĂŶŬŝŶŐ�ǁĂƐ�ĚƵĞ�ŵĂŝŶůǇ�ƚŽ�ŝƚƐ�ƌĞůĂƟǀĞůǇ�ůŽǁ�ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ�ƌĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ŽĨ�ϲ͘ϳϱй�
ĂŶĚ� ŝƚƐ� ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ� ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ� ŵĞƚŚŽĚ͕� ǁŚĞƌĞ� ƚŚĞ� :ƵŶĞ� ϯϬ͕� ϮϬϬϴ� hŶĨƵŶĚĞĚ� �ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů� �ĐĐƌƵĞĚ�
>ŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�;h��>Ϳ�ŝƐ�ĂŵŽƌƟǌĞĚ�ŽǀĞƌ�Ă�ĮǆĞĚ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ĞŶĚŝŶŐ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϮϯ͘��^ƵďƐĞƋƵĞŶƚ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�
ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�h��>� ŝŶ�ǇĞĂƌƐ� ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϬϴ͕�ĂƌĞ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĂŵŽƌƟǌĞĚ�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞůǇ�ŽǀĞƌ�ŶĞǁ�ϭϱ-
ǇĞĂƌ� ƉĞƌŝŽĚƐ͘� � �ƚ� ŝƚƐ� :ƵůǇ� ϮϬϭϵ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ŵĞĞƟŶŐ͕� ƚŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ĂƉƉƌŽǀĞĚ� ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ� ůŽǁĞƌŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ�
ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐƐ�ƌĂƚĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ϲ͘ϳϱй�ƚŽ�ϲ͘ϱϬй͘ 

 
^Ăŵ��Z�� ĞŶŐĂŐĞƐ� ĂŶ� ŝŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů� ĐŽŶƐƵůƟŶŐ� Įƌŵ͕� DŝůůŝŵĂŶ͕� /ŶĐ͘� ;DŝůůŝŵĂŶͿ͕� ƚŽ�
ĐŽŶĚƵĐƚ�ĂŶ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ŝƚƐ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ƉůĂŶ͘��dŚĞ�ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ƚŽ�
ƌĞĂƐƐĞƐƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŐŶŝƚƵĚĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞŶĞĮƚ�ĐŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌŝƐŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�
ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ĐŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ƐŽ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�
ƌĂƚĞƐ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚ�ĂĐĐŽƌĚŝŶŐůǇ͘��dƌŝĞŶŶŝĂůůǇ͕�^Ăŵ��Z��ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚƐ�ŝƚƐ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ĐŽŶƐƵůƟŶŐ�Įƌŵ�
ƚŽ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵ�ĂŶ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ�ƐƚƵĚǇ�ƐŽ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ�
ĨŽƌ� ǀĂůƵŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ� ƉůĂŶ͛Ɛ� ĂƐƐĞƚƐ� ĂŶĚ� ůŝĂďŝůŝƟĞƐ͘� � ^Ăŵ��Z�� ƐƚƌŝǀĞƐ� ƚŽ� ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ� ƚŚĞ� ŵŽƐƚ� ƌĞĐĞŶƚ�
ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ĂŶĚ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ĚĂƚĂ�ŝŶ�ŝƚƐ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͘ 

 

WůĂŶ�&ƵŶĚŝŶŐ�^ƚĂƚƵƐ 

^Ăŵ��Z�� ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶƐ� Ă� ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ� ŐŽĂů� ƚŚĂƚ� ǁŝůů� ĨƵůůǇ� ĨƵŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͛Ɛ� ůŝĂďŝůŝƟĞƐ� ǁŚŝůĞ�
ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ͕�ĂƐ�Ă�ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƉĂǇƌŽůů͕�ĂƐ� ůĞǀĞů�ĂƐ�ƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ� ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�

�ĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŽƌ͛Ɛ�>ĞƩĞƌ�ŽĨ�dƌĂŶƐŵŝƩĂů 



/ŶƚƌŽĚƵĐƚŽƌǇ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  15 

ƉůĂŶ�ƐƉŽŶƐŽƌƐ͘��DŝůůŝŵĂŶ�ĂĐƚƐ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂŶ͛Ɛ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵƐ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶƐ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�
ĂƌĞ� ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ĂŶŶƵĂůůǇ͘� � dŚĞ� ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶ� ŝƐ� ƚŽ� ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ� ƚŚĞ�
ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ŚĞĂůƚŚ�ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂŶ� Ăƚ� Ă� ŐŝǀĞŶ�ƉŽŝŶƚ� ŝŶ�ƟŵĞ�ĂŶĚ� ƚŽ� ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚ� ƚŚĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ� ĂŶĚ�
ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞƐ� ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƉĐŽŵŝŶŐ�ĮƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ͘� �dƌŝĞŶŶŝĂůůǇ͕�DŝůůŝŵĂŶ�ĐŽŶĚƵĐƚƐ�ĂŶ�
ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ�ƐƚƵĚǇ�ŽĨ�^Ăŵ��Z��ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂŬĞƐ� ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŽŶ�ŬĞǇ�
ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ�ĂŶĚ�ŶŽŶĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ͘� �dŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ƌĞĐĞŶƚ�ƚƌŝĞŶŶŝĂů�ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ�ƐƚƵĚǇ�ǁĂƐ�
ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ĞŶĚĞĚ��Ɖƌŝů�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϳ͘��^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ŶĞǆƚ�ƚƌŝĞŶŶŝĂů�ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ�ƐƚƵĚǇ�
ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĐŽŶĚƵĐƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ϮϬϮϬ͘�� 

 
DŝůůŝŵĂŶ͛Ɛ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů� ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶ� ĂƐ� ŽĨ� :ƵŶĞ� ϯϬ͕� ϮϬϭϵ͕� ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ� ƚŚĂƚ� ƚŚĞ� ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ� ƌĂƟŽ�
ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ� ĨƌŽŵ�ϴϳ͘ϱй� ƚŽ� ϴϱ͘ϴй͘� � dŚŝƐ� ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ǁĂƐ� ĚƵĞ�ƉƌŝŵĂƌŝůǇ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ůŽǁĞƌŝŶŐ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ�
ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ�ƌĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ͘��dŚĞ��ŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�EŽƌŵĂů��ŽƐƚ�ZĂƚĞ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ϭϭ͘Ϯϳй�ĨŽƌ�ĮƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�
ϮϬϮϬ-Ϯϭ� ĨƌŽŵ� ϭϬ͘ϱϳй� ŽĨ� ĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ� ƉĂǇƌŽůů� ĨŽƌ� ĮƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ� ϮϬϭϵ-ϮϬ͘� � dŚĞ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ� ŝƐ� ĚƵĞ� ƚŽ�
ůŽǁĞƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ�ƌĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�ϲ͘ϳϱй�ƚŽ�ϲ͘ϱϬй͘���ĚĚŝƟŽŶĂůůǇ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽƌƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ͛Ɛ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ� ƌĂƚĞ� ƚŚĂƚ�ĮŶĂŶĐĞƐ� ƚŚĞ�ƵŶĨƵŶĚĞĚ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů� ĂĐĐƌƵĞĚ� ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ� ;h��>Ϳ�
ĂůƐŽ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�Ϯϯ͘ϭϬй�ŽĨ�ƉĂǇ�ƚŽ�Ϯϲ͘ϱϵй�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞ͘� 

 
^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ 
dŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞƐ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŬĞ�ƐƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐĞůĞƌĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂǇ�ĚŽǁŶ�ŽĨ�ŝƚƐ�
h��>�ŝŶ�ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�DĞŵŽƌĂŶĚƵŵ�ŽĨ�hŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ�;DKhͿ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�
^Ăŵ��Z�� ƚŚĂƚ� ǁĂƐ� ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ� ŝŶ� ϮϬϭϯ͘� dŚĞ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ� ƉĂŝĚ� ĂďŽǀĞ� ƚŚĞ� ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌŝůǇ�
ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ� ƌĂƚĞ� ĂůŽŶŐ� ǁŝƚŚ� ƚŚĞ� ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐƐ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ͛Ɛ� ^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů�
�ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ��ĐĐŽƵŶƚ�;�^��Ϳ�ŽǀĞƌĂůů�ŚĂǀĞ�ŐƌŽǁŶ�ƚŽ�ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇ�Ψϭϴϴ͘ϴ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ�ĂƐ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�
ϯϬ͕� ϮϬϭϵ͘� � &ƵƌƚŚĞƌŵŽƌĞ͕� ƚŚĞ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ� ŝƐ� ĐŽŵŵŝƩĞĚ� ƚŽ� ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞ� ŵĂŬŝŶŐ� ƐƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǆƚ�ƐĞǀĞƌĂů�ǇĞĂƌƐ͘� � /Ŷ�^ĞƉƚĞŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ϮϬϭϱ͕�ƚŚĞ��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ�ĂůƐŽ�ĞŶƚĞƌĞĚ�
ŝŶƚŽ�ĂŶ�DKh�ǁŝƚŚ�^Ăŵ��Z��ƚŽ�ŵĂŬĞ�ƐƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ƉĂǇ�ĚŽǁŶ�ŝƚƐ�h��>͘��dŚĞ�
ŽǀĞƌĂůů� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ� ĂŶĚ� ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐƐ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� �ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ͛Ɛ� ^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů� �ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ� �ĐĐŽƵŶƚ� ŝƐ�
ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇ�Ψϭ͘ϵ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ�ĂƐ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͘� 

 
�ŽƐƚ�ŽĨ�>ŝǀŝŶŐ��ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚ 
dŚĞ�ĂŶŶƵĂů��ŽŶƐƵŵĞƌ�WƌŝĐĞ�/ŶĚĞǆ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ��ĂǇ��ƌĞĂ�ƌĞŇĞĐƚĞĚ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ŝŶŇĂƟŽŶ�ƚŚĂŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƐƚ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚƌǇ͘� ��ƵĞ�ƚŽ�ŝŶŇĂƟŽŶ͕�ŵŽƐƚ�^Ăŵ��Z��ƌĞƟƌĞĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ďĞŶĞĮĐŝĂƌŝĞƐ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�Ă��ŽƐƚ�ŽĨ�
>ŝǀŝŶŐ� �ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ;�K>�Ϳ� ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ� Ϯ͘Ϭй� ĂŶĚ� ϰ͘Ϭй͕� ĚĞƉĞŶĚŝŶŐ� ŽŶ� ƚŚĞ� �K>�� ůŝŵŝƚ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞŝƌ�
ƉůĂŶ͘��dŚĞ��K>��ĨŽƌ�'ĞŶĞƌĂů�ĂŶĚ�^ĂĨĞƚǇ�WůĂŶ�ϭ�ǁĂƐ�ϰй�ĂŶĚ�WƌŽďĂƟŽŶ�WůĂŶ�ϭ�ǁĂƐ�ϯй�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�
ϭй��K>��ďĂŶŬ͘� ��ůů�WůĂŶ�Ϯ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ϯ͘Ϭй͕�ǁŚŝůĞ�ƚŚĞ��K>��ĨŽƌ�WůĂŶƐ�ϰ͕�ϱ͕�ϲ�ĂŶĚ�ϳ�
ǁĂƐ�Ϯ͘Ϭй͘��WůĂŶ�ϯ�ĚŽĞƐ�ŶŽƚ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�Ă��K>�͘ 

 
/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�dĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ 
^Ăŵ��Z��ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞƐ�ƚŽ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟŽŶ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǁĂƐ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�
:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ� ϮϬϭϳ͘� � dŚŝƐ� ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ� ĂŶ� ƵƉŐƌĂĚĞ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ŶĞǁĞƐƚ� ǀĞƌƐŝŽŶ� ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ� ďǇ� ƚŚĞ� ǀĞŶĚŽƌ͕�
ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚƐ�ŽĨ�ŶĞǁ�ĨĞĂƚƵƌĞƐ�ƚŽ�ĞŶŚĂŶĐĞ�ƵƐĞƌ�ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ͘ 

�ĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŽƌ͛Ɛ�>ĞƩĞƌ�ŽĨ�dƌĂŶƐŵŝƩĂů 



16  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

/d� ƐƚĂī� ŚĂǀĞ� ĂůƐŽ� ƌĞůŽĐĂƚĞĚ� ůŽĐĂů� ƐĞƌǀĞƌƐ� ŝŶ� ĂŶ� ĞīŽƌƚ� ƚŽ� ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ� ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐŝŶŐ� ƐƉĞĞĚƐ� ĨŽƌ�
ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů� ĂŶĚ� ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů� ƵƐĞƌƐ� ŽĨ� ŽƵƌ� ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ� ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟŽŶ� ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵ� ĂŶĚ� ĨŽƌ� ďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ�
ĐŽŶƟŶƵŝƚǇ͘� � /Ŷ� ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶ͕� ƚŽ� ďŽůƐƚĞƌ� ďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ� ĐŽŶƟŶƵĂŶĐĞ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ� ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟŽŶ�
ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͕� ĂŶ� ĞŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇ� ǀŝƌƚƵĂů� ƉƌŝǀĂƚĞ� ŶĞƚǁŽƌŬ� ;sWEͿ� ƚŽŽů� ŚĂƐ� ďĞĞŶ� ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĞĚ� ƚŽ� ĂůůŽǁ�
ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟŽŶ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ŝŶ�Ă�ĚŝƐĂƐƚĞƌ�ƐŝƚƵĂƟŽŶ͘ 

 
dŚĞ� /d� ĂŶĚ� &ŝŶĂŶĐĞ� �ŝǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ� ŚĂǀĞ� ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĞĚ� Ă� ŶĞǁ� ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ� ĂƉƉůŝĐĂƟŽŶ� ƚŽ�
ƐƚƌĞĂŵůŝŶĞ� ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐĞƐ͕� ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ� ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ� ĂŶĚ� ƐƚĂǇ� ƵƉ� ƚŽ� ĚĂƚĞ� ǁŝƚŚ� ƚĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐŝĐĂů�
ĂĚǀĂŶĐĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘� �ŽƚŚ� ĚŝǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ� ŚĂǀĞ� ĂůƐŽ� ŝŶŝƟĂƚĞĚ� Ă� ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ� ƚŽ� ĐŽŶĚƵĐƚ� Ă� ĨƵůů� /d� ƌŝƐŬ�
ĂƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ďĞƩĞƌ�ĂŶĂůǇǌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚ�ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ͘� /d�ŚĂƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ďĞŐƵŶ� ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƟŶŐ�
ĚŝŐŝƚĂů� ƐŝŐŶĂƚƵƌĞ� ƚĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ� ŝŶ� ŽƌĚĞƌ� ƚŽ� ƐƚƌĞĂŵůŝŶĞ� ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚ� ƐŝŐŶŝŶŐ� ĂŶĚ� ĂƉƉƌŽǀĂů�
ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐĞƐ͘ 

 
^ƚĂī�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ�WůĂŶŶŝŶŐ 
dŚŝƐ�ǇĞĂƌ�ǁĞ�ŵĂĚĞ�ŐƌĞĂƚ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ�ŝŶ�ŽƵƌ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ�ŝŶŝƟĂƟǀĞƐ͕�ŽƵƚůŝŶĞĚ�ŝŶ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ�
WůĂŶ͘� � ^Ăŵ��Z��ŚĂƐ� ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞĚ� ƚŽ� ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚ� ƚŚĞ� ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ�ƉůĂŶ� ƚŚĂƚ�ǁĂƐ�ƵƉĚĂƚĞĚ� ŝŶ�ϮϬϭϵ͘��
�ŌĞƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ǇĞĂƌ͛Ɛ�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ�WůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ƌĞƚƌĞĂƚ͕�ƐƚĂī�ƵƉĚĂƚĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂŶ�ƚŽ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ŐŽĂůƐ�ĂŶĚ�
ŽďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ĐŽŵŝŶŐ� ƚǁŽ-ǇĞĂƌ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ĂůŝŐŶŝŶŐ� ŝƚ�ǁŝƚŚ� ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ͛Ɛ� ^ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ� WůĂŶ͘� � dŚĞ�
ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ� ƉůĂŶ� ǁŝůů� ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞ� ƚŽ� ĞǀŽůǀĞ� ĂƐ� ŽƵƌ� ŽƌŐĂŶŝǌĂƟŽŶĂů� ŶĞĞĚƐ� ĐŚĂŶŐĞ͕� ŐŝǀŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ�
ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ĞŵƉůŽǇ�Ă�ŵŽƌĞ�ƚŚŽƵŐŚƞƵů͕�ŝŶƚĞŶƟŽŶĂů�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĚŝƌĞĐƚƐ�ĞīŽƌƚƐ�
ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁůǇ�ĂĚŽƉƚĞĚ�ŐŽĂůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŽďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ͘�DŽǀŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ͕�^Ăŵ��Z��ǁŝůů�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞ�ƚŽ�
ƉƵƌƐƵĞ� ŝƚƐ�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ŵĂũŽƌ�ŐŽĂůƐ�ĚĞƐĐƌŝďĞĚ�ďĞůŽǁ͕�Ăůů�ŽĨ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĂƌĞ�ĚĞƌŝǀĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚĞŶƚ�
ǁŝƚŚ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ŵŝƐƐŝŽŶ�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ͗ 
 

�^^�d�D�E�'�D�Ed�'K�> 

WƌƵĚĞŶƚůǇ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ŝŶ�ŽƌĚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞůǇ�ĨƵŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ůŝĂďŝůŝƟĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ƌĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ƐǇƐƚĞŵ� ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ� ƚŚĞ�ĂďŝůŝƚǇ� ƚŽ�ƉĂǇ�Ăůů� ĞĂƌŶĞĚ�ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ͕�ǁŚŝůĞ�ŵŝŶŝŵŝǌŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ�
ĐŽƐƚƐ�ƚŽ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ͘ 

�Ɛ�ƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐůǇ�ŵĞŶƟŽŶĞĚ͕�Ă�ŵĂũŽƌ�ĨŽĐƵƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǆƚ�ĨĞǁ�ĮƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŝƐ�ƚŽ�ƉůĂŶ�
ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐĂůůǇ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ŽŶŐŽŝŶŐ�ŵĂƚƵƌĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ� ƉůĂŶ͕� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂů�
ŝŵƉĂĐƚ� ŽŶ� ƐƵĐŚ� ƚŚŝŶŐƐ� ĂƐ� ƚŚĞ� ƉůĂŶ͛Ɛ� ĂƐƐĞƚ� ĂůůŽĐĂƟŽŶ͕� ůŝƋƵŝĚŝƚǇ� ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ͕� ĂŶĚ� ƌŝƐŬ�
ƚŽůĞƌĂŶĐĞ͘�� 

�h^dKD�Z�^�Zs/��^�'K�> 

WƌŽǀŝĚĞ� ĐĂƌŝŶŐ͕� ĨĂŝƌ͕� ĂĐĐƵƌĂƚĞ͕� ƟŵĞůǇ� ĂŶĚ� ŬŶŽǁůĞĚŐĞĂďůĞ� ƉƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂů� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ� ĂŶĚ�
ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƐƚĂŬĞŚŽůĚĞƌƐ͘ 

^ƚĂī�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞƐ� ƚŽ� ƐƚƌŝǀĞ� ŝŶ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ� ŝƚƐ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ� ƚŚĞ�ŚŝŐŚĞƐƚ� ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ� ĐƵƐƚŽŵĞƌ� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�
ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ� ŽŶĞ-ŽŶ-ŽŶĞ� ĐŽƵŶƐĞůŝŶŐ� ƐĞƐƐŝŽŶƐ͕� ƐĞŵŝŶĂƌƐ͕� ŵĞŵďĞƌ� ŐƵŝĚĞƐ͕� ƐĞůĨ-ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ� ƉŽƌƚĂů�
ĂŶĚ� Ă� ƌŽďƵƐƚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ� ĞĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵ͘� &ƵƌƚŚĞƌŵŽƌĞ͕� ƐƚĂī� ŝƐ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ� ƚŽ� ĞŶƐƵƌĞ� ƚŚĞ�
ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ� ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟŽŶ� ƐǇƐƚĞŵ� ŝƐ� ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵŝŶŐ� ĂƐ� ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ� ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ� ŵŽŶŝƚŽƌŝŶŐ͕� ĂŶĚ�
ƌĞŐƵůĂƌ�ƚĞƐƟŶŐ͘ 

�ĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŽƌ͛Ɛ�>ĞƩĞƌ�ŽĨ�dƌĂŶƐŵŝƩĂů 



/ŶƚƌŽĚƵĐƚŽƌǇ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  17 

KW�Z�d/KE^�'K�> 

�ŽŶƐƚĂŶƚůǇ� ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ� ƚŚĞ� ĞīĞĐƟǀĞŶĞƐƐ� ŽĨ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ� ŽĨ� ŝƚƐ�
ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶƐ͘� 

KƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂůůǇ͕� ^Ăŵ��Z�� ǁŝůů� ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞ� ƚŽ� ĨŽĐƵƐ� ŽŶ� ƐƚƌĞŶŐƚŚĞŶŝŶŐ� ŝƚƐ� ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů� ĐŽŶƚƌŽů�
ƉƌŽĐĞĚƵƌĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ� Ă� ĨŽĐƵƐ� ŽŶ� ĐǇďĞƌƐĞĐƵƌŝƚǇ͕� ĞŶŚĂŶĐŝŶŐ� ĨĞĂƚƵƌĞƐ� ĂŶĚ� ĞŶƐƵƌŝŶŐ� ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚĞŶƚ�
ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟǀŝƚǇ� ƚŽ� ŽƵƌ� ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ� ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟŽŶ� ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͕� ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬŝŶŐ� Ă� ƐƵĐĐĞƐƐŝŽŶ� ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�
ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀŝŶŐ�ŽƵƌ�ďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵŝƚǇ�ƉůĂŶ͘ 

 
�ĞƌƟĮĐĂƚĞ�ŽĨ��ĐŚŝĞǀĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ��ĐŬŶŽǁůĞĚŐĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

&Žƌ� ƚŚĞ� ƚǁĞŶƚǇ-ƐĞĐŽŶĚ� ĐŽŶƐĞĐƵƟǀĞ� ǇĞĂƌ͕� ƚŚĞ� 'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ� &ŝŶĂŶĐĞ� KĸĐĞƌƐ� �ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ�
;'&K�Ϳ� ŚĂƐ� ĂǁĂƌĚĞĚ� ^Ăŵ��Z�� ŝƚƐ� �ĞƌƟĮĐĂƚĞ� ŽĨ� �ĐŚŝĞǀĞŵĞŶƚ� ĨŽƌ� �ǆĐĞůůĞŶĐĞ� ŝŶ� &ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�
ZĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ͘��dŚŝƐ�ĂǁĂƌĚ�ǁĂƐ�ŝŶ�ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ���&Z�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĮƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�
ϯϬ͕� ϮϬϭϴ͘� dŚĞ� ĐĞƌƟĮĐĂƚĞ� ŝƐ� ƌĞƉƌŽĚƵĐĞĚ� ŽŶ� ƉĂŐĞ� ϭϵ͘� dŚĞ� �ĞƌƟĮĐĂƚĞ� ŽĨ� �ĐŚŝĞǀĞŵĞŶƚ� ŝƐ� Ă�
ƉƌĞƐƟŐŝŽƵƐ� ŶĂƟŽŶĂů� ĂǁĂƌĚ� ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌŝŶŐ� ĐŽŶĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ� ǁŝƚŚ� ƚŚĞ� ŚŝŐŚĞƐƚ� ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ� ĨŽƌ�
ƉƌĞƉĂƌĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƐƚĂƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ůŽĐĂů�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƌĞƉŽƌƚƐ͘ 

 
^Ăŵ��Z�� ŝƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞĐŝƉŝĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�'&K���ǁĂƌĚ�ĨŽƌ�KƵƚƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ��ĐŚŝĞǀĞŵĞŶƚ� ŝŶ�WŽƉƵůĂƌ�
�ŶŶƵĂů�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ZĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�;W�&ZͿ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŝǆƚĞĞŶƚŚ�ǇĞĂƌ�ƌƵŶŶŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ŚĂƐ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŚŽŶŽƌ�
ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�W�&Z�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĮƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϴ͘ 

 
�ĚĚŝƟŽŶĂůůǇ͕�ƚŚĞ�WƵďůŝĐ�WĞŶƐŝŽŶ��ŽŽƌĚŝŶĂƟŶŐ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�;ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝůͿ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ�^Ăŵ��Z��ǁŝƚŚ�
ŝƚƐ�WƵďůŝĐ�WĞŶƐŝŽŶ�^ƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ��ǁĂƌĚ�ĨŽƌ�ϮϬϭϴ͘��dŚŝƐ�ĂǁĂƌĚ�ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�^Ăŵ��Z��ŚĂƐ�ŵĞƚ�
ƉƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂů�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƉůĂŶ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟŽŶ�ĂƐ�ƐĞƚ�ĨŽƌƚŚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�WƵďůŝĐ�WĞŶƐŝŽŶ�
^ƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽƵŶĐŝů͘� � dŚĞ� ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ� ũƵĚŐĞ� ƌĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ� ŽŶ� ƚŚĞŝƌ� &ƵŶĚŝŶŐ�
�ĚĞƋƵĂĐǇ͕� �ŽŵƉƌĞŚĞŶƐŝǀĞ� �ĞŶĞĮƚ� WƌŽŐƌĂŵ͕� �ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů� sĂůƵĂƟŽŶ͕� /ŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ� �ƵĚŝƚ͕�
/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƟŽŶƐ͘��dŚĞ�ĂǁĂƌĚ�ŝƐ�ƌĞƉƌŽĚƵĐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƉĂŐĞ�ϮϬ͘ 

 
dŚĞƐĞ� ĂǁĂƌĚƐ� ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ƉƌĂĐƟĐĞ� ŽĨ� ŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ� ĮŶĂŶĐĞ͕�
ĞǆĞŵƉůŝĨǇŝŶŐ�ŽƵƚƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ�ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ͖�ŝŶ�ĚŽŝŶŐ�ƐŽ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĂǁĂƌĚƐ�ƐƚƌĞƐƐ�
ƉƌĂĐƟĐĂů͕�ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚĞĚ�ǁŽƌŬ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŽīĞƌƐ�ůĞĂĚĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶ͘��dŚĞ�ĐŽŵƉŝůĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
�ŽŵƉƌĞŚĞŶƐŝǀĞ��ŶŶƵĂů�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ZĞƉŽƌƚ͕�ŝŶ�Ă�ƟŵĞůǇ�ŵĂŶŶĞƌ͕�ƌĞŇĞĐƚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵďŝŶĞĚ�ĞīŽƌƚƐ�ŽĨ�
^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ� ĂŶĚ� ƐƚĂī� ƵŶĚĞƌ� ƚŚĞ� ůĞĂĚĞƌƐŚŝƉ͕� ĚĞĚŝĐĂƟŽŶ� ĂŶĚ� ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ�
�ŽĂƌĚ͘ 

 
�ĐŬŶŽǁůĞĚŐŵĞŶƚƐ 

/� Ăŵ� ƐŝŶĐĞƌĞůǇ� ŐƌĂƚĞĨƵů� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ͕� ^Ăŵ��Z�� ƐƚĂī� ĂŶĚ� ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚƐ� ǁŚŽ� ĂůǁĂǇƐ� ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵ�
ĚŝůŝŐĞŶƚůǇ� ƚŽ� ĞŶƐƵƌĞ� ƚŚĞ� ƐƵĐĐĞƐƐĨƵů� ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶ� ĂŶĚ� ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ƐŽƵŶĚŶĞƐƐ� ŽĨ� ^Ăŵ��Z�� ĂŶĚ� ĂƌĞ�
ĐŽŵŵŝƩĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŚŝŐŚĞƐƚ�ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ͘��/�Ăŵ�ĂůƐŽ�ĂƉƉƌĞĐŝĂƟǀĞ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ� ĐŽŶƟŶƵŝŶŐ� ĐŽŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶ� ĂŶĚ� ŽƉĞŶ� ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƟŽŶ� ƚŚĂƚ� ^Ăŵ��Z�� ŚĂƐ� ǁŝƚŚ� Ăůů� ŝƚƐ�
ƉĂƌƟĐŝƉĂƟŶŐ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ͘ 

�ĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŽƌ͛Ɛ�>ĞƩĞƌ�ŽĨ�dƌĂŶƐŵŝƩĂů 



18  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

�Ɛ�ǁĞ�ĐĞůĞďƌĂƚĞ�ŽƵƌ�ϳϱƚŚ�ĂŶŶŝǀĞƌƐĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ�ƚŽ�ŽƵƌ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ďĞŶĞĮĐŝĂƌŝĞƐ͕�ǁĞ�
ŵƵƐƚ�ĂĐŬŶŽǁůĞĚŐĞ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�^Ăŵ��Z��ǁŚŽ�ĐĂŵĞ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�ƵƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŚĂĚ�ƚŚĞ�ǀŝƐŝŽŶ͕�
ĐŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ͕� ĂŶĚ� ƉƌƵĚĞŶĐĞ� ƚŽ� ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚ� ĂŶĚ� ĞŶƐƵƌĞ� ƉůĂŶ� ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ� ĨŽƌ� ŽƵƌ� ƉĂƐƚ͕� ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ� ĂŶĚ�
ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ďĞŶĞĮĐŝĂƌŝĞƐ͘��tĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ƐŽůŝĚ�ĨŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶ�ƵƉŽŶ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁĞ�ǁŝůů�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞ�ƚŽ�
ďƵŝůĚ͘� � �ŶĚ� ĂůƚŚŽƵŐŚ� ŵƵĐŚ� ŚĂƐ� ďĞĞŶ� ĂĐĐŽŵƉůŝƐŚĞĚ� ŽǀĞƌ� ƚŚĞ� ƉĂƐƚ� ϳϱ� ǇĞĂƌƐ͕� ǁĞ� ǁŝůů� ƌĞŵĂŝŶ�
ĐŽŵŵŝƩĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ�ŽƵƌ�ŐŽĂůƐ�ŽĨ�ƉƌƵĚĞŶƚůǇ�ŵĂŶĂŐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵŶĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŚŝŐŚĞƐƚ�ůĞǀĞů�
ŽĨ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƚŽ�ŽƵƌ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ͕�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƚĂŬĞŚŽůĚĞƌƐ͘ 

 

ZĞƐƉĞĐƞƵůůǇ�ƐƵďŵŝƩĞĚ͕ 

 
 
 
^ĐŽƩ�,ŽŽĚ 
�ŚŝĞĨ��ǆĞĐƵƟǀĞ�KĸĐĞƌ� 

KĐƚŽďĞƌ�Ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

�ĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŽƌ͛Ɛ�>ĞƩĞƌ�ŽĨ�dƌĂŶƐŵŝƩĂů 



/ŶƚƌŽĚƵĐƚŽƌǇ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  19 

'&K����Ùã®¥®��ã��Ê¥���«®�ò�Ã�Äã 

'&K���ĞƌƟĮĐĂƚĞ�ŽĨ��ĐŚŝĞǀĞŵĞŶƚ 



20  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

WW���Wç�½®��W�ÄÝ®ÊÄ�^ã�Ä��Ù�Ý��ó�Ù� 

WW���WƵďůŝĐ�WĞŶƐŝŽŶ�^ƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ��ǁĂƌĚ 



/ŶƚƌŽĚƵĐƚŽƌǇ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  21 

^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�DŝƐƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�'ŽĂůƐ 

SAMCERA’s GOALS 

^Ăŵ��Z��ĞǆŝƐƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƐĞƌǀĞ�ĂƐ�Ă�ůŽǇĂů�
ĮĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�ĨŽƌ�ŝƚƐ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƐ�Ă�
ƉƌƵĚĞŶƚ�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŽƌ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ƌĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͘� 

· WƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ĐĂƌŝŶŐ͕�ĨĂŝƌ͕�ĂĐĐƵƌĂƚĞ͕�ƟŵĞůǇ�
ĂŶĚ�ŬŶŽǁůĞĚŐĞĂďůĞ�ƉƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂů�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�
ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƐƚĂŬĞŚŽůĚĞƌƐ͘� 

· WƌƵĚĞŶƚůǇ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ŝŶ�ŽƌĚĞƌ�
ƚŽ�ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞůǇ�ĨƵŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�
ůŝĂďŝůŝƟĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͕�ƚŽ�
ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ƉĂǇ�Ăůů�ĞĂƌŶĞĚ�
ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ�ǁŚŝůĞ�ŵŝŶŝŵŝǌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƐƚƐ�ƚŽ�
ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ͘� 

· �ŽŶƐƚĂŶƚůǇ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĞīĞĐƟǀĞŶĞƐƐ�
ŽĨ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�
ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ�ŽĨ�ŝƚƐ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶƐ͘� 

SAMCERA’s MISSION 



22  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŽĨ�ZĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ 

Board of  
RET IREMENT 

dŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ŵĂŶĂŐĞƐ� ƚŚĞ� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͛� ZĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ� &ƵŶĚ� ǁŚŝĐŚ� ŝƐ� ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚĞƌĞĚ� ŝŶ� ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�

ǁŝƚŚ� ƚŚĞ� ůĂǁ�ƐŽůĞůǇ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ�ďĞŶĞĮƚ�ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ� ƌĞƟƌĞĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ĂŶĚ�
ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ďĞŶĞĮĐŝĂƌŝĞƐ͘� 

 

dŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ͛Ɛ� ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďŝůŝƟĞƐ� ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ͗� ;ϭͿ� ƐĞƫŶŐ� ĂŶĚ� ĂĐƟŶŐ� ƵƉŽŶ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ŽďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ� ĂŶĚ�

ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĞƐ� ƚŽ� ĨƵŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ͖� ĂŶĚ� ;ϮͿ� ĂƉƉƌŽǀŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ� ďƵĚŐĞƚ͕� ƌĞŐƵůĂƟŽŶƐ͕� ƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐ� ĂŶĚ�

ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚĞƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽŵƉƚ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ͘ 

<hZd �,K�&�Z  
sŝĐĞ��ŚĂŝƌ 

�ƉƉŽŝŶƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�
ŽĨ�^ƵƉĞƌǀŝƐŽƌƐ 

EŝŶƚŚ�DĞŵďĞƌ 

�> ���s /�  
^ĞĐƌĞƚĂƌǇ 

�ůĞĐƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�'ĞŶĞƌĂů�
DĞŵďĞƌƐ 

dŚŝƌĚ�DĞŵďĞƌ 

^�E�/� ��ZEKdd  
�ŽĂƌĚ��ŚĂŝƌ 

�ǆ�KĸĐŝŽ�ƉĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ϭϵϯϳ��Đƚ 

&ŝƌƐƚ�DĞŵďĞƌ 



/ŶƚƌŽĚƵĐƚŽƌǇ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  23 

DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŽĨ�ZĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ 

ZK��Zd �Z�t  
�ŽĂƌĚ�DĞŵďĞƌ 

�ůĞĐƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�^ĂĨĞƚǇ�
DĞŵďĞƌƐ 

^ĞǀĞŶƚŚ�DĞŵďĞƌ 

<�d,�Z/E��K͛D�>>�z 
�ŽĂƌĚ�DĞŵďĞƌ 

�ůĞĐƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�'ĞŶĞƌĂů�DĞŵďĞƌƐ 

^ĞĐŽŶĚ�DĞŵďĞƌ 

�Z /� � d�^,D�E  
�ŽĂƌĚ�DĞŵďĞƌ 

�ƉƉŽŝŶƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŽĨ�
^ƵƉĞƌǀŝƐŽƌƐ 

&ŽƵƌƚŚ�DĞŵďĞƌ 

��E��/�d�:͘��Kt>�Z 
�ŽĂƌĚ�DĞŵďĞƌ 

�ƉƉŽŝŶƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŽĨ�
^ƵƉĞƌǀŝƐŽƌƐ 

&ŝŌŚ�DĞŵďĞƌ 

D�Z< ���dd�z  
�ŽĂƌĚ�DĞŵďĞƌ 

�ƉƉŽŝŶƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŽĨ�
^ƵƉĞƌǀŝƐŽƌƐ 

^ŝǆƚŚ�DĞŵďĞƌ 

W�h> �,��<>�D�E  
�ŽĂƌĚ�DĞŵďĞƌ 

�ůĞĐƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ZĞƟƌĞĚ�
DĞŵďĞƌƐ 

�ŝŐŚƚŚ�DĞŵďĞƌ 

�>D� �^�>�^  
�ŽĂƌĚ�DĞŵďĞƌ 

�ůĞĐƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ZĞƟƌĞĚ�
DĞŵďĞƌƐ 

ZĞƟƌĞĞ��ůƚĞƌŶĂƚĞ 

^h^�E �>��  
�ŽĂƌĚ�DĞŵďĞƌ 

�ůĞĐƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�^ĂĨĞƚǇ�
DĞŵďĞƌƐ 

^ĂĨĞƚǇ��ůƚĞƌŶĂƚĞ 



24  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

�ŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚ  

/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ��ŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚ 
sĞƌƵƐ��ĚǀŝƐŽƌǇ͕�/ŶĐ͘ 
DĂƌŐĂƌĞƚ�:ĂĚĂůůĂŚ 

DĞĚŝĐĂů��ĚǀŝƐŽƌ 
�ƌ͘�,ĞŶƌǇ��ƌŽĚŬŝŶ 

&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů��ƵĚŝƚ 
�ƌŽǁŶ��ƌŵƐƚƌŽŶŐ��ĐĐŽƵŶƚĂŶĐǇ�
�ŽƌƉŽƌĂƟŽŶ 
�ŶĚƌĞǁ�:͘�WĂƵůĚĞŶ 

�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ 
DŝůůŝŵĂŶ͕�/ŶĐ͘ 
EŝĐŬ��ŽůůŝĞƌ 

 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

LEGAL COUNSEL 

�ƌĞŶĚĂ��ĂƌůƐŽŶ 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

^ĐŽƩ�,ŽŽĚ 

CHIEF TECHNOLOGY OFFICER 

dĂƌŝƋ��ůŝ 

/E&KZD�d/KE�d��,͘��E�>z^d 
�ĂƌŝƵƐ�EĂŐĂů 

/E&KZD�d/KE�d��,͘��E�>z^d 
�ĚǁĂƌĚ�/ĐŬ 

CHIEF INVESTMENT OFFICER 

DŝĐŚĂĞů��ŽƵůƚƌŝƉ 

/Es�^dD�Ed��E�>z^d 
>ŝůŝďĞƚŚ��ĂŵĞƐ 

/Es�^dD�Ed��E�>z^d 
�ŽƌŝƐ�EŐ 

ASSISTANT EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

'ůĂĚǇƐ�^ŵŝƚŚ 

RETIREMENT BENEFITS MANAGER 
�ůŝǌĂďĞƚŚ�>ĞEŐƵǇĞŶ 

FINANCE OFFICER 
dĂƚ->ŝŶŐ��ŚŽǁ 

^�E/KZ�Z�d/Z�D�Ed��E�>z^d 
�ĞůĞĚŽŶŝĂ��ŵĂĐŬĞƌ 

^�E/KZ�Z�d/Z�D�Ed��E�>z^d 
:ƵůŝĞ�ŶŶĞ�EĂŐĂů 

Z�d/Z�D�Ed��E�>z^d 
:ĂŶĞƚ�EŝƐŚŝŵƵƌĂ 

Z�d/Z�D�Ed��E�>z^d 
^ƚĂĐǇ�'ƌŽǌĂ-�ĂǀŝƐ 

Z�d/Z�D�Ed�^hWWKZd�^W��͘ 
ZƵďǇ��ŶŶ��ŽǇĞƩĞ 

Z�d/Z�D�Ed�^hWWKZd�^W��͘ 
�ƐƚŚĞƌ��ĂƌŶĞƩ 

^�E/KZ����KhEd�Ed 
�ŚĞǌĞůůĞ�DŝůĂŶ 

���KhEd�Ed 
^ƵƐĂŶ�&ŽŶŐ 

^�E/KZ����KhEd�Ed 
<ĂŵŵǇ�sŽŶŐ 

���KhEd�Ed 
,ŽůůŝĞ�^ŽŶŐ-�ƵĞůů 

�y��hd/s��^��Z�d�Zz 
�ŶŶĞ�dƌƵũŝůůŽ 

�KDDhE/��d/KE^�^W��/�>/^d 
EĂƚĂƐŚĂ�:ĞŽŶŐ 

^ƚĂĨĨ  

<�z 

KƌŐĂŶŝǌĂƟŽŶĂů��ŚĂƌƚ 

^ĞĞ�ƉĂŐĞ�ϭϬϱ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ�
WƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂů�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�&ĞĞƐ�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�
ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽƉ�ďƌŽŬĞƌĂŐĞ�ĮƌŵƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƚŽ�^Ăŵ��Z�͘ 

^ĂŶĚŝĞ��ƌŶŽƩ͕��ŚĂŝƌ͖�<Ƶƌƚ�,ŽĞĨĞƌ͕�
sŝĐĞ��ŚĂŝƌ͖��ů��ĂǀŝĚ͕�^ĞĐƌĞƚĂƌǇ͖�

<ĂƚŚĞƌŝŶĞ�K͛DĂůůĞǇ͕��ƌŝĐ�dĂƐŚŵĂŶ͕�
�ĞŶ��ŽǁůĞƌ͕�DĂƌŬ��ĂƩĞǇ͕�ZŽďĞƌƚ�

ZĂǁ͕�ĂŶĚ�WĂƵů�,ĂĐŬůĞŵĂŶ 

ALTERNATE TRUSTEES 
^ƵƐĂŶ�>ĞĞ�ĂŶĚ��ůŵĂ�^ĂůĂƐ 



/ŶƚƌŽĚƵĐƚŽƌǇ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  25 

>ŝƐƚ�ŽĨ�WƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂů��ŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚƐ�;KƚŚĞƌ�dŚĂŶ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�WƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂůƐͿ 

 

>®Ýã�Ê¥�ÖÙÊ¥�ÝÝ®ÊÄ�½��ÊÄÝç½ã�ÄãÝ 

;KƚŚĞƌ�dŚĂŶ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�WƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂůƐͿ 

WƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂů�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ �ŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚ 
      
�ƵĚŝƚŽƌƐ �ƌŽǁŶ��ƌŵƐƚƌŽŶŐ��ĐĐŽƵŶƟŶŐ��ŽƌƉŽƌĂƟŽŶ 
      
�ŽŶƐƵůƟŶŐ��ĐƚƵĂƌǇ� DŝůůŝŵĂŶ͕�/ŶĐ͘ 
      
�ŽŵŵĞƌĐŝĂů��ĂŶŬŝŶŐ hŶŝŽŶ��ĂŶŬ 
      
�ƵƐƚŽĚŝĂŶ� EŽƌƚŚĞƌŶ�dƌƵƐƚ��ŽƌƉŽƌĂƟŽŶ 
      
�ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ��ŽƵŶƐĞů �ǇĞƌƐͬZŝĐŚĂƌĚƐŽŶ 
  
/ŶĚŝĂ�dĂǆ��ŐĞŶƚ �^Z�Θ��Ž͘�>>W 
      
/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ��ŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚ� sĞƌƵƐ��ĚǀŝƐŽƌǇ͕�/ŶĐ͘ 
  
/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�^ŽŌǁĂƌĞ�^ƵƉƉŽƌƚ ĞsĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ��ůůŝĂŶĐĞ͕�>>� 
  
>ŝƟŐĂƟŽŶ�^ĞĐƵƌŝƟĞƐ��ůĂƐƐ��ĐƟŽŶ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ /^^�'ŽǀĞƌŶĂŶĐĞ 
  
WĞŶƐŝŽŶ��ĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟŽŶ�^ŽŌǁĂƌĞ�^ǇƐƚĞŵ� sŝƚĞĐŚ 
      
^ĞĐƵƌŝƚǇ�DŽŶŝƚŽƌŝŶŐ��ŽƵŶƐĞů �ĞƌŵĂŶ�dĂďĂĐĐŽ 
    �ĞƌŶƐƚĞŝŶ�>ŝƚŽǁŝƚǌ��ĞƌŐĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�'ƌŽƐƐŵĂŶ�>>W 
    'ƌĂŶƚ�ĂŶĚ��ůƐĞŶŚŽĨĞƌ�>>W 
      
dĂŝǁĂŶ�dĂǆ��ŐĞŶƚ  &ĂŝƚŚ�'ůŽďĂů��ŽŵƉĂŶǇ͕�>ŝŵŝƚĞĚ 
   
dĂǆ��ŽƵŶƐĞů  ZĞĞĚ�^ŵŝƚŚ�>>W 
   
dƌĂĚĞ��ŽƐƚ��ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ��ŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚ  �E��ĞŶŽ��ŽŶƐƵůƟŶŐ 
   



 

 

dŚŝƐ�ƉĂŐĞ�ŝƐ�ŝŶƚĞŶƟŽŶĂůůǇ�ůĞŌ�ďůĂŶŬ͘ 



FINANCIAL  

SECTION 

FINANCIAL  

SECTION 



 

 



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  29 

/ŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ��ƵĚŝƚŽƌ͛Ɛ�ZĞƉŽƌƚ 



30  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

/ŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ��ƵĚŝƚŽƌ͛Ɛ�ZĞƉŽƌƚ 



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  31 

/ŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ��ƵĚŝƚŽƌ͛Ɛ�ZĞƉŽƌƚ 



32  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

D�Ä�¦�Ã�Äã͛Ý��®Ý�çÝÝ®ÊÄ��Ä���Ä�½ùÝ®Ý�¥ÊÙ�&®Ý��½�z��Ù�ϮϬϭϴ-ϭϵ 
 
dŚŝƐ� ƐĞĐƚŝŽŶ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ^ĂŶ� DĂƚĞŽ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ� �ŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͛� ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ� �ƐƐŽĐŝĂƚŝŽŶ͛Ɛ� ;^Ăŵ��Z�Ϳ�
�ŽŵƉƌĞŚĞŶƐŝǀĞ��ŶŶƵĂů�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ZĞƉŽƌƚ�;��&ZͿ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ�Ă�ŶĂƌƌĂƚŝǀĞ�ŽǀĞƌǀŝĞǁ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŶĂůǇƐŝƐ�ŽĨ�
^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ĂĐƚŝǀŝƚŝĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͘�tĞ�ĞŶĐŽƵƌĂŐĞ�ƌĞĂĚĞƌƐ�
ƚŽ�ƌĞĂĚ�ƚŚĞ� ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ�ŚĞƌĞ͕� ŝŶ�ĐŽŶũƵŶĐƚŝŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�
^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ďĞŐŝŶŶŝŶŐ�ŽŶ�ƉĂŐĞ�ϰϯ͘ 
  
&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�,ŝŐŚůŝŐŚƚƐ 
 
· �Ɛ�ŽĨ� :ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ŶĞƚ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ� ;ƚŽƚĂů� ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ŵŝŶƵƐ� ƚŽƚĂů� ůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐͿ� ƌĞĂĐŚĞĚ�

Ψϰ͘ϳ�ďŝůůŝŽŶ͕�ĂŶ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŽĨ�Ψϯϰϵ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ͕�Žƌ�ϴй͕�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ůĂƐƚ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ͘�dŚŝƐ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ŝƐ�
ĞǆĐůƵƐŝǀĞůǇ�ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ŵĞĞƚŝŶŐ�ŽŶŐŽŝŶŐ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�ŽďůŝŐĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ƉůĂŶ�ƉĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�
ďĞŶĞĨŝĐŝĂƌŝĞƐ͘ 

 
· dŽƚĂů�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�&ƵŶĚ�ǁĞƌĞ�Ψϱϴϱ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ͕�ĂŶ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŽĨ�ϲй�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŝŽƌ�

ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ͘�dŚĞ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ǁĂƐ�ƉƌŝŵĂƌŝůǇ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ͘ 
 
· /ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŝŶĐŽŵĞ�ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ƐůŝŐŚƚůǇ�ďǇ�Ψϴ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ͕�Žƌ�ϯй͘�dŚĞ�ŶĞƚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�

ƐůŝƉƉĞĚ�ƐůŝŐŚƚůǇ�ĨƌŽŵ�ϲ͘ϳй�ůĂƐƚ�ǇĞĂƌ�ƚŽ�ϱ͘ϰй�ƚŚŝƐ�ǇĞĂƌ͕�ŵĂŝŶůǇ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ůŽǁĞƌ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐ�ŝŶ�ĐĞƌƚĂŝŶ�
ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ͘ 

 
· �ŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ďǇ�Ψϭϱ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ͕�Žƌ�ϴй͕�ƉƌŝŵĂƌŝůǇ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�Ă�ϭ͘ϱϱй�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�

ŝŶ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ϯ͘ϱй�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�ĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ�ƉĂǇƌŽůů͘� 
 
· dŽ�ĂĐĐĞůĞƌĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂǇ�ĚŽǁŶ�ŽĨ�ŝƚƐ�ƵŶĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ͕�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�ŽĨ�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�

ŝƚƐ�ƐƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ďǇ�ΨϮϯ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ͕�Žƌ�ϴϯй͕�ŝŶ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ϮϬϭϵ͘� 
 
· dŽƚĂů�ĚĞĚƵĐƚŝŽŶƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�&ƵŶĚ�ǁĞƌĞ�ΨϮϯϲ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ͕�ĂŶ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ��ŽĨ��ϵй�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�

ƉƌŝŽƌ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ͕�ƚƌŝŐŐĞƌĞĚ�ŵĂŝŶůǇ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ĐŽƐƚ�ŽĨ�ůŝǀŝŶŐ�ĂĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�
ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞĞƐ͘ 

 
· �ĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŝǀĞ� ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ� ƐůŝŐŚƚůǇ� ďǇ� ϰй� ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ� ƚŽ� Ă� ǇĞĂƌ� ĂŐŽ͘� WƌƵĚĞŶƚ�

ƐƉĞŶĚŝŶŐ�ŚĂďŝƚƐ�ĐŽŶƚŝŶƵĞ�ƚŽ�ŬĞĞƉ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ĐŚĞĐŬ�ĂŶĚ�ďĞůŽǁ�ďƵĚŐĞƚ͘ 
 
· �ƚ� :ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕� ƚŚĞ�ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ƌĂƚŝŽ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�&ƵŶĚ�ǁĂƐ�ϴϱ͘ϴй͕�Ă�ϭ͘ϳй�ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞ�

ĨƌŽŵ� ƚŚĞ� ƉƌŝŽƌ� ǇĞĂƌ͘� dŚĞ� ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞ� ǁĂƐ� ŵĂŝŶůǇ� ĨƵĞůĞĚ� ďǇ� ƚŚĞ� ĐŚĂŶŐĞ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�
ƌĞƚƵƌŶ� ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶ� ĨƌŽŵ� ϲ͘ϳϱй� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ϮϬϭϴ� ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ� ƚŽ� ϲ͘ϱϬй� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ϮϬϭϵ� ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ͕�
ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĐĂƵƐĞĚ�Ă�Ψϭϳϰ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�ƵŶĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ͘ 

 
· ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ƉƌŝŵĞ�ŽďũĞĐƚŝǀĞ� ŝƐ� ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƚ� ůŽŶŐ-ƚĞƌŵ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ� ŽďůŝŐĂƚŝŽŶƐ� ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�

ŝŶĐŽŵĞ� ĂŶĚ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ͘� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ� ŚĂƐ� ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞĚ� ŽǀĞƌ� ƚŚĞ� ǇĞĂƌ� ĂƐ�
^Ăŵ��Z��ĐŽŶƚŝŶƵĞƐ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ƐŽƵŶĚŶĞƐƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�&ƵŶĚ͘ 

DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ͛Ɛ��ŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ 



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  33 

KǀĞƌǀŝĞǁ�ŽĨ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

dŚĞ� ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ� ĚŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶ� ĂŶĚ� ĂŶĂůǇƐŝƐ� ƐĞƌǀĞ� ĂƐ� ĂŶ� ŝŶƚƌŽĚƵĐƚŝŽŶ� ĂŶĚ� ŽǀĞƌǀŝĞǁ� ŽĨ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�
ďĂƐŝĐ� ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘� dŚĞ� ďĂƐŝĐ� ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ� ĂŶĚ� ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ� ĚŝƐĐůŽƐƵƌĞƐ� ĂƌĞ�
ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚŝŶŐ�ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ�ƉƌĞƐĐƌŝďĞĚ�ďǇ�
ƚŚĞ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚĂů��ĐĐŽƵŶƚŝŶŐ�^ƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ��ŽĂƌĚ�;'�^�Ϳ͘�� 
 
�ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

dŚĞ� ďĂƐŝĐ� ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ� ĂƌĞ� ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞĚ� ƵƐŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ� ĂĐĐƌƵĂů� ďĂƐŝƐ� ŽĨ� ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚŝŶŐ͕� ǁŚŝĐŚ� ŝƐ�
ƐŝŵŝůĂƌ�ƚŽ�ŵŽƐƚ�ƉƌŝǀĂƚĞ-ƐĞĐƚŽƌ�ĞŶƚŝƚŝĞƐ͘� 
 
dŚĞ�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�&ŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�EĞƚ�WŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ� ŝƐ�Ă�ƐŶĂƉƐŚŽƚ�ŽĨ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ďĂůĂŶĐĞƐ�Ăƚ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ-ĞŶĚ͘�
dŚŝƐ�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ĚŝƐĐůŽƐĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�
ďĞŶĞĨŝĐŝĂƌŝĞƐ� ĂƐ� ǁĞůů� ĂƐ� ŽƵƚƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ� ůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ� ĂƐ� ŽĨ� :ƵŶĞ� ϯϬ͕� ϮϬϭϵ͘� dŚĞ� ĚŝĨĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ� ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�
ĂƐƐĞƚƐ� ĂŶĚ� ůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ� ŝƐ� ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ� ĂƐ� ͞EĞƚ� WŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ� ZĞƐƚƌŝĐƚĞĚ� ĨŽƌ� WĞŶƐŝŽŶƐ͕͟�ǁŚŝĐŚ� ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚƐ�
ĨƵŶĚƐ� ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ� ƚŽ�ƉĂǇ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ� ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ͘�KǀĞƌ� ƚŝŵĞ͕� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞƐ� ĂŶĚ� ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞƐ� ŝŶ�EĞƚ� WŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�
ZĞƐƚƌŝĐƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�WĞŶƐŝŽŶƐ�ŵĂǇ�ƐĞƌǀĞ�ĂƐ�ĂŶ� ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌ�ŽĨ�ǁŚĞƚŚĞƌ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ŝƐ�
ŝŵƉƌŽǀŝŶŐ�Žƌ�ĚĞĐůŝŶŝŶŐ͘�dŚŝƐ�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ĨŽƵŶĚ�ŽŶ�ƉĂŐĞ�ϰϭ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͘ 
 
dŚĞ� ^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ��ŚĂŶŐĞƐ� ŝŶ�&ŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�EĞƚ�WŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ� ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�
ĂĐƚŝǀŝƚŝĞƐ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�Žƌ�ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�EĞƚ�WŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ZĞƐƚƌŝĐƚĞĚ�
ĨŽƌ� WĞŶƐŝŽŶƐ͘� DĞŵďĞƌ� ĂŶĚ� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ� ĂƌĞ� ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞĚ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ƉĞƌŝŽĚ� ŝŶ� ǁŚŝĐŚ�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ� ĂƌĞ� ĚƵĞ� ƉƵƌƐƵĂŶƚ� ƚŽ� ůĞŐĂů� ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘� �ĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ� ĂŶĚ� ƌĞĨƵŶĚƐ� ĂƌĞ� ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞĚ�
ǁŚĞŶ�ĚƵĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƉĂǇĂďůĞ�ŝŶ�ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƉůĂŶ�ƚĞƌŵƐ͘�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŝŶĐŽŵĞ�ŝƐ�ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞĚ�ǁŚĞŶ�
ĞĂƌŶĞĚ͕�ĂŶĚ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞĚ�ǁŚĞŶ�ŝŶĐƵƌƌĞĚ͘�dŚĞ�ŶĞƚ�ĂƉƉƌĞĐŝĂƚŝŽŶ�;Žƌ�ĚĞƉƌĞĐŝĂƚŝŽŶͿ�ŝŶ�
ƚŚĞ�ĨĂŝƌ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ŝƐ�ƌĞĐŽƌĚĞĚ�ĂƐ�ĂŶ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�;Žƌ�Ă�ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞͿ�ƚŽ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŝŶĐŽŵĞ͕�
ǁŚŝĐŚ� ŝŶĐůƵĚĞƐ� ďŽƚŚ� ƌĞĂůŝǌĞĚ� ĂŶĚ� ƵŶƌĞĂůŝǌĞĚ� ŐĂŝŶƐ� ĂŶĚ� ůŽƐƐĞƐ� ŽŶ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ� ďĂƐĞĚ� ƵƉŽŶ�
ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶƐ͘�dŚŝƐ�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ĨŽƵŶĚ�ŽŶ�ƉĂŐĞ�ϰϮ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͘ 
 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂŶ�ŝŶƚĞŐƌĂů�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ďĂƐŝĐ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ�
ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�ĞƐƐĞŶƚŝĂů�ƚŽ�ŽďƚĂŝŶ�Ă�ƚŚŽƌŽƵŐŚ�ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ĚĂƚĂ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ďĂƐŝĐ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘�dŚĞ�ŶŽƚĞƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ĚĞƚĂŝůĞĚ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�
ŬĞǇ�ƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĐƚŝǀŝƚŝĞƐ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͘�EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ�
ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ĨŽƵŶĚ�ŽŶ�ƉĂŐĞƐ�ϰϯ-ϳϯ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͘ 
 
ZĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƌǇ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ 

ZĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƌǇ� /ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚƐ� ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�'�^��ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞƐ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐŽŵƉĂŶǇ�
ƚŚĞ�ďĂƐŝĐ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘�^ƵĐŚ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ŝƐ�ĂŶ�ĞƐƐĞŶƚŝĂů�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƌĞƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�
ƉůĂĐŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ�ďĂƐŝĐ� ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ� ŝŶ� ĂŶ� ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŽŶĂů͕� ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ͕� Žƌ� ŚŝƐƚŽƌŝĐĂů�
ĐŽŶƚĞǆƚ͘� /Ŷ� ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ�DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ͛Ɛ��ŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶ� ĂŶĚ��ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ͕� ZĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ� ^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƌǇ�
/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞƐ�ĚŝƐĐƵƐƐĞĚ�ďĞůŽǁ�ĂŶĚ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ĨŽƵŶĚ�ŽŶ�ƉĂŐĞƐ�ϳϰ-ϳϴ͘ 

DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ͛Ɛ��ŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ 



34  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

· ^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ��ŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�EĞƚ�WĞŶƐŝŽŶ�>ŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ZĞůĂƚĞĚ�ZĂƚŝŽƐ�ŽĨ�WĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂƚŝŶŐ��ŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ�
–��ĚŝƐƉůĂǇƐ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ŶĞƚ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ƉĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂƚŝŶŐ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ͘ 

· ^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ� ŽĨ� �ŵƉůŽǇĞƌ� �ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ� –� ŚĞůƉƐ� ƌĞĂĚĞƌƐ� ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ� ŝĨ� ƉůĂŶ� ƐƉŽŶƐŽƌƐ� ĂƌĞ�
ŵĞĞƚŝŶŐ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂůůǇ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ŽǀĞƌ�Ă�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ŽĨ�ƚŝŵĞ͘ 

· ^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ� /ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ZĞƚƵƌŶƐ�–� ƐŚŽǁƐ� ƚŚĞ� ĂŶŶƵĂů� ͞ƚŝŵĞ-ǁĞŝŐŚƚĞĚ� ƌĂƚĞ�ŽĨ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ͟� ĂŶĚ�
ƚŚĞ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�͞ŵŽŶĞǇ-ǁĞŝŐŚƚĞĚ�ƌĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ͟�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƉŽƌƚĨŽůŝŽ  ͘

· EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ZĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƌǇ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�–�ĚŝƐĐůŽƐĞ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�ĚĞƚĂŝůƐ�ŝŶ�ƌĞůĂƚŝŽŶ�
ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ƐƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƌǇ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ͘ 

 
^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƌǇ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ 
^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƌǇ� /ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ� ŝŶĐůƵĚĞƐ� ƐĞǀĞƌĂů� ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞƐ� ĚĞƚĂŝůŝŶŐ� ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŝǀĞ͕� ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�
ƚĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ� ĂŶĚ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ͕� ĂƐ� ǁĞůů� ĂƐ� ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ� ƚŽ� ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚƐ� ;ĨŽƌ� ĨĞĞƐ� ƉĂŝĚ� ƚŽ�
ŽƵƚƐŝĚĞ� ƉƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂůƐ� ŽƚŚĞƌ� ƚŚĂŶ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ĂĚǀŝƐŽƌƐͿ͘� ^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƌǇ� /ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ�
ĂĐĐŽŵƉĂŶǇŝŶŐ�ŶŽƚĞƐ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ĨŽƵŶĚ�ŽŶ�ƉĂŐĞƐ�ϳϵ-ϴϭ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͘ 
 
KƚŚĞƌ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ 

KƚŚĞƌ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚǁŽ�ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞƐ�ƉĞƌƚĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�'�^��^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�EŽ͘�ϲϴ͕��ĐĐŽƵŶƚŝŶŐ�
ĂŶĚ� &ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ZĞƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ� ĨŽƌ� WĞŶƐŝŽŶƐ�–� ĂŶ� �ŵĞŶĚŵĞŶƚ� ŽĨ� '�^�� ^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�EŽ͘� Ϯϳ͘� dŚĞ� ƚǁŽ�
ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ƚŚĞ�^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ��ŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�WĞŶƐŝŽŶ��ŵŽƵŶƚƐ��ůůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ďǇ��ŽƐƚ�^ŚĂƌŝŶŐ�WůĂŶ�
ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ��ŽƐƚ�^ŚĂƌŝŶŐ��ŵƉůŽǇĞƌ��ůůŽĐĂƚŝŽŶƐ͘�hŶĚĞƌ�'�^��^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�EŽ͘�ϲϴ͕�ƉůĂŶ�
ƐƉŽŶƐŽƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�EĞƚ�WĞŶƐŝŽŶ�>ŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ďĂůĂŶĐĞ�ƐŚĞĞƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ� ŝŶ�
EĞƚ�WĞŶƐŝŽŶ�>ŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŶŐ�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂƐ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ͕�ĚĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ� ŝŶĨůŽǁƐ�ŽĨ�
ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ŽƵƚĨůŽǁƐ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ͘�KƚŚĞƌ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ĨŽƵŶĚ�ŽŶ�ƉĂŐĞƐ�ϴϮ-
ϴϰ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͘ 
 
&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů��ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ 

/ŶĐƌĞĂƐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ĨŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�ŶĞƚ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŝŵĞ�ŵĂǇ�ƐĞƌǀĞ�ĂƐ�Ă�ƵƐĞĨƵů�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌ�ŽĨ�
ǁŚĞƚŚĞƌ� ƚŚĞ� ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ŚĞĂůƚŚ� ŽĨ� ^Ăŵ��Z�� ŝƐ� ŝŵƉƌŽǀŝŶŐ� Žƌ� ĚĞĐůŝŶŝŶŐ͘� KƚŚĞƌ� ĨĂĐƚŽƌƐ͕� ƐƵĐŚ� ĂƐ�
ŵĂƌŬĞƚ� ĐŽŶĚŝƚŝŽŶƐ͕� ƐŚŽƵůĚ� ďĞ� ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ� ƐŝŵƵůƚĂŶĞŽƵƐůǇ� ŝŶ� ŵĞĂƐƵƌŝŶŐ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ŽǀĞƌĂůů�
ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ͘� 

 
�ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ�ŽĨ�&ŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�EĞƚ�WŽƐŝƟŽŶ 

dŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ƚĂďůĞ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞƐ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ŶĞƚ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ĂƐ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŝŽƌ�
ĨŝƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌƐ͘� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ŶĞƚ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ� ĂƐ�ŽĨ� :ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕�ǁĂƐ� ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇ�Ψϰ͘ϳ�ďŝůůŝŽŶ͕� ĂŶ�
ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŽĨ�Ψϯϰϵ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ͕�Žƌ�ϴй͕�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͘� 
 
 
 

DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ͛Ɛ��ŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ 



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  35 

�ƐƐĞƚƐ͘�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ƚŽƚĂů�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ďǇ�ΨϯϱϮ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ͕�Žƌ�ϴй͘�^ŝŐŶŝĨŝĐĂŶƚ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�
ǇĞĂƌ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ͗ 
 
· ΨϮϬ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ�ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞ� ŝŶ�ĐĂƐŚ�ĂŶĚ�ĐĂƐŚ�ĞƋƵŝǀĂůĞŶƚƐ͘��ĞĨŽƌĞ� ƚŚĞ�ĮƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ� :ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�

ϮϬϭϵ͕�^Ăŵ��Z��ƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ŵŽƐƚ�ŽĨ� ŝƚƐ�ĐĂƐŚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�ƐƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ�
ƚŽ� ĨƵŶĚ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ͘� /Ŷ� ĐŽŶƚƌĂƐƚ͕� ůĂƐƚ� ĮƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ-ĞŶĚ͕� ƚŚĞ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ� ƐƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŬĞƉƚ�ŝŶ�ĐĂƐŚ�ĨŽƌ�ƉůĂŶŶĞĚ�ŶĞǁ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞƐ͘ 

· Ψϯϱ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ� ŝŶ� ĐĂƐŚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ� ŽǀĞƌůĂǇ͘� dŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ŽĨ� ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ;ƚŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚͿ�
ĂƉƉƌŽǀĞĚ� Ă� ϱϬй� ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ� ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂƚŝŽŶĂů� ĞƋƵŝƚǇ� ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ-ŚĞĚŐŝŶŐ� ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ� ŝŶ� ϮϬϭϵ͘� dŚŝƐ�
ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ƐĞƌǀĞƐ�ĂƐ�Ă�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚ�ĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ�ĂŶƚŝĐŝƉĂƚĞĚ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ�ĞǆĐŚĂŶŐĞ�
ƌĂƚĞƐ͘��ďŽƵƚ�ΨϮϴ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ�ǁĂƐ�ƉůĂĐĞĚ�ŝŶƚŽ�Ă�ŶĞǁůǇ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĞĚ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ�ŽǀĞƌůĂǇ�ƚŽ�ĚĂŵƉĞŶ�
ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ� ǀŽůĂƚŝůŝƚǇ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ƉŽƌƚĨŽůŝŽ͘� /Ŷ� ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶ͕� ƐƚĂĨĨ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ� ƚŚĞ� ĐĂƐŚ�
ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ĐĂƐŚ�ŽǀĞƌůĂǇ�ďǇ�Ψϳ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƚ�ĨŽƌĞƐĞĞĂďůĞ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŽŶĂů�ŶĞĞĚƐ͘ 

· Ψϰ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĂďůĞƐ͘�KƵƚƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĂďůĞƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĂďůǇ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�
ůĂƐƚ�ǇĞĂƌ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŝŵŝŶŐ�ĚŝĨĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƚƌĂĚĞ�ĚĂƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƚƚůĞŵĞŶƚ�ĚĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�
ĐĞƌƚĂŝŶ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ƐŽůĚ͘ 

· Ψϯϯϲ� ŵŝůůŝŽŶ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ� ŝŶ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ͘� ^Ăŵ��Z�� ĐŽŶƚŝŶƵĞĚ� ŝƚƐ� ĞĨĨŽƌƚƐ� ƚŽ� ďƵŝůĚ� ŽƵƚ� ĂŶ�
ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�ŝŶ�ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŝƚƐ�ŶĞǁ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ĂůůŽĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ͘��EĞǁ�ĐĂƉŝƚĂů�ǁĂƐ�
ƉůĂĐĞĚ�ŝŶ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ǀĞŚŝĐůĞƐ͘�DĂƌŬĞƚ�ĂƉƉƌĞĐŝĂƚŝŽŶ�ǁĂƐ�ĂŶŽƚŚĞƌ�ŬĞǇ�ĨĂĐƚŽƌ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�
ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ͘ 

^ã�ã�Ã�Äã�Ê¥�&®�ç�®�Ùù�E�ã�WÊÝ®ã®ÊÄ 

:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ�;�ŽůůĂƌƐ�/Ŷ�dŚŽƵƐĂŶĚƐͿ 

DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ͛Ɛ��ŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ 

2019 2018 Amount Percentage

Cash and cash equivalents  $        33,102  $        53,125  $      (20,023) -38%
Cash management overlay            48,012            12,984            35,028 270%
Securities lending cash collateral                  403              1,486             (1,083) -73%
Receivables            23,341            19,611              3,730 19%
Prepaid expense                    12                      8                      4 50%
Investments at fair value      4,625,276      4,289,745          335,531 8%
Capital assets, net              5,979              6,804                (825) -12%
           Total assets      4,736,125      4,383,763          352,362 8%

Investment management fees payable              2,213              1,663                  550 33%
Due to broker for investments purchased              9,061              5,408              3,653 68%
Collateral payable for securities lending                  406              1,489             (1,083) -73%
Other              1,335              1,241                    94 8%
           Total liabilities            13,015              9,801              3,214 33%

 $  4,723,110  $  4,373,962  $     349,148 8%Net position restricted for pensions

Increase (Decrease)

Assets

Liabilities



36  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

>ŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ͘� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ƚŽƚĂů� ůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ� ďǇ� Ψϯ� ŵŝůůŝŽŶ͕� Žƌ� ϯϯй͘� dŚĞ� ƚŽƚĂů� ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�
ƉĂǇĂďůĞ� ƚŽ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ďƌŽŬĞƌƐ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ďǇ�Ψϰ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ� ĂƐ�ŵŽƐƚ�ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞ�
ƚƌĂŶƐĂĐƚŝŽŶƐ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ-ĞŶĚ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƐĞƚƚůĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƉĐŽŵŝŶŐ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ͘� 
 
�ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ�ŽĨ��ŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�&ŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�EĞƚ�WŽƐŝƟŽŶ 

dŚĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ĨŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�ŶĞƚ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ĂƌĞ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŽƚĂů�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶƐ�ůĞƐƐ�ƚŽƚĂů�ĚĞĚƵĐƚŝŽŶƐ͘�
dŚĞ�ƚĂďůĞ�ďĞůŽǁ�ƐŚŽǁƐ�ĐŽŶĚĞŶƐĞĚ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ƚŽƚĂů�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶƐ�ƚŽ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽƚĂů�ĚĞĚƵĐƚŝŽŶƐ�
ĨƌŽŵ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�ŶĞƚ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ͘�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ĨŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�ŶĞƚ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ďǇ�Ψϯϰϵ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ͕�
Žƌ�ϴй͕�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͘�� 
 

 
�ĚĚŝƚŝŽŶƐ͘� dŽƚĂů� ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶƐ� ƚŽ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ŶĞƚ� ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ� ďǇ� Ψϯϯ� ŵŝůůŝŽŶ͕� Žƌ� ϲй͕��
ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ůĂƐƚ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ͘��^ŝŐŶŝĨŝĐĂŶƚ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ͗ 

^ã�ã�Ã�Äã�Ê¥��«�Ä¦�Ý�®Ä�&®�ç�®�Ùù�E�ã�WÊÝ®ã®ÊÄ 

&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�&ŝƐĐĂů�zĞĂƌ��ŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ�;�ŽůůĂƌƐ�/Ŷ�dŚŽƵƐĂŶĚƐͿ 

DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ͛Ɛ��ŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ 

2019 2018 Amount Percentage

Employer contributions  $     194,830  $     179,627  $        15,203 8%
Employer supplemental contributions            50,668            27,630            23,038 83%
Member contributions            67,696            64,204              3,492 5%
Net investment income          271,592          280,076             (8,484) -3%
Net securities lending income                    66                    43                    23 53%
Other                    33                    27                      6 22%
     Total additions          584,885          551,607            33,278 6%

Service retirement benefits          196,874          179,880            16,994 9%
Disability retirement benefits            25,212            23,872              1,340 6%
Survivor, death and other benefits              1,528                  976                  552 57%
Member refunds              3,571              4,326                (755) -17%
Administrative expenses              6,057              5,849                  208 4%
Information technology expenses              2,495              1,444              1,051 73%
     Total deductions          235,737          216,347            19,390 9%

           Changes in net position          349,148          335,260            13,888 4%

Beginning of year      4,373,962      4,038,702          335,260 8%
End of year  $  4,723,110  $  4,373,962  $     349,148 8%

Deductions

Net position restricted for pensions

Additions

Increase (Decrease)



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  37 

· Ψϭϱ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ� ŝŶ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ͘�dŚĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞ�
ĨŽƌ�Ăůů�ƉůĂŶƐ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ďǇ�ϭ͘ϱϱй͕�ĨƌŽŵ�ϯϯ͘ϳϲй�ĨŽƌ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ϮϬϭϳ-ϭϴ�ƚŽ�ϯϱ͘ϯϭй�ĨŽƌ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�
ǇĞĂƌ�ϮϬϭϴ-ϭϵ͘�dŚĞ�ŬĞǇ�ĚƌŝǀĞƌƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ŶĞŐŽƚŝĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƉĂǇƌŽůů�ĂŶĚ�
ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ�ďǇ�ůŽǁĞƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�ϳ͘ϬϬй�
ƚŽ�ϲ͘ϳϱй�ĂŶĚ�ĂĚŽƉƚŝŶŐ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂƚŝŽŶĂů�ŵŽƌƚĂůŝƚǇ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ͘ 

 
· ΨϮϯ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ� ŝŶ� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ� ƐƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ͘� dŚĞ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ� ŽĨ� ^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ�

;ƚŚĞ� �ŽƵŶƚǇͿ� ĞƐĐĂůĂƚĞĚ� ŝƚƐ� ĞĨĨŽƌƚƐ� ƚŽ� ƉĂǇ� ŽĨĨ� ŝƚƐ� ƵŶĨƵŶĚĞĚ� ůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ� ďǇ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ�
ƐƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ΨϮϴ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ�ůĂƐƚ�ǇĞĂƌ�ƚŽ�Ψϱϭ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ǇĞĂƌ͘ 

 
· Ψϴ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ� ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞ� ŝŶ� ŶĞƚ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ŝŶĐŽŵĞ͘� dŚĞ� ŶĞƚ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ� ĨƌŽŵ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ƐůŝƉƉĞĚ�

ĨƌŽŵ�ϲ͘ϳй�ůĂƐƚ�ǇĞĂƌ�ƚŽ�ϱ͘ϰй�ƚŚŝƐ�ǇĞĂƌ͕�ĚƵĞ�ŵĂŝŶůǇ�ƚŽ�ůŽǁĞƌ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐ�ŝŶ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƚŝǀĞƐ͕�ŝŶĨůĂƚŝŽŶ�
ŚĞĚŐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂƚŝŽŶĂů�ĞƋƵŝƚǇ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĂŶ�ĂďƐŽůƵƚĞ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ƉĞƌƐƉĞĐƚŝǀĞ͘��&ƌŽŵ�Ă�
ƌĞůĂƚŝǀĞ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ� ƉĞƌƐƉĞĐƚŝǀĞ͕� ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂƚŝŽŶĂů� ĞƋƵŝƚǇ� ŽƵƚƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĞĚ� ŝƚƐ� ďĞŶĐŚŵĂƌŬ� ǁŚŝůĞ�
ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƚŝǀĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶĨůĂƚŝŽŶ�ŚĞĚŐĞ�ƵŶĚĞƌƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĞĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ƌĞƐƉĞĐƚŝǀĞ�ďĞŶĐŚŵĂƌŬƐ͘� 

 
�ĞĚƵĐƚŝŽŶƐ͘�dŽƚĂů�ĚĞĚƵĐƚŝŽŶƐ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ďǇ�Ψϭϵ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ͕�Žƌ�ϵй͕�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ůĂƐƚ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ͘�dŚĞ�
ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ� ǁĂƐ� ĚƵĞ� ƉƌŝŵĂƌŝůǇ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ĂŶŶƵĂů� ĐŽƐƚ� ŽĨ� ůŝǀŝŶŐ� ĂĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ĂŶĚ� ĂŶ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ�
ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞĞƐ͘ 

^�Ã��Z�͛Ý�&®�ç�®�Ùù�E�ã�WÊÝ®ã®ÊÄ 

:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ�;�ŽůůĂƌƐ�/Ŷ�DŝůůŝŽŶƐͿ 

DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ͛Ɛ��ŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ 

�«�Ä¦�Ý�®Ä�^�Ã��Z�͛Ý�¥®�ç�®�Ùù�E�ã�WÊÝ®ã®ÊÄ 

&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�&ŝƐĐĂů�zĞĂƌƐ��ŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ�;�ŽůůĂƌƐ�/Ŷ�DŝůůŝŽŶƐͿ 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
$3,200

$3,400

$3,600

$3,800

$4,000

$4,200

$4,400

$4,600

$4,800

Fiscal Years

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
$0

$100

$200

$300

$400

$500

$600

Fiscal Years



38  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

���®ã®ÊÄÝ�dÊ�&®�ç�®�Ùù�E�ã�WÊÝ®ã®ÊÄ 

&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�&ŝƐĐĂů�zĞĂƌ��ŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ�;�ŽůůĂƌƐ�/Ŷ�dŚŽƵƐĂŶĚƐͿ 

���ç�ã®ÊÄÝ�¥ÙÊÃ�¥®�ç�®�Ùù�E�ã�WÊÝ®ã®ÊÄ 

&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�&ŝƐĐĂů�zĞĂƌ��ŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ�;�ŽůůĂƌƐ�/Ŷ�dŚŽƵƐĂŶĚƐͿ 

DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ͛Ɛ��ŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ 

Service retirement 
benefits , $196,874 , 

83.51%

Disability retirement 
benefits , $25,212 , 

10.69%

Survivor, death and 
other benefits , 
$1,528 , 0.66%

Member refunds , 
$3,571 , 1.51%

Administrative 
expenses , $6,057 , 

2.57% Information Technology 
expenses , $2,495 , 1.06%

Employer 
contributions , 

$194,830 , 33.31%

Employer 
supplemental 
contributions, 

$50,668 , 8.66%Member contributions , $67,696 , 
11.57%

Net investment 
income , $271,592 , 

46.44%

Net securities 
lending income , 

$66 , 0.01%

Other , $33 , 
0.01%



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  39 

�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�sĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ 

^Ăŵ��Z�� ĞŶŐĂŐĞƐ� ĂŶ� ŝŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů� Ĩŝƌŵ͕� DŝůůŝŵĂŶ͕� /ŶĐ͕͘� ƚŽ� ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵ� ĂŶ� ĂŶŶƵĂů�
ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů� ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ� ƚŽ� ŵŽŶŝƚŽƌ� ŝƚƐ� ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ� ƐƚĂƚƵƐ� ĂŶĚ� ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ� ŝŶƚĞŐƌŝƚǇ͘� dŚĞ� ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ�
ƌĞĂƐƐĞƐƐĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŐŶŝƚƵĚĞ�ŽĨ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�ĐŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ͕�ŝŶ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌŝƐŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�
ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ� ƚŽ� ďĞ� ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ� ƚŽ� ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ� ƚŚŽƐĞ� ĐŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ͘� sĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ� ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ� ǁŝůů� ďĞ� ƵƐĞĚ� ƚŽ�
ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞƐ͘� 
 
/Ŷ� ƚŚĞ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů� ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ͕� ƚŚĞ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌǇ� ƵƐĞƐ� ƐĞǀĞƌĂů� ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ�ǁŝƚŚ� ƌĞŐĂƌĚƐ� ƚŽ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�
ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ� ;ƐƵĐŚ� ĂƐ� ƚŚĞŝƌ� ůŝĨĞ� ĞǆƉĞĐƚĂŶĐǇ͕� ƉƌŽũĞĐƚĞĚ� ƐĂůĂƌǇ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞƐ͕� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� ĂŐĞ� Ăƚ� ǁŚŝĐŚ�
ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ� ŵĂǇ� ƌĞƚŝƌĞͿ� ƚŽ� ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ� ƚŚĞ� ĂƐƐĞƚƐ͕� ůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ͕� ĂŶĚ� ĨƵƚƵƌĞ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�
ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘�dŚĞ�ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞŵŽŐƌĂƉŚŝĐ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ� ƐĞůĞĐƚĞĚ�ĂƌĞ�ƵƐĞĚ� ƚŽ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ͕� ĂƐ�
ĐůŽƐĞůǇ�ĂƐ�ƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ͕� ƚŚĞ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů� ĐŽƐƚ�ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂŶ͘�dŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚŝŽŶ�ƉĞƌŵŝƚƐ�ĂŶ�ŽƌĚĞƌůǇ�ŵĞƚŚŽĚ�
ĨŽƌ�ƐĞƚƚŝŶŐ�ĂƐŝĚĞ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ƚŽĚĂǇ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶ�ĞƋƵŝƚǇ�
ĂŵŽŶŐ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ŽĨ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ͘ 
 
dƌŝĞŶŶŝĂů��ǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ�^ƚƵĚǇ 

/Ŷ� ϮϬϭϳ͕� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌǇ� ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĞĚ� Ă� ƚƌŝĞŶŶŝĂů� ͞ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ� ƐƚƵĚǇ͟� ƚŽ� ƌĞĂƐƐĞƐƐ� ƚŚĞ�
ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞŶĞƐƐ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ� ƵƐĞĚ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ͘� dŚĞƐĞ� ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ� ĂƌĞ� ĐƌŝƚŝĐĂů� ŝŶ�
ĂƐƐŝƐƚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�&ƵŶĚ�ŝŶ�ƉƌĞ-ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ�ƉƌŝŽƌ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ͘��ĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ĂĐƚƵĂƌǇ͛Ɛ� ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂƚŝŽŶƐ͕� ƚŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ŽĨ� ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ;ƚŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚͿ� ĂĚŽƉƚĞĚ� ƐĞǀĞƌĂů� ŶĞǁ�
ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞŵŽŐƌĂƉŚŝĐ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ�ĂƐ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϳ͘�� 
 
dŚĞ� ϮϬϭϳ� ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ� ƐƚƵĚǇ� ĐĂůůĞĚ� ĨŽƌ� ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ� ŝŶ� ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ� ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ͘� &Žƌ� ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ�
ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ͕� ƚŚĞ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ� ǁĂƐ� ĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚ� ĨƌŽŵ� ϳ͘ϬϬй� ƚŽ� ϲ͘ϳϱй͕� ƚŚĞ� ŐĞŶĞƌĂů� ǁĂŐĞ�
ŐƌŽǁƚŚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ϯ͘Ϯϱй�ƚŽ�ϯ͘ϬϬй͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƵŵĞƌ�ƉƌŝĐĞ�ŝŶĚĞǆ�ŝŶĨůĂƚŝŽŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�Ϯ͘ϳϱй�ƚŽ�Ϯ͘ϱϬй͘�&Žƌ�
ĚĞŵŽŐƌĂƉŚŝĐ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ͕�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ĂƉƉƌŽǀĞĚ�ƐĞǀĞƌĂů�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ĂůŝŐŶŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ�
ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ͞ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ� ƐƚƵĚǇ͟� ƚŚĂƚ� ĂƌĞ� ƵƐĞĚ� ƚŽ� ƉƌĞĚŝĐƚ� ĨƵƚƵƌĞ� ŵĞŵďĞƌ� ďĞŚĂǀŝŽƌ͕� ƐƵĐŚ� ĂƐ�
ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ͕�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͕�ĂŶĚ�ŵŽƌƚĂůŝƚǇ͘� 
 
/Ŷ� :ƵůǇ� ϮϬϭϵ͕� ďĂƐĞĚ� ŽŶ� ƚŚĞ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌǇ͛Ɛ� ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂƚŝŽŶ͕� ƚŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ� ƚŚĞ� ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ�
ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�ϲ͘ϳϱй�ƚŽ�ϲ͘ϱϬй͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁĂƐ�ƵƐĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ�ĂƐ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͘�
KƚŚĞƌ�ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞŵŽŐƌĂƉŚŝĐ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ�ƌĞŵĂŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƌĞĂƐƐĞƐƐĞĚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�
ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǆƚ�ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ�ƐƚƵĚǇ�ŝŶ�ǇĞĂƌ�ϮϬϮϬ͘ 
 
WůĂŶ��ƐƐĞƚƐ͕�>ŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�&ƵŶĚĞĚ�ZĂƚŝŽ 

dŚĞ�&ƵŶĚĞĚ�ZĂƚŝŽ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ� ƚŚĞ� ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ĂĚĞƋƵĂĐǇ�ŽĨ�Ă� ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͘��ĐĐŽƌĚŝŶŐ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ�
ůĂƚĞƐƚ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ�ĂƐ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂŶ͛Ɛ�ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ƌĂƚŝŽ�;ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�
ƚŽ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ĂĐĐƌƵĞĚ�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐͿ�ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ϴϱ͘ϴй�ĂƐ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕�ĨƌŽŵ�ϴϳ͘ϱй�ĂƐ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�
ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϴ͘�dŚĞ�ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ǁĂƐ�ĚƵĞ�ƉƌŝŵĂƌŝůǇ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞ�ŝŶ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�
ϲ͘ϳϱй�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ϮϬϭϴ�ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ϲ͘ϱϬй�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ϮϬϭϵ�ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ͘� 
 

DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ͛Ɛ��ŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ 



40  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 �Ɛ� ŽĨ� :ƵŶĞ� ϯϬ͕� ϮϬϭϵ͕� ƚŚĞ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů� ǀĂůƵĞ� ŽĨ� ƉůĂŶ� ĂƐƐĞƚƐ� ǁĂƐ� Ψϰ͘ϳ� ďŝůůŝŽŶ͕� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�
ĂĐĐƌƵĞĚ� ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ǁĂƐ�Ψϱ͘ϱ�ďŝůůŝŽŶ͘�dŚĞ�ĚŝĨĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƚǁŽ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚƐ�ƚŚĞ��
ƵŶĨƵŶĚĞĚ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů� ĂĐĐƌƵĞĚ� ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ� ;ƚŚĞ� ŐĂƉ� ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ� ƉƌŽŵŝƐĞĚ� ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�
ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ� ƚŽ� ŵĞĞƚ� ƚŚŽƐĞ� ŽďůŝŐĂƚŝŽŶƐͿ͕� ǁŚŝĐŚ� ĂŵŽƵŶƚĞĚ� ƚŽ� Ψϳϳϰ͘ϱ� ŵŝůůŝŽŶ� ;Žƌ� ϭϰϬй� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ�
ĐŽůůĞĐƚŝǀĞ� ĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ� ƉĂǇƌŽůů� ŽĨ� ƉĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂƚŝŶŐ� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ͕� ƚŽƚĂůŝŶŐ� Ψϱϱϰ͘ϳ� ŵŝůůŝŽŶ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ĨŝƐĐĂů�
ǇĞĂƌͿ͘�dŚĞ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ƵƐĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐĂůĐƵůĂƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ƌĂƚŝŽ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ǀĂůƵĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ͛Ɛ�
ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�DŽƐƋƵŝƚŽ�ĂŶĚ�sĞĐƚŽƌ��ŽŶƚƌŽů��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ͛Ɛ�^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�
�ĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ͘ 
 
^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�&ŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�ZĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ 

hŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ��ĂůŝĨŽƌŶŝĂ��ŽŶƐƚŝƚƵƚŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�>Ăǁ�ŽĨ�ϭϵϯϳ͕�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�
ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ŵƵƐƚ� ĞǆĐůƵƐŝǀĞůǇ� ďĞ� ƵƐĞĚ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ� ŽĨ� ƉůĂŶ� ƉĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂŶƚƐ� ĂŶĚ�
ƚŚĞŝƌ�ďĞŶĞĨŝĐŝĂƌŝĞƐ͘�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŽĨ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐƚĂĨĨ�ĂƌĞ�ĨŝĚƵĐŝĂƌŝĞƐ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ƚƌƵƐƚ�ĨƵŶĚ͘� 
 
ZĞƋƵĞƐƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ 

dŚŝƐ� ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ƌĞƉŽƌƚ� ŝƐ� ĚĞƐŝŐŶĞĚ� ƚŽ� ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ŽĨ� ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ͕� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ͕�
ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ͕� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌƐ͕� ĂŶĚ� ĂŶǇ� ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚĞĚ� ƉĂƌƚŝĞƐ� ǁŝƚŚ� Ă� ŐĞŶĞƌĂů� ŽǀĞƌǀŝĞǁ� ŽĨ�
^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ� ĂŶĚ� ƚŽ� ƐŚŽǁ� ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚĂďŝůŝƚǇ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ĨƵŶĚƐ� ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ͘� �ĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�
ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ŝƐ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ŽŶ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ǁĞďƐŝƚĞ�Ăƚ�ǁǁǁ͘ƐĂŵĐĞƌĂ͘ŽƌŐ͘� 
 
YƵĞƐƚŝŽŶƐ� ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶŝŶŐ� ĂŶǇ� ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ� ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ� ŝŶ� ƚŚŝƐ� ƌĞƉŽƌƚ� Žƌ� ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚƐ� ĨŽƌ� ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�
ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ƚŽ͗ 
 

^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͛�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ��ƐƐŽĐŝĂƚŝŽŶ� 
 ϭϬϬ�DĂƌŝŶĞ�WĂƌŬǁĂǇ͕�^ƵŝƚĞ�ϭϮϱ 
 ZĞĚǁŽŽĚ��ŝƚǇ͕����ϵϰϬϲϱ 
 dĞůĞƉŚŽŶĞ͗�;ϲϱϬͿ�ϱϵϵ-ϭϮϯϰ 
 &ĂĐƐŝŵŝůĞ͗�;ϲϱϬͿ�ϱϵϭ-ϭϰϴϴ� 

DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ͛Ɛ��ŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ 



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  41 

^ã�ã�Ã�Äã�Ê¥�&®�ç�®�Ùù�E�ã�WÊÝ®ã®ÊÄ 
:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ�;ǁŝƚŚ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĂƟǀĞ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ�ĂƐ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϴͿ 

^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�&ŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�EĞƚ�WŽƐŝƟŽŶ 

 2019  2018 

Cash and cash equivalents  $         33,102,412  $       53,125,429 
Cash management overlay              48,011,505            12,984,127 
Securities lending cash collateral                    403,093              1,486,415 
      Total cash and short-term investments              81,517,010            67,595,971 

  
Contributions              10,300,002              9,422,510 
Due from broker for investments sold                6,640,025              4,152,242 
Investment income                6,292,641              5,930,254 
Securities lending income                      12,614                    10,453 
Other                      95,566                    95,057 
       Total receivables              23,340,848            19,610,516 

                     11,669                      7,669 

Public equity        1,847,846,613      1,809,329,959 
Fixed income           999,477,347         892,923,149 
Alternatives           579,774,460         514,972,248 
Risk parity           389,039,081         311,126,425 
Inflation hedge           809,138,278         761,393,517 
       Total investments at fair value        4,625,275,779      4,289,745,298 

               8,040,088              8,040,088 
             (2,060,891)            (1,236,535)

       Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation                5,979,197              6,803,553 

           Total assets        4,736,124,503      4,383,763,007 

Investment management fees payable                2,213,009              1,663,178 
Due to broker for investments purchased                9,060,929              5,408,607 
Securities lending collateral due to borrowers                    405,367              1,488,689 
Other                1,335,263              1,241,019 

           Total liabilities              13,014,568              9,801,493 

 $   4,723,109,935  $ 4,373,961,514 NET POSITION RESTRICTED FOR PENSIONS

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial 
statements.

Investments at fair value:

Capital assets

LIABILITIES

Less: accumulated depreciation

Prepaid expense

ASSETS
Cash and short-term investments:

Receivables:



42  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

^ã�ã�Ã�Äã�Ê¥��«�Ä¦�Ý�®Ä�&®�ç�®�Ùù�E�ã�WÊÝ®ã®ÊÄ 
&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�&ŝƐĐĂů�zĞĂƌ��ŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 
;ǁŝƚŚ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĂƟǀĞ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĮƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϴͿ 

^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ��ŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�&ŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�EĞƚ�WŽƐŝƟŽŶ 

 2019  2018 

Employer  $    194,830,054  $    179,626,584 
Employer Supplemental           50,668,357           27,630,129 
Member           67,695,627           64,204,278 
      Total contributions         313,194,038         271,460,991 

Interest and dividends           71,800,374           45,060,738 
Net appreciation in fair value of investments         242,168,364         275,224,883 
      Total investment income         313,968,738         320,285,621 
Less:  investment expenses (42,376,557) (40,210,092)
            Net investment income         271,592,181         280,075,529 

Earnings                   88,955                   52,886 
Rebates                   13,108                      8,141 
Fees                 (36,070)                 (17,698)
            Net securities lending income                   65,993                   43,329 

                  33,309                   27,540 
              Total additions         584,885,521         551,607,389 

Service retirement benefits         196,874,097         179,880,342 
Disability retirement benefits           25,211,881           23,872,145 
Survivor, death and other benefits             1,528,066                 976,386 
      Total benefits         223,614,044         204,728,873 

            3,571,079             4,325,730 
            6,056,713             5,849,252 
            2,495,264             1,444,010 

            Total deductions         235,737,100         216,347,865 

        349,148,421         335,259,524 

    4,373,961,514     4,038,701,990 
 $ 4,723,109,935  $ 4,373,961,514 

Administrative expenses

ADDITIONS
Contributions:

Investment income:

Securities lending income:

Other additions

DEDUCTIONS
Benefits:

Member Refunds

Beginning of year
End of year

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial 
statements.

Information technology expenses

Net increase

NET POSITION RESTRICTED FOR PENSIONS



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  43 

EÊã�Ý�ãÊ�ã«����Ý®��&®Ä�Ä�®�½�^ã�ã�Ã�ÄãÝ� 
 
EŽƚĞ�ϭ͗�WůĂŶ��ĞƐĐƌŝƉƚŝŽŶ�� 

 
dŚĞ� ^ĂŶ� DĂƚĞŽ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ� �ŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐΖ� ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ� �ƐƐŽĐŝĂƚŝŽŶ� ;^Ăŵ��Z�Ϳ� ŝƐ� ĂŶ� ŝŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ�
ƉƵďůŝĐ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŝƚƐ�ŽǁŶ�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŝŶŐ�ďŽĂƌĚ͘�dŚĞƌĞĨŽƌĞ͕�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�ƐƵďũĞĐƚ�
ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŵƉůŽǇĞĞ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�/ŶĐŽŵĞ�^ĞĐƵƌŝƚǇ��Đƚ�ŽĨ�ϭϵϳϰ�;�Z/^�Ϳ͘� 
 
^Ăŵ��Z��ŝƐ�ŐŽǀĞƌŶĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ĂůŝĨŽƌŶŝĂ��ŽŶƐƚŝƚƵƚŝŽŶ͖�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�>Ăǁ�ŽĨ�
ϭϵϯϳ� ;ƚŚĞ� ��Z>� -� Ă� ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� �ĂůŝĨŽƌŶŝĂ� 'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ� �ŽĚĞͿ͖� ƚŚĞ� �ĂůŝĨŽƌŶŝĂ� WƵďůŝĐ�
�ŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͛�WĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ZĞĨŽƌŵ��Đƚ�ŽĨ�ϮϬϭϯ�;W�WZ�Ϳ͖�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŐƵůĂƚŝŽŶƐ͕�ƉƌŽĐĞĚƵƌĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐ�
ĂĚŽƉƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŽĨ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�;ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚͿ͘�dŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŝƐ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�
ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͘� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ� ŝƐ� ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďůĞ� ĨŽƌ� ŽǀĞƌƐĞĞŝŶŐ� ĚĂŝůǇ� ŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŽŶƐ�
ĂŶĚ� ŽƚŚĞƌ� ĐƌƵĐŝĂů� ĨƵŶĐƚŝŽŶƐ� ƐƵĐŚ� ĂƐ� ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶŝŶŐ� ĂĚĞƋƵĂƚĞ� ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů� ĐŽŶƚƌŽůƐ� ĂŶĚ� ƉƌĞƉĂƌŝŶŐ�
ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘� 
 
'ĞŶĞƌĂů 
^Ăŵ��Z�� ŝƐ� Ă� ĐŽƐƚ-ƐŚĂƌŝŶŐ� ŵƵůƚŝƉůĞ-ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ͕� ĚĞĨŝŶĞĚ� ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ� ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ� ƉůĂŶ� ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ� ƚŽ�
ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ� ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ� ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ� ĨŽƌ� Ăůů� ƉĞƌŵĂŶĞŶƚ� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ� ŽĨ� ^ĂŶ� DĂƚĞŽ� ;ƚŚĞ�
�ŽƵŶƚǇͿ͕�ƚŚĞ�^ƵƉĞƌŝŽƌ��ŽƵƌƚ�ŽĨ��ĂůŝĨŽƌŶŝĂ͕��ŽƵŶƚǇ�ŽĨ�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ�;ƚŚĞ��ŽƵƌƚͿ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ�
�ŽƵŶƚǇ� DŽƐƋƵŝƚŽ� ĂŶĚ� sĞĐƚŽƌ� �ŽŶƚƌŽů� �ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ� ;ƚŚĞ� �ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚͿ͘� �ĞĐĂƵƐĞ� ŽĨ� ŝƚƐ� ĐůŽƐĞ� ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�
ƌĞůĂƚŝŽŶƐŚŝƉ�ǁŝƚŚ� ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�;ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŝŵĂƌǇ�ƉůĂŶ�ƐƉŽŶƐŽƌͿ͕�^Ăŵ��Z�� ŝƐ�ĐůĂƐƐŝĨŝĞĚ�ĂƐ�Ă�ďůĞŶĚĞĚ�
ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ�ƵŶŝƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ĂƐ�Ă�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ƚƌƵƐƚ�ĨƵŶĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ͛Ɛ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�
ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘� 
 
hŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ���Z>͕�ƚŚĞ�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�^Ăŵ��Z��ŝƐ�ǀĞƐƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ŶŝŶĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ͗�
ƚŚĞ� ĨŝƌƐƚ� ŵĞŵďĞƌ� ŝƐ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ� dƌĞĂƐƵƌĞƌ͖� ƚŚĞ� ƐĞĐŽŶĚ� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚŝƌĚ� ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ� ĂƌĞ� 'ĞŶĞƌĂů�
DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ŽĨ�^Ăŵ��Z��ĞůĞĐƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ƉĞĞƌƐ͖� ƚŚĞ�ĨŽƵƌƚŚ͕� ĨŝĨƚŚ͕�ƐŝǆƚŚ�ĂŶĚ�ŶŝŶƚŚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�
ƋƵĂůŝĨŝĞĚ� ĞůĞĐƚŽƌƐ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ� ĂŶĚ� ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚĞĚ� ďǇ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ŽĨ� ^ƵƉĞƌǀŝƐŽƌƐ͖� ƚŚĞ�
ƐĞǀĞŶƚŚ� ŵĞŵďĞƌ� ŝƐ� ĞůĞĐƚĞĚ� ďǇ� ĂŶĚ� Ă� ŵĞŵďĞƌ� ŽĨ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ^ĂĨĞƚǇ� ŵĞŵďĞƌƐŚŝƉ͖� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ�
ĞŝŐŚƚŚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ŝƐ�Ă�ZĞƚŝƌĞĚ�DĞŵďĞƌ�ĞůĞĐƚĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐŚŝƉ͘�/Ŷ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶ͕�ƚŚĞƌĞ�
ĂƌĞ�ŽŶĞ�ĞůĞĐƚĞĚ�^ĂĨĞƚǇ�DĞŵďĞƌ��ůƚĞƌŶĂƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŽŶĞ�ĞůĞĐƚĞĚ�ZĞƚŝƌĞĚ�DĞŵďĞƌ��ůƚĞƌŶĂƚĞ͘�^ƵďũĞĐƚ�
ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ĨŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ͕�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŽǀĞƌƐĞĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŐƵŝĚĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ƉůĂŶƐ͗ 

;ϭͿ ƐŽůĞůǇ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ŽĨ͕�ĂŶĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆĐůƵƐŝǀĞ�ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞ�ŽĨ͕�ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ�ƚŽ�
ƉĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ďĞŶĞĨŝĐŝĂƌŝĞƐ͖� 

;ϮͿ ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐĂƌĞ͕�ƐŬŝůů͕�ƉƌƵĚĞŶĐĞ͕�ĂŶĚ�ĚŝůŝŐĞŶĐĞ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŝƌĐƵŵƐƚĂŶĐĞƐ�ƚŚĞŶ�ƉƌĞǀĂŝůŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�Ă�
ƉƌƵĚĞŶƚ�ƉĞƌƐŽŶ�ĂĐƚŝŶŐ�ŝŶ�Ă�ůŝŬĞ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĨĂŵŝůŝĂƌ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ŵĂƚƚĞƌƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ƵƐĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ĐŽŶĚƵĐƚ�ŽĨ�ĂŶ�ĞŶƚĞƌƉƌŝƐĞ�ŽĨ�Ă�ůŝŬĞ�ĐŚĂƌĂĐƚĞƌ�ǁŝƚŚ�ůŝŬĞ�ŽďũĞĐƚŝǀĞƐ͖�ĂŶĚ� 

;ϯͿ ĚŝǀĞƌƐŝĨǇ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂŶ�ƚŽ�ŵŝŶŝŵŝǌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŝƐŬ�ŽĨ�ůŽƐƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽ�ŵĂǆŝŵŝǌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĂƚĞ�
ŽĨ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ƵŶůĞƐƐ͕�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŝƌĐƵŵƐƚĂŶĐĞƐ͕�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ĐůĞĂƌůǇ�ƉƌƵĚĞŶƚ�ŶŽƚ�ƚŽ�ĚŽ�ƐŽ͘� 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 



44  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

WĞŶƐŝŽŶ�WůĂŶƐ� 
^Ăŵ��Z�� ŚĂƐ� ϭϮ� ĚĞĨŝŶĞĚ� ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ� ƉůĂŶƐ� ďĂƐĞĚ� ŽŶ� Ă�ŵĞŵďĞƌ͛Ɛ� ĚĂƚĞ� ŽĨ� ĞŶƚƌǇ� ŝŶƚŽ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͘�
dŚĞƐĞ� ƉůĂŶƐ� ĐŽǀĞƌ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ� ĐůĂƐƐŝĨŝĞĚ� ĂƐ� ŐĞŶĞƌĂů͕� ƐĂĨĞƚǇ͕� ĂŶĚ� ƉƌŽďĂƚŝŽŶ͘� dŚĞ� ƚĂďůĞƐ� ŽŶ� ƚŚĞ�
ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ƚǁŽ�ƉĂŐĞƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ĚĞƚĂŝůƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĞĂĐŚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƉůĂŶƐ͘� 
 
WĞŶƐŝŽŶ�WůĂŶ�DĞŵďĞƌƐŚŝƉ 
WůĂŶ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ĂƐ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕�ŝƐ�ĚŝƐƉůĂǇĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƚĂďůĞ�ďĞůŽǁ͘ 

�ĞŶĞĨŝƚ�WƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ 
^Ăŵ��Z��ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ�ďĂƐŝĐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ͕�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͕�ƐƵƌǀŝǀŽƌ͕�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞĂƚŚ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�
ĚĞĨŝŶĞĚ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�ĨŽƌŵƵůĂƐ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƵƐĞ�ĨŝŶĂů�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ�ĐŽŵƉĞŶƐĂƚŝŽŶ�;&��Ϳ͕�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŽĨ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͕�ĂŶĚ�
ĂŐĞ� ĨĂĐƚŽƌƐ� ƚŽ� ĐĂůĐƵůĂƚĞ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ� ƉĂǇĂďůĞ͘� /Ŷ� ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶ͕� ^Ăŵ��Z��ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ� ĂŶ� ĂŶŶƵĂů� �ŽƐƚ�ŽĨ�
>ŝǀŝŶŐ� �ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ;�K>�Ϳ� ƵƉŽŶ� ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ĨŽƌ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ� ŽĨ� WůĂŶƐ� ϭ͕� Ϯ͕� ϰ͕� ϱ͕� ϲ͕� ĂŶĚ� ϳ͘� dŚĞ�
ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ� ŽĨ� WůĂŶ� ϯ� ĂƌĞ� ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ� ďǇ� Ă� ƉŽƌƚŝŽŶ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ^ŽĐŝĂů� ^ĞĐƵƌŝƚǇ� ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ� ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ� ďǇ� ƚŚĞ�
ŵĞŵďĞƌ͘� dŚĞ� ��Z>� ǀĞƐƚƐ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ŽĨ� ^ƵƉĞƌǀŝƐŽƌƐ� ǁŝƚŚ� ƚŚĞ� ĂƵƚŚŽƌŝƚǇ� ƚŽ� ŝŶŝƚŝĂƚĞ�
ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ͘� �ĂĐŚ� ƉĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂƚŝŶŐ� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ� ĐĂŶ� ŵĂŬĞ� ůŝŵŝƚĞĚ� ĂĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞŝƌ� ŵĞŵďĞƌ�
ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ͘� 
 
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ��ĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ͘�DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĞŶƚŝƚůĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞ�ůŝĨĞƚŝŵĞ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�
ƉůĂŶ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ĂŶĚ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�ŽƉƚŝŽŶ�ƐĞůĞĐƚĞĚ͘� 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

Plan 1 Plan 2 Plan 3 Plan 4 Plan 5 Plan 6 Plan 7  Total 

1,364 2,009 131 873 8 - 4 4,389
268 225 - 99 1 - 2 595

82 112 - 47 - - - 241
     Subtotal 1,714 2,346 131 1,019 9                 - 6 5,225

7 282 69 767 88 - 406 1,619
1 18 - 43 9 - 16 87
- 17 - 38 1 - 5 61

     Subtotal 8 317 69 848 98                 - 427 1,767

General 5 488 55 1,842 164 - 284 2,838
Safety - 42 - 219 41 - 29 331
Probation - 15 - 163 7 - 12 197

     Subtotal 5 545 55 2,224 212                 - 325 3,366

General - 1 5 12 109 - 1,645 1,772
Safety - - - - 22 - 177 199
Probation - - - - 1 - 39 40

     Subtotal - 1 5 12 132                 - 1,861 2,011
1,727 3,209 260 4,103 451                 - 2,619 12,369

Note: 

General

Safety

Probation

Inactive employess entitled to but not currently receiving benefits (Deferred)
General

Plans 1, 2, 3, and 4 are closed to new entrants. However,  eligbible general members of the San Mateo 
County Mosquito and Vector Control District with reciprocity may participate in Plan 4. 

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits

Safety

Probation

Current employees, non-vested

Current employees, vested

      Total Members



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  45 

��Ä�¥®ã�W½�ÄÝ 

EŽƚĞ�ϭ͗�WůĂŶƐ�ϭ͕�Ϯ͕�ϯ͕�ĂŶĚ�ϰ�ĂƌĞ�ĐůŽƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŶĞǁ�ĞŶƚƌĂŶƚƐ͘�,ŽǁĞǀĞƌ͕�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ�
�ŽƵŶƚǇ�DŽƐƋƵŝƚŽ�ĂŶĚ�sĞĐƚŽƌ��ŽŶƚƌŽů��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƌĞĐŝƉƌŽĐŝƚǇ�ŵĂǇ�ƉĂƌƟĐŝƉĂƚĞ�ŝŶ�WůĂŶ�ϰ͘ 
 
EŽƚĞ�Ϯ͗�&���WĞƌŝŽĚ�ƐƚĂŶĚƐ�ĨŽƌ�͞&ŝŶĂů��ǀĞƌĂŐĞ��ŽŵƉĞŶƐĂƟŽŶ͟�WĞƌŝŽĚ͘ 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

General Member Probation Member Safety Member
Plan 1 Hire Date On or before 7/5/80 On or before 7/5/80 On or before 7/5/80

Benefit factor 2%@55.5 3%@50 3%@50
Maximum COLA 5% 3% 5%
FAC Period Highest 1 year Highest 1 year Highest 1 year

Eligibility for 
Service Retirement

Age 50 with 10 years of 
service; any age with 30 
years of service; or age 

70 regardless of years of 
service.

Age 50 with 10 years of 
service; any age with 20 

years of service.

Age 50 with 10 years of 
service; any age with 20 

years of service.

Plan 2 Hire Date 7/6/80 - 7/12/97 7/6/80 - 7/12/97 7/6/80 - 7/12/97
Benefit factor 2%@55.5 3%@50 3%@50
Maximum COLA 3% 3% 3%
FAC Period Highest 1 year Highest 1 year Highest 1 year

Eligibility for 
Service Retirement

Age 50 with 10 years of 
service; any age with 30 
years of service; or age 
70 regardless of years of 
service.

Age 50 with 10 years of 
service; any age with 20 

years of service.

Age 50 with 10 years of 
service; any age with 20 

years of service.

Plan 3 Hire Date On or before 12/22/12,  
a non-contributory plan.

Not applicable Not applicable

Maximum COLA No COLA Not applicable Not applicable

FAC Period
Highest 3 years (non-

consecutive)
Not applicable Not applicable

Eligibility for 
Service Retirement

Age 65 with 10 years of 
service; reduced benefit 
at age 55 with 10 years 

of service.

Not applicable Not applicable

(If retirement occurs prior to age 65, benefit amount will be adjusted by an actuarial 
equivalent factor.)

(After five years of service, Plan 3 members can elect membership under the open 
contributory plan. Members currently working in a contributory plan with Plan 3 
service may purchase an upgrade of their Plan 3 service. Plan 3 closed effective 
December 23, 2012.)



46  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

��Ä�¥®ã�W½�ÄÝ�;�ÊÄã®Äç��Ϳ 

:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

General Member Probation Member Safety Member
Plan 4 Hire Date

Benefit factor 2%@55.5 3%@50 3%@50
Maximum COLA 2% 2% 2%

FAC Period
Highest 3 years (non-

consecutive)
Highest 3 years (non-

consecutive)
Highest 3 years (non-

consecutive)

Eligibility for 
Service Retirement

Age 50 with 10 years of 
service; any age with 30 
years of service; or age 

70 regardless of years of 
service.

Age 50 with 10 years of 
service; any age with 20 

years of service.

Age 50 with 10 years of 
service; any age with 20 

years of service.

Plan 5 Hire Date 8/7/11 - 12/13/12 7/10/11 - 12/31/12 1/8/12 - 12/31/12 (1)

Benefit factor 2% @61.25 3%@55 3%@55
Maximum COLA 2% 2% 2%

FAC Period
Highest 3 years (non-

consecutive)
Highest 3 years (non-

consecutive)
Highest 3 years (non-

consecutive)

Eligibility for 
Service Retirement

Age 50 with 10 years of 
service; any age with 30 
years of service; or age 

70 regardless of years of 
service.

Age 50 with 10 years of 
service; any age with 20 

years of service.

Age 50 with 10 years of 
service; any age with 20 

years of service.

Plan 6 Hire Date Not applicable 7/10/11 - 12/31/12 7/10/11 - 12/31/12 (2)

Benefit factor Not applicable 2%@50 2%@50
Maximum COLA Not applicable 2% 2%

FAC Period
Not applicable Highest 3 years (non-

consecutive)
Highest 3 years (non-

consecutive)

Eligibility for 
Service Retirement

Not applicable
Age 50 with 10 years of 
service; any age with 20 

years of service.

Age 50 with 10 years of 
service; any age with 20 

years of service.

Plan 7 Hire Date On or after 1/1/13 On or after 1/1/13 On or after 1/1/13
Benefit factor 2%@62 2.7%@57 2.7%@57
Maximum COLA 2% 2% 2%

FAC Period
Highest 36 consecutive 

months
Highest 36 consecutive 

months
Highest 36 consecutive 

months
Eligibility for 
Service Retirement

Age 52 with 5 years of 
service.

Age 50 with 5 years of 
service.

Age 50 with 5 years of 
service.

(1) For safety members, Plan 5 was only available for those with the Deputy Sheriff Association. 
(2) For safety members, Plan 6 was only available for those with the Organization of Sheriff's Sergeants. 

7/13/97 - 8/6/11 (except 
Plan 5 transfers 

discussed under Plan 5 
below)

7/13/97 - 7/9/11 7/13/97 - 1/7/12

(Note: Plan 4 closed simultaneously with the implementation of Plan 5 and Plan 6.)

(Note: General Plan 5 members after 10 years of service can elect to transfer to
Plan 4 and must pay the total actuarial equivalent cost of the increase in past
service benefits at the date of transfer.)



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  47 

�ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ��ĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ͘��ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ŵĂǇ�ďĞ�ŶŽŶ-ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƚĞĚ�Žƌ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƚĞĚ͘�
DĞŵďĞƌƐ� ǁŚŽ� ĂƉƉůǇ� ĨŽƌ� ŶŽŶ-ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ� ĐŽŶŶĞĐƚĞĚ� ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ� ŵƵƐƚ� ŚĂǀĞ� Ăƚ� ůĞĂƐƚ� ĨŝǀĞ� ǇĞĂƌƐ� ŽĨ�
ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ� ĐƌĞĚŝƚƐ͘� ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ� ĐƌĞĚŝƚ� ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ĚŽ�ŶŽƚ� ĂƉƉůǇ� ƚŽ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ǁŚŽ�ĂƉƉůǇ� ĨŽƌ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ-ĐŽŶŶĞĐƚĞĚ� ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ� ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ͘� /Ĩ� ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ� ĂƌĞ� ƉĞƌŵĂŶĞŶƚůǇ� ŝŶĐĂƉĂĐŝƚĂƚĞĚ� ĨƌŽŵ�
ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞŝƌ� ũŽď� ĂƐ� Ă� ƌĞƐƵůƚ� ŽĨ� ŝŶũƵƌǇ� Žƌ� ĚŝƐĞĂƐĞ� ĂƌŝƐŝŶŐ� ŽƵƚ� ŽĨ� Žƌ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ĐŽƵƌƐĞ� ŽĨ�
ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ͕�ƚŚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ͘� 
 
�ĐƚŝǀĞ� DĞŵďĞƌ� ^ƵƌǀŝǀŽƌ� �ĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ͘� >ŝĨĞƚŝŵĞ� ƐƵƌǀŝǀŽƌ� ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ� ĂƌĞ� ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ� ĨŽƌ� ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�
ďĞŶĞĨŝĐŝĂƌŝĞƐ� ŽĨ� ĂĐƚŝǀĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ� ŝĨ͗� ;ϭͿ� ƚŚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ͛Ɛ� ĚĞĂƚŚ� ŝƐ� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ� ĐŽŶŶĞĐƚĞĚ� Žƌ� ;ϮͿ� ƚŚĞ�
ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ŚĂƐ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�ĨŝǀĞ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŽĨ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚƐ͘ �dŚĞ�ďĞŶĞĨŝĐŝĂƌǇ�ŵĂǇ�ŝŶƐƚĞĂĚ�ŽƉƚ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ŽŶĞ�Ͳ
ƚŝŵĞ�ĚĞĂƚŚ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ͘ ��ůů�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ĂĐƚŝǀĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĚĞĂƚŚ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ůŝŵŝƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�Ă�ůƵŵƉ�ƐƵŵ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ͘ 
 
WŽƐƚ-ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�^ƵƌǀŝǀŽƌ��ĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ͘� >ŝĨĞƚŝŵĞ�ƐƵƌǀŝǀŽƌ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĐĞƌƚĂŝŶ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�
ďĞŶĞĨŝĐŝĂƌŝĞƐ� ŽĨ� Ă� ĚĞĐĞĂƐĞĚ� ƌĞƚŝƌĞĞ͘� dŚĞ� ĂŵŽƵŶƚ� ŽĨ� ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ� ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ� ŝƐ� ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ� ďǇ� ƚŚĞ�
ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�ŽƉƚŝŽŶ�ƐĞůĞĐƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞĞ͘ 
 
�ĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�DĞŵďĞƌ��ĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ͘���ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ŵĂǇ�ǁŝƚŚĚƌĂǁ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ƉůƵƐ�ĂĐĐƵŵƵůĂƚĞĚ�
ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ� ƵƉŽŶ� ƚĞƌŵŝŶĂƚŝŽŶ� ŽĨ� ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ� ĂŶĚ� ĨŽƌĨĞŝƚ� ƚŚĞ� ƌŝŐŚƚ� ƚŽ� ĨƵƚƵƌĞ� ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ͘� /Ĩ� ƚŚĞ�
ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĞŶƚĞƌƐ�Ă�ƌĞĐŝƉƌŽĐĂů�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ϭϴϬ�ĚĂǇƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĐĂŶ�ĞůĞĐƚ�ƚŽ�ůĞĂǀĞ�
ƚŚĞ�ĂĐĐƵŵƵůĂƚĞĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�^Ăŵ��Z��ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞ�Ă�ĚĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�ǁŚĞŶ�
ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ͘� �ůŝŐŝďůĞ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŽƌǇ� ƉůĂŶ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ǁŝƚŚ� ĨŝǀĞ� ǇĞĂƌƐ� ŽĨ� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ� ;ĞŝƚŚĞƌ� ƉĞƌŵĂŶĞŶƚ� Žƌ�
ƉĂƌƚ-ƚŝŵĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞƋƵŝǀĂůĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ĨŝǀĞ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŽĨ�ĨƵůů-ƚŝŵĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞͿ�Žƌ�ŶŽŶ-ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŽƌǇ�
ƉůĂŶ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ŝŶ�WůĂŶ�ϯ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚĞŶ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŽĨ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ŵĂǇ�ĞůĞĐƚ�Ă�ĚĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ͘ 
 
�ŽƐƚ�ŽĨ� >ŝǀŝŶŐ��ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ� ;�K>�Ϳ͘� �K>�� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞƐ� ĂƌĞ� ĂƉƉůŝĞĚ� ƚŽ� Ăůů� ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ� ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ĂŶĚ�
ĚĞĂƚŚ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ͕�ĞĨĨĞĐƚŝǀĞ��Ɖƌŝů�ϭ͘��Ɛ�ŽĨ��Ɖƌŝů�ϭ�ŽĨ�ĞĂĐŚ�ǇĞĂƌ͕�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ǁŝůů�ĂĚũƵƐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�
ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ� ŝŶ� ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ� ǁŝƚŚ� ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽŶƐƵŵĞƌ� WƌŝĐĞ� /ŶĚĞǆ� ;�W/Ϳ� ĨƌŽŵ� ƚŚĞ� ƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐ�
:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�ϭ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�ϭ͕�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞĂƌĞƐƚ�ŽŶĞ-ŚĂůĨ�ŽĨ�ŽŶĞ�ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚ͘� 
 
dŚĞ��K>�� ŝƐ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ� ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ� ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ��ƵƌĞĂƵ�ŽĨ�>ĂďŽƌ�^ƚĂƚŝƐƚŝĐƐ��ŽŶƐƵŵĞƌ�WƌŝĐĞ� /ŶĚĞǆ�
ĨŽƌ��ůů�hƌďĂŶ��ŽŶƐƵŵĞƌƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�^ĂŶ�&ƌĂŶĐŝƐĐŽ͕�KĂŬůĂŶĚ͕�ĂŶĚ�^ĂŶ�:ŽƐĞ��ĂǇ��ƌĞĂ͘�dŚĞ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝƐ�
ĐĂƉƉĞĚ�Ăƚ�ϱй�ĨŽƌ�'ĞŶĞƌĂů�ĂŶĚ�^ĂĨĞƚǇ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ŝŶ�WůĂŶ�ϭ͖�ϯй�ĨŽƌ�WƌŽďĂƚŝŽŶ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ŝŶ�WůĂŶ�ϭ�
ĂŶĚ�Ăůů�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ŝŶ�WůĂŶ�Ϯ͖�ĂŶĚ�Ϯй�ĨŽƌ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ŝŶ�WůĂŶƐ�ϰ͕�ϱ͕�ϲ͕�ĂŶĚ�ϳ͘�WůĂŶ�ϯ�ŚĂƐ�ŶŽ��K>�͘ 
 
EŽƚĞ�Ϯ͗�^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�^ŝŐŶŝĨŝĐĂŶƚ��ĐĐŽƵŶƚŝŶŐ�WŽůŝĐŝĞƐ 
  
�ĂƐŝƐ�ŽĨ��ĐĐŽƵŶƚŝŶŐ� 
dŚĞ�ĂĐĐŽŵƉĂŶǇŝŶŐ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĐĐƌƵĂů�ďĂƐŝƐ�ŽĨ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶ�
ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ� ǁŝƚŚ� 'ĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ� �ĐĐĞƉƚĞĚ� �ĐĐŽƵŶƚŝŶŐ� WƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞƐ� ;'��WͿ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� hŶŝƚĞĚ� ^ƚĂƚĞƐ� ŽĨ�
�ŵĞƌŝĐĂ͘�dŚĞ�ďĂƐŝƐ�ŽĨ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚŝŶŐ�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŝŵŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚƌĂŶƐĂĐƚŝŽŶƐ�Žƌ�ĞǀĞŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƚŝŽŶ�
ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘� 
 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 



48  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

ZĞĐŽŐŶŝƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ͕��ĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ZĞĨƵŶĚƐ� 
�ŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ŝŶ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ĂƌĞ�
ĚƵĞ� ƉƵƌƐƵĂŶƚ� ƚŽ� ůĞŐĂů� ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘� �ĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ� ĂŶĚ� ƌĞĨƵŶĚƐ� ĂƌĞ� ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞĚ� ǁŚĞŶ� ĚƵĞ� ĂŶĚ�
ƉĂǇĂďůĞ� ŝŶ� ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ� ƉůĂŶ� ƚĞƌŵƐ͘� /ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ŝŶĐŽŵĞ� ŝƐ� ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞĚ� ĂƐ� ƌĞǀĞŶƵĞ�ǁŚĞŶ�
ĞĂƌŶĞĚ͕�ĂŶĚ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞĚ�ǁŚĞŶ�ŝŶĐƵƌƌĞĚ͘�dŚĞ�ŶĞƚ�ĂƉƉƌĞĐŝĂƚŝŽŶ�;Žƌ�ĚĞƉƌĞĐŝĂƚŝŽŶͿ�ŝŶ�
ƚŚĞ�ĨĂŝƌ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ� ŝƐ�ƌĞĐŽƌĚĞĚ�ĂƐ�ĂŶ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�;Žƌ�ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞͿ�ƚŽ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ŝŶĐŽŵĞ͕�
ǁŚŝĐŚ� ŝŶĐůƵĚĞƐ� ďŽƚŚ� ƌĞĂůŝǌĞĚ� ĂŶĚ� ƵŶƌĞĂůŝǌĞĚ� ŐĂŝŶƐ� ĂŶĚ� ůŽƐƐĞƐ� ŽŶ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ͕� ďĂƐĞĚ� ƵƉŽŶ�
ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶƐ͘ 
 
/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ĂŶĚ�sĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ 
dŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŚĂƐ�ĞǆĐůƵƐŝǀĞ�ĐŽŶƚƌŽů�ŽĨ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ͘�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŽĚĞ�^ĞĐƚŝŽŶ�ϯϭϱϵϱ�
ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ���Z>�ĂƵƚŚŽƌŝǌĞƐ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ƚŽ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚ͕�Žƌ�ĚĞůĞŐĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƵƚŚŽƌŝƚǇ�ƚŽ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚ͕� ƚŚĞ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ŽĨ�
^Ăŵ��Z��ŝŶ�ĂŶǇ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ĂůůŽǁĞĚ�ďǇ�ƐƚĂƚƵƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞĞŵĞĚ�ƉƌƵĚĞŶƚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĞĚ�ŽƉŝŶŝŽŶ�
ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ͘�dŚĞ� /ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ŽĨ�^Ăŵ��Z��ƐĞĞŬƐ�ƚŽ�ŽƉƚŝŵŝǌĞ� ůŽŶŐ-ƚĞƌŵ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�
ĂĐĐĞƉƚĂďůĞ�ƌŝƐŬ�ƉĂƌĂŵĞƚĞƌƐ͘�dŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚŝĐĂůůǇ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ĂůůŽĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ŝŶ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ�ƚŽ�
ĐŚĂŶŐŝŶŐ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ�ĐŽŶĚŝƚŝŽŶƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŵĂǇ�ĂĨĨĞĐƚ�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ-ůŽŽŬŝŶŐ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐ�ŽĨ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ĐůĂƐƐĞƐ͘� 
 
�ƵƌŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ� ĨŝƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ͕� ^Ăŵ��Z�� ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞĚ� ƚŽ� ŵĂŬĞ� ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ� ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ� ƚŚĞ� ĂƐƐĞƚ� ĂůůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�
ƉŽůŝĐǇ� ƚŚĂƚ� ǁĂƐ� ĂƉƉƌŽǀĞĚ� ďǇ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ƉƌŝŽƌ� ĮƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ͛Ɛ� ĂƐƐĞƚ� ĂůůŽĐĂƟŽŶ� ƌĞǀŝĞǁ͘��
^Ăŵ��Z��ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ƚǁŽ�ŶĞǁ�ůŽǁ-ǀŽůĂƟůŝƚǇ�ĞƋƵŝƚǇ�ŵĂŶĚĂƚĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŽŶĞ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ƌĞĂů�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ŵĂŶĚĂƚĞ͕�
ĂŶĚ� ĂůƐŽ� ŵĂĚĞ� Ă� ĐŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ� ƚŽ� ŽŶĞ� ŶĞǁ� ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ� ǁŝƚŚŝŶ� ŝƚƐ� ĮǆĞĚ� ŝŶĐŽŵĞ� ĐĂƚĞŐŽƌǇ͘��
/ŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƐƚ�ƉŚĂƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ�ŚĞĚŐĞ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵ�ĨŽƌ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂƟŽŶĂů�
ĞƋƵŝƚǇ�ŝƐ�ĂŶƟĐŝƉĂƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ�ďǇ�^ĞƉƚĞŵďĞƌ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͘�� 
 
�Ɛ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ĂůůŽĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�WŽůŝĐǇ�
ĂŶĚ�ĚĞƚĂŝůĞĚ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� /ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ^ĞĐƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ� ƚŚŝƐ� ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ŽŶůǇ� ƌĞĨůĞĐƚƐ� ƚŚĞ�ƉŽƌƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁůǇ�
ĂĚŽƉƚĞĚ� ĂůůŽĐĂƚŝŽŶ� ƚŚĂƚ�ŚĂƐ� ĂůƌĞĂĚǇ� ďĞĞŶ� ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĞĚ͘��ƵĞ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ�ŵƵůƚŝƉůĞ� ƉŚĂƐĞ� ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ͕�
^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ� /ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� WŽůŝĐǇ� ĚŽĞƐ� ŶŽƚ� ĐĂƉƚƵƌĞ� ƚŚĞ� ŶĞǁ� ƚĂƌŐĞƚ� ƉŽůŝĐǇ� ƐŽ� ƚŚĂƚ� ƚŚĞ�
ĂĐƚƵĂů�ĂůůŽĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ĚŽĞƐ�ŶŽƚ�ƐŝŐŶŝĨŝĐĂŶƚůǇ�ĚĞǀŝĂƚĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ͘ 
 
^Ăŵ��Z��ƌĞĐŽƌĚƐ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƚƌĂŶƐĂĐƚŝŽŶƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƚƌĂĚĞ�ĚĂƚĞ͘�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�Ăƚ�ĨĂŝƌ�
ǀĂůƵĞ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŝĐĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƐĞůů�ĂŶ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�Žƌ�ƉĂŝĚ�ƚŽ�ƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌ�Ă�
ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ� ŝŶ� ĂŶ� ŽƌĚĞƌůǇ� ƚƌĂŶƐĂĐƚŝŽŶ� ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ� ŵĂƌŬĞƚ� ƉĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂŶƚƐ� Ăƚ� ƚŚĞ� ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ĚĂƚĞ͘�
'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚĂů��ĐĐŽƵŶƚŝŶŐ�^ƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ��ŽĂƌĚ�;'�^�Ϳ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞƐ�Ă�ĨĂŝƌ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŚŝĞƌĂƌĐŚǇ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ��
ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ĚŝƐƚŝŶĐƚ�ƚǇƉĞƐ�ŽĨ�ŝŶƉƵƚ�ƚŽ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉ�ƚŚĞ�ĨĂŝƌ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘� 
 
· >ĞǀĞů�ϭ�ƌĞĨůĞĐƚƐ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƋƵŽƚĞĚ�ƉƌŝĐĞƐ�;ƵŶĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚͿ�ĨŽƌ�ŝĚĞŶƚŝĐĂů�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�Žƌ�

ůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ�ŝŶ�ĂĐƚŝǀĞ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�Ă�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�ĐĂŶ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ĚĂƚĞ͘ 
 
· >ĞǀĞů� Ϯ� ƌĞĨůĞĐƚƐ� ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ� ďĂƐĞĚ� ŽŶ� ŝŶƉƵƚƐ͕� ŽƚŚĞƌ� ƚŚĂŶ� ƋƵŽƚĞĚ� ƉƌŝĐĞƐ͕� ƚŚĂƚ� ĂƌĞ�

ŽďƐĞƌǀĂďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĂŶ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�Žƌ�Ă�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ĞŝƚŚĞƌ�ĚŝƌĞĐƚůǇ�Žƌ�ŝŶĚŝƌĞĐƚůǇ͘ 
 
· >ĞǀĞů�ϯ��ƌĞĨůĞĐƚƐ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƵŶŽďƐĞƌǀĂďůĞ�ŝŶƉƵƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĂŶ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�Žƌ�Ă�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ͘ 
 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  49 

dŚĞ�ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚĞĐŚŶŝƋƵĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĞĂĐŚ�ƚǇƉĞ�ŽĨ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŝƐ�ĂƐ�ĨŽůůŽǁƐ͗ 
 
�ĂƐŚ�ĂŶĚ� ĐĂƐŚ�ĞƋƵŝǀĂůĞŶƚƐ͘� �ĂƐŚ� ŝƐ� ƉŽŽůĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ� ĨƵŶĚƐ�ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�Žƌ� ĐƵƐƚŽĚŝĂŶƐ͕� ĂƐ�
ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ͕� ƚŽ� ĞĂƌŶ� Ă� ŚŝŐŚĞƌ� ƌĂƚĞ� ŽĨ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ� ƚŚĂŶ� ĐŽƵůĚ� ďĞ� ĞĂƌŶĞĚ� ďǇ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ� ĨƵŶĚƐ�
ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůůǇ͘� /Ŷ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ�ƉŽŽůĞĚ�ĐĂƐŚ�ǁŝƚŚ� ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĐƵƐƚŽĚŝĂŶƐ͕�Ăůů�ŚŝŐŚůǇ� ůŝƋƵŝĚ�
ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ� ǁŝƚŚ� ŵĂƚƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ� ŽĨ� ƚŚƌĞĞ� ŵŽŶƚŚƐ� Žƌ� ůĞƐƐ� ǁŚĞŶ� ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞĚ� ĂƌĞ� ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ� ĐĂƐŚ�
ĞƋƵŝǀĂůĞŶƚƐ͘ 
 
^ŚŽƌƚ-ƚĞƌŵ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ͘�^ŚŽƌƚ-ƚĞƌŵ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�Ăƚ�ĐŽƐƚ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞƐ�ĨĂŝƌ�
ǀĂůƵĞ͘�^ŚŽƌƚ-ƚĞƌŵ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ĐĂƐŚ�ŚĞůĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽŶĞǇ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƌĞ�
ƌĞĂĚŝůǇ�ĐŽŶǀĞƌƚŝďůĞ�ƚŽ�ĐĂƐŚ͘ 
 
WƵďůŝĐ� ĞƋƵŝƚǇ� ĂŶĚ� ĨŝǆĞĚ� ŝŶĐŽŵĞ� ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ͘� sĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶƐ� ĨŽƌ� ƉƵďůŝĐůǇ� ƚƌĂĚĞĚ� ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ͕� ƐƵĐŚ� ĂƐ�
ƐƚŽĐŬƐ� ĂŶĚ� ďŽŶĚƐ͕� ĂƌĞ� ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ� ďǇ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ĐƵƐƚŽĚŝĂŶ͕� ƚŚĞ� EŽƌƚŚĞƌŶ� dƌƵƐƚ� �ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚŝŽŶ͕�
ďĂƐĞĚ� ŽŶ� ĞŶĚ-ŽĨ-ĚĂǇ� ƉƌŝĐĞƐ� ĨƌŽŵ� ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů� ƉƌŝĐŝŶŐ� ǀĞŶĚŽƌƐ͘� dŚĞ� ĨĂŝƌ� ǀĂůƵĞƐ� ŽĨ� ƉƵďůŝĐ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ�
ĞƋƵŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĨŝǆĞĚ�ŝŶĐŽŵĞ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ŚĞůĚ� ŝŶ�/ŶƐƚŝƚƵƚŝŽŶĂů��ŽŵŵŝŶŐůĞĚ�&ƵŶĚƐ�Žƌ�WĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉƐ�
ĂƌĞ� ƚǇƉŝĐĂůůǇ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ďǇ�Ă� ƚŚŝƌĚ�ƉĂƌƚǇ� ĨƵŶĚ�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŽƌ͕�ǁŚŽ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵƐ�ƚŚŝƐ� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ�
ĨƵŶĚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌ͘ 
 
ZĞĂů� ĞƐƚĂƚĞ͘� ZĞĂů� ĞƐƚĂƚĞ� ĂƐƐĞƚƐ� ĂƌĞ� ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ� Ăƚ� ĨĂŝƌ� ǀĂůƵĞ͕� ƵƚŝůŝǌŝŶŐ� ĂŶ� ŝŶĐŽŵĞ� ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚ� ƚŽ�
ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ͘��Ŷ�ŝŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ�ĂƉƉƌĂŝƐĂů�ŝƐ�ĐŽŶĚƵĐƚĞĚ�ĞǀĞƌǇ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĨĂŝƌ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ�ƌĞĂů�ĞƐƚĂƚĞ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ͘� 
 
WƌŝǀĂƚĞ�ĞƋƵŝƚǇ� ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŝǀĂƚĞ� ƌĞĂů� ĂƐƐĞƚƐ͘� WƌŝǀĂƚĞ�ĞƋƵŝƚǇ� ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŝǀĂƚĞ� ƌĞĂů� ĂƐƐĞƚ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉƐ� ĂƌĞ�
ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ� ƚŚĞ� ĨĂŝƌ� ǀĂůƵĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ďǇ� ƚŚĞ�'ĞŶĞƌĂů� WĂƌƚŶĞƌ�ŽŶ�Ă�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌůǇ�ďĂƐŝƐ͘� dŚĞ�
'ĞŶĞƌĂů� WĂƌƚŶĞƌ� ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌƐ� ƚŚĞ� ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ĐŽŶĚŝƚŝŽŶƐ� ĂŶĚ� ŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŶŐ� ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ƉŽƌƚĨŽůŝŽ�
ĐŽŵƉĂŶŝĞƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ŶĂƚƵƌĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ͕�ŵĂƌŬĞƚĂďŝůŝƚǇ͕�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƌĞůĞǀĂŶƚ�ĨĂĐƚŽƌƐ͘ 
 
ZŝƐŬ�ƉĂƌŝƚǇ͕�ŚĞĚŐĞ�ĨƵŶĚƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ƌĞĂů�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ƉŽŽů͘�dŚĞƐĞ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�
ƚŚĞ�ĨĂŝƌ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ďǇ�Ă�ƚŚŝƌĚ�ƉĂƌƚǇ�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŽƌ͕�ǁŚŽ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵƐ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵŶĚ�
ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌ͘ 
 
&ŽƌĞŝŐŶ��ƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ�dƌĂŶƐĂĐƚŝŽŶƐ 
'ĂŝŶƐ�ĂŶĚ� ůŽƐƐĞƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĨŽƌĞŝŐŶ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐĂĐƚŝŽŶƐ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ� ;ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƚƌĂŶƐůĂƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�
ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂƚŝŽŶĂů� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ� Ăƚ� ĨŝƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ-ĞŶĚ� ƌĂƚĞƐ� ŽĨ� ĞǆĐŚĂŶŐĞͿ� ĂƌĞ� ƌĞĐŽƌĚĞĚ� ĂƐ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�
ŝŶĐŽŵĞ͘�&ŽƌǁĂƌĚ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�ďǇ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶƚƌŽů�
ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ� ĞǆƉŽƐƵƌĞ� ĂŶĚ� ĨĂĐŝůŝƚĂƚĞ� ƚŚĞ� ƐĞƚƚůĞŵĞŶƚ� ŽĨ� ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂƚŝŽŶĂů� ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚǇ� ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞ� ĂŶĚ� ƐĂůĞ�
ƚƌĂŶƐĂĐƚŝŽŶƐ͘� dŚĞƐĞ� ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐ� ĂƌĞ� ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚƐ� ƚŽ� ĞǆĐŚĂŶŐĞ� ĚŝĨĨĞƌĞŶƚ� ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐŝĞƐ� Ăƚ� ƐƉĞĐŝĨŝĞĚ�
ƌĂƚĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĞƚƚůĞŵĞŶƚ�ĚĂƚĞƐ͘��ŝĨĨĞƌĞŶĐĞƐ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ�ĞǆĐŚĂŶŐĞ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�Ăƚ�
ƐĞƚƚůĞŵĞŶƚ�ƌĞƐƵůƚ� ŝŶ�ŐĂŝŶƐ�Žƌ� ůŽƐƐĞƐ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĂƌĞ� ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ� ŝŶ�ŶĞƚ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ŝŶĐŽŵĞ͘�ZŝƐŬƐ�ŵĂǇ�
ĂƌŝƐĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ�ŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ĐŽƵŶƚĞƌƉĂƌƚŝĞƐ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƚĞƌŵƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐ�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�
ĂƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ŵŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�ĞǆĐŚĂŶŐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ƌĂƚĞƐ͘ 
 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 



50  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

^ĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ�>ĞŶĚŝŶŐ��ĐƚŝǀŝƚǇ� 
^ĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ�ůĞŶĚŝŶŐ�ƚƌĂŶƐĂĐƚŝŽŶƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƐŚŽƌƚ-ƚĞƌŵ�ĐŽůůĂƚĞƌĂůŝǌĞĚ�ůŽĂŶƐ�ŽĨ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�
ƚŚĞ� ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞ� ŽĨ� ŐĞŶĞƌĂƚŝŶŐ� ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ŝŶĐŽŵĞ͘� &Žƌ� ĞĂĐŚ� ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ� ůĞŶĚŝŶŐ�
ƚƌĂŶƐĂĐƚŝŽŶ͕� ^Ăŵ��Z�� ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞƐ� ĞŝƚŚĞƌ� ĐĂƐŚ� ĐŽůůĂƚĞƌĂů� Žƌ� ŶŽŶ-ĐĂƐŚ� ĐŽůůĂƚĞƌĂů͘� dŚĞ� ƵŶĚĞƌůǇŝŶŐ�
ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ�ŽƵƚ�ŽŶ�ůŽĂŶ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ŽŶ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�&ŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�EĞƚ�WŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ĂƐ�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ůĞŶĚŝŶŐ�ƚƌĂŶƐĂĐƚŝŽŶ�ŚĂĚ�ŶŽƚ�ŽĐĐƵƌƌĞĚ͘ 
 
/Ŷ�ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�'�^��^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�EŽ͘�Ϯϴ͕��ĐĐŽƵŶƚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ZĞƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�^ĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ�
>ĞŶĚŝŶŐ�dƌĂŶƐĂĐƚŝŽŶƐ͕�ĐĂƐŚ�ĐŽůůĂƚĞƌĂů�ŚĞůĚ�;Žƌ�ĂŶǇ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚǇ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ƐŽůĚ�Žƌ�ƉůĞĚŐĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�
Ă�ďŽƌƌŽǁĞƌ�ĚĞĨĂƵůƚͿ�ŝƐ�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞůǇ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�&ŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�EĞƚ�WŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ĂŵŽŶŐ�
ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ͘���ĐŽƌƌĞƐƉŽŶĚŝŶŐ�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ĂŶ�ĞƋƵĂů�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�;ƚŚĞ�ŽďůŝŐĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ĐĂƐŚ� ĐŽůůĂƚĞƌĂůͿ� ŝƐ� ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ� ƐŝŵƵůƚĂŶĞŽƵƐůǇ͘� EŽŶ-ĐĂƐŚ� ĐŽůůĂƚĞƌĂů� ŚĞůĚ� ƚŚĂƚ� ĐĂŶŶŽƚ� ďĞ� ƐŽůĚ� Žƌ�
ƉůĞĚŐĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�Ă�ďŽƌƌŽǁĞƌ�ĚĞĨĂƵůƚ�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�&ŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�EĞƚ�WŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�
ŶŽƌ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�Ă�ĐŽƌƌĞƐƉŽŶĚŝŶŐ�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ͘�� 
 
/ŶĐŽŵĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ 
/ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ� ŝŶĐŽŵĞ� ŝƐ� ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞĚ� ĂƐ� ŝƚ� ŝƐ� ĞĂƌŶĞĚ͘� �ŝǀŝĚĞŶĚ� ŝŶĐŽŵĞ� ŝƐ� ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞĚ� ǁŚĞŶ� ŝƚ� ŝƐ�
ĚĞĐůĂƌĞĚ͘�ZĞĂůŝǌĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƵŶƌĞĂůŝǌĞĚ�ŐĂŝŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ůŽƐƐĞƐ�ŽŶ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĐŽŵďŝŶĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�
ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞƚ�ĂƉƉƌĞĐŝĂƚŝŽŶ�;ĚĞƉƌĞĐŝĂƚŝŽŶͿ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨĂŝƌ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ͘ 
 
ZĞĐĞŝǀĂďůĞƐ� 
ZĞĐĞŝǀĂďůĞƐ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚ�ƉƌŝŵĂƌŝůǇ�ŽĨ� ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ͕�ĚŝǀŝĚĞŶĚƐ͕� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ� ŝŶ�ƚƌĂŶƐŝƚŝŽŶ�;ƚƌĂĚĞĚ�ďƵƚ�ŶŽƚ�
ǇĞƚ�ƐĞƚƚůĞĚͿ͕�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ŽǁĞĚ�ďǇ�ƉĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂƚŝŶŐ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ͘� 
 
�ĂƉŝƚĂů��ƐƐĞƚƐ� 
�ĂƉŝƚĂů� ĂƐƐĞƚƐ͕� ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ� ŝŶƚĂŶŐŝďůĞ� ĂƐƐĞƚƐ͕� ĂƌĞ� ŝƚĞŵƐ� ǁŝƚŚ� ĂŶ� ŝŶŝƚŝĂů� ƵŶŝƚ� ĐŽƐƚ� ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌ� ƚŚĂŶ�
Ψϱ͕ϬϬϬ� ĂŶĚ� ĂŶ� ĞƐƚŝŵĂƚĞĚ� ƵƐĞĨƵů� ůŝĨĞ� ŝŶ� ĞǆĐĞƐƐ� ŽĨ� ƚŚƌĞĞ� ǇĞĂƌƐ͘� �ĂƉŝƚĂů� ĂƐƐĞƚƐ� ĂƌĞ� ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ� Ăƚ�
ĂĐƋƵŝƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ǀĂůƵĞ͕�ŶĞƚ�ŽĨ�ĂĐĐƵŵƵůĂƚĞĚ�ĚĞƉƌĞĐŝĂƚŝŽŶ͘��ĐƋƵŝƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ǀĂůƵĞ� ŝƐ� ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŝĐĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�
ďĞ�ƉĂŝĚ�ƚŽ�ĂĐƋƵŝƌĞ�ĂŶ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĞƋƵŝǀĂůĞŶƚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ�ŝŶ�ĂŶ�ŽƌĚĞƌůǇ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ�ƚƌĂŶƐĂĐƚŝŽŶ�Ăƚ�
ƚŚĞ� ĂĐƋƵŝƐŝƚŝŽŶ� ĚĂƚĞ͘� �ĞƉƌĞĐŝĂƚŝŽŶ� ŝƐ� ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ� ƵƐŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ� ƐƚƌĂŝŐŚƚ-ůŝŶĞ� ŵĞƚŚŽĚ� ŽǀĞƌ� ƚŚĞ�
ĞƐƚŝŵĂƚĞĚ�ƵƐĞĨƵů� ůŝǀĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ͕� ƌĂŶŐŝŶŐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ƚŽ�ƚĞŶ�ǇĞĂƌƐ͘�DŽƐƚ�ĐĂƉŝƚĂů�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�
ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ� ƚĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ� ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ͘� dŚĞ� ĞƐƚŝŵĂƚĞĚ�ƵƐĞĨƵů� ůŝĨĞ� ĨŽƌ� ŚĂƌĚǁĂƌĞ� ŝƐ� ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ� ƚŽ� ďĞ�
ĨŝǀĞ� ǇĞĂƌƐ͕� ĂŶĚ� ĨŽƌ� ƐŽĨƚǁĂƌĞ� ŝƐ� ƚĞŶ� ǇĞĂƌƐ͘� dŚĞ� ƌŽƵƚŝŶĞ� ƵƉŐƌĂĚĞ� ŽĨ� ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ� ƚĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ�
ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ͕�ŚĂƌĚǁĂƌĞ͕�ƐŽĨƚǁĂƌĞ͕�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�ĂƌĞ�ĚĞĞŵĞĚ�ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ�ĂƐ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�
ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ� ǇĞĂƌ͘� �Ɛ� ŽĨ� :ƵŶĞ� ϯϬ͕� ϮϬϭϵ͕� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ƚŽƚĂů� ĐĂƉŝƚĂů� ĂƐƐĞƚƐ͕� ŶĞƚ� ŽĨ� ĂĐĐƵŵƵůĂƚĞĚ�
ĚĞƉƌĞĐŝĂƚŝŽŶ͕�ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�Ψϲ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ͘ 
 
�ƐƚŝŵĂƚĞƐ 
dŚĞ� ƉƌĞƉĂƌĂƚŝŽŶ� ŽĨ� ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ� ŝŶ� ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ� ǁŝƚŚ� '��W� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� hŶŝƚĞĚ� ^ƚĂƚĞƐ� ŽĨ�
�ŵĞƌŝĐĂ� ŵĂǇ� ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞ� ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ� ƚŽ� ŵĂŬĞ� ĞƐƚŝŵĂƚĞƐ� ĂŶĚ� ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ� ƚŚĂƚ� ĂĨĨĞĐƚ� ĐĞƌƚĂŝŶ�
ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚŝƐĐůŽƐƵƌĞƐ͘���ĐĐŽƌĚŝŶŐůǇ͕�ĂĐƚƵĂů�ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ�ŵĂǇ�ĚŝĨĨĞƌ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ĞƐƚŝŵĂƚĞƐ͘ 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  51 

^ƵďƐĞƋƵĞŶƚ��ǀĞŶƚƐ 
^ƵďƐĞƋƵĞŶƚ� ĞǀĞŶƚƐ� ĂƌĞ� ƚŚŽƐĞ� ĞǀĞŶƚƐ� Žƌ� ƚƌĂŶƐĂĐƚŝŽŶƐ� ƚŚĂƚ� ŽĐĐƵƌ� ƐƵďƐĞƋƵĞŶƚ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ǇĞĂƌ-ĞŶĚ�
ĚĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ͕�ďƵƚ�ƉƌŝŽƌ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŝƐƐƵĂŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�ĨŝŶĂů�ƌĞƉŽƌƚƐ�ŽŶ�KĐƚŽďĞƌ�Ϯϭ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕�
ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŵĂǇ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂů�ĞĨĨĞĐƚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ�Žƌ�ĚŝƐĐůŽƐƵƌĞƐ�ĐŽŶƚĂŝŶĞĚ�ƚŚĞƌĞŝŶ͘�
�ĨƚĞƌ� ƚŚĞ� ĨŝƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ-ĞŶĚ͕� ƚŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ĂƉƉƌŽǀĞĚ� Ă� ΨϯϬ� ŵŝůůŝŽŶ� ĐŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ� ƚŽ� Ă� ƌĞĂů� ĞƐƚĂƚĞ�
ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ŽŶ�:ƵůǇ�ϭϲ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͘ 
 
ZĞĐůĂƐƐŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐ 
�ŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ϮϬϭϴ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƌĞĐůĂƐƐŝĨŝĞĚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚǁŽ�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞ�
ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚƐ� ;͞ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ͟�ĂƐ� ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƐƚĂƚƵƚĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�͞ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ƐƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ͟Ϳ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶĨŽƌŵ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ϮϬϭϵ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĂƚŝŽŶ͘ 
 
EŽƚĞ�ϯ͗�&ƵŶĚŝŶŐ�WŽůŝĐǇ 
 
dŚĞ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ŽďũĞĐƚŝǀĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ƉůĂŶ�ŝƐ�ƚŽ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�
ƌĂƚĞƐ�ǁŚŝĐŚ͕�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŝŵĞ͕�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƐƵĨĨŝĐŝĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƉĂǇ�Ăůů�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ�ŶŽƚ�ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�
ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ� ĂƐƐĞƚƐ͘� WĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂƚŝŶŐ� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ� ĂƌĞ� ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ� ďǇ� ƐƚĂƚƵƚĞ� ƚŽ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚĞ� ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ�
ŶĞĐĞƐƐĂƌǇ� ƚŽ� ĨƵŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� ĞƐƚŝŵĂƚĞĚ� ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ� ĂĐĐƌƵŝŶŐ� ƚŽ� ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ� ŶŽƚ� ŽƚŚĞƌǁŝƐĞ� ĨƵŶĚĞĚ� ďǇ�
ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐƐ�Žƌ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ͘� 
 
dŚĞ� ��Z>� ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞƐ� ƚŚĞ� ďĂƐŝĐ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ� ŽďůŝŐĂƚŝŽŶƐ� ĨŽƌ� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ� ĂŶĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ�
ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ƉůĂŶ͘�dŚĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ĂĚŽƉƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ĂƌĞ�ďĂƐĞĚ�
ŽŶ� ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂƚŝŽŶƐ� ĨƌŽŵ� ĂŶ� ŝŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌǇ� ŝŶ� ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ� ǁŝƚŚ� ŵĞŵďĞƌƐŚŝƉ� ƚǇƉĞ�
;'ĞŶĞƌĂů͕�^ĂĨĞƚǇ͕�ĂŶĚ�WƌŽďĂƚŝŽŶͿ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂŶ�ŝŶ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�Ă�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ďĞůŽŶŐƐ͘� 
 
�ŵƉůŽǇĞƌ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ� ƌĂƚĞƐ� ĨŽƌ� ĞĂĐŚ� ƉůĂŶ� ĂƌĞ� ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ� ƉƵƌƐƵĂŶƚ� ƚŽ� 'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ� �ŽĚĞ�
^ĞĐƚŝŽŶ� ϯϭϰϱϯ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ��Z>͕� ƵƐŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ� ĞŶƚƌǇ� ĂŐĞ� ŶŽƌŵĂů� ĐŽƐƚ� ŵĞƚŚŽĚ� ďĂƐĞĚ� ƵƉŽŶ� Ă� ůĞǀĞů�
ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ� ŽĨ� ƉƌŽũĞĐƚĞĚ� ƉĂǇƌŽůů͘� dŚĞƐĞ� ƌĂƚĞƐ� ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ� ĂŶ� ĞƐƚŝŵĂƚĞĚ� ĂŵŽƵŶƚ� ŶĞĐĞƐƐĂƌǇ� ƚŽ�
ĨŝŶĂŶĐĞ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ�ĞĂƌŶĞĚ�ďǇ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ǇĞĂƌ�;ŶŽƌŵĂů�ĐŽƐƚͿ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŶ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ƚŽ�
ĂŵŽƌƚŝǌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƵŶĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ĂĐĐƌƵĞĚ�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�;h��>Ϳ͘��hŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ŵĞƚŚŽĚ͕�
ƚŚĞ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϬϴ�h��>�ŝƐ�ĂŵŽƌƚŝǌĞĚ�ŽǀĞƌ�Ă�ĨŝǆĞĚ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ĞŶĚŝŶŐ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϮϯ͘��ŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�
h��>�ŝŶ�ƐƵďƐĞƋƵĞŶƚ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĂŵŽƌƚŝǌĞĚ�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞůǇ�ŽǀĞƌ�ŶĞǁ�ϭϱ-ǇĞĂƌ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�
ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ�ĚĂƚĞ�Ăƚ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĚŝĨĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ŝƐ�ĐĂůĐƵůĂƚĞĚ͘� 

/Ŷ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶŝŶŐ�ďŽƚŚ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞƐ͕�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŵĂĚĞ�ĂďŽƵƚ�
ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ĞǀĞŶƚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŵĂǇ�ĂĨĨĞĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŝŵŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƉĂŝĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�
ĂĐĐƵŵƵůĂƚĞĚ͘�DĞƚŚŽĚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĚŝƐĐƵƐƐĞĚ�ŝŶ�
ƚŚĞ�ZĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƌǇ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ��ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�^ĞĐƚŝŽŶƐ͘�dŚĞ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�
ƉůĂŶ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ�ŝƐ�ŶŽƌŵĂůůǇ�ĐĂƌƌŝĞĚ�ŽƵƚ�ĂƐ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ�ŽĨ�ĞĂĐŚ�ǇĞĂƌ͘�dŚĞ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�
ƌĂƚĞƐ� ĂƐ� ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ� Ăƚ� :ƵŶĞ� ϯϬ͕� ϮϬϭϵ͕� ĂƌĞ� ƐƵďũĞĐƚ� ƚŽ� ͞ŽŶĞ� ǇĞĂƌ͟� ĚĞĨĞƌƌĂů͘� dŚƵƐ͕� ƚŚĞ� ŶĞǁ�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�:ƵŶĞ�ϮϬϭϵ�ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ�ĂƌĞ�ĞĨĨĞĐƚŝǀĞ�ŽŶ�:ƵůǇ�ϭ͕�ϮϬϮϬ͘ 
 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 



52  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

EŽƚĞ�ϰ͗�DĞŵďĞƌ��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ 
 
dŚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ǀĂƌǇ�ďǇ�ĞŶƚƌǇ�ĂŐĞ�ĂƐ�ĚĞƐĐƌŝďĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ���Z>͘�/Ŷ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů͕�ƚŚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�
ƌĂƚĞ� ŝƐ� ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ� ďǇ� ƚŚĞ� ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ� ǀĂůƵĞ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ĨƵƚƵƌĞ� ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ� ƉĂǇĂďůĞ� Ăƚ� ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ĂŐĞ͕�
ĚŝǀŝĚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ƐĂůĂƌŝĞƐ�ƉĂǇĂďůĞ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ĞŶƚƌǇ�ĂŐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�
ĂŐĞ͘���ĐƚŝǀĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŬĞ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ĂƐ�ĚĞƐĐƌŝďĞĚ�ďĞůŽǁ͗ 
 
· �ĂƐŝĐ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂƐ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶƚƌǇ�ĂŐĞ�;ĞǆĐĞƉƚ�ĨŽƌ�

ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ� ŝŶ�WůĂŶ�ϯ� ĂŶĚ�WůĂŶ�ϳͿ� ĂŶĚ� ĐůĂƐƐ�ŽĨ�ĞĂĐŚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ͘��ĂƐŝĐ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ� ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�
ĐĞĂƐĞ�ǁŚĞŶ�ƐĂĨĞƚǇ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ƌĞĂĐŚ�ϯϬ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŽĨ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘� 

· �ŽƐƚ�ƐŚĂƌŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ĂƉƉůǇ�ƚŽ�'ĞŶĞƌĂů�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ� ŝŶ�WůĂŶƐ�ϭ͕�Ϯ͕�ĂŶĚ�ϰ�;ĞǆĐĞƉƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�
�ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚͿ� ĂŶĚ� ^ĂĨĞƚǇ� ĂŶĚ� WƌŽďĂƚŝŽŶ� ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ� ŝŶ� WůĂŶƐ� ϭ͕� Ϯ͕� ϰ͕� ĂŶĚ� ϱ͘� dŚĞ� ĐŽƐƚ� ƐŚĂƌŝŶŐ�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ǀĂƌǇ�ĂŵŽŶŐ�ďĂƌŐĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƵŶŝƚƐ͘� 

· �K>��ĐŽƐƚ�ƐŚĂƌŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ĂƉƉůǇ�ƚŽ�Ăůů�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ŽĨ�WůĂŶƐ�ϭ͕�Ϯ͕�ϰ͕�ϱ͕�ĂŶĚ�ϲ�;ĞǆĐĞƉƚ�ƚŚĞ�
�ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚͿ͘��ůů�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ� ŝŶ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƉůĂŶƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚĞ�ϱϬй�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƐƚ�ŽĨ��K>�͘�
�ĨĨĞĐƚŝǀĞ� :ƵůǇ� ϮϬϭϴ͕� ƚŚĞ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ͛Ɛ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ŽĨ� ^ƵƉĞƌǀŝƐŽƌƐ� ĂƌĞ� ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ� ƚŽ�ŵĂŬĞ� �K>�� ĐŽƐƚ�
ƐŚĂƌŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ͘ 

dŚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ� ƌĂƚĞ� ĨŽƌ� Ăůů� ƉůĂŶƐ� ĐŽŵďŝŶĞĚ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ� ĨƌŽŵ� ϭϮ͘Ϭϳй� ŝŶ� ĨŝƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ�
ϮϬϭϴ�ƚŽ�ϭϮ͘ϰϬй�ŝŶ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ϮϬϭϵ͘�dŚĞ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝƐ�ŵĂŝŶůǇ�ƚƌŝŐŐĞƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ�
ƚŚĂƚ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƵƐĞĚ� ŝŶ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ� ƌĂƚĞƐ� ĨŽƌ� ĨŝƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ� ϮϬϭϴ-ϭϵ͘� WůĂŶ�ϯ� ŝƐ�ŶŽŶ-
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŽƌǇ͕� ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁĂƐ� ŽƉĞŶ� ŽŶůǇ� ĨŽƌ� 'ĞŶĞƌĂů�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ͕� ďƵƚ� ǁĂƐ� ĐůŽƐĞĚ� ƚŽ� ŶĞǁ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�
ĂĨƚĞƌ��ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϮ͕�ϮϬϭϮ͘�^ĞĐƚŝŽŶ�ϳϱϮϮ͘ϯϬ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŽĚĞ�ĚĞĨŝŶĞĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�
WůĂŶ�ϳ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ͘��ůů�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ŽĨ� WůĂŶ�ϳ� ĂƌĞ� ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ� ƚŽ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚĞ�ϱϬй�ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ƚŽƚĂů�ŶŽƌŵĂů�
ĐŽƐƚ�ƌĂƚĞ�ƐƉĞĐŝĨŝĐ�ƚŽ�ĞĂĐŚ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů�ĐůĂƐƐ�;ŝ͘Ğ͕͘�'ĞŶĞƌĂů͕�^ĂĨĞƚǇ͕�ĂŶĚ�WƌŽďĂƚŝŽŶͿ͘� 

EŽƚĞ�ϱ͗��ŵƉůŽǇĞƌ��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ 
 
dŚĞ� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ� ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ� ƌĂƚĞ� ŝƐ� ƐĞƚ� ďǇ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ� ƚŚĞ� ĂŶŶƵĂů� ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�
ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ͘�&Žƌ� ƚŚĞ� ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ� :ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕� ƚŚĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞ�
ĨŽƌ� Ăůů� ƉůĂŶƐ� ĐŽŵďŝŶĞĚ�ǁĂƐ�ϯϱ͘ϯϭй�ŽĨ� ĂĐƚƵĂů� ĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ�ƉĂǇƌŽůů͕�ǁŝƚŚ�ϭϬ͘ϵϱй�ĂƚƚƌŝďƵƚĞĚ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ�
ŶŽƌŵĂů�ĐŽƐƚ�ĂŶĚ�Ϯϰ͘ϯϲй�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�h��>͘�dŚĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ĂƐ�ŽĨ�ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�
ŽĨ�ĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ�ƉĂǇƌŽůů͕�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŶŽƌŵĂů�ĐŽƐƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�h��>͕�ĂƌĞ�ƐŚŽǁŶ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƚĂďůĞ�ďĞůŽǁ͘ 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

�ÃÖ½Êù�Ù�^ã�ãçãÊÙù��ÊÄãÙ®�çã®ÊÄ�Z�ã�Ý��Ý���W�Ù��Äã�¦���Ê¥��Êò�Ù���
W�ùÙÊ½½ 

2019 2018 Change
Normal Cost 10.95% 10.24% 0.71%
UAAL Amortization 24.36% 23.52% 0.84%

Total Employer Rate 35.31% 33.76% 1.55%



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  53 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

dŚĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ŶŽƌŵĂů�ĐŽƐƚ�ƌĂƚĞ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ϭϬ͘Ϯϰй�ŽĨ�ĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ�ƉĂǇƌŽůů�ĨŽƌ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ϮϬϭϴ�
ƚŽ�ϭϬ͘ϵϱй�ĨŽƌ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ϮϬϭϵ͘�dŚĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞ�ƚŽ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�h��>�
ŽǀĞƌ� ϭϱ� ǇĞĂƌƐ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ� ĨƌŽŵ� Ϯϯ͘ϱϮй� ŽĨ� ĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ� ƉĂǇƌŽůů� ĨŽƌ� ĨŝƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ� ϮϬϭϴ� ƚŽ� Ϯϰ͘ϯϲй� ĨŽƌ�
ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ϮϬϭϵ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŵĂŝŶůǇ�ƚƌŝŐŐĞƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ�
ĚŝƐĐƵƐƐĞĚ�ĞĂƌůŝĞƌ͘���ĞůŽǁ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ��ŵƉůŽǇĞƌ��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ĐŽǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƐƚ�ƚĞŶ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�
ǇĞĂƌƐ͘ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ 
/Ŷ�EŽǀĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϯ͕� ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ� ƌĞĂĐŚĞĚ� ĂŶ� ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ� ^Ăŵ��Z�� ƚŽ� ĂĐĐĞůĞƌĂƚĞ� ƚŚĞ�ƉĂǇ�
ĚŽǁŶ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ͛Ɛ� h��>͘� hŶĚĞƌ� ƚŚŝƐ� ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ͕� ƚŚĞ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ� ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ� Ă� ƐƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ΨϱϬ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ�ŝŶ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ϮϬϭϰ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ŽĨ�ΨϭϬ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�
ŶĞǆƚ� ŶŝŶĞ� ǇĞĂƌƐ͘� �� ŶĞǁ� ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ͕� ŬŶŽǁŶ� ĂƐ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ� ^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů� �ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ� �ĐĐŽƵŶƚ�
;�^��Ϳ͕�ǁĂƐ�ƐĞƚ�ƵƉ�ƚŽ�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞůǇ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ͘� 
 
 

^�«��ç½��Ê¥��ÃÖ½Êù�Ù��ÊÄãÙ®�çã®ÊÄÝ� 

;�ŽůůĂƌƐ�/Ŷ�dŚŽƵƐĂŶĚƐͿ 

(a) (b) (a) - (b)
Actual 

Employer 
Contributions

Actuarially 
Determined 

Contributions
Supplemental 
Contributions

$106,265 $106,265 $0 100%
150,475 150,475 0 100%

150,950 139,407 11,543 100%

144,308 131,294 13,014 100%

202,877 152,877 50,000         (1) 100%

180,704 169,814 10,890         (2) 100%

191,094 170,046 21,048         (3) 100%

198,727 164,877 33,850         (4) 100%

207,257 179,627 27,630         (5) 100%

245,498 194,830 50,668         (6) 100%

         (1)

         (2)

         (3)

         (4)

         (5)

         (6)

Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30

The County made a supplemental contribution of $50 million to accelerate the pay down of its UAAL.

The County made a supplemental contribution of $10.9 million to accelerate the pay down of its UAAL.

Percentage of Actuarially 
Determined 

Contributions Received

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2010

2019

2016

2017

2018

The County and the District contributed additional funding of $33.6 million and $0.25 million, respectively, to 
accelerate the pay down of their UAAL.

The County and the District contributed additional funding of $19.5 million and $1.5 million, respectively, to 
accelerate the pay down of their UAAL.

The County made a supplemental contribution of $50.7 million to accelerate the pay down of its UAAL.
The County made a supplemental contribution of $27.6  million to accelerate the pay down of its UAAL.



54  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

�ĞƉŽƐŝƚƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��^���ǁŝůů�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĐƚƵĂů�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ƌĂƚĞ͕�ŶĞƚ�ŽĨ�
ĨĞĞƐ� ĂŶĚ� ĐŽƐƚƐ͘� /Ŷ� ĨŝƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ� ϮϬϭϵ͕� ƚŚĞ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚĞĚ� ΨϱϬ͘ϳ� ŵŝůůŝŽŶ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� �^��� ŝŶ�
ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ŝƚƐ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ͘��Ɛ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕�ƚŚĞ��^���ŚĂĚ�ĂŶ�ĂŐŐƌĞŐĂƚĞ�
ƌĞƐĞƌǀĞ� ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ� ďĂůĂŶĐĞ� ŽĨ� Ψϭϴϴ͘ϴ� ŵŝůůŝŽŶ͘� dŚĞ� ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� �^��� ĂƌĞ� ƐǇƐƚĞŵĂƚŝĐĂůůǇ�
ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞĚ� ƚŽ� ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ� ĂŶ� ŽĨĨƐĞƚ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ͛Ɛ� ^ƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ� �ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ� ZĂƚĞ͘� tŝƚŚŽƵƚ� ƚŚĞ�
ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��^��͕�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ͛Ɛ�ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ͘� 
 
dŚĞ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ� ƉĂŝĚ� ŝƚƐ� ĂŶŶƵĂů� ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ� ĨŽƌ� ĨŝƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ� ϮϬϭϵ� ǀŝĂ� ƚǁŽ� ƐĞŵŝ-ĂŶŶƵĂů�
ƉƌĞƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ�;ŽŶĞ�ŝŶ�:ƵůǇ�ϮϬϭϴ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŶŽƚŚĞƌ�ŝŶ�:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�ϮϬϭϵͿ͘�dŚĞ�ƉƌĞƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�
ƚŚĞ� ĂĚŽƉƚĞĚ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂůůǇ� ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ� ƌĂƚĞ� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� ƉƌŽũĞĐƚĞĚ� ĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ� ƉĂǇƌŽůů� ďǇ�
ƉůĂŶ͕� ĚŝƐĐŽƵŶƚĞĚ� ďǇ� ƚŚĞ� ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ƌĂƚĞ� ŽĨ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ͘� dŚƌŽƵŐŚŽƵƚ� ƚŚĞ� ǇĞĂƌ͕� ƚŚĞ�
ƉƌĞƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚŝĐĂůůǇ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂĐƚƵĂů�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ĂƐ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĚŽƉƚĞĚ�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ� ƌĂƚĞ� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� ĂĐƚƵĂů� ĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ� ƉĂǇƌŽůů� ďǇ� ƉůĂŶ͘� EĞĂƌ� ĨŝƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ-ĞŶĚ͕� ^Ăŵ��Z��
ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĞĚ�Ă�͞ƚƌƵĞ-ƵƉ͟�ĐĂůĐƵůĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ͛Ɛ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�
^Ăŵ��Z�� ǁĂƐ� ĨƵůůǇ� ƐĞƚƚůĞĚ͘� �ŶǇ� ĞǆĐĞƐƐ� ďĂůĂŶĐĞ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ƉƌĞƉĂǇŵĞŶƚ� ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ� ǁŝůů� ďĞ� ĂƉƉůŝĞĚ�
ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ͛Ɛ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƉĐŽŵŝŶŐ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ͘� 
 
^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů� �ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ� ĨƌŽŵ� ƚŚĞ� ^ĂŶ� DĂƚĞŽ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ� DŽƐƋƵŝƚŽ� ĂŶĚ� sĞĐƚŽƌ� �ŽŶƚƌŽů�
�ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ� 
/Ŷ�^ĞƉƚĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϱ͕�ƚŚĞ��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ�ĞŶƚĞƌĞĚ�ĂŶ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�^Ăŵ��Z��ƚŽ�ƉĂǇ�ĚŽǁŶ� ŝƚƐ�h��>�
ǁŝƚŚ� Ă� ƐŝŶŐůĞ�ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ� Ψϭ͘ϱ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ� ŝŶ� ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶ� ƚŽ� ŝƚƐ� ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ� ĨŽƌ� ĨŝƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ�
ϮϬϭϲ͘� dŚŝƐ� ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ǁĂƐ� ƌĞŵŝƚƚĞĚ� ƚŽ� ^Ăŵ��Z��ŽŶ�KĐƚŽďĞƌ�Ϯϵ͕� ϮϬϭϱ͘� ^Ăŵ��Z��ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ� Ă�
ŶĞǁ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ͕� ƚŚĞ��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ� ^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů� �ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ��ĐĐŽƵŶƚ� ;�^��Ϳ͕� ƚŽ� ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞůǇ� ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�
ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ͛Ɛ�ƐƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ͘��ĞƉŽƐŝƚƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��^���ůĞƐƐ�ƚŚĂŶ�Ɛŝǆ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ�ƉƌŝŽƌ�
ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŐƵůĂƌ� ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚŝŶŐ�ĚĂƚĞƐ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ�Žƌ��ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ�ϯϭ�ǁŝůů�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�
ĂĐƚƵĂů�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ƌĂƚĞ͕�ŶĞƚ�ŽĨ�ĨĞĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽƐƚƐ͘��ĞƉŽƐŝƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ŵŽƌĞ�ƚŚĂŶ�Ɛŝǆ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ�
ƉƌŝŽƌ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ĐƌĞĚŝƚŝŶŐ� ĚĂƚĞ� ǁŝůů� ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞ� ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ� Ăƚ� ƚŚĞ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂůůǇ� ĐĂůĐƵůĂƚĞĚ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ� ŽŶ� ƚŚĞ�
ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů� ǀĂůƵĞ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� �^��͛Ɛ� ĂƐƐĞƚ͘� /Ŷ� ϮϬϭϳ͕� ƚŚĞ� �ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ� ŵĂĚĞ� ŝƚƐ� ƐĞĐŽŶĚ� ƐƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ΨϬ͘Ϯϱ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ͘ 
 
�Ɛ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕�ƚŚĞ��^���ŚĂĚ�ĂŶ�ĂŐŐƌĞŐĂƚĞ�ƌĞƐĞƌǀĞ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ďĂůĂŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�Ψϭ͘ϵ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ͘��ĂƐĞĚ�
ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƚĞƐƚ�ĂŵĞŶĚŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�DĞŵŽƌĂŶĚƵŵ�ŽĨ�hŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�^Ăŵ��Z��ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�
�ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ͕� ƚŚĞ� ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� �^���ǁŝůů� ďĞ� ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞĚ� ŝŶ� ĨŝǀĞ� ǇĞĂƌƐ� ĨƌŽŵ� :ƵŶĞ� ϯϬ͕� ϮϬϭϵ͕� ƚŽ�
ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ĂŶ�ŽĨĨƐĞƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ͛Ɛ�ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞ͘�tŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
�^��͕�ƚŚĞ��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ͛Ɛ�ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ͘� 
 
EŽƚĞ�ϲ͗��ĞƉŽƐŝƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ 
 
dŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ� ĂŶ� /ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� WŽůŝĐǇ� ŝŶ� ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ� ǁŝƚŚ� ĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ� ůŽĐĂů͕� ƐƚĂƚĞ͕� ĂŶĚ�
ĨĞĚĞƌĂů� ůĂǁƐ͘� dŚĞ� ��Z>� ǀĞƐƚƐ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ǁŝƚŚ� ĞǆĐůƵƐŝǀĞ� ĐŽŶƚƌŽů� ŽǀĞƌ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�
ƉŽƌƚĨŽůŝŽ͘� �ǆĐĞƉƚ� ĂƐ� ŽƚŚĞƌǁŝƐĞ� ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐůǇ� ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚĞĚ� ďǇ� ƚŚĞ� �ĂůŝĨŽƌŶŝĂ� �ŽŶƐƚŝƚƵƚŝŽŶ� ĂŶĚ� ďǇ�
ƌĞŐƵůĂƚŝŽŶ͕� ƚŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ŝŶ� ŝƚƐ� ĚŝƐĐƌĞƚŝŽŶ� ŵĂǇ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚ͕� Žƌ� ĚĞůĞŐĂƚĞ� ƚŚĞ� ĂƵƚŚŽƌŝƚǇ� ƚŽ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚ͕� ƚŚĞ�
ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ŽĨ�^Ăŵ��Z��ŝŶ�ĂŶǇ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ĂůůŽǁĞĚ�ďǇ�ƐƚĂƚƵƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞĞŵĞĚ�ƉƌƵĚĞŶƚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĞĚ�
ŽƉŝŶŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ͘� 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  55 

�ĞƉŽƐŝƚƐ 
^Ăŵ��Z��ŚĂƐ�ĚĞƉŽƐŝƚƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĂŶ�ŽƵƚƐŝĚĞ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ŝŶƐƚŝƚƵƚŝŽŶ͕�ƚŚĞ�EŽƌƚŚĞƌŶ�dƌƵƐƚ��ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚŝŽŶ͕�ĂƐ�
ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�ŝŶ�ĂŶ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƉŽŽů�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŝƐ�ĐƵƐƚŽĚŝĞĚ�Ăƚ��ĂŶŬ�ŽĨ�EĞǁ�zŽƌŬ�
DĞůůŽŶ͘� �ĞƉŽƐŝƚƐ� ǁŝƚŚ� ƚŚĞ� EŽƌƚŚĞƌŶ� dƌƵƐƚ� �ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚŝŽŶ� ĂƌĞ� ƐǁĞƉƚ� ŝŶƚŽ� Ă� ƉŽŽůĞĚ� ƐŚŽƌƚ-ƚĞƌŵ�
ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ĨƵŶĚ͕� ǁŚŝĐŚ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚƐ� ŝŶ� ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ� ƐƵĐŚ� ĂƐ� ƌĞƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞ� ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚƐ͕� ĐŽŵŵĞƌĐŝĂů�
ƉĂƉĞƌ͕�h͘^͘�dƌĞĂƐƵƌǇ�ďŝůůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŶŽƚĞƐ͘��ĂƌŶŝŶŐƐ�ĂŶĚ�ůŽƐƐĞƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƉŽŽů�ĂƌĞ�
ƐŚĂƌĞĚ� ĂŵŽŶŐ� ƉŽŽů� ƉĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂŶƚƐ͘� �ůů� ĚĞƉŽƐŝƚƐ� ĂƌĞ� ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ� Ăƚ� ĐŽƐƚ͕� ǁŚŝĐŚ� ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞƐ� ĨĂŝƌ�
ǀĂůƵĞ͘� 
 
�ƵƐƚŽĚŝĂů��ƌĞĚŝƚ�ZŝƐŬ�–��ĞƉŽƐŝƚƐ͘� dŚĞ�ĐƵƐƚŽĚŝĂů�ĐƌĞĚŝƚ� ƌŝƐŬ� ĨŽƌ�ĚĞƉŽƐŝƚƐ� ŝƐ� ƚŚĞ� ƌŝƐŬ� ƚŚĂƚ͕� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ�
ĞǀĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨĂŝůƵƌĞ�ŽĨ�Ă�ĚĞƉŽƐŝƚŽƌǇ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ŝŶƐƚŝƚƵƚŝŽŶ͕�^Ăŵ��Z��ǁŝůů�ŶŽƚ�ďĞ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĐŽǀĞƌ�
ĚĞƉŽƐŝƚƐ�ŶŽƌ�ďĞ�ĂďůĞ� ƚŽ� ƌĞĐŽǀĞƌ�ĐŽůůĂƚĞƌĂů� ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ� ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƌĞ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ�ƉŽƐƐĞƐƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĂŶ�ŽƵƚƐŝĚĞ�
ƉĂƌƚǇ͘�^Ăŵ��Z��ŚĂƐ�ŶŽ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ŽŶ�ĐƵƐƚŽĚŝĂů�ĐƌĞĚŝƚ�ƌŝƐŬ�ĨŽƌ�ĚĞƉŽƐŝƚƐ͘ 
 
^Ăŵ��Z��ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶƐ�ĐĂƐŚ�ĚĞƉŽƐŝƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ŝƚƐ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ĂĐƚŝǀŝƚŝĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŽŶĂů�ŶĞĞĚƐ͘�
�Ɛ�ŽĨ� :ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕�Ψϭϰ͘Ϯ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ�ŽĨ� ĐĂƐŚ�ǁĂƐ�ŚĞůĚ� ŝŶ�Ă�ƉŽŽůĞĚ� ƐŚŽƌƚ-ƚĞƌŵ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ĨƵŶĚ�
ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�EŽƌƚŚĞƌŶ�dƌƵƐƚ��ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚŝŽŶ͕�ĂŶĚ�Ψϭϯ͘ϴ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƉŽŽů�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�
dƌĞĂƐƵƌĞƌ͘��ĂƐŚ�ŚĞůĚ�ďǇ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌƐ�Ăƚ�ǇĞĂƌ-ĞŶĚ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�Ψϱ͘ϭ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŝƐ�
ƐǁĞƉƚ� ĚĂŝůǇ� ŝŶƚŽ� Ă� ƉŽŽůĞĚ� ƐŚŽƌƚ-ƚĞƌŵ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ĨƵŶĚ� ŵĂŶĂŐĞĚ� ďǇ� ƚŚĞ� EŽƌƚŚĞƌŶ� dƌƵƐƚ�
�ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚŝŽŶ͘�� 
 
�ĂƐŚ�ŚĞůĚ�ǁŝƚŚ� ƚŚĞ�EŽƌƚŚĞƌŶ�dƌƵƐƚ��ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚŝŽŶ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ŽĨ�Ψϱϲϭ͕ϱϰϭ� ŝƐ�ƵŶŝŶƐƵƌĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�
ƵŶĐŽůůĂƚĞƌĂůŝǌĞĚ͘�dŚƵƐ͕�ƚŚŝƐ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ŝƐ�ƐƵďũĞĐƚ�ƚŽ�ĐƵƐƚŽĚŝĂů�ĐƌĞĚŝƚ�ƌŝƐŬ͘�^Ăŵ��Z��ĚŽĞƐ�ŶŽƚ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�
ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐŝŶŐ�ĐƵƐƚŽĚŝĂů�ĐƌĞĚŝƚ�ƌŝƐŬ͘ dŚĞ�ĨĂŝƌ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽŽů�
ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽŽů�ƐŚĂƌĞƐ͘� 
 
dŚĞ�ƉĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂƚŝŽŶ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƉŽŽů� ŝƐ�ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ͘�dŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƉŽŽů� ŝƐ�
ŶŽƚ� ƌĞŐŝƐƚĞƌĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ� ƚŚĞ� ^ĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ� ĂŶĚ� �ǆĐŚĂŶŐĞ� �ŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶ� ĂƐ� ĂŶ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ĐŽŵƉĂŶǇ͘� /Ŷ�
ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ��ƌƚŝĐůĞ�ϲ�^ĞĐƚŝŽŶ�Ϯϳϭϯϭ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ĂůŝĨŽƌŶŝĂ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŽĚĞ͕�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽĂƌĚ�
ŽĨ�^ƵƉĞƌǀŝƐŽƌƐ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ�ĂŶ�ĞŝŐŚƚ-ŵĞŵďĞƌ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�dƌĞĂƐƵƌǇ�KǀĞƌƐŝŐŚƚ��ŽŵŵŝƚƚĞĞ�ƚŽ�ŽǀĞƌƐĞĞ�
ƚŚĞ� ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ� ŽĨ� ƉƵďůŝĐ� ĨƵŶĚƐ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ƉŽŽů͘� WŽŽů� ƉĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂŶƚƐ� ĐĂŶ�
ǁŝƚŚĚƌĂǁ�ŶŽ�ŵŽƌĞ�ƚŚĂŶ�ϭϮ͘ϱй�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĚĞƉŽƐŝƚƐ�ƉĞƌ�ŵŽŶƚŚ͕�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽŶƚŚ-ĞŶĚ�ďĂůĂŶĐĞ�
ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ƉƌŝŽƌ� ŵŽŶƚŚ͘� �ůů� ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚƐ� ĨŽƌ� ǁŝƚŚĚƌĂǁĂů� ŵƵƐƚ� ďĞ� ŵĂĚĞ� ŝŶ� ǁƌŝƚŝŶŐ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ�
dƌĞĂƐƵƌĞƌ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�Ϯϰ�ŚŽƵƌƐ�ŝŶ�ĂĚǀĂŶĐĞ͘ 
 
/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ 
^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ� ĂƌĞ� ŵĂŶĂŐĞĚ� ďǇ� ŝŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ� ĨŝƌŵƐ� ŝŶ�
ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƵŝĚĞůŝŶĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŽůƐ�ƐƉĞĐŝĨŝĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐ�
ĞǆĞĐƵƚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ� ƚŚĞ� �ŚŝĞĨ� �ǆĞĐƵƚŝǀĞ�KĨĨŝĐĞƌ� ŽŶ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ͛Ɛ� ďĞŚĂůĨ͘� �� ƚŚŝƌĚ� ƉĂƌƚǇ� ŝŶƐƚŝƚƵƚŝŽŶ� ŝƐ�
ƵƐĞĚ�ĂƐ�ĂŶ�ŝŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ�ĐƵƐƚŽĚŝĂŶ͕�ƚŚĞ�EŽƌƚŚĞƌŶ�dƌƵƐƚ��ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚŝŽŶ͘ 
 
/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� WŽůŝĐǇ͘� dŚĞ� /ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� WŽůŝĐǇ� ŝƐ� ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝǌĞĚ� ƚŽ� ƌĞĚƵĐĞ� ƌŝƐŬ� ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ� Ă� ƉƌƵĚĞŶƚ�
ĚŝǀĞƌƐŝĮĐĂƟŽŶ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ƉŽƌƞŽůŝŽ� ĂĐƌŽƐƐ� Ă� ďƌŽĂĚ� ƐĞůĞĐƟŽŶ� ŽĨ� ĚŝƐƟŶĐƚ� ĂƐƐĞƚ� ĐůĂƐƐĞƐ͘�

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 



56  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

dŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ� ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞƐ� ĂŶ� ŝŶ-ĚĞƉƚŚ� ĂƐƐĞƚ-ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ� ƐƚƵĚǇ�ĞǀĞƌǇ� ƚŚƌĞĞ� ƚŽ�ĮǀĞ� ǇĞĂƌƐ͘� /Ŷ�KĐƚŽďĞƌ�
ϮϬϭϲ͕� ƚŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ� ŝƚƐ�ŵŽƐƚ� ƌĞĐĞŶƚ� ĂƐƐĞƚ-ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ� ƐƚƵĚǇ͘� dŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ� ĂƉƉƌŽǀĞĚ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�
ƚĂƌŐĞƚ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ĂůůŽĐĂƟŽŶ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ŵƵůƟƉůĞ�ƉŚĂƐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƐ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚĂŬĞ�
ŵŽƌĞ�ƚŚĂŶ�ŽŶĞ�ǇĞĂƌ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞ͘ 
 
dĂƌŐĞƚ��ƐƐĞƚ��ůůŽĐĂƟŽŶ͘��Ɛ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ĂůůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚƐ�ŽĨ�ϰϭй�
ŝŶ�ƉƵďůŝĐ� ĞƋƵŝƚǇ͕� Ϯϭй� ŝŶ�ĮǆĞĚ� ŝŶĐŽŵĞ͕� ϭϮй� ŝŶ� ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞƐ͕�ϴй� ŝŶ� ƌŝƐŬ�ƉĂƌŝƚǇ͕� ĂŶĚ�ϭϴй� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ�
ŝŶŇĂƟŽŶ�ŚĞĚŐĞ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ĐůĂƐƐ͘�dŚĞ�ĂĐƚƵĂů�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ĂůůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�Ăƚ�ĮƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ-ĞŶĚ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚĞĚ�ŽĨ�ϰϭ͘ϰй�ŝŶ�
ƉƵďůŝĐ� ĞƋƵŝƚǇ͕� Ϯϭ͘Ϭй� ŝŶ� ĮǆĞĚ� ŝŶĐŽŵĞ͕� ϭϭ͘ϰй� ŝŶ� ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞƐ͕� ϴ͘ϯй� ŝŶ� ƌŝƐŬ� ƉĂƌŝƚǇ͕� ϭϳ͘ϰй� ŝŶ�
ŝŶŇĂƟŽŶ�ŚĞĚŐĞ͕�ĂŶĚ�Ϭ͘ϱй�ŝŶ�ĐĂƐŚ�ĂŶĚ�ĐĂƐŚ�ĞƋƵŝǀĂůĞŶƚƐ �͘�^ĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŶŽƚĞ�ŽŶ�ƉĂŐĞ�ϵϵ�ĨŽƌ�ĚĞƚĂŝůƐ͘ 
 
DŽŶĞǇ-tĞŝŐŚƚĞĚ� ZĂƚĞ� ŽĨ� ZĞƚƵƌŶ͘� dŚĞ�ŵŽŶĞǇ-ǁĞŝŐŚƚĞĚ� ƌĂƚĞ� ŽĨ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ� ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐĞƐ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�
ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ͕�ŶĞƚ�ŽĨ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ƉůĂŶ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ͕�ĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŝŵŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ĐĂƐŚ�ĨůŽǁƐ�
ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐŝŶŐ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ�ĂĐƚƵĂůůǇ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚĞĚ͘�dŚĞ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ŵŽŶĞǇ-ǁĞŝŐŚƚĞĚ�ƌĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ǁĂƐ�
ϱ͘Ϯϲй�ŽŶ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ͕�ŶĞƚ�ŽĨ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌ�ĨĞĞƐ͕�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ�
:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͘ 
 
>ŽŶŐ-dĞƌŵ� �ǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ� ZĞĂů� ZĂƚĞ� ŽĨ� ZĞƚƵƌŶ͘� dŚĞ� ůŽŶŐ-ƚĞƌŵ� ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ� ƌĞĂů� ƌĂƚĞ� ŽĨ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ� ŽŶ�
ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ƉůĂŶ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ǁĂƐ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�Ă�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ-ďůŽĐŬ�ŵĞƚŚŽĚ͘�hŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŵĞƚŚŽĚ͕�
ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ƌĞĂů�ƌĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐ�;ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐ͕�ŶĞƚ�ŽĨ�ŝŶĨůĂƚŝŽŶͿ�ĂƌĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ĞĂĐŚ�
ŵĂũŽƌ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ĐůĂƐƐ͘� 
 
dŚĞ� ƚĂďůĞ� ŽŶ� ƚŚĞ� ƌŝŐŚƚ� ƐŚŽǁƐ� ƚŚĞ� ƚĂƌŐĞƚ�
ĂůůŽĐĂƚŝŽŶ� ĂƉƉƌŽǀĞĚ� ďǇ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ĂŶĚ�
ƉƌŽũĞĐƚĞĚ�ŐĞŽŵĞƚƌŝĐ� ƌĞĂů� ƌĂƚĞƐ�ŽĨ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ� ĨŽƌ�
ĞĂĐŚ� ŵĂũŽƌ� ĂƐƐĞƚ� ĐůĂƐƐ� ;ĂĨƚĞƌ� ĚĞĚƵĐƚŝŶŐ�
ŝŶĨůĂƚŝŽŶ͕� ďƵƚ� ďĞĨŽƌĞ� ĚĞĚƵĐƚŝŶŐ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�
ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐͿ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĚĞƌŝǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽŶŐ-
ƚĞƌŵ� ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ƌĂƚĞ� ŽĨ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�
ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶ͘ 
 
/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ZŝƐŬ 
^Ăŵ��Z�� ŵĂŶĂŐĞƐ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ƌŝƐŬƐ� ƵŶĚĞƌ� '�^�� ^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ� EŽ͘� ϰϬ� ĂŶĚ� EŽ͘� ϱϯ� ďǇ�
ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƵĂůůǇ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌŝŶŐ�ĞĂĐŚ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌ�ƚŽ�ĨŽůůŽǁ�ƐƉĞĐŝĨŝĐ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŐƵŝĚĞůŝŶĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�
ĂƌĞ� ƐƉĞĐŝĨŝĐĂůůǇ� ƚĂŝůŽƌĞĚ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌ͘� &Žƌ� ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞůǇ� ŵĂŶĂŐĞĚ� ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ͕�
ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌƐ͛� ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďŝůŝƟĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĚĞƚĂŝůĞĚ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�
^Ăŵ��Z�� ĂŶĚ� ĞĂĐŚ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌ͘� &Žƌ� ĐŽŵŵŝŶŐůĞĚ� ĨƵŶĚ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ͕� ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌƐ͛�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďŝůŝƟĞƐ� ĂƌĞ� ĚĞƚĂŝůĞĚ� ĂŶĚ� ĚŝĐƚĂƚĞĚ� ďǇ� ƚŚĞ� ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ� ĨƵŶĚ� ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚƐ͘� dŚĞ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�
ŐƵŝĚĞůŝŶĞƐ� ŝŶ�ŵŽƐƚ�ĐĂƐĞƐ�ƐƚŝƉƵůĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƐƚǇůĞ͕�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŽďũĞĐƚŝǀĞ͕�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�
ďĞŶĐŚŵĂƌŬƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƉŽƌƚĨŽůŝŽ�ĐŚĂƌĂĐƚĞƌŝƐƚŝĐƐ͘ 
 
�ĂĐŚ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌ͕�ǁŚŽŵ�ǁĞ�ŚŽůĚ�Ă�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞůǇ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞĚ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ͕�ŝƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�
ĨŽůůŽǁ� ƚŚĞ� ͞ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌ� ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚ� ŽĨ� ĐĂƌĞ͟� ƚŽ� ĂĐƚ� ƉƌƵĚĞŶƚůǇ� ĂŶĚ� ƐŽůĞůǇ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ďĞƐƚ� ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ� ŽĨ�

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

 
>ÊÄ¦-d�ÙÃ��øÖ��ã���Z��½�Z�ã��Ê¥�Ù�ãçÙÄ 

:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

Long-Term 
Target Expected 

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Public Equity 41% 4.9%
Fixed Income 21% 2.1%
Alternatives 12% 5.3%
Risk Parity 8% 5.1%
Inflation Hedge 18% 4.3%

Total 100%



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  57 

^Ăŵ��Z�͘��ĂĐŚ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌ͕�ǁŚŽŵ�ǁĞ�ŚŽůĚ�Ă�ĐŽŵŵŝŶŐůĞĚ�ĨƵŶĚ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ͕� ŝƐ�
ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ� ƚŽ� ĨŽůůŽǁ� ŝƚƐ� ĨŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ� ĚƵƚŝĞƐ� ǁŝƚŚ� ƌĞƐƉĞĐƚ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� &ƵŶĚ͘� dŚĞ� ŐƵŝĚĞůŝŶĞƐ� ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞ� ƚŚĞ�
ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ� ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ� ŽĨ� ĞĂĐŚ� ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌ� ďĞ� ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ� ǁŝƚŚ� ƚŚĞ� ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ� ŽĨ� Ă�
ƌĞůĂƚŝǀĞ� ƉĂƐƐŝǀĞ� ŵĂƌŬĞƚ� ŝŶĚĞǆ� ŽǀĞƌ� ƐƉĞĐŝĨŝĐ� ƉĞƌŝŽĚƐ͘� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚ� ĂŶĚ�
ƐƚĂĨĨ� ĐŽŶƐƚĂŶƚůǇ� ŵŽŶŝƚŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ� ŽĨ� Ăůů� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌƐ� ĨŽƌ� ĐŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞ� ǁŝƚŚ�
ƌĞƐƉĞĐƚŝǀĞ�ŐƵŝĚĞůŝŶĞƐ͘��� 
 
/ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ� ZĂƚĞ� ZŝƐŬ͘� /ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ� ƌĂƚĞ� ƌŝƐŬ� ŝƐ� ƚŚĞ� ƌŝƐŬ� ƚŚĂƚ� ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ� ŝŶ� ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ� ƌĂƚĞƐ�ǁŝůů� ĂĚǀĞƌƐĞůǇ�
ĂĨĨĞĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨĂŝƌ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�ĂŶ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ͘��ƵƌĂƚŝŽŶ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŝĐĞ�ƐĞŶƐŝƚŝǀŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�Ă�ĨŝǆĞĚ�
ŝŶĐŽŵĞ�ƉŽƌƚĨŽůŝŽ�ƚŽ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ƌĂƚĞƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ĐĂůĐƵůĂƚĞĚ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ǁĞŝŐŚƚĞĚ�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ�ƚŝŵĞ�ƚŽ�
ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞ�Ă�ďŽŶĚ͛Ɛ�ĐŽƵƉŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉĂů�ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ͘�dŚĞ�ůŽŶŐĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĚƵƌĂƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽƌƚĨŽůŝŽ͕�ƚŚĞ�
ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌ� ŝƚƐ�ƉƌŝĐĞ� ƐĞŶƐŝƚŝǀŝƚǇ� ƚŽ� ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ� ŝŶ� ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ� ƌĂƚĞƐ͘� ^Ăŵ��Z��ŚĂƐ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ� ŝŶ� ƚǁĞůǀĞ�
ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƉŽŽůƐ�ĐŽŶƚĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĚĞďƚ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ͘�^Ăŵ��Z��ĚŽĞƐ�ŶŽƚ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ĨŽƌŵĂů�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�
ƚŚĂƚ�ůŝŵŝƚƐ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ĚƵƌĂƚŝŽŶ�ĂƐ�Ă�ŵĞĂŶƐ�ŽĨ�ŵĂŶĂŐŝŶŐ�ŝƚƐ�ĞǆƉŽƐƵƌĞ�ƚŽ�ĨĂŝƌ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ůŽƐƐĞƐ�ĂƌŝƐŝŶŐ�
ĨƌŽŵ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐŝŶŐ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ƌĂƚĞƐ͘�/ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ƌĂƚĞ�ƌŝƐŬ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝǆĞĚ�ŝŶĐŽŵĞ�ƉŽƌƚĨŽůŝŽƐ�ŝƐ�ĚŝƐƉůĂǇĞĚ�ŝŶ�
ƚŚĞ�ƚĂďůĞ�ďĞůŽǁ͘� 

�ƵƐƚŽĚŝĂů��ƌĞĚŝƚ�ZŝƐŬ�–�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ͘�dŚĞ�ĐƵƐƚŽĚŝĂů�ĐƌĞĚŝƚ�ƌŝƐŬ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŝƐŬ�ƚŚĂƚ͕�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǀĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ĨĂŝůƵƌĞ�ŽĨ�Ă� ĐŽƵŶƚĞƌƉĂƌƚǇ� ƚŽ�Ă� ƚƌĂŶƐĂĐƚŝŽŶ͕� ^Ăŵ��Z��ǁŝůů�ŶŽƚ�ďĞ�ĂďůĞ� ƚŽ� ƌĞĐŽǀĞƌ� ƚŚĞ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�
ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�Žƌ�ĐŽůůĂƚĞƌĂů�ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƌĞ� ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽƐƐĞƐƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĂŶ�ŽƵƚƐŝĚĞ�ƉĂƌƚǇ͘�hŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�
ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ŐƵŝĚĞůŝŶĞƐ� ĨŽƌ� ĞĂĐŚ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌ͕�ŵĂŶĂŐĞĚ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ŵƵƐƚ�ďĞ�ŚĞůĚ� ŝŶ�
ƚŚĞ�ŶĂŵĞ�ŽĨ�^Ăŵ��Z�͘�dŚĞ�ŵĂƐƚĞƌ�ĐƵƐƚŽĚŝĂŶ�ŵĂǇ�ƌĞůǇ�ŽŶ�ƐƵď-ĐƵƐƚŽĚŝĂŶƐ͘��Ɛ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕�
^Ăŵ��Z��ŚĂĚ�ŶŽ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĞǆƉŽƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĐƵƐƚŽĚŝĂů�ĐƌĞĚŝƚ�ƌŝƐŬ͘ 
 
�ƌĞĚŝƚ�ZŝƐŬ͘��ƌĞĚŝƚ�ƌŝƐŬ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŝƐŬ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂŶ�ŝƐƐƵĞƌ�Žƌ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ĐŽƵŶƚĞƌƉĂƌƚǇ�ƚŽ�ĂŶ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝůů�ŶŽƚ�
ĨƵůĨŝůů�ŝƚƐ�ŽďůŝŐĂƚŝŽŶƐ͘�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ƐĞĞŬƐ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶ�Ă�ĚŝǀĞƌƐŝĨŝĞĚ�ƉŽƌƚĨŽůŝŽ�ŽĨ�
ĨŝǆĞĚ�ŝŶĐŽŵĞ�ŝŶƐƚƌƵŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ŽďƚĂŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŚŝŐŚĞƐƚ�ƚŽƚĂů�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵŶĚ�Ăƚ�ĂŶ�ĂĐĐĞƉƚĂďůĞ�ůĞǀĞů�
ŽĨ�ƌŝƐŬ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ĐůĂƐƐ͘� 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

/Äã�Ù�Ýã�Z�ã��Z®Ý»��Ä�½ùÝ®Ý� 

:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

Investment Portfolio  Fair Value 

 Weighted 
Average 
Coupon 

Weighted 
Average 
Maturity 

(Years)

Effective 
Duration 

(Years)

Opportunistic Credit Funds (1) 348,130,949$     6.48% 6.41               2.45              
BlackRock Intermediate Government Bond 233,698,006        2.60% 4.05               3.75              
Fidelity Insitutional Asset Management 281,072,703        3.40% 7.98               5.41              
Western Asset Management 136,575,689        3.50% 7.14               1.43              
Total 999,477,347$     

(1) This category consists of eight opportunistic Credit Funds managed by Angelo Gordon (two funds), Beach 
Point, Brigade Capital Management, Franklin Templeton, Tennenbaum Capital Partners, and PIMCO (two funds).



58  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

dŚĞ� ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ� ŽĨ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ� ŝŶ�
ďŽŶĚƐ�ĂƐ�ŽĨ� :ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕� ŝƐ� ƐƵŵŵĂƌŝǌĞĚ�
ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƚĂďůĞ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŝŐŚƚ͘ 
 
&ŽƌĞŝŐŶ� �ƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ� ZŝƐŬ͘� &ŽƌĞŝŐŶ� ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ�
ƌŝƐŬ� ŝƐ� ƚŚĞ� ƌŝƐŬ� ƚŚĂƚ� ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ�
ĞǆĐŚĂŶŐĞ� ƌĂƚĞƐ� ǁŝůů� ĂĚǀĞƌƐĞůǇ� ĂĨĨĞĐƚ� ƚŚĞ�
ĨĂŝƌ� ǀĂůƵĞ� ŽĨ� ĂŶ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� Žƌ� ĚĞƉŽƐŝƚ͘� /Ŷ�
ŝƚƐ� /ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� WŽůŝĐǇ͕� ^Ăŵ��Z�� ĂůůŽǁƐ�
ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ� ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ� ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐ� ĂŶĚ� ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ�
ĨƵƚƵƌĞƐ� ĂƐ� ĚĞĨĞŶƐŝǀĞ� ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ� ŚĞĚŐŝŶŐ� ƚŽ�
ŵŝƚŝŐĂƚĞ� ĨŽƌĞŝŐŶ� ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ� ƌŝƐŬ� ŽŶ� ƚŚĞ�
ƉŽƌƚĨŽůŝŽ͘� /ŶƚĞƌŶĂƚŝŽŶĂů� ĞƋƵŝƚǇ� ĂŶĚ� ŐůŽďĂů�
ďŽŶĚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƉĞƌŵŝƚƚĞĚ� ƚŽ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚ� ŝŶ�
ĂƵƚŚŽƌŝǌĞĚ�ĐŽƵŶƚƌŝĞƐ͘� 
 
dŚĞ�ƚĂďůĞ�ďĞůŽǁ�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŐŶŝƚƵĚĞ�ŽĨ�ƌŝƐŬ�ĨŽƌ�ĞĂĐŚ�ĨŽƌĞŝŐŶ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ�ĚĞŶŽŵŝŶĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�h͘^͘�
ĚŽůůĂƌƐ͘�&ŽƌĞŝŐŶ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ŚĞůĚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ĐŽŵŵŝŶŐůĞĚ�ĨƵŶĚ�ǀĞŚŝĐůĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĞǆĐůƵĚĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĂŶĂůǇƐŝƐ�
ďĞůŽǁ͘� 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

 ^ΙW�Yç�½®ãù��Ù��»�ÊóÄ�¥ÊÙ�^�Ã��Z�͛Ý�
/Äò�ÝãÃ�Äã�®Ä��ÊÄ�Ý�;:çÄ��ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵͿ 

&ÊÙ�®¦Ä��çÙÙ�Ä�ù�Z®Ý»��Ä�½ùÝ®Ý 

:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

Trade Country Name Common Stock
Foreign 

Currency                    Total
Australia 13,651,121$     114,685$    13,765,806$    
Brazil 3,212,654          -                    3,212,654         
Canada 5,325,887          751,935       6,077,822         
Switzerland 20,806,950        -                    20,806,950      
Denmark 7,825,910          -                    7,825,910         
Europe 100,013,535     168,043       100,181,578    
United Kingdom 79,245,777        (83,278)       79,162,499      
Hong Kong 20,751,514        -                    20,751,514      
India 11,000,717        22,003         11,022,720      
Japan 87,655,927        228,897       87,884,824      
South Korea 1,089,499          -                    1,089,499         
Mexico 1,615,505          -                    1,615,505         
Malaysia 2,518,451          -                    2,518,451         
Sweden 17,771,307        (243,858)     17,527,449      
Singapore 16,082,789        -                    16,082,789      
South Africa 6,933,493          -                    6,933,493         
      Total 395,501,036$   958,427$    396,459,463$  

Credit Commingled
Risk Management
AAA 46.2%
AA 2.8%
A 8.7%

BBB 6.0%
Less than BBB 25.2%

NR 11.1%
Total 100.0%



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  59 

�ŽŶĐĞŶƚƌĂƚŝŽŶ� ŽĨ� �ƌĞĚŝƚ� ZŝƐŬ͘� dŚŝƐ� ƌŝƐŬ� ŝƐ� ƚŚĞ� ƌŝƐŬ� ŽĨ� ůŽƐƐ� ĂƚƚƌŝďƵƚĞĚ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ŵĂŐŶŝƚƵĚĞ� ŽĨ�
^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ŝŶ� Ă� ƐŝŶŐůĞ� ŝƐƐƵĞƌ� ŽĨ� ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ͘� /ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ� ŝƐƐƵĞĚ� Žƌ� ĞǆƉůŝĐŝƚůǇ�
ŐƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞĚ� ďǇ� ƚŚĞ� h͘^͘� 'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ� ĂŶĚ� ĐŽŵŵŝŶŐůĞĚ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ� ĂƌĞ� ĞǆĐůƵĚĞĚ� ĨƌŽŵ� ƚŚĞ�
ĐŽŶĐĞŶƚƌĂƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚ�ƌŝƐŬ�ĂŶĂůǇƐŝƐ͘��Ɛ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕�^Ăŵ��Z��ĚŽĞƐ�ŶŽƚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�
ŝŶ�Ă�ƐŝŶŐůĞ�ŝƐƐƵĞƌ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĨŝǀĞ�ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚ�Žƌ�ŵŽƌĞ�ŽĨ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ĨŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�ŶĞƚ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ͘ 
 
�ĞƌŝǀĂƚŝǀĞƐ 
�ĞƌŝǀĂƚŝǀĞƐ� ĂƌĞ� ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ŝŶƐƚƌƵŵĞŶƚƐ� ƚŚĂƚ� ĂƌĞ� ĐŽŶŶĞĐƚĞĚ� ƚŽ� Ă� ƐƉĞĐŝĨŝĐ� ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ŝŶƐƚƌƵŵĞŶƚ͕�
ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌ�Žƌ� ĐŽŵŵŽĚŝƚǇ͕� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ǁŚŝĐŚ� ƐƉĞĐŝĨŝĐ� ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ƌŝƐŬƐ� ĐĂŶ�ďĞ� ƚƌĂĚĞĚ� ŝŶ� ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�
ŵĂƌŬĞƚƐ� ŝŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŽǁŶ�ƌŝŐŚƚ͘�dŚĞ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�Ă�ĚĞƌŝǀĂƚŝǀĞ�ĚĞƌŝǀĞƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŝĐĞ�ŽĨ�ĂŶ�ƵŶĚĞƌůǇŝŶŐ�
ŝƚĞŵ͕�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ�ĂŶ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�Žƌ� ŝŶĚĞǆ͘��ĞƌŝǀĂƚŝǀĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞƐ� ;ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ� ƌŝƐŬ�
ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ͕� ŚĞĚŐŝŶŐ͕� ĂŶĚ� ĂƌďŝƚƌĂŐĞ� ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ� ŵĂƌŬĞƚƐͿ͕� ĂŶĚ� ĂƌĞ� ƵƐƵĂůůǇ� ƐĞƚƚůĞĚ� ďǇ� ŶĞƚ�
ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�ĐĂƐŚ͘� 
 
^Ăŵ��Z��ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�ĞŵƉůŽǇƐ�ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞ�ŝƚƐ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ĂƐ�ƉĞƌŵŝƚƚĞĚ�
ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ĂůŝĨŽƌŶŝĂ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŽĚĞ�ĂŶĚ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�WŽůŝĐǇ͘�^ƉĞĐŝĨŝĐ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌƐ�ŚŽůĚ�
ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�ƐǁĂƉƐ͕�ŽƉƚŝŽŶƐ͕�ĨƵƚƵƌĞƐ͕�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ�ƐĞƚƚůĞŵĞŶƚ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ǁĂƌƌĂŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĞŶƚĞƌ�
ŝŶƚŽ� ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ� ĨŽƌĞŝŐŶ� ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ� ĞǆĐŚĂŶŐĞ� ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚǇ� ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐ� ǁŝƚŚŝŶ� ĨŝǆĞĚ� ŝŶĐŽŵĞ� ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�
ŝŶƐƚƌƵŵĞŶƚƐ͘� 
 

· dŚĞ�ĨĂŝƌ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�ŽƉƚŝŽŶƐ͕�ĨƵƚƵƌĞƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ǁĂƌƌĂŶƚƐ� ŝƐ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ƵƉŽŶ�ƋƵŽƚĞĚ�
ŵĂƌŬĞƚ� ƉƌŝĐĞƐ͘� dŚĞ� ĨĂŝƌ� ǀĂůƵĞ� ŽĨ� ĚĞƌŝǀĂƚŝǀĞ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ� ƚŚĂƚ� ĂƌĞ� ŶŽƚ� ĞǆĐŚĂŶŐĞ�
ƚƌĂĚĞĚ͕�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ�ƐǁĂƉƐ�ĂŶĚ�d��Ɛ�;dŽ��Ğ��ŶŶŽƵŶĐĞĚͿ͕� ŝƐ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶ�ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�
ƉƌŝĐŝŶŐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ƉƌŽƉƌŝĞƚĂƌǇ�ŵĞƚŚŽĚƐ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ƵƉŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƚǇƉĞ�ŽĨ�ĚĞƌŝǀĂƚŝǀĞ�
ŝŶƐƚƌƵŵĞŶƚ͘� 

 
· &ƵƚƵƌĞƐ� ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐ� ĂƌĞ� ŵĂƌŬĞĚ� ƚŽ� ŵĂƌŬĞƚ� Ăƚ� ƚŚĞ� ĞŶĚ� ŽĨ� ĞĂĐŚ� ƚƌĂĚŝŶŐ� ĚĂǇ͘� dŚĞ�

ƐĞƚƚůĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ŐĂŝŶƐ�Žƌ�ůŽƐƐĞƐ�ŽĐĐƵƌ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ�ĚĂǇ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ǀĂƌŝĂƚŝŽŶ�
ŵĂƌŐŝŶƐ͘� 

 
· dŚĞ�ĨĂŝƌ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂƚŝŽŶĂů�ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚƐ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƵŶƌĞĂůŝǌĞĚ�ŐĂŝŶ�Žƌ�

ůŽƐƐ� ŽŶ� ƚŚĞ� ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ� ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐ͕� ǁŚŝĐŚ� ŝƐ� ĐĂůĐƵůĂƚĞĚ� ĂƐ� ƚŚĞ� ĚŝĨĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ� ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ� ƚŚĞ�
ƐƉĞĐŝĨŝĞĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚ�ĞǆĐŚĂŶŐĞ�ƌĂƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆĐŚĂŶŐĞ�ƌĂƚĞ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ�
ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͘ 

 
dŚĞ�ĚĞƌŝǀĂƚŝǀĞ�ŝŶƐƚƌƵŵĞŶƚƐ�ŚĞůĚ�ďǇ�^Ăŵ��Z��ĂƌĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŶŽƚ�ŚĞĚŐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�
ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚŝŶŐ�ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞƐ͘���Ɛ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞƌŝǀĂƚŝǀĞƐ�ŚĞůĚ�ĂŶ�ĂŐŐƌĞŐĂƚĞ�ŶŽƚŝŽŶĂů�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�
ŽĨ�ΨϮϬϯ͘ϳ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ͘�dŚĞ�ĨĂŝƌ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�ĚĞƌŝǀĂƚŝǀĞƐ�ƚŽƚĂůŝŶŐ�ĂŶ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ŽĨ�ΨϭϮϰ͕ϳϬϬ�ŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�
ƚŚĞ�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�&ŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�EĞƚ�WŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ĂƐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐĂƐŚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽǀĞƌůĂǇ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶĨůĂƚŝŽŶ�
ŚĞĚŐĞ͘��ŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ĨĂŝƌ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ϮϬϭϵ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ��ŚĂŶŐĞƐ�
ŝŶ�&ŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�EĞƚ�WŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ĂƐ�Ă�ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŝŶĐŽŵĞ͘ 
 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 



60  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

dŚĞ�ĚĞƌŝǀĂƚŝǀĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�^Ăŵ��Z��ŚĞůĚ�Ăƚ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ-ĞŶĚ�ĂƌĞ�ƐŚŽǁŶ�ďĞůŽǁ͘��ŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�
ƚŽƚĂů�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�Ăƚ�ĨĂŝƌ�ǀĂůƵĞ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĨĂŝƌ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ĚĞƌŝǀĂƚŝǀĞƐ�ĂƐ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�
ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂů͘� 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

/ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ZĂƚĞ�ZŝƐŬ�–��ĞƌŝǀĂƚŝǀĞƐ͘� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ� ŝŶ� ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ� ƌĂƚĞ�ĚĞƌŝǀĂƚŝǀĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŚŝŐŚůǇ�
ƐĞŶƐŝƚŝǀĞ� ƚŽ� ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ� ŝŶ� ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ� ƌĂƚĞƐ͘  dŚĞ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ŵĂƚƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ŵĂũŽƌŝƚǇ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ�
ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƚĂďůĞ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ĂƌĞ�ϯ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ�Žƌ�ůĞƐƐ͘�dŚĞ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŵĂƚƵƌŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ�Ψϳ͘ϭ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�
ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�ĚĞƌŝǀĂƚŝǀĞƐ�ŝƐ�ϯ-ϲ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ͘ 
 
&ŽƌĞŝŐŶ��ƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ�ZŝƐŬ�–��ĞƌŝǀĂƚŝǀĞƐ͘�&ŽƌĞŝŐŶ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƐƵďũĞĐƚ�ƚŽ�ĨŽƌĞŝŐŶ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ�
ƌŝƐŬ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�ĚĞƉŽƐŝƚƐ�Žƌ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ĚĞŶŽŵŝŶĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĨŽƌĞŝŐŶ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ�ŵĂǇ�ďĞ�ĂĚǀĞƌƐĞůǇ�
ĂĨĨĞĐƚĞĚ� ďǇ� ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ� ŝŶ� ĨŽƌĞŝŐŶ� ĞǆĐŚĂŶŐĞ� ƌĂƚĞƐ͘� &ŽƌĞŝŐŶ� ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ� ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐ� ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ� ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ�
ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƉŽƚ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐ͘��ƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĚĞƌŝǀĂƚŝǀĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�ƐĞƌǀĞ�ƚŽ�
ŚĞĚŐĞ�Žƌ�ŽĨĨƐĞƚ� ƚŚĞ� ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ� ĨŽƌĞŝŐŶ� ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ�ĞǆĐŚĂŶŐĞ� ƌĂƚĞ� ĨůƵĐƚƵĂƚŝŽŶƐ͘�^ƉŽƚ� ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�
ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ďƵǇ�Žƌ�ƐĞůů�Ă�ĐĞƌƚĂŝŶ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ŽĨ�ĨŽƌĞŝŐŶ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ�ƌĂƚĞ�ĨŽƌ�
ƐĞƚƚůĞŵĞŶƚ� ŝŶ�ƚǁŽ�ďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ�ĚĂǇƐ͘�^ƉŽƚ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�ƵƐĞĚ�ǁŚĞŶ�^Ăŵ��Z�� ŝƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�
ƚŽ�ŵĂŬĞ�Žƌ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞ�ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�Ă�ĨŽƌĞŝŐŶ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ͘�^Ăŵ��Z��ĚŽĞƐ�ŶŽƚ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ĨŽƌŵĂů�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ŽŶ�
ĨŽƌĞŝŐŶ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ�ƌŝƐŬ͘�� 
 
�ƵƐƚŽĚŝĂů��ƌĞĚŝƚ�ZŝƐŬ�–��ĞƌŝǀĂƚŝǀĞƐ͘��Ɛ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ĚĞƌŝǀĂƚŝǀĞƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ƐƵďũĞĐƚ�
ƚŽ�ĐƵƐƚŽĚŝĂů�ĐƌĞĚŝƚ�ƌŝƐŬ͘�,ŽǁĞǀĞƌ͕�ƚŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ƐƵďũĞĐƚ�ƚŽ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƌŝƐŬƐ͘ 
 
�ƌĞĚŝƚ�ZŝƐŬ�–��ĞƌŝǀĂƚŝǀĞƐ͘�^Ăŵ��Z��ŝƐ�ĞǆƉŽƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚ�ƌŝƐŬ�ŽŶ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ĚĞƌŝǀĂƚŝǀĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƌĞ�
ƚƌĂĚĞĚ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶƚĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶƐ͘��ĞƌŝǀĂƚŝǀĞƐ�ĞǆƉŽƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚ�ƌŝƐŬ�
ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚ�ĚĞĨĂƵůƚ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ƌĂƚĞ�ƐǁĂƉƐ͕�ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐ͕�ƌŝŐŚƚƐ͕�ǁĂƌƌĂŶƚƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�
d���ƚƌĂŶƐĂĐƚŝŽŶƐ͘� 
 
dŽ�ŵŝŶŝŵŝǌĞ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚ�ƌŝƐŬ�ĞǆƉŽƐƵƌĞ͕�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌƐ�ĐŽŶƚŝŶƵŽƵƐůǇ�ŵŽŶŝƚŽƌ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚ�
ƌĂƚŝŶŐƐ�ŽĨ�ĐŽƵŶƚĞƌƉĂƌƚŝĞƐ͘�^ŚŽƵůĚ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ďĞ�Ă�ĐŽƵŶƚĞƌƉĂƌƚǇ�ĨĂŝůƵƌĞ͕�^Ăŵ��Z��ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĞǆƉŽƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�
ƚŚĞ�ůŽƐƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨĂŝƌ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�ĚĞƌŝǀĂƚŝǀĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƌĞ�ŝŶ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŶǇ�ĐŽůůĂƚĞƌĂů�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�
ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶƚĞƌƉĂƌƚǇ͕�ŶĞƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞĨĨĞĐƚ�ŽĨ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ�ŶĞƚƚŝŶŐ�ĂƌƌĂŶŐĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘�^Ăŵ��Z��ĚŽĞƐ�ŶŽƚ�ŚĂǀĞ�
Ă�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƌĞƐƉĞĐƚ�ƚŽ�ŶĞƚƚŝŶŐ�ĂƌƌĂŶŐĞŵĞŶƚƐ�Žƌ�ĐŽůůĂƚĞƌĂů�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘�/Ŷ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǀĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�
ďĂŶŬƌƵƉƚĐǇ�Žƌ�ĚĞĨĂƵůƚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶƚĞƌƉĂƌƚǇ͕�ŶĞƚƚŝŶŐ�ĂƌƌĂŶŐĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ůĞŐĂůůǇ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�^Ăŵ��Z��ǁŝƚŚ�
Ă�ƌŝŐŚƚ�ŽĨ�ŽĨĨƐĞƚ͘ 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

/Äò�ÝãÃ�Äã���Ù®ò�ã®ò�Ý 
:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

Type of Derivatives Notional Value Fair Value
Interest Rate Contracts - Short 7,550,469$         (7,758)$             
Foreign Exchange Contracts - Short 137,636,903       (201,577)           
Foreign Exchange Contracts - Long 3,751,195           2,695                 
Equity Contracts -Long 54,717,299         331,340             

Total 203,655,866$    124,700$          



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  61 

^ĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ�>ĞŶĚŝŶŐ��ĐƚŝǀŝƚǇ 
^Ăŵ��Z�� ŝƐ� ĂƵƚŚŽƌŝǌĞĚ� ďǇ� ŝƚƐ� /ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� WŽůŝĐǇ� ĂŶĚ� ƐƚĂƚĞ� ůĂǁ� ƚŽ� ƉĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂƚĞ� ŝŶ� Ă� ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ�
ůĞŶĚŝŶŐ� ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵ͘� ^ĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ� ůĞŶĚŝŶŐ� ƚƌĂŶƐĂĐƚŝŽŶƐ� ĂƌĞ� ƐŚŽƌƚ-ƚĞƌŵ� ĐŽůůĂƚĞƌĂůŝǌĞĚ� ůŽĂŶƐ� ŽĨ�
^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞ�ŽĨ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂƚŝŶŐ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŝŶĐŽŵĞ͘� 
 
^Ăŵ��Z�� ŚĂƐ� Ă� ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ� ůĞŶĚŝŶŐ� ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ� ŝŶ� ƉůĂĐĞ� ƚŚĂƚ� ĂƵƚŚŽƌŝǌĞƐ� ŝƚƐ� ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ� ůĞŶĚŝŶŐ�
ĂŐĞŶƚ� ƚŽ� ůĞŶĚ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ� ƚŽ� ďƌŽŬĞƌ-ĚĞĂůĞƌƐ� ĂŶĚ� ďĂŶŬƐ� ƉƵƌƐƵĂŶƚ� ƚŽ� Ă� ůŽĂŶ�
ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ͘�&Žƌ�ĞĂĐŚ� ƚǇƉĞ�ŽĨ� ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚǇ� ůŽĂŶĞĚ͕�^Ăŵ��Z��ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞƐ�ĐĂƐŚ�Žƌ�ŶŽŶ-ĐĂƐŚ�ĐŽůůĂƚĞƌĂů͘�
^Ăŵ��Z��ŝŶǀĞƐƚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐĂƐŚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞƐ�ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐƐ�ŽŶ�ŝƚ�ŝŶ�ĞǆĐŚĂŶŐĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƉĂǇŝŶŐ�Ă�ůŽĂŶ�ƌĞďĂƚĞ�ĨĞĞ�
ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ďŽƌƌŽǁĞƌ͘� /Ŷ� ƚŚĞ� ĐĂƐĞ� ŽĨ� ŶŽŶ-ĐĂƐŚ� ĐŽůůĂƚĞƌĂů͕� ƚŚĞ� ďŽƌƌŽǁĞƌ� ƉĂǇƐ� ^Ăŵ��Z�� Ă� ůŽĂŶ�
ƉƌĞŵŝƵŵ͘ 
 
&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ� :ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕�ŽŶ�ďĞŚĂůĨ�ŽĨ�^Ăŵ��Z�͕� ƚŚĞ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ� ůĞŶĚŝŶŐ�ĂŐĞŶƚ�
ůĞŶƚ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ� ƚŽ� ďŽƌƌŽǁĞƌƐ� ƵŶĚĞƌ� ƚŚĞ� ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ� ůĞŶĚŝŶŐ� ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ͘� /Ŷ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ͕�
^Ăŵ��Z��ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ĐĂƐŚ�ĂŶĚ�ŽďůŝŐĂƚŝŽŶƐ� ŝƐƐƵĞĚ�Žƌ�ŐƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�h͘^͘�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ͕�Žƌ� ŝƚƐ�
ĂŐĞŶĐŝĞƐ�Žƌ�ŝŶƐƚƌƵŵĞŶƚĂůŝƚŝĞƐ͘�� 
 
�ŽƌƌŽǁĞƌƐ� ǁĞƌĞ� ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ� ƚŽ� ĚĞůŝǀĞƌ� ĐŽůůĂƚĞƌĂů� ĨŽƌ� ĞĂĐŚ� ůŽĂŶ� ĞƋƵĂů� ƚŽ� ;ϭͿ� ůŽĂŶĞĚ� ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ�
ĚĞŶŽŵŝŶĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�h͘^͘�ĚŽůůĂƌƐ�Žƌ�ƐŽǀĞƌĞŝŐŶ�ĚĞďƚ� ŝƐƐƵĞĚ�ďǇ�ĨŽƌĞŝŐŶ�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚƐ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ŵĂƌŐŝŶ�
ŽĨ� Ăƚ� ůĞĂƐƚ� ϭϬϮй� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ĨĂŝƌ� ǀĂůƵĞ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ůŽĂŶĞĚ� ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ͖� ĂŶĚ� ;ϮͿ� ůŽĂŶĞĚ� ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ� ŶŽƚ�
ĚĞŶŽŵŝŶĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�h͘^͘�ĚŽůůĂƌƐ͕�Žƌ�ǁŚŽƐĞ�ƉƌŝŵĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂĚŝŶŐ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ�ǁĂƐ�ŶŽƚ� ůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�hŶŝƚĞĚ�
^ƚĂƚĞƐ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ŵĂƌŐŝŶ�ŽĨ�Ăƚ� ůĞĂƐƚ�ϭϬϱй�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ� ĨĂŝƌ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ� ůŽĂŶĞĚ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ͘� /Ŷ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶ͕�
ďŽƌƌŽǁĞƌƐ� ǁĞƌĞ� ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ� ƚŽ� ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ĚĞƐŝŐŶĂƚĞĚ� ŵĂƌŐŝŶ� ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ� ŽĨ� ĐŽůůĂƚĞƌĂů� ŽŶ� Ă�
ĚĂŝůǇ�ďĂƐŝƐ͘� 
 
^Ăŵ��Z�� ŝŵƉŽƐĞƐ� ƚŚĞ� ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ� ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƟŽŶƐ� ŽŶ� ƚŚĞ� ůŽĂŶƐ� ƚŚĂƚ� ƚŚĞ� ƐĞĐƵƌŝƟĞƐ� ůĞŶĚŝŶŐ� ĂŐĞŶƚ�
ŵĂŬĞƐ�ŽŶ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ďĞŚĂůĨ͗ 

· �ŽƌƌŽǁĞƌ� ŵƵƐƚ� ŚĂǀĞ� Ă� ůŽŶŐ-ƚĞƌŵ� ĐƌĞĚŝƚ� ƌĂƟŶŐ� ŽĨ� ĞŝƚŚĞƌ� ͞�͟� ĨƌŽŵ� ^ƚĂŶĚĂƌĚ� ĂŶĚ� WŽŽƌ͛Ɛ�
;^ΘWͿ�Žƌ�͞�Ϯ͟� ĨƌŽŵ�DŽŽĚǇ͛Ɛ� /ŶǀĞƐƚŽƌƐ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ� ;DŽŽĚǇ͛ƐͿ͘� � &Žƌ� ƐƉůŝƚ-ƌĂƚĞĚ�ďŽƌƌŽǁĞƌƐ͕� ƚŚĞ�
ŚŝŐŚĞƌ� ƌĂƟŶŐ� ƐŚĂůů�ƉƌĞǀĂŝů� ŝĨ�ŶŽƚ� ƚŚĞ� ƐĂŵĞ� ƌĂƟŶŐ͕�ǁŝƚŚ� ƚŚĞ� ůŽǁĞƌ� ƌĂƟŶŐ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ŵŝŶŝŵƵŵ�
ůŽŶŐ-ƚĞƌŵ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚ�ƌĂƟŶŐ�ŽĨ�ĞŝƚŚĞƌ�͞�-͞�ĨƌŽŵ�^ΘW�Žƌ�͞�ϯ͟�ĨƌŽŵ�DŽŽĚǇ͛Ɛ͘ 

· dŚĞ�ŵĂǆŝŵƵŵ� ĂůůŽǁĂďůĞ� ĂŵŽƵŶƚ� ŽĨ� ĂƐƐĞƚƐ� ŽŶ� ůŽĂŶ� ƚŽ� ĂŶǇ� ƐŝŶŐůĞ� ďŽƌƌŽǁĞƌ� ƐŚĂůů� ŶŽƚ� ďĞ�
ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�Ψϯ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ͘ 

· dŚĞ� ŵĂǆŝŵƵŵ� ƚŽƚĂů� ĂŵŽƵŶƚ� ŽĨ� ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵ� ĂƐƐĞƚƐ� ŽŶ� ůŽĂŶ� ƐŚĂůů� ŶŽƚ� ďĞ� ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌ� ƚŚĂŶ� ΨϭϬ�
ŵŝůůŝŽŶ͘ 

 
dŚĞ� ƐĞĐƵƌŝƟĞƐ� ůĞŶĚŝŶŐ� ĂŐĞŶƚ� ŝŶĚĞŵŶŝĮĞĚ� ^Ăŵ��Z�� ďǇ� ĂŐƌĞĞŝŶŐ� ƚŽ� ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞ� ƌĞƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚ�
ƐĞĐƵƌŝƟĞƐ� Žƌ� ƚŽ� ƐƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚ� ƚŚĞ� ĂŵŽƵŶƚ� ŽĨ� ĐĂƐŚ� ĐŽůůĂƚĞƌĂů� ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ� ƚŽ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͘� ^ƵĐŚ�
ŝŶĚĞŵŶŝĮĐĂƟŽŶ� ǁŝůů� ďĞĐŽŵĞ� ĞīĞĐƟǀĞ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ĞǀĞŶƚ� ƚŚĞ� ďŽƌƌŽǁĞƌ� ĨĂŝůƐ� ƚŽ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ� ƚŚĞ� ůŽĂŶĞĚ�
ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽůůĂƚĞƌĂů�ŝƐ�ŝŶĂĚĞƋƵĂƚĞ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ�ůĞŶƚ�Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽƌƌŽǁĞƌ�ĨĂŝůƐ�ƚŽ�
ƉĂǇ�^Ăŵ��Z��ĨŽƌ�ĂŶǇ�ŝŶĐŽŵĞ�ĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ŽŶ�ůŽĂŶĞĚ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ͘�^Ăŵ��Z��ĚŝĚ�ŶŽƚ�ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ�

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 



62  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

ĂŶǇ�ůŽƐƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�Ă�ĚĞĨĂƵůƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽƌƌŽǁĞƌƐ�Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ�ůĞŶĚŝŶŐ�ĂŐĞŶƚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ�
ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͘�^Ăŵ��Z��ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽƌƌŽǁĞƌƐ�ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŝŐŚƚ� ƚŽ� ƚĞƌŵŝŶĂƚĞ�Ăůů� ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ� ůĞŶĚŝŶŐ�
ƚƌĂŶƐĂĐƚŝŽŶƐ�ŽŶ�ĚĞŵĂŶĚ͘� 
 
�Ɛ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĨĂŝƌ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ�ŽŶ�ůŽĂŶ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ĐŽůůĂƚĞƌĂů�ŚĞůĚ�
ĂŵŽƵŶƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�Ψϳ͘ϯ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�Ψϳ͘ϱ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ�;ǁŝƚŚ�ΨϬ͘ϰ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ�ŝŶ�ĐĂƐŚ�ĐŽůůĂƚĞƌĂů�ĂŶĚ�Ψϳ͘ϭ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ�
ŝŶ� ŶŽŶ-ĐĂƐŚ� ĐŽůůĂƚĞƌĂůͿ͕� ƌĞƐƉĞĐƚŝǀĞůǇ͘� dŚĞ� ĂŵŽƵŶƚ� ŽĨ� ĐŽůůĂƚĞƌĂů� ĞǆĐĞĞĚĞĚ� ƚŚĞ� ĂŵŽƵŶƚ� ŽĨ�
ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ�ŽŶ�ůŽĂŶ�ďǇ�Ψϭϰϱ͕ϴϰϳ͘�dŚĞ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ�ŽŶ�ůŽĂŶ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�h͘^͘�ĞƋƵŝƚŝĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂƚŝŽŶĂů�
ĞƋƵŝƚŝĞƐ͘ 
 
dŚĞ�ĐĂƐŚ�ĐŽůůĂƚĞƌĂů�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ŽŶ�ĞĂĐŚ� ůŽĂŶ�ǁĂƐ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚĞĚ� ŝŶ�Ă�ƐŚŽƌƚ-ƚĞƌŵ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƉŽŽů͕� ƚŚĞ�
EŽƌƚŚĞƌŶ� /ŶƐƚŝƚƵƚŝŽŶĂů� >ŝƋƵŝĚ� �ƐƐĞƚƐ� WŽƌƚĨŽůŝŽ� ;E/>�WͿ͕� ŵĂŶĂŐĞĚ� ďǇ� ƚŚĞ� ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ� ůĞŶĚŝŶŐ�
ĂŐĞŶƚ͘�dŚĞ�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ�ŵĂƚƵƌŝƚǇ�ŽĨ� ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ�ŽŶ� ůŽĂŶ�ǁĂƐ�ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇ�ϲϲ�ĚĂǇƐ�ĂƐ�ŽĨ� :ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�
ϮϬϭϵ͘�^Ăŵ��Z��ĚŽĞƐ�ŶŽƚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ƉůĞĚŐĞ�Žƌ�ƐĞůů�ŶŽŶ-ĐĂƐŚ�ĐŽůůĂƚĞƌĂů�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌĞĚ�ĂďƐĞŶƚ�
Ă�ďŽƌƌŽǁĞƌ�ĚĞĨĂƵůƚ͘�dŚĞƌĞĨŽƌĞ͕� ƐƵĐŚ�ŶŽŶ-ĐĂƐŚ�ĐŽůůĂƚĞƌĂů� ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ� ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ŽŶ� ƚŚĞ�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�
&ŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ� EĞƚ� WŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ͘� dŚĞƌĞ� ǁĞƌĞ� ŶŽ� ǀŝŽůĂƚŝŽŶƐ� ŽĨ� ůĞŐĂů� Žƌ� ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƵĂů� ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ͕� ŶŽ�
ďŽƌƌŽǁĞƌ�Žƌ�ůĞŶĚŝŶŐ�ĂŐĞŶƚ�ĚĞĨĂƵůƚ�ůŽƐƐĞƐ�ŬŶŽǁŶ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ�ůĞŶĚŝŶŐ�ĂŐĞŶƚ͘ 
 
^ĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ� >ĞŶĚŝŶŐ� �ŽůůĂƚĞƌĂů� �ƌĞĚŝƚ� ZŝƐŬ͘� �ůů� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ĐĂƐŚ� ĐŽůůĂƚĞƌĂů� ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ� ĨŽƌ� ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ�
ůĞŶĚŝŶŐ�ŝƐ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�E/>�W��ĂƐŚ��ŽůůĂƚĞƌĂů�&ƵŶĚ�;ƚŚĞ�&ƵŶĚͿ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�ƌĂƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚ�
ƌĂƚŝŶŐ�ĂŐĞŶĐŝĞƐ͘��ůů�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ƋƵĂůŝĨǇ�ĂƐ�͞ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ͟�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĞĂŶŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ZƵůĞ�Ϯ;ĂͿ-
ϳ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ� /ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ��ŽŵƉĂŶǇ��Đƚ�ŽĨ�ϭϵϰϬ͘�dŚĞ�&ƵŶĚ�ƐĞĞŬƐ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶ�Ă�ƐƚĂďůĞ�ŶĞƚ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�
ǀĂůƵĞ�ƉĞƌ�ƐŚĂƌĞ�ŽĨ�Ψϭ�ďǇ�ǀĂůƵŝŶŐ�ŝƚƐ�&ƵŶĚ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�ĂŶ�ĂŵŽƌƚŝǌĞĚ�ĐŽƐƚ�ŵĞƚŚŽĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŵƉůǇŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�
ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�ZƵůĞ�Ϯ;ĂͿ-ϳ͘� 
 
^ĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ� >ĞŶĚŝŶŐ� �ŽůůĂƚĞƌĂů� /ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ� ZĂƚĞ� ZŝƐŬ͘� �ĂƐŚ� ĐŽůůĂƚĞƌĂů� ĨƌŽŵ� ůŽĂŶƐ� ŽĨ� ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ� ĂƌĞ�
ŝŶǀĞƐƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�&ƵŶĚ͘�dŚĞ�&ƵŶĚ͛Ɛ�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ�ĞĨĨĞĐƚŝǀĞ�ĚƵƌĂƚŝŽŶ�ŝƐ�ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ϵϬ�ĚĂǇƐ�Žƌ�ůĞƐƐ͘���Ɛ�
ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕�ƚŚĞ�&ƵŶĚ�ŚĂĚ�ĂŶ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ƌĂƚĞ�ƐĞŶƐŝƚŝǀŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�Ϯϲ�ĚĂǇƐ͘ 
 
&Ăŝƌ�sĂůƵĞ�DĞĂƐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ 
'�^�� ^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ� EŽ͘� ϳϮ͕� &Ăŝƌ� sĂůƵĞ� DĞĂƐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ĂŶĚ� �ƉƉůŝĐĂƚŝŽŶ͕� ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞƐ� Ă� ĨĂŝƌ� ǀĂůƵĞ�
ŚŝĞƌĂƌĐŚǇ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ƚǇƉĞƐ�ŽĨ�ŝŶƉƵƚ�ƚŽ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉ�ƚŚĞ�ĨĂŝƌ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ�
ĨŽƌ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ͘� 

· >ĞǀĞů�ϭ�-�ƌĞĨůĞĐƚƐ�ƉƌŝĐĞƐ�ƋƵŽƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĂĐƚŝǀĞ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚƐ͘� 

· >ĞǀĞů� Ϯ� -� ƌĞĨůĞĐƚƐ� ƉƌŝĐĞƐ� ƚŚĂƚ� ĂƌĞ� ďĂƐĞĚ� ŽŶ� Ă� ƐŝŵŝůĂƌ� ŽďƐĞƌǀĂďůĞ� ĂƐƐĞƚ� ĞŝƚŚĞƌ� ĚŝƌĞĐƚůǇ� Žƌ�
ŝŶĚŝƌĞĐƚůǇ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŵĂǇ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ŝŶƉƵƚƐ�ŝŶ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĂĐƚŝǀĞ͘ 

· >ĞǀĞů�ϯ�-�ƌĞĨůĞĐƚƐ�ƉƌŝĐĞƐ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ƵƉŽŶ�ƵŶŽďƐĞƌǀĂďůĞ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ͘ 

dŚĞ�ĐĂƚĞŐŽƌŝǌĂƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ĨĂŝƌ� ǀĂůƵĞ�ŚŝĞƌĂƌĐŚǇ� ;ƐĞĞ�ƉĂŐĞƐ�ϲϯ-ϲϰͿ� ŝƐ�ďĂƐĞĚ�
ƵƉŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŝĐŝŶŐ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉĂƌĞŶĐǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƐƚƌƵŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞ�ƉĞƌĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƌƚŝĐƵůĂƌ�
ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ͛Ɛ�ƌŝƐŬ͘� 
 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  63 

&�®Ù�s�½ç��D��ÝçÙ�Ã�Äã 

:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets for 

Identical Assets

Significant Other 
Observable 

Inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2)

Foreign Stocks  $    428,199,722  $        428,199,722 

US Common & Preferred Stock        370,384,323            370,384,323 

     Total Equity Securities        798,584,045            798,584,045 

Domestic Bond Funds        495,123,892               87,782,790  $    407,341,102 

Domestic Equity Funds        566,741,398                                  -        566,741,398 

International Equity Funds        346,941,153                                  -        346,941,153 

Liquid Pool Funds        251,230,510                                  -        251,230,510 

    Total Commingled Funds     1,660,036,953               87,782,790     1,572,254,163 

               403,093                                  -                403,093 

     Total Investments by Fair Value Level     2,459,024,091  $        886,366,835  $ 1,572,657,256 

Domestic Bond Funds        499,068,949 

Global Bond Funds           42,351,913 

Domestic Equity Funds        145,207,692 

International Equity Funds           64,932,940 

Real Estate Funds        380,726,638 

Risk Parity Funds        389,039,081 

Absolute Return/Hedge Funds        243,015,716 

Private Equity Funds        336,758,744 

Private Real Asset Funds           65,553,108 

     Total Investments Measured at NAV     2,166,654,781 

           Total Investments  $ 4,625,678,872 

Interest Rate Contracts - Short  $               (7,758)  $                              -  $               (7,758)

Foreign Exchange Contracts - Short               (201,577)                                  -               (201,577)

Foreign Exchange Contracts - Long                     2,695                                  -                     2,695 

Equity Contracts - Long                331,340                    331,340                              - 

         Total Derivatives 124,700$            331,340$                (206,640)$           

Derivatives (1)

(1) Derivatives are reported under cash management overlay on the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position.

Fair Value Measurements Using

June 30, 2019Investments by Fair Value Level
EQUITY SECURITIES

COMMINGLED FUNDS

Investments Measured at the Net Asset Value (NAV)

COLLATERAL FROM SECURITIES LENDING



64  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

/Äò�ÝãÃ�ÄãÝ�D��ÝçÙ����ã�E�ã��ÝÝ�ã�s�½ç��;E�sͿ 

:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

      6/30/2019
Unfunded 

Commitments

Redemption 
Frequency (if 

currently eligible)
Redemption 

Notice Period

 $     499,068,949  $                      -   Daily, Quarterly 15-90 days

          42,351,913                            - Monthly 15 days

        145,207,692                            - Daily 1-5 days

          64,932,940                            - Daily 1-10 days

        380,726,638         27,200,000 
Quarterly, Not 

Eligible
45 days

        389,039,081                            - Monthly 15 days

        243,015,716                            - 
Semi-Monthly, 

Monthly
5-75 days

        336,758,744       191,500,000 Not Eligible Not applicable

          65,553,108       120,600,000 Not Eligible Not applicable

 $ 2,166,654,781  $  339,300,000 

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

Bond and Equity Funds. This type includes eight domestic bond funds, one global bond fund, one domestic
equity fund, and one international equity fund that is considered to be commingled in nature. Each is valued
at the net asset value of units held at the end of the period based upon the fair value of the underlying
investments.
Real Estate Funds. This type includes three real estate funds that invest primarily in a diversified portfolio of
institutional quality multi-family, industrial, retail  and office assets in the U.S.  This type also includes one real 
estate debt fund that originates loans primarily across a diversified portfolio of institutional quality multi-
family, industrial, retail, office and specialty assets. The fair values of the investments in these types have
been determined using the NAV (or its equivalent) of the plan’s ownership interest in partners’ capital. One
investment has quarterly liquidity, one is subject to an initial 2 year lock-up with quarterly liquidity thereafter
while the other two are ineligible for redemption.
Risk Parity Funds. This type includes two risk parity funds that seek to generate returns from a risk diversified
portfolio of asset exposures.  The fair values of the investments in this type have been determined using the NAV 
(or its equivalent) of the plan’s ownership interest in partners’ capital. The funds can be redeemed on a
monthly basis.
Absolute Return/Hedge Funds. This strategy consists of two multi-strategy absolute return/hedge funds. One
fund delivers efficient exposure to a well-diversified portfolio of hedge fund strategies and the other builds a
broad range of return-seeking positions (i.e., multi-strategy) with high underlying liquidity that incorporates
multiple risk views.  
Private Equity and Real Asset Funds. This type includes twenty-four private equity funds, investing primarily in
Buyout Funds, Venture Capital, and Debt/Special Situations. This type also includes ten Private Real Asset
funds, investing in infrastructure, mining finance, solar, energy, and farmland. The fair values of these funds
have been determined using net asset values one quarter in arrears plus current quarter cash flows. These
funds are not eligible for redemption. Distributions are received as underlying investments with the funds are
liquidated, which on average can occur over the span of 5 to 10 years.

Investments Measured at NAV

Domestic Bond Funds (1)

Global Bond Funds  (1)

Domestic Equity Funds  (1)

International Equity Funds  (1)

Real Estate Funds  (2)

Risk Parity Funds (3)

Hedge Funds/Absolute Return  (4)

Private Equity Funds (5)

Private Real Asset Funds  (5)

Total Investments Measured at NAV



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  65 

�Ɛ�ŽĨ� :ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕�^Ăŵ��Z��ĚŝĚ�ŶŽƚ�ŚŽůĚ�ĂŶǇ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ĐůĂƐƐŝĨŝĞĚ� ŝŶ�>ĞǀĞů�ϯ͘��Ğďƚ�ĂŶĚ�
ĞƋƵŝƚǇ� ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ� ĐůĂƐƐŝĨŝĞĚ� ŝŶ� >ĞǀĞů� ϭ� ĂƌĞ� ǀĂůƵĞĚ� ƵƐŝŶŐ� ƉƌŝĐĞƐ� ƋƵŽƚĞĚ� ŝŶ� ĂĐƚŝǀĞ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚƐ� ĨŽƌ�
ƚŚŽƐĞ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ͘��Ğďƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĞƋƵŝƚǇ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ�ĐůĂƐƐŝĨŝĞĚ�ŝŶ�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨĂŝƌ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŚŝĞƌĂƌĐŚǇ�ĂƌĞ�
ǀĂůƵĞĚ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚĞƐ͗ 

· h͘^͘� dƌĞĂƐƵƌŝĞƐ͕� h͘^͘� �ŐĞŶĐŝĞƐ͕� ĂŶĚ� �ŽŵŵĞƌĐŝĂů� WĂƉĞƌ͗� ƵƐĞ� ƋƵŽƚĞĚ� ƉƌŝĐĞƐ� ĨŽƌ� ŝĚĞŶƚŝĐĂů�
ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ�ŝŶ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ĂĐƚŝǀĞ͖ 

· �ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�DƵŶŝĐŝƉĂů��ŽŶĚƐ͗�ƵƐĞ�ƋƵŽƚĞĚ�ƉƌŝĐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐŝŵŝůĂƌ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ�ŝŶ�ĂĐƚŝǀĞ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚƐ͖ 

· ZĞƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞ� �ŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚƐ͕� EĞŐŽƚŝĂďůĞ� �ĞƌƚŝĨŝĐĂƚĞƐ� ŽĨ� �ĞƉŽƐŝƚ͕� ĂŶĚ� �ŽůůĂƚĞƌĂůŝǌĞĚ� �Ğďƚ�
KďůŝŐĂƚŝŽŶƐ͗�ƵƐĞ�ŵĂƚƌŝǆ�ƉƌŝĐŝŶŐ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ͛�ƌĞůĂƚŝŽŶƐŚŝƉ�ƚŽ�ďĞŶĐŚŵĂƌŬ�ƋƵŽƚĞĚ�
ƉƌŝĐĞƐ͖� 

· DŽŶĞǇ�DĂƌŬĞƚ͕��ŽŶĚ͕�ĂŶĚ��ƋƵŝƚǇ�DƵƚƵĂů�&ƵŶĚƐ͗�ƵƐĞ�ƉƵďůŝƐŚĞĚ�ĨĂŝƌ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ƉĞƌ�ƐŚĂƌĞ�;ƵŶŝƚͿ�
ĨŽƌ�ĞĂĐŚ�ĨƵŶĚ͖�ĂŶĚ 

· �ŽŵŵŝŶŐůĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ŚŝŐŚ-ǇŝĞůĚ�ĞƋƵŝƚǇ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ͗�ƵƐĞ�ŵĂƚƌŝǆ�ƉƌŝĐŝŶŐ�ƚĞĐŚŶŝƋƵĞƐ�Žƌ�ƋƵŽƚĞĚ�
ƉƌŝĐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐŝŵŝůĂƌ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝƚŝĞƐ�ŝŶ�ĂĐƚŝǀĞ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚƐ͘ 

 
EŽƚĞ�ϳ͗�WĞŶƐŝŽŶ��ŝƐĐůŽƐƵƌĞƐ 
 
�ŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�EĞƚ�WĞŶƐŝŽŶ�>ŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ 
'�^�� ^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ� EŽ͘� ϲϳ͕� &ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ZĞƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ� ĨŽƌ� WĞŶƐŝŽŶ� WůĂŶƐ� –� ĂŶ� �ŵĞŶĚŵĞŶƚ� ŽĨ� '�^��
^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�EŽ͘�Ϯϱ͕�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞƐ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ƉůĂŶƐ�ƚŽ�ĚŝƐĐůŽƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ŶĞƚ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�
ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ͘� dŚĞ� ŶĞƚ� ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ� ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ� ŽĨ� Ăůů� ƉĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂƚŝŶŐ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ�ǁĂƐ� ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ� ďĂƐĞĚ�
ƵƉŽŶ� ƉůĂŶ� ĂƐƐĞƚƐ� ĂƐ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ĚĂƚĞ� Ăƚ� :ƵŶĞ� ϯϬ͕� ϮϬϭϵ͘� &Žƌ� ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ƌĞƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ�
ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞƚ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŝƐ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞĚ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ůĞƐƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�
ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ĨŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�ŶĞƚ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ͘�dŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ�ǀĂůƵĞ�
ŽĨ� ƉƌŽũĞĐƚĞĚ� ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ� ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ� ;ƵƐŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ� ĚŝƐĐŽƵŶƚ� ƌĂƚĞ� ŽĨ� ϲ͘ϲϳй� ĚŝƐĐƵƐƐĞĚ� ůĂƚĞƌͿ� ƚŽ� ďĞ�
ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ� ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ� ƚŚĞ� ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ� ƉůĂŶ� ƚŽ� ĂĐƚŝǀĞ͕� ŝŶĂĐƚŝǀĞ͕� ĂŶĚ� ƌĞƚŝƌĞĚ� ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ� ;Žƌ� ƚŚĞŝƌ�
ďĞŶĞĨŝĐŝĂƌŝĞƐͿ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ͛�ƉĂƐƚ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚƐ�ŽĨ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͘� 
 
�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�DĞƚŚŽĚƐ�ĂŶĚ��ƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ 
�ĂĐŚ�ǇĞĂƌ�^Ăŵ��Z��ĞŶŐĂŐĞƐ�ĂŶ�ŝŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚŝŶŐ�Ĩŝƌŵ�ƚŽ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵ�ĂŶ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�
ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů� ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ� ŝŶ� ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ� ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ� ƵŶĚĞƌ�'�^�� ^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�EŽ͘� ϲϳ͘� /Ŷ� ƚŚĞ�
ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ͕� ƚŚĞ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌǇ� ĞŵƉůŽǇƐ� ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ� ĂĐĐĞƉƚĞĚ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů� ŵĞƚŚŽĚƐ� ĂŶĚ� ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ� ƚŽ�
ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂŶ�ĨŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�ŶĞƚ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ͛�ŶĞƚ�
ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ͘���ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ŝŶǀŽůǀĞ�ĞƐƚŝŵĂƚĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�
ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽďĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ĞǀĞŶƚƐ�ĨĂƌ� ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ͘�dŚĞ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂůůǇ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ�
ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƐƵďũĞĐƚ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶƚŝŶƵĂů�ƌĞǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ĂƐ�ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƉĂƐƚ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�
ŶĞǁ� ĞƐƚŝŵĂƚĞƐ� ĂƌĞ� ŵĂĚĞ� ĂďŽƵƚ� ƚŚĞ� ĨƵƚƵƌĞ͘� �ĂůĐƵůĂƚŝŽŶƐ͕� ǁŚŝĐŚ� ƌĞĨůĞĐƚ� Ă� ůŽŶŐ-ƚĞƌŵ�
ƉĞƌƐƉĞĐƚŝǀĞ͕�ĂƌĞ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƚĞƌŵƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵďƐƚĂŶƚŝǀĞ�ƉůĂŶ� ŝŶ�
ĞĨĨĞĐƚ� Ăƚ� ƚŚĞ� ƚŝŵĞ� ŽĨ� ĞĂĐŚ� ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ� ĂŶĚ� ŽŶ� ƚŚĞ� ƉĂƚƚĞƌŶ� ŽĨ� ƐŚĂƌŝŶŐ� ŽĨ� ĐŽƐƚƐ� ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ� ƚŚĞ�
ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ƉůĂŶ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƉŽŝŶƚ͘ 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 



66  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

^�«��ç½��Ê¥��ÃÖ½Êù�Ù�E�ã�W�ÄÝ®ÊÄ�>®��®½®ãù� 

:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

Net Pension Liability       June 30, 2019
Tota l  pens ion l iabi l i ty 5,339,216,207$   
Less : Plan fiduciary net pos i tion (4,723,109,935)    
Employers' net pension liability 616,106,272$      

88.46%
Covered payrol l 554,734,196$      
Employers ' net pens ion l iabi l i ty as  a  % of covered payrol l 111.06%

Discount rate 6.67%
Long-term expected rate of return, net of expenses 6.50%

Valuation date June 30, 2019

Measurement date June 30, 2019

Key assumptions 

Investment rate of return (1)
6.67%

Genera l  wage increases 3.00%
Inflation 2.50%
Morta l i ty

Actuarial experience study July 1, 2014 to Apri l  30, 2017

Actuarial cost method Individual  Entry Age Normal  

Asset Valuation Method Fair market va lue

Smoothing period 5 years  

Recognition method Non-asymptotic

Corridor 80% to 120% of fa i r va lue

(2) Contribution "credi ts" are appl ied to the County of San Mateo (the County) and San Mateo County Mosquito & 
Vector Control  Dis trict (the Dis trict) contribution rates . These rates  reflect supplementa l  contributions  by the 
County and the Dis trict that are tracked separately in the County and Dis trict Supplementa l  Contribution 
Accounts . Contributions  in a  given year are amortized as  a  level  percentage of pay over a  15-year closed period.  

This schedule displays the tota l pens ion l iabi l i ty, the plan fiduciary net pos i tion, and the net pens ion l iabi l i ty of
a l l participating employers , which were determined in conformity with the requirements prescribed by GASB
Statement No. 67.

Plan fiduciary net pos i tion as  a  % of tota l  pens ion l iabi l i ty

The plan's  fiduciary net pos i tion was  projected to be ava i lable to make a l l  projected future benefi t payments  of 
current active employees , inactive members , reti rees , and beneficiaries . Therefore, the discount rate for
ca lculating the tota l pens ion l iabi l i ty i s equal to the long-term expected rate of return, gross of adminis trative
expenses .

Note: The tota l pens ion l iabi l i ty was determined by an actuaria l va luation as of the valuation date, ca lculated
based on the discount rate and actuaria l  assumptions  and methods  shown below.

(1)   Di ffers  from actuaria l  va luation for funding purposes  due to addition of adminis trative load of 0.17%.

Amortization of Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability 

(UAAL) (2)
UAAL as of June 30, 2008, i s amortized over a closed 15-year
period ending June 30, 2023. Subsequent changes in the UAAL
are amortized over separate closed 15-year layers that are
determined annual ly ("layer" amortization). 

Various  rates  based on morta l i ty tables  described in the June 30, 
2019, actuaria l  va luation.



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  67 

�ŝƐĐŽƵŶƚ�ZĂƚĞ 
dŚĞ�ĚŝƐĐŽƵŶƚ�ƌĂƚĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ǁĂƐ�ϲ͘ϲϳй�ĂƐ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕�
ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ� ƚŽ� ϲ͘ϵϮй� ĨƌŽŵ� Ă� ǇĞĂƌ� ĂŐŽ͘� dŚĞ� ƉƌŽũĞĐƚŝŽŶ� ŽĨ� ĐĂƐŚ� ĨůŽǁƐ� ƵƐĞĚ� ƚŽ� ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ� ƚŚĞ�
ĚŝƐĐŽƵŶƚ�ƌĂƚĞ�ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ�ďŽƚŚ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ŵĂĚĞ�Ăƚ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ĞƋƵĂů�
ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂůůǇ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞƐ͘� 
 
^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ĨŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ� ŶĞƚ� ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ� ŝƐ� ƉƌŽũĞĐƚĞĚ� ƚŽ� ďĞ� ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ� ƚŽ�ŵĂŬĞ� Ăůů� ƉƌŽũĞĐƚĞĚ� ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�
ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ĂĐƚŝǀĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͕�ŝŶĂĐƚŝǀĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ͕�ƌĞƚŝƌĞĞƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ďĞŶĞĨŝĐŝĂƌŝĞƐ͘�
dŚĞƌĞĨŽƌĞ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĚŝƐĐŽƵŶƚ�ƌĂƚĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĐĂůĐƵůĂƚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŝƐ�ĞƋƵĂů�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽŶŐ-ƚĞƌŵ�
ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ƌĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ͕�ŐƌŽƐƐ�ŽĨ�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŝǀĞ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ͘� 
 
^ĞŶƐŝƚŝǀŝƚǇ��ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ 
dŚĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ͛�ŶĞƚ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĂĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĚŝƐĐŽƵŶƚ�ƌĂƚĞ͘�dŚĞ�ƚĂďůĞ�
ďĞůŽǁ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞƚ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ƉĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂƚŝŶŐ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ�Ăƚ�ǇĞĂƌ-ĞŶĚ͕�ƵƐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�
ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ĚŝƐĐŽƵŶƚ�ƌĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�ϲ͘ϲϳй͕�ĂŶĚ�ǁŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞƚ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�Ă�ĚŝƐĐŽƵŶƚ�
ƌĂƚĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�ŽŶĞ�ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚ�ůŽǁĞƌ�Žƌ�ŽŶĞ�ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ĚŝƐĐŽƵŶƚ�ƌĂƚĞ͘ 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EŽƚĞ�ϴ͗�WůĂŶ�ZĞƐĞƌǀĞƐ 
 
WůĂŶ� ƌĞƐĞƌǀĞƐ� ;ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚƐ� ŽĨ� ŶĞƚ� ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶͿ� ĂƌĞ� ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ� ƚŽ� ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ� ĨŽƌ� ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ�
ĂĐĐƵŵƵůĂƚĞĚ� ĨƌŽŵ� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ͕� ŵĞŵďĞƌ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ͕� ĂŶĚ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ŝŶĐŽŵĞ�
ĂĨƚĞƌ�ƐĂƚŝƐĨǇŝŶŐ�Ăůů�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ͘�dŚĞ�ƉůĂŶ�ƌĞƐĞƌǀĞƐ�ĚŽ�ŶŽƚ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�
ŶĞĞĚĞĚ͕� ĂƐ� ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ� ďǇ� ƚŚĞ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů� ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ͕� ƚŽ� ƐĂƚŝƐĨǇ� ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ĂŶĚ� ŽƚŚĞƌ� ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ�
ǁŚĞŶ�ƚŚĞǇ�ďĞĐŽŵĞ�ĚƵĞ͘�� 
 
^Ăŵ��Z��ƵƐĞƐ� ƚŚƌĞĞ�ĚŝĨĨĞƌĞŶƚ� ƚǇƉĞƐ� ŽĨ� ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ� ƚŽ� ƌĞĐŽƌĚ� ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂŶ� ƌĞƐĞƌǀĞƐ͗� ƚŚĞ� ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ�
ƌĞƐĞƌǀĞƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ŶŽŶ-ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƌĞƐĞƌǀĞ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ�ƐƚĂďŝůŝǌĂƚŝŽŶ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ͘��dŚĞ�ƉůĂŶ�ƌĞƐĞƌǀĞƐ�
ĂƐ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕�ĂƌĞ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ƚĂďůĞ͘ 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

Current 

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

5.67% 6.67% 7.67%

Total pension liability 6,116,217,610$      5,339,216,207$   4,707,816,259$   

Less: Fiduciary net position (4,723,109,935)       (4,723,109,935)    (4,723,109,935)    
         Net pension liability 1,393,107,675$      616,106,272$      (15,293,676)$       

^�«��ç½��Ê¥�^�ÄÝ®ã®ò®ãù��Ä�½ùÝ®Ý 

June 30, 2019 

Current 

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

5.67% 6.67% 7.67%

Total pension liability 6,116,217,610$      5,339,216,207$   4,707,816,259$   

Less: Fiduciary net position (4,723,109,935)       (4,723,109,935)    (4,723,109,935)    
         Net pension liability 1,393,107,675$      616,106,272$      (15,293,676)$       



68  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
sĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ�ZĞƐĞƌǀĞƐ 
dŚĞ�ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƌĞƐĞƌǀĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŵĂĚĞ�ƵƉ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ͗ 
 
DĞŵďĞƌ� ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ� ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚƐ� ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ� ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ� ďǇ� ĂĐƚŝǀĞ� ĂŶĚ� ŝŶĂĐƚŝǀĞ� ;ĚĞĨĞƌƌĞĚͿ� ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ͘�
�ĚĚŝƚŝŽŶƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĞĚ͘��ĞĚƵĐƚŝŽŶƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ƌĞĨƵŶĚƐ�ƚŽ�
ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ZĞƚŝƌĞĞ�ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ�ǁŚĞŶ�Ă�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞƐ͘� 
 
�ŵƉůŽǇĞƌ��ĚǀĂŶĐĞ�ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ� ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚƐ� ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ďǇ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ� ĨŽƌ� ĨƵƚƵƌĞ� ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�
ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ� ƚŽ� ĂĐƚŝǀĞ� ĂŶĚ� ŝŶĂĐƚŝǀĞ� ;ĚĞĨĞƌƌĞĚͿ� ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ͘� �ĚĚŝƚŝŽŶƐ� ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĞĚ͘��ĞĚƵĐƚŝŽŶƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ůƵŵƉ-ƐƵŵ�ĚĞĂƚŚ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�
ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ͛�ƐƵƌǀŝǀŽƌƐ͕�ƐƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƌǇ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ZĞƚŝƌĞĞ�ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ�
ǁŚĞŶ�Ă�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞƐ͘�/Ĩ�Ă�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĞůĞĐƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞ�Ă�ƌĞĨƵŶĚ�ŽĨ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ƵƉŽŶ�
ƚĞƌŵŝŶĂƚŝŽŶ͕� ƚŚĞ� ďĂůĂŶĐĞ� ŝŶ� ƚŚŝƐ� ƌĞƐĞƌǀĞ� ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ� ǁŝůů� ŶŽƚ� ďĞ� ĂĨĨĞĐƚĞĚ� ƐŝŶĐĞ� ƚŚĞ� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ͛�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ĂŶ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚĂŬĞƐ�ŝŶƚŽ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�
ƚĞƌŵŝŶĂƚŝŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞ�ĨŽƌ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ͘ 
 
ZĞƚŝƌĞĞ� ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ� ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚƐ� ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ� ƐĞƚ� ĂƐŝĚĞ� ĨŽƌ� ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ͘� �ĚĚŝƚŝŽŶƐ� ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�
ƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƐ� ĨƌŽŵ� ƚŚĞ�DĞŵďĞƌ�ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ��ŵƉůŽǇĞƌ��ĚǀĂŶĐĞ�ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ� ;ďŽƚŚ�ŵĂĚĞ�Ăƚ� ƚŚĞ�
ƚŝŵĞ�Ă�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞƐͿ�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ� ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĞĚ͘��ĞĚƵĐƚŝŽŶƐ� ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�
ƌĞƚŝƌĞĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ďĞŶĞĨŝĐŝĂƌŝĞƐ͘ 
 

Z�Ý�Ùò�Ý�Ù�Øç®Ù����ù�ã«����Z>�¥ÊÙ�Ù�ÖÊÙã®Ä¦�ÖçÙÖÊÝ�Ý� 

June 30, 2019 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

Member Reserve  $     769,136,683 
Employer Advance Reserve      1,086,126,550 
Retiree Reserve      1,198,883,409 
Cost of Living Adjustment Reserve      1,464,872,095 
County Supplementary Contribution Account Reserve          188,806,043 
District Supplementary Contribution Account Reserve              1,864,243 

         (24,074,932)
Total Valuation Reserves      4,685,614,091 

           47,328,299 

           (9,832,455)

 $  4,723,109,935                             Total Reserves (Market Value of Assets)

Valuation Reserves

Non-Valuation Reserve
Contingency Reserve

Undistributed Earnings/Losses Reserve 1

Market Stabilization Account

1 This reserve was classified as a valuation reserve under the latest revised Interest Crediting Policy.



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  69 

�ŽƐƚ�ŽĨ�>ŝǀŝŶŐ��ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚƐ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ĐŽƐƚ�ŽĨ�ůŝǀŝŶŐ�
ĂĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ� ƵŶĚĞƌ� ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ��Z>͘� �ĚĚŝƚŝŽŶƐ� ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ� ĨƌŽŵ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ�
ĂŶĚ� ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ� ĐƌĞĚŝƚĞĚ͘� �ĞĚƵĐƚŝŽŶƐ� ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ� ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ� ƚŽ� ƌĞƚŝƌĞĚ� ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞŝƌ�
ďĞŶĞĨŝĐŝĂƌŝĞƐ͘ 
 
�ŽƵŶƚǇ� ^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů� �ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ� �ĐĐŽƵŶƚ� ;�^��Ϳ� ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ� ĐĂƉƚƵƌĞƐ� Ăůů� ƐƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ� ŵĂĚĞ� ďǇ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ� ŝŶ� ĞǆĐĞƐƐ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ� ƉůƵƐ� ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�
ĐƌĞĚŝƚĞĚ�ƐŝŶĐĞ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ϮϬϭϰ͘ 
 
�ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ� ^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů� �ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ� �ĐĐŽƵŶƚ� ;�^��Ϳ� ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ� ĐĂƉƚƵƌĞƐ� Ăůů� ƐƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ� ŵĂĚĞ� ďǇ� ƚŚĞ� �ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ� ŝŶ� ĞǆĐĞƐƐ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ� ƉůƵƐ� ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�
ĐƌĞĚŝƚĞĚ�ƐŝŶĐĞ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ϮϬϭϲ͘ 
 
hŶĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƚĞĚ��ĂƌŶŝŶŐƐͬ>ŽƐƐĞƐ�ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ�ŝƐ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ĐƵŵƵůĂƚŝǀĞ�ƵŶĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƚĞĚ�
ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐƐ�Žƌ�ůŽƐƐĞƐ͘ 
 
EŽŶ-sĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ�ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ 
dŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽŶƚŝŶŐĞŶĐǇ�ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ�ŽĨ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ�
ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞƐ͘�� 
 
�ŽŶƚŝŶŐĞŶĐǇ�ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ�ŝƐ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƐĞƌǀĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�^ĞĐƚŝŽŶ�ϯϭϱϵϮ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ���Z>�ƚŚĂƚ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�ŽŶĞ�ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵŶĚ͛Ɛ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ďĞ�ŬĞƉƚ�ĂƐ�ƌĞƐĞƌǀĞƐ�
ĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ĚĞĨŝĐŝĞŶĐŝĞƐ͕�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ůŽƐƐĞƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚŝŶŐĞŶĐŝĞƐ͘ 
 
DĂƌŬĞƚ�^ƚĂďŝůŝǌĂƚŝŽŶ��ĐĐŽƵŶƚ 
dŚĞ�DĂƌŬĞƚ�^ƚĂďŝůŝǌĂƚŝŽŶ��ĐĐŽƵŶƚ� ŝƐ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŵŝŶŝŵŝǌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ƐŚŽƌƚ-ƚĞƌŵ�ǀŽůĂƚŝůŝƚǇ�
ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ĨĂŝƌ� ǀĂůƵĞ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ĨƵŶĚ� ŽŶ� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ� ĂŶĚ� ŵĞŵďĞƌ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ� ƌĂƚĞƐ� ďǇ�
ƐŵŽŽƚŚŝŶŐ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐ�ŽǀĞƌ�Ă�ĨŝǀĞ-ǇĞĂƌ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͘�dŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ĂĚŽƉƚĞĚ�Ă�DĂƌŬĞƚ�^ƚĂďŝůŝǌĂƚŝŽŶ�
�ĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ƚŽ�ůŝŵŝƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ŶŽƚ�ƚŽ�ĞǆĐĞĞĚ��цϮϬй�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨĂŝƌ�ǀĂůƵĞ͘� 
 
dŚĞ�ďĂůĂŶĐĞ� ŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ͕�ĂƌŝƐŝŶŐ� ĨƌŽŵ�Ă�&ŝǀĞ-ǇĞĂƌ��ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�^ŵŽŽƚŚŝŶŐ�WŽůŝĐǇ͕� ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚƐ�
ƚŚĞ�ĚŝĨĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�;ϭͿ� ƚŚĞ�ĂŐŐƌĞŐĂƚĞ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ� ŝŶŝƚŝĂůůǇ�ĚĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ� ;Žƌ�ƐŵŽŽƚŚĞĚͿ� ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�
ƚĞŶ�ŵŽƐƚ�ƌĞĐĞŶƚ�ƐĞŵŝ-ĂŶŶƵĂů�ƉĞƌŝŽĚƐ�ĂŶĚ�;ϮͿ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŐŐƌĞŐĂƚĞ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ƐƵďƐĞƋƵĞŶƚůǇ�ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞĚ�
ĨŽƌ�ƐĞŵŝ-ĂŶŶƵĂů�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚŝŶŐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ�ƚĞŶ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚƐ͘��ĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐƐͬ
ůŽƐƐĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂŵŽƌƚŝǌĞĚ�ŽǀĞƌ�ĨŝǀĞ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŝŶ�ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌǇ͘�
�Ɛ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕�ƚŚĞ�ďĂůĂŶĐĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�DĂƌŬĞƚ�^ƚĂďŝůŝǌĂƚŝŽŶ��ĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ǁĂƐ�ŶĞŐĂƚŝǀĞ�ΨϭϬ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ͘ 
 
/ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ��ƌĞĚŝƚŝŶŐ 
^Ăŵ��Z�� ƐĞŵŝ-ĂŶŶƵĂůůǇ� ƵƉĚĂƚĞƐ� ŝƚƐ� ƌĞƐĞƌǀĞ� ďĂůĂŶĐĞƐ� ŽŶ� �ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ� ϯϭ� ĂŶĚ� ŽŶ� :ƵŶĞ� ϯϬ� ƚŽ�
ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ� ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ� ĐƌĞĚŝƚ� ĂƐ� ƐƉĞĐŝĨŝĞĚ� ŝŶ� �ƌƚŝĐůĞ� ϱ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ��Z>� ;^Ğŵŝ-�ŶŶƵĂů� /ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�
�ƌĞĚŝƚŝŶŐͿ͘�dŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ĂĚŽƉƚĞĚ�ĂŶ�/ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ��ƌĞĚŝƚŝŶŐ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ƐƚŝƉƵůĂƚŝŶŐ�ŚŽǁ�ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐƐ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�
ĂůůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ĂŵŽŶŐ�ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƌĞƐĞƌǀĞƐ͘� 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 



70  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

dŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ĂůƐŽ�ĂĚŽƉƚĞĚ�Ă�&ŝǀĞ-ǇĞĂƌ��ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�^ŵŽŽƚŚŝŶŐ�WŽůŝĐǇ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĐĂůĐƵůĂƚĞ�
ƚŚĞ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů� ǀĂůƵĞ� ŽĨ� ĂƐƐĞƚƐ� ĂƐ� ǁĞůů� ĂƐ� ƚŚĞ� ŶĞƚ� ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ� ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐƐ� ĨŽƌ� ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ� ĐƌĞĚŝƚŝŶŐ�
ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞƐ͘� dŚĞ� ĐĂůĐƵůĂƚŝŽŶ� ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞƐ� ƚŚĞ� ͞ƐŵŽŽƚŚŝŶŐ͟� ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ� ƚŽ� ƐƉƌĞĂĚ� ƚŚĞ� ĚŝĨĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�
ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ� ĂĐƚƵĂů� ĂŶĚ� ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ� ŽǀĞƌ� ĨŝǀĞ� ǇĞĂƌƐ� ;Žƌ� ƚĞŶ� ƐƵĐĐĞƐƐŝǀĞ� ƐĞŵŝ-ĂŶŶƵĂů�
ƉĞƌŝŽĚƐͿ͘� 
� 
dŚĞ��^���ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ��^���ZĞƐĞƌǀĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĞĚ�ƐĞŵŝ-ĂŶŶƵĂůůǇ�ŝŶ�ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ�͞DĞŵŽƌĂŶĚƵŵ�ŽĨ�hŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ͟�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�^Ăŵ��Z��ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƐƉĞĐƚŝǀĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ͘ 
 
dŚĞ�DĞŵďĞƌ�ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ�ŝƐ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĞĚ�ƐĞŵŝ-ĂŶŶƵĂůůǇ�ŝŶ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƌĞ�ĞƋƵĂů�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞƐƐĞƌ�ŽĨ�ŽŶĞ�
ŚĂůĨ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐƐ�ƌĂƚĞ͕�Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐƐ�ƌĂƚĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŝŽƌ�Ɛŝǆ-
ŵŽŶƚŚ� ƉĞƌŝŽĚ� ŝŵŵĞĚŝĂƚĞůǇ� ƉƌĞĐĞĚŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ� ƉĞƌŝŽĚ� ŝŶ� ǁŚŝĐŚ� ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ� ŝƐ� ďĞŝŶŐ� ĐƌĞĚŝƚĞĚ͘� dŚĞ�
͞ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ƌĂƚĞ͟�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĂƚĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�
ǇĞĂƌ�ŝŶ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂůůŽĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ŝƐ�ƚĂŬŝŶŐ�ƉůĂĐĞ͘�dŚĞ�ƌĂƚĞ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�DĞŵďĞƌ�ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ�ƐŚĂůů�ŶŽƚ�
ďĞ�ůĞƐƐ�ƚŚĂŶ�ǌĞƌŽ͘� 
 
dŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƚĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞƚ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐƐ͕�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ŝƐ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�Ăůů�ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ�
ƌĞƐĞƌǀĞƐ� ;ĞǆĐĞƉƚ� ƚŚĞ� DĞŵďĞƌ� ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ͕� ƚŚĞ� �^��� ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ͕� ƚŚĞ� �^��� ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ͕� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ�
hŶĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƚĞĚ� �ĂƌŶŝŶŐƐͬ>ŽƐƐĞƐ� ZĞƐĞƌǀĞͿ� Ăƚ� Ă� ƌĂƚĞ� ŽĨ� ŽŶĞ-ŚĂůĨ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�
ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐƐ�ƌĂƚĞ͘� 
 
tŚĞŶ� ĂůůŽĐĂďůĞ� ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐƐ� ĂƌĞ� ŝŶƐƵĨĨŝĐŝĞŶƚ� ƚŽ� ĐŽǀĞƌ� ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ� ĐƌĞĚŝƚƐ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ƌĞƐĞƌǀĞƐ� ƐƉĞĐŝĨŝĞĚ�
ĚŝƐĐƵƐƐĞĚ�ĞĂƌůŝĞƌ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ŽŶƚŝŶŐĞŶĐǇ�ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ�ŵĂǇ�ďĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĐŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŚŽƌƚĂŐĞ͘�
,ŽǁĞǀĞƌ͕�ŝŶ�ŶŽ�ĞǀĞŶƚ�ŵĂǇ�ƚŚĞ��ŽŶƚŝŶŐĞŶĐǇ��ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ�ďĞ�ĂůůŽǁĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĚƌŽƉ�ďĞůŽǁ�ŽŶĞ�ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ͘� 
 
hŶĚĞƌ� ƚŚĞ� ��Z>͕� ĞǆĐĞƐƐ� ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐƐ� ĞǆĐĞĞĚŝŶŐ� ŽŶĞ� ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚ� ŽĨ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ƚŽƚĂů� ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ŵĂǇ� ďĞ�
ƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ��ŽŶƚŝŶŐĞŶĐǇ�ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ͛��ĚǀĂŶĐĞ�ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚ�
ŽĨ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ͘�tŚĞŶĞǀĞƌ�ƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ͕� ^Ăŵ��Z��ƐƚƌŝǀĞƐ� ƚŽ�ŬĞĞƉ�ƚŚĞ��ŽŶƚŝŶŐĞŶĐǇ�ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ�Ăƚ�ϯй�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ĂƐ�ĚĞƐĐƌŝďĞĚ�ŝŶ�ŝƚƐ�/ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ��ƌĞĚŝƚŝŶŐ�WŽůŝĐǇ͘ 
 
EŽƚĞ�ϵ͗��ĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŝǀĞ��ǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ 
 
dŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ĂŶŶƵĂůůǇ� ĂĚŽƉƚƐ� ĂŶ� ŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŶŐ� ďƵĚŐĞƚ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŝŽŶ� ŽĨ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͘�
�ĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŝǀĞ� ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ� ĂƌĞ� ĐŚĂƌŐĞĚ� ĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ� ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐƐ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ĨƵŶĚ� ĂŶĚ� ĐĂŶŶŽƚ�
ĞǆĐĞĞĚ�ƚǁĞŶƚǇ-ŽŶĞ�ŚƵŶĚƌĞĚƚŚ�ŽĨ�ŽŶĞ�ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚ�;Ϭ͘ϮϭйͿ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĐĐƌƵĞĚ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ�ĂƐ�ƐĞƚ�
ĨŽƌƚŚ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŽĚĞ�^ĞĐƚŝŽŶ�ϯϭϱϴϬ͘Ϯ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ���Z>͘�^Ăŵ��Z��ŚĂƐ�Ă�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ŝŶ�ƉůĂĐĞ�ƚŽ�
ŵŽŶŝƚŽƌ�ĐŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŽĚĞ͘� 
 
^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ĂĐƚƵĂů�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŝǀĞ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�Ϭ͘ϭϯй�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ĂĐĐƌƵĞĚ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů� ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ� Ăƚ� :ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕� ϮϬϭϳ� ;ƚŚĞ� ůĂƚĞƐƚ� ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ǁŚĞŶ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌŝŶŐ�
ƚŚĞ�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŝǀĞ�ďƵĚŐĞƚ�ĨŽƌ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ϮϬϭϵͿ͘�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĞǆĐůƵĚĞĚ�

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  71 

ĨƌŽŵ� ƚŚŝƐ� ůŝŵŝƚ͘� dŚĞ� ƚĂďůĞƐ� ďĞůŽǁ� ƐŚŽǁ� ĂůůŽǁĂďůĞ� ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŝǀĞ� ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ� ĂŶĚ� ďƵĚŐĞƚ-ƚŽ-
ĂĐƚƵĂů�ĂŶĂůǇƐŝƐ�ŽĨ�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŝǀĞ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͘ 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

dŚĞ� ŽǀĞƌĂůů� ƐĂůĂƌŝĞƐ� ĂŶĚ� ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ĨŝƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ� ϮϬϭϵ�ǁĞƌĞ� ϭϯй� ďĞůŽǁ� ƚŚĞ� ďƵĚŐĞƚ͕� ĚƵĞ�
ƉƌŝŵĂƌŝůǇ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ĞůŝŵŝŶĂƚŝŽŶ� ŽĨ� Ă� ǀĂĐĂŶƚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ� ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� ƚŝŵŝŶŐ� ŽĨ� ĨŝůůŝŶŐ� ƚǁŽ�
ǀĂĐĂŶƚ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ��ŝǀŝƐŝŽŶ͘� 
 
dŚĞ� ŽǀĞƌĂůů� ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ� ĨŽƌ� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ� ĂŶĚ� ƐƵƉƉůŝĞƐ�ǁĞƌĞ� ϭϳй� ďĞůŽǁ� ƚŚĞ� ďƵĚŐĞƚ͘�DĂũŽƌ� ƌĞĂƐŽŶƐ�
ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ͗ 
 
· �ŵŽŶŐ� Ăůů�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ� ĂƉƉůǇŝŶŐ� ĨŽƌ� ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ� ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ͕� ŽŶůǇ� ƚŚƌĞĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ� ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ� ĂŶ�

ŝŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ� ŵĞĚŝĐĂů� ĞǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ� ƉĞƌ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ŵĞĚŝĐĂů� ĂĚǀŝƐŽƌ͛Ɛ� ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂƚŝŽŶ͘� /Ŷ�
ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶ͕�ŽŶůǇ�ŽŶĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ƉƵƌƐƵĞĚ�Ă�ĨŽƌŵĂů�ŚĞĂƌŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ŚŝƐ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ĐĂƐĞ͘ 

· �ŽĂƌĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ� ƐƚĂĨĨ�ĚŝĚ�ŶŽƚ�ĂƚƚĞŶĚ�ĐĞƌƚĂŝŶ� ĐŽŶĨĞƌĞŶĐĞƐ�ĂƐ� ŝŶŝƚŝĂůůǇ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�
ƐŝŐŶŝĨŝĐĂŶƚůǇ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŽǀĞƌĂůů�ƐƉĞŶĚŝŶŐ�ŽŶ�ƚƌĂǀĞůŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ůŽĚŐŝŶŐ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ͘ 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

^�Ã��Z�͛Ý���Ã®Ä®ÝãÙ�ã®ò���øÖ�ÄÝ�Ý͕��ç�¦�ã�òÝ͘���ãç�½ 

&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�&ŝƐĐĂů�zĞĂƌ��ŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

Under % of Budget
 Budget  Actual  Budget  Remaining 

Salaries and benefits  $  5,388,700  $   4,706,675  $   682,025 13%
Services and supplies       1,636,395       1,350,038        286,357 17%

      Total expenses  $  7,025,095  $   6,056,713  $   968,382 14%

��Ã®Ä®ÝãÙ�ã®ò���øÖ�ÄÝ�Ý�&ÊÙ�ã«��&®Ý��½�z��Ù��Ä����:çÄ��ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕��ÊÃÖ�Ù���ãÊ���ãç�Ù®�½�
���Ùç���>®��®½®ãù��Ý�Ê¥�:çÄ��ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϳ 

;�ŽůůĂƌƐ�ŝŶ�dŚŽƵƐĂŶĚƐͿ 

Actuarial Accrued Liability  (AAL) as of June 30, 2017 4,719,850$      (a)

Maximum Allowed for Administrative Expenses (AAL*0.21%) 9,912$              (b)

Operating Budget for Administrative Expenses 7,025$              (c)

Actual Administrative Expenses 6,057$              (d)

Excess of Allowed over Actual Administrative Expenses 3,855$              =(b) - (d)

Excess of Budgeted over Actual Administrative Expenses 968$                 =(c) - (d)

Actual Administrative Expenses as a Percentage of 

      Actuarial Accrued Liability as of June 30, 2017 0.13% = (d)/(a)



72  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

· WŽƐƚĂŐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŝŶƚŝŶŐ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�ĐŽŶƚŝŶƵĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĚĞĐůŝŶĞ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ƉĞƌƐŝƐƚĞŶƚ�ĞĨĨŽƌƚƐ�ƚŽ�
ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƚĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŝƚƐ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŽŶŝĐĂůůǇ͕�ǁŚĞŶĞǀĞƌ�ƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ͘�/Ŷ�
ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶ͕�ŵŽƐƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŝŶƚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂŝůŝŶŐ�ũŽďƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĞĚ�ŝŶ-ŚŽƵƐĞ�ƌĂƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ƌĞůǇŝŶŐ�
ŽŶ�ŽƵƚƐŝĚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƌƐ�ĂƐ�Ă�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞ�ƚŽ�ŬĞĞƉ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŶŐ�ĐŽƐƚƐ�ĚŽǁŶ͘ 

· dŚƌĞĞ� ĞůĞĐƚĞĚ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ� �ŽĂƌĚ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶƐ�ǁĞƌĞ� ŽƉĞŶ� ĨŽƌ� ĞůĞĐƚŝŽŶ� ŝŶ� :ƵŶĞ�ϮϬϭϵ͘� �ůů� ƚŚƌĞĞ�
ŝŶĐƵŵďĞŶƚƐ�ƌĂŶ�ƵŶŽƉƉŽƐĞĚ͕�ůĞĂǀŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵĚŐĞƚ�ĨŽƌ�ĞůĞĐƚŝŽŶ�ƐĞƚƵƉ�ĨĞĞ�ŶĞĂƌůǇ�ŝŶƚĂĐƚ͘ 

· �ĞŵĂŶĚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ŽĨĨŝĐĞ�ƐƵƉƉůŝĞƐ͕�ƉƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĞƋƵŝƉŵĞŶƚ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĨĂƌ�ďĞůŽǁ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚŝŽŶƐ͘ 
 
EŽƚĞ��ϭϬ͗�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�dĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ��ǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ 
 
WƵƌƐƵĂŶƚ�ƚŽ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŽĚĞ�^ĞĐƚŝŽŶ�ϯϭϱϴϬ͘Ϯ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ���Z>͕�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĐŽŵƉƵƚĞƌ�ƐŽĨƚǁĂƌĞ͕�
ĐŽŵƉƵƚĞƌ� ŚĂƌĚǁĂƌĞ͕� ĂŶĚ� ĐŽŵƉƵƚĞƌ� ƚĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ� ĐŽŶƐƵůƚŝŶŐ� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ� ŝŶ� ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞƐĞ�
ĐŽŵƉƵƚĞƌ� ƉƌŽĚƵĐƚƐ� ĂƌĞ� ŶŽƚ� ƐƵďũĞĐƚ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ŵĂŶĚĂƚĞĚ� ůŝŵŝƚ� ŽĨ� Ϭ͘Ϯϭй� ĚŝƐĐƵƐƐĞĚ� ĞĂƌůŝĞƌ͘� �Ɛ� Ă�
ƌĞƐƵůƚ͕� ^Ăŵ��Z��ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞƐ� Ă� ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞ� ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ� ƚĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ�ďƵĚŐĞƚ� ƐƚĂƌƚŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ� ĨŝƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ�
ϮϬϭϮ�ǁŚĞŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĐŽĚĞ�ǁĂƐ�ĞŶĂĐƚĞĚ͘�dŚĞ� ƚĂďůĞ�ďĞůŽǁ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚƐ� ƚŚĞ�ďƵĚŐĞƚ-ƚŽ-ĂĐƚƵĂů�ĂŶĂůǇƐŝƐ�ŽĨ�
ƚĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͘ 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

dŚĞ� ŽǀĞƌĂůů� /ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ� dĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ� ;/dͿ� ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ� ǁĞƌĞ� ŵŽĚĞƐƚůǇ� ďĞůŽǁ� ƚŚĞ� ďƵĚŐĞƚ͕� ĚƵĞ�
ƉƌŝŵĂƌŝůǇ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ͗ 
 
· dŚĞ� ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ� ďƵĚŐĞƚĞĚ� ĨŽƌ� ĐŽŵƉƵƚĞƌ� ĞƋƵŝƉŵĞŶƚ͕� ƐŽĨƚǁĂƌĞ͕� ƚĞĐŚŶŝĐĂů� ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ� ĨƌŽŵ� ƚŚĞ�

�ŽƵŶƚǇ͛Ɛ� /ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ� ^ǇƐƚĞŵ��ĞƉĂƌƚŵĞŶƚ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŵŽƐƚůǇ� ĞĂƌŵĂƌŬĞĚ� ĨŽƌ�ƵŶĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ŶĞĞĚƐ͘�
dŚƌŽƵŐŚŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ͕�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƵŶƉůĂŶŶĞĚ�ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞƐ�Žƌ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ǁĂƐ�ƐƉĂƌƐĞ͘ 

 
· dĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ� ZĞƐĞĂƌĐŚ� ĂŶĚ� �ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ� ;ZΘ�Ϳ� ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ� ǁĞƌĞ� ƐƵďƐƚĂŶƚŝĂůůǇ� ďĞůŽǁ�

ƉƌŽũĞĐƚŝŽŶƐ͘� �ƵĞ� ƚŽ� ƚŝŵĞ� ĐŽŶƐƚƌĂŝŶƚƐ͕� ƐƚĂĨĨ� ĚŝĚ� ŶŽƚ� ĨƵůůǇ� ƵƚŝůŝǌĞ� ƚŚĞ� ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ� ĂůůŽĐĂƚĞĚ� ƚŽ�
ĞǆƉůŽƌĞ�ŶĞǁ�ƚĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐŝĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŵĂǇ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĂŝůǇ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͘ 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 

^�Ã��Z�͛Ý�®Ä¥ÊÙÃ�ã®ÊÄ�ã��«ÄÊ½Ê¦ù��øÖ�ÄÝ�Ý͕��ç�¦�ã�òÝ͘���ãç�½ 

&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�&ŝƐĐĂů�zĞĂƌ��ŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

Budget Actual
Under 

Budget
 % of Budget 

Remaining 

Property and equipment  $      60,000  $      15,315  $   44,685 74%

Information technology  infrastructure (1)     1,914,340     1,645,708     268,632 14%

County ISD Support        150,000             5,060     144,940 97%

Research and development          14,000             4,824         9,176 66%

Total expenses  $2,138,340  $1,670,907  $467,433 22%

(1) In fi sca l  year 2019, SamCERA reported a  tota l  depreciation expense of $824,357 on i ts  bas ic financia l  
s tatements . Since depreciation i s  a  non-cash expense and not included in the adopted budget, i t was  
excluded from the actual  expense column for comparison purposes .



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  73 

EŽƚĞ�ϭϭ͗�ZŝƐŬ�DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ��� 
 
^Ăŵ��Z�� ŝƐ� ĞǆƉŽƐĞĚ� ƚŽ� ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ� ƌŝƐŬƐ� ŽĨ� ůŽƐƐ� ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ� ƚŽ� ƚŽƌƚƐ͖� ƚŚĞĨƚ� ŽĨ͕� ĚĂŵĂŐĞ� ƚŽ͕� ĂŶĚ�
ĚĞƐƚƌƵĐƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ͖� ŝŶũƵƌŝĞƐ� ƚŽ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͖�ĂŶĚ�ŶĂƚƵƌĂů�ĚŝƐĂƐƚĞƌƐ͘�^ƵĐŚ�ƌŝƐŬƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞĚ�ďǇ�
^Ăŵ��Z�� ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ� ŝƚƐ� ƉĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂƚŝŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ͛Ɛ� ƐĞůĨ-ŝŶƐƵƌĂŶĐĞ� ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵ� ĂŶĚ� ĐŽŵŵĞƌĐŝĂů�
ŝŶƐƵƌĂŶĐĞ�ƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐ͘ 
 
^Ăŵ��Z�� ŝƐ� ĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ�ďǇ� ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ͛Ɛ� ƐĞůĨ-ŝŶƐƵƌĂŶĐĞ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵ�ĨŽƌ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů� ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŽƌŬĞƌƐ͛�
ĐŽŵƉĞŶƐĂƚŝŽŶ͘��ĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�ĐŽǀĞƌĂŐĞ�ĨŽƌ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ƚǇƉĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƌŝƐŬƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ͛Ɛ�
ĐŽŵŵĞƌĐŝĂů� ŝŶƐƵƌĂŶĐĞ� ĐĂƌƌŝĞƌƐ� ŝŶ� ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ� ƚŚĞ� ƚĞƌŵƐ� ƐĞƚ� ĨŽƌƚŚ� ŝŶ� ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů� ŝŶƐƵƌĂŶĐĞ�
ƉŽůŝĐŝĞƐ͘� WƵƌƐƵĂŶƚ� ƚŽ� Ă� DĞŵŽƌĂŶĚƵŵ� ŽĨ� hŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ� ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ� ^Ăŵ��Z�� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ͕�
^Ăŵ��Z�� ƉĂǇƐ� Ă� ƉƌŽ-ƌĂƚĂ� ƐŚĂƌĞ� ŽĨ� ƚŽƚĂů� ŝŶƐƵƌĂŶĐĞ� ĐŽƐƚ� ŝŶĐƵƌƌĞĚ� ďǇ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ� ďĂƐĞĚ� ŽŶ�
ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞ�ĐŽƵŶƚ͘� 
 
dŚĞ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĞŶŝŽƌ�ƐƚĂĨĨ�ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞ�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞ�ĨŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŝŶƐƵƌĂŶĐĞ�
ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĐƚƵĂů�Žƌ�ĂůůĞŐĞĚ�ďƌĞĂĐŚ�ŽĨ� ĨŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�ĚƵƚŝĞƐ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�Ă�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ďǇ�Z>/� /ŶƐƵƌĂŶĐĞ�
�ŽŵƉĂŶǇ�ŽĨ�WĞŽƌŝĂ͕� /ůůŝŶŽŝƐ͘�dŚĞ�ĐŽǀĞƌĂŐĞ� ŝƐ� ůŝŵŝƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ΨϭϬ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ� ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŐŐƌĞŐĂƚĞ�ĨŽƌ�Ăůů� ůŽƐƐ�
ĐŽŵďŝŶĞĚ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ĚĞĨĞŶƐĞ�ĐŽƐƚƐ͘� 
 
EŽƚĞ�ϭϮ͗�ZĞůĂƚĞĚ�WĂƌƚǇ�dƌĂŶƐĂĐƚŝŽŶƐ 
 
^Ăŵ��Z�� ŚĂƐ� ŽŶŐŽŝŶŐ� ďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ� ƚƌĂŶƐĂĐƚŝŽŶƐ� ǁŝƚŚ� ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ� ŽĨĨŝĐĞƐ͗� �ŽƵŶƚǇ� �ŽƵŶƐĞů͕�
dƌĞĂƐƵƌĞƌ͕� �ŽŶƚƌŽůůĞƌ͕� WƌŽĐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ͕� ,ƵŵĂŶ� ZĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ͕� /ŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ� ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͕� ,ĞĂůƚŚ� ^ǇƐƚĞŵ͕�
^ŚĞƌŝĨĨ͕�ĂŶĚ��ůĞĐƚŝŽŶƐ͘�WĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ĂƌĞ�ŽŶ�Ă�ĐŽƐƚ-ƌĞŝŵďƵƌƐĞŵĞŶƚ�ďĂƐŝƐ͘ 
 
EŽƚĞ�ϭϯ͗��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ 
 
�ƚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕�^Ăŵ��Z��ŚĂĚ�Ă�ƚŽƚĂů�͞ƵŶĐĂůůĞĚ�ĐĂƉŝƚĂů͟�ŽĨ�Ψϯϯϵ͘ϯ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�Ψϭϵϭ͘ϱ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ�
ŝŶ�ƉƌŝǀĂƚĞ�ĞƋƵŝƚǇ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ͕�ΨϭϮϬ͘ϲ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ�ŝŶ�ƉƌŝǀĂƚĞ�ƌĞĂů�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ΨϮϳ͘Ϯ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ�
ŝŶ� ƌĞĂů� ĞƐƚĂƚĞ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ͘� ^Ăŵ��Z�� ŝƐ� Ɛƚŝůů� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ� ŽĨ� ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ� ŽƵƚ� ŝƚƐ� ƉƌŝǀĂƚĞ� ĞƋƵŝƚǇ͕�
ƉƌŝǀĂƚĞ�ƌĞĂů�ĂƐƐĞƚ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĂů�ĞƐƚĂƚĞ�ƉŽƌƚĨŽůŝŽƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶƚĞŶĚƐ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŬĞ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�ĐŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽǀĞƌ�
ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǆƚ�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ƚŽ�ĨŝǀĞ�ǇĞĂƌƐ͘ 
 
EŽƚĞ�ϭϰ͗��ŽŶƚŝŶŐĞŶƚ�>ŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ 
 
^Ăŵ��Z�� ŝƐ� ƐƵďũĞĐƚ� ƚŽ� ůĞŐĂů� ƉƌŽĐĞĞĚŝŶŐƐ� ĂŶĚ� ĐůĂŝŵƐ� ĂƌŝƐŝŶŐ� ĨƌŽŵ� ƚŚĞ� ŶŽƌŵĂů� ĐŽƵƌƐĞ� ŽĨ� ŝƚƐ�
ďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ͘� �ƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ͕� ŶŽ� ƉĞŶĚŝŶŐ� Žƌ� ƚŚƌĞĂƚĞŶĞĚ� ůŝƚŝŐĂƚŝŽŶ� ĂƌĞ� ĂĚũƵĚŝĐĂƚĞĚ� Žƌ� ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ͘� �Ɛ� ĨŽƌ�
ƵŶĂƐƐĞƌƚĞĚ� ĐůĂŝŵƐ͕� ĨƵƚƵƌĞ� ǁƌŝƚƐ� ŽĨ� ŵĂŶĚĂƚĞƐ� ĐŽƵůĚ� ďĞ� ĨŝůĞĚ� ƚŽ� ƌĞǀĞƌƐĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ĚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶƐ� ŽŶ�
ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŵĂƚƚĞƌƐ͘ 
  
 
 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ 



74  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

Z�Øç®Ù���ÝçÖÖ½�Ã�Äã�Ùù�/Ä¥ÊÙÃ�ã®ÊÄ 

^�«��ç½��Ê¥��«�Ä¦�Ý�®Ä�E�ã�W�ÄÝ®ÊÄ�>®��®½®ãù��Ä��Ù�½�ã���Ù�ã®ÊÝ�Ê¥�W�Ùã®�®Ö�ã®Ä¦��ÃÖ½Êù�ÙÝ� 

dŚŝƐ� ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ĚŝƐƉůĂǇƐ� ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ƚŽƚĂů�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ� ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ͕� ƚŚĞ� ĨŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�ŶĞƚ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ͕�
ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞƚ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ƉĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂƚŝŶŐ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĐŽŶĨŽƌŵŝƚǇ�
ǁŝƚŚ� ƚŚĞ� ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ� ƉƌĞƐĐƌŝďĞĚ� ďǇ� 'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚĂů� �ĐĐŽƵŶƚŝŶŐ� ^ƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ;'�^�Ϳ�
^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�EŽ͘�ϲϳ͘�dŚŝƐ�ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ǁŝůů�ƵůƚŝŵĂƚĞůǇ�ƐŚŽǁ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƚĞŶ�ǇĞĂƌƐ͘ 

ZĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƌǇ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ 

 
EŽƚĞ͗��ŚĂŶŐĞƐ� ŽĨ� ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ͘� � /Ŷ� ϮϬϭϳ͕� ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ� ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ� ĂƐ� ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ� ŽĨ� ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ� ƌĞƐƵůƚĞĚ� ƉƌŝŵĂƌŝůǇ� ĨƌŽŵ�
ĂĚũƵƐƚŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ� ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ͕� ƉƌŝĐĞ� ŝŶĨůĂƚŝŽŶ͕� ĂŶĚ� ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ǁĂŐĞ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ� ĚŽǁŶǁĂƌĚ͕�ŵŽĚŝĨǇŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ�
ŵŽƌƚĂůŝƚǇ� ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶ͕� ĂŶĚ�ĂĚĚŝŶŐ� Ă�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚŝŽŶ� ƐĐĂůĞ� ƚŽ� ƌĞĨůĞĐƚ� ŐƌĂĚƵĂů� ǇĞĂƌ-ƚŽ-ǇĞĂƌ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ� ŝŶ�ŵŽƌƚĂůŝƚǇ� ƚŚĂƚ� ŝƐ�
ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŽĐĐƵƌ� ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ� ĨƵƚƵƌĞ͘� /Ŷ�ϮϬϭϵ͕�ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ƌĞƐƵůƚĞĚ�ŵĂŝŶůǇ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĚŽǁŶǁĂƌĚ�ĂĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�
ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƌĂƚĞ͕�ƉƌŝĐĞ�ŝŶĨůĂƚŝŽŶ͕�ĂŶĚ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ǁĂŐĞ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞƐ͘� 
 
 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30 2019 2018 2017

Total Pension Liability
Service cost 108,644,383$     107,738,142$    96,411,681$      
Interest on tota l  pens ion l iabi l i ty 336,260,838       319,776,913      306,404,154      
Effect of assumption changes  or inputs 167,870,889       -                         147,541,839      
Effect of economic/demographic ga ins  (losses) 91,316,336         27,753,956        4,834,605          
Benefi t payments  and refund of contributions (227,185,123)      (209,054,603)     (193,240,280)     
Net change in tota l  pens ion l iabi l i ty 476,907,323       246,214,408      361,951,999      
Tota l  pens ion l iabi l i ty, beginning 4,862,308,884    4,616,094,476   4,254,142,477   
Tota l  pens ion l iabi l i ty, ending (a) 5,339,216,207$  4,862,308,884$ 4,616,094,476$ 

Fiduciary Net Position
Employer contributions 245,498,411$     207,256,713$    198,727,135$    
Member contributions 67,695,627         64,204,278        62,160,101        
Investment income net of investment expenses 271,691,483       280,146,398      436,675,706      
Benefi t payments  and refund of contributions (227,185,123)      (209,054,603)     (193,240,280)     
Adminis trative and technology expenses (8,551,977)          (7,293,262)         (7,009,169)         

Net change in plan fiduciary net pos i tion 349,148,421       335,259,524      497,313,493      
Fiduciary net pos i tion, beginning 4,373,961,514    4,038,701,990   3,541,388,497   
Fiduciary net position, ending (b) 4,723,109,935$  4,373,961,514$ 4,038,701,990$ 

Net pension liability, ending = (a) - (b) 616,106,272$     488,347,370$    577,392,486$    
Fiduciary net position as a % of total pension liability 88.46% 89.96% 87.49%
Covered payroll 554,734,196$     535,937,622$    510,132,014$    
Net pension liability as a % of covered payroll 111.06% 91.12% 113.18%



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  75 

ZĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƌǇ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ 

^�«��ç½��Ê¥��«�Ä¦�Ý�®Ä�E�ã�W�ÄÝ®ÊÄ�>®��®½®ãù��Ä��Ù�½�ã���Ù�ã®ÊÝ�Ê¥�W�Ùã®�®Ö�ã®Ä¦��ÃÖ½Êù�ÙÝ�
;�ÊÄã®Äç��Ϳ 

EŽƚĞ͗� �ŚĂŶŐĞ� ŽĨ� ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ͘� /Ŷ� ϮϬϭϰ͕� ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ� ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ� ĂƐ� ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ� ŽĨ� ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ� ƌĞƐƵůƚĞĚ� ƉƌŝŵĂƌŝůǇ� ĨƌŽŵ�
ĚŽǁŶǁĂƌĚ�ĂĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ͕�ƉƌŝĐĞ�ŝŶĨůĂƚŝŽŶ͕�ĂŶĚ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ǁĂŐĞ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ͖�ĂŶĚ�ƐĞǀĞƌĂů�
ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ� ŝŶ� ĚĞŵŽŐƌĂƉŚŝĐ� ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ� ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ� Ă� ƐůŝŐŚƚ� ƌĞĚƵĐƚŝŽŶ� ŝŶ� ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ƌĂƚĞ͕� Ă� ƐůŝŐŚƚ� ƵƉĚĂƚĞ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ�
ƉƌŽďĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ƐƵƌǀŝǀŽƌƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ĂŶ�ĂĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ĂŐĞ�ĚŝĨĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƵƌǀŝǀŽƌ�
ĨŽƌ� ĨĞŵĂůĞ� ŶƵŵďĞƌƐ͘� /Ŷ� ϮϬϭϲ͕� ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ� ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ� ĂƐ� ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ� ŽĨ� ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ� ƌĞƐƵůƚĞĚ� ŵĂŝŶůǇ� ĨƌŽŵ� ĚŽǁŶǁĂƌĚ�
ĂĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ͕� ƉƌŝĐĞ� ŝŶĨůĂƚŝŽŶ͕� ĂŶĚ� ŐĞŶĞƌĂů� ǁĂŐĞ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ� ǁŝƚŚ� ŝŶƚĞŶƚ� ƚŽ�
ƐƚƌĞŶŐƚŚĞŶ� ƚŚĞ� ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� ƐƚĂďŝůŝƚǇ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ� &ƵŶĚ� ďǇ� ŵŝƚŝŐĂƚŝŶŐ� ĂŶǇ� ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ� ŝĨ� ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�
ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ůŽǁĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĂƚŝŽŶƐ͘� 

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30 2016 2015 2014

Total Pension Liability
Service cost 96,308,679$       90,955,831$      87,512,515$      
Interest on tota l  pens ion l iabi l i ty 290,843,506       272,953,777      265,430,896      
Effect of assumption changes  or inputs 85,538,873         -                         37,853,852        
Effect of economic/demographic ga ins  (losses) 17,875,272         50,655,233        (31,415,241)       
Benefi t payments  and refund of contributions (182,863,698)     (171,466,218)     (162,556,107)     
Net change in tota l  pens ion l iabi l i ty 307,702,632       243,098,623      196,825,915      
Tota l  pens ion l iabi l i ty, beginning 3,946,439,845    3,703,341,222   3,506,515,307   
Tota l  pens ion l iabi l i ty, ending (a) 4,254,142,477$  3,946,439,845$ 3,703,341,222$ 

Fiduciary Net Position
Employer contributions 191,094,488$     180,704,280$    202,877,362$    
Member contributions 56,068,706         48,011,698        46,593,698        
Investment income net of investment expenses 29,299,764         111,630,036      482,663,965      
Benefi t payments  and refund of contributions (182,863,698)     (171,466,218)     (162,556,107)     
Adminis trative and technology expenses (6,687,091)         (6,097,422)         (5,710,296)         

Net change in plan fiduciary net pos i tion 86,912,169         162,782,374      563,868,622      
Fiduciary net pos i tion, beginning 3,454,476,328    3,291,693,954   2,727,825,332   
Fiduciary net position, ending (b) 3,541,388,497$  3,454,476,328$ 3,291,693,954$ 

Net pension liability, ending = (a) - (b) 712,753,980$     491,963,517$    411,647,268$    
Fiduciary net position as a % of total pension liability 83.25% 87.53% 88.88%
Covered payroll 472,384,955$     439,017,764$    416,273,731$    
Net pension liability as a % of covered payroll 150.88% 112.06% 98.89%



76  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

ZĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƌǇ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ 

^�«��ç½��Ê¥��ÃÖ½Êù�Ù��ÊÄãÙ®�çã®ÊÄÝ 

>ĂƐƚ�dĞŶ�&ŝƐĐĂů�zĞĂƌƐ� 

dŚŝƐ� ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞ� ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ� ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ� ĂďŽƵƚ� ƚŚĞ� ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ� ĂŶĚ� ĂĐƚƵĂů� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ� ŽĨ� Ăůů�
ƉĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂƚŝŶŐ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ͘ 

As a % of Covered Payroll

Actuarially Actual Contribution Actuarially Actual

Determined Employer Deficiency Covered Determined Employer

Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll 1 Contribution Contribution

2010 106,265,329$   106,265,329$   -$                     434,295,179$   24.47% 24.47%

2011 150,474,872     150,474,872     -                        427,041,368     35.24% 35.24%

2012 139,406,807     150,949,791     (11,542,984)   418,915,989     33.28% 36.03% 2

2013 131,293,846     144,308,171     (13,014,325)   404,360,891     32.47% 35.69% 2

2014 152,877,362     202,877,362     (50,000,000)   416,273,731     36.73% 48.74% 3

2015 169,814,170     180,704,280     (10,890,110)   439,017,764     38.68% 41.16% 3

2016 170,046,059     191,094,488     (21,048,429)   472,384,955     36.00% 40.45% 3, 4

2017 164,877,135     198,727,135     (33,850,000)   510,132,014     32.32% 38.96% 3, 4

2018 179,626,584     207,256,713     (27,630,129)   535,937,622     33.52% 38.67% 3

2019 194,830,054     245,498,411     (50,668,357)   554,734,196     35.12% 44.26% 5

1

2

3

4

5 In 2019, the County increased i ts  supplemental  contributions  to accelerate the payoff of i ts  UAAL.

In fi sca l  years  2015-16 and 2016-17, the San Mateo County Mosquito & Vector Control  Dis trict contributed $1.5 
mi l l ion and $0.25 mi l l ion more than actuaria l ly determined contributions , respectively. 

Fiscal Year

Ended

June 30

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 82, covered payrol l  i s  the payrol l  on which contributions  are based.

Employers  contributed at a  higher rate than the Actuaria l ly Determined Contribution rate in order to mainta in 
more s table contributions .

In 2014, the County of San Mateo (the County) Board of Supervisors  implemented a  pol icy to el iminate the 
County's  unfunded actuaria l  accrued l iabi l i ties  (UAAL) by 2023. Contributions  in excess  of the Actuaria l ly 
Determined Contributions  are related to that pol icy unless  noted otherwise.



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  77 

ZĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƌǇ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ 

^�«��ç½��Ê¥�/Äò�ÝãÃ�Äã�Z�ãçÙÄÝ� 

&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�&ŝƐĐĂů�zĞĂƌƐ��ŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ 

dŚĞ� ƚŝŵĞ-ǁĞŝŐŚƚĞĚ� ƌĂƚĞ� ŽĨ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ� Ă� ĨƵŶĚ͛Ɛ� ĐŽŵƉŽƵŶĚĞĚ� ƌĂƚĞ� ŽĨ� ŐƌŽǁƚŚ� ŽǀĞƌ� Ă�
ƐƉĞĐŝĨŝĐ� ƚŝŵĞ� ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͕� ǁŚĞƌĞĂƐ� ƚŚĞ� ŵŽŶĞǇ-ǁĞŝŐŚƚĞĚ� ƌĂƚĞ� ŽĨ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ� ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�
ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ͕� ŶĞƚ� ŽĨ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌ� ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ͕� ĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ĐŚĂŶŐŝŶŐ� ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ�
ĂĐƚƵĂůůǇ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚĞĚ͘� dŚŝƐ� ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞ� ǁŝůů� ƵůƚŝŵĂƚĞůǇ� ƐŚŽǁ� ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ƉĂƐƚ� ƚĞŶ� ĨŝƐĐĂů�
ǇĞĂƌƐ͘���ĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĚŝƐƉůĂǇĞĚ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞǇ�ďĞĐŽŵĞ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ƉƌŽƐƉĞĐƚŝǀĞůǇ͘  

EÊã�Ý�ãÊ�ã«��Z�Øç®Ù���^çÖÖ½�Ã�Äã�Ùù�/Ä¥ÊÙÃ�ã®ÊÄ 

�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�sĂůƵĂƟŽŶ�DĞƚŚŽĚƐ�ĂŶĚ��ƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ 

dŚĞ� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ� ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ� ƌĂƚĞƐ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ĨŝƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ� ĞŶĚĞĚ� :ƵŶĞ� ϯϬ͕� ϮϬϭϵ͕� ĂƌĞ�
ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ�ďǇ� ƚŚĞ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ�ĂƐ�ŽĨ� :ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϳ͘��ĞƚĂŝůƐ�ŽĨ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ŵĞƚŚŽĚƐ�ĂŶĚ�
ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ�ƐĞůĞĐƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ϮϬϭϳ�ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ�ĂƌĞ�ƐƵŵŵĂƌŝǌĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǆƚ�ƉĂŐĞ͘ 
 
�ŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ��ƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ 
/Ŷ� :ƵŶĞ�ϮϬϭϰ͕�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŽĨ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ;ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚͿ�ĂƉƉƌŽǀĞĚ� ŝƚƐ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌǇ͛Ɛ� ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂƚŝŽŶƐ�
ĐŚĂŶŐŝŶŐ� ĐĞƌƚĂŝŶ� ŬĞǇ� ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ� ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ϮϬϭϰ� ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ͘� dŚĞƐĞ� ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ� ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�
ůŽǁĞƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�ϳ͘ϱϬй�ƚŽ�ϳ͘Ϯϱй͕�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŝĐĞ�ŝŶĨůĂƚŝŽŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�ϯ͘Ϯϱй�
ƚŽ�ϯ͘ϬϬй͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ǁĂŐĞ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ϯ͘ϳϱй�ƚŽ�ϯ͘ϱϬй͘���ŵŽŶƚŚ�ůĂƚĞƌ�ŝŶ�:ƵůǇ�ϮϬϭϰ͕�ƚŚĞ�
�ŽĂƌĚ� ĂůƐŽ� ĂƉƉƌŽǀĞĚ� ƐĞǀĞƌĂů� ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ� ŝŶ� ĚĞŵŽŐƌĂƉŚŝĐ� ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ� ďĂƐĞĚ� ŽŶ� ƚŚĞ� ϮϬϭϰ�
dƌŝĞŶŶŝĂů� �ǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ� ^ƚƵĚǇ͘� dŚĞ� ŬĞǇ� ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ� ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�Ă� ƐůŝŐŚƚ� ƌĞĚƵĐƚŝŽŶ� ŝŶ� ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ƌĂƚĞ͕� Ă�
ƐůŝŐŚƚ�ƵƉĚĂƚĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽďĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ƐƵƌǀŝǀŽƌƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ĂŶ�ĂĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ĂŐĞ�
ĚŝĨĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƵƌǀŝǀŽƌ�ĨŽƌ�ĨĞŵĂůĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌƐ͘��dŚĞƐĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�
ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ƌĂƚŝŽ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�&ƵŶĚ͘ 

2019 2018 3 2017 2016 2015 2014

5.40% 6.70% 12.58% 0.74% 3.53% 17.29%

5.26% 6.53% 12.48% 0.49% 3.37% 17.22%

1

2

3 Due to underperformance in public equities (primarily international equities) and alternatives (with
primary impact from absolute return and secondary impact from private equity), the overall
investment return slipped from 12.58% for 2017 to 6.70% for 2018.

Annual money-weighted rate of return, 

net of investment manager expenses 1, 2

The rates of return were independently determined by SamCERA's investment consultant, Verus
Advisory, Inc. 

Annual time-weighted rate of return, 

net of investment manager expenses 1

Rates of return for prior years may be subject to minor revisions as needed.



78  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

 EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ZĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƌǇ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ 

��ãç�Ù®�½�s�½ç�ã®ÊÄ��Ý�Ê¥�:çÄ��ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϳ�;&ÊÙ�&çÄ�®Ä¦�WçÙÖÊÝ�ÝͿ 

VALUATION DATE June 30, 2017

ACTUARIAL COST METHOD Entry Age Normal

AMORTIZATION METHOD Level Percent of Payroll

UAAL as of June 30, 2008, is amortized over a closed 15-year period
ending June 30, 2023. Subsequent changes in the UAAL are amortized
over separate closed 15-year layers which are determined annually.

ASSET VALUATION METHOD 5-year smoothed recognition of asset gains and losses (determined
as the difference of the actual fair value to the expected fair value),
which cannot vary more than 20% from the fair value.

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
Investment rate of return 6.75%, net of pension plan investment and administrative expenses
Inflation rate (CPI) 2.50%
General wage increase 3.00%

DEMOGRAPHIC ASSUMPTIONS
Salary increases due to service See June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation report for details.
Retirement See June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation report for details.
Disablement See June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation report for details.
Mortatlity See June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation report for details.

AMORTIZATION PERIOD

/Ŷ�:ƵŶĞ�ϮϬϭϲ͕�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�ϳ͘Ϯϱй��ƚŽ�ϳ͘ϬϬй͕�ƚŚĞ�
ƉƌŝĐĞ�ŝŶĨůĂƚŝŽŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�ϯ͘ϬϬй�ƚŽ�Ϯ͘ϳϱй͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ǁĂŐĞ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ϯ͘ϱϬй�ƚŽ�ϯ͘Ϯϱй�ĨŽƌ�
ƚŚĞ� ϮϬϭϲ� ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ͘� dŚĞƐĞ� ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ� ǁĞƌĞ� ƐƉĞĐŝĨŝĐĂůůǇ� ƚĂŝůŽƌĞĚ� ƚŽ� ƐƚƌĞŶŐƚŚĞŶ� ƚŚĞ� ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�
ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�&ƵŶĚ�ďǇ�ŵŝƚŝŐĂƚŝŶŐ�ĂŶǇ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ŝĨ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐ�
ǁĞƌĞ�ůŽǁĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĂƚŝŽŶƐ͘� 
 
/Ŷ� :ƵůǇ� ϮϬϭϳ͕� ƚŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ĂĚŽƉƚĞĚ� ƐĞǀĞƌĂů� ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂƚŝŽŶƐ� ĨƌŽŵ� ƚŚĞ� ϮϬϭϳ� dƌŝĞŶŶŝĂů�
�ǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ� ^ƚƵĚǇ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ� ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ� ůŽǁĞƌŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ� ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ͕�ŵŽĚŝĨǇŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ�
ŵŽƌƚĂůŝƚǇ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶ͕�ĂŶĚ�ĂĚĚŝŶŐ�Ă�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚŝŽŶ�ƐĐĂůĞ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĨůĞĐƚ�ŐƌĂĚƵĂů�ǇĞĂƌ-ƚŽ-ǇĞĂƌ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�
ŝŶ�ŵŽƌƚĂůŝƚǇ� ƚŚĂƚ� ŝƐ� ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ� ƚŽ� ŽĐĐƵƌ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ĨƵƚƵƌĞ͘� dŚĞ� ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ� ǁĂƐ�
ĐŚĂŶŐĞĚ� ĨƌŽŵ� ϳ͘ϬϬй� ƚŽ� ϲ͘ϳϱй͕� ƚŚĞ� ƉƌŝĐĞ� ŝŶĨůĂƚŝŽŶ� ĨƌŽŵ� Ϯ͘ϳϱй� ƚŽ� Ϯ͘ϱϬй͕� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�
ǁĂŐĞ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ϯ͘Ϯϱй�ƚŽ�ϯ͘ϬϬй�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ϮϬϭϳ�ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ͘�dŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ŵŽƌƚĂůŝƚǇ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶ�
ƌĞƐƵůƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĂŶ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ�ůŝĨĞ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĂŶĐǇ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŝŽƌ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶ͘� 
 
/Ŷ� :ƵůǇ�ϮϬϭϵ͕�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�ϲ͘ϳϱй�ƚŽ�ϲ͘ϱϬй͕�ƚŚĞ�
ƉƌŝĐĞ�ŝŶĨůĂƚŝŽŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�Ϯ͘ϳϱй�ƚŽ�Ϯ͘ϱϬй͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ǁĂŐĞ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ϯ͘Ϯϱй�ƚŽ�ϯ͘ϬϬй�ĨŽƌ�
ƚŚĞ�ϮϬϭϵ�ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ǁŝůů�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ĞĨĨĞĐƚŝǀĞ�:ƵůǇ�ϭ͕�ϮϬϮϬ͕�
ĂŶĚ�ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ƌĂƚŝŽ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�&ƵŶĚ�ďǇ�ϭ͘ϳϬй�ƚŽ�ϴϱ͘ϴϬй�ĂƐ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�
ϮϬϭϵ͘ 



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  79 

^çÖÖ½�Ã�Äã�Ùù�/Ä¥ÊÙÃ�ã®ÊÄ 
 

^�«��ç½��Ê¥���Ã®Ä®ÝãÙ�ã®ò���øÖ�ÄÝ�Ý 

&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�&ŝƐĐĂů�zĞĂƌ��ŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

dŚĞ� ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞ� ďĞůŽǁ� ĚĞƉŝĐƚƐ� ƚŚĞ� ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŝǀĞ� ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ� ŝŶĐƵƌƌĞĚ� ďǇ� ^ĂŶ� DĂƚĞŽ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ�
�ŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͛�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ��ƐƐŽĐŝĂƚŝŽŶ�;^Ăŵ��Z�Ϳ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶŽƌŵĂů�ĐŽƵƌƐĞ�ŽĨ�ďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ͘ 

^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƌǇ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ 

^�«��ç½��Ê¥�/Ä¥ÊÙÃ�ã®ÊÄ�d��«ÄÊ½Ê¦ù��øÖ�ÄÝ�Ý 

&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�&ŝƐĐĂů�zĞĂƌ��ŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

dŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ďĞůŽǁ�ĚĞƉŝĐƚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�ŝŶĐƵƌƌĞĚ�ďǇ�^Ăŵ��Z��ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ŶŽƌŵĂů�ĐŽƵƌƐĞ�ŽĨ�ďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ͘ 

Property and Equipment 15,315$        
Information Technology Infrastructure 1,645,708    
County ISD Support 5,060             
Research & Development 4,824             
Depreciation Expense 824,357        
          Total Information Technology Expenses  $  2,495,264 

Salaries  $   3,087,464 
Benefits       1,619,211 
   Total Salaries & Benefits       4,706,675 

Board Expenses               4,800 
Insurance             62,075 
Medical Evaluation             21,215 
Member Education             55,927 
Education & Conference           124,529 
Transportation & Lodging             91,851 
Property & Equipment             15,865 
General Office Supplies             30,210 
Postage, Printing & Copying             18,801 
Leased Facilities           535,120 
County Services           297,556 
Audit Services             54,914 
Other Administration             37,175 
   Total Services & Supplies       1,350,038 

      Total Administrative Expenses  $   6,056,713 

Salaries & Benefits

Services & Supplies



80  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

^�«��ç½��Ê¥�/Äò�ÝãÃ�Äã��øÖ�ÄÝ�Ý 

&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�&ŝƐĐĂů�zĞĂƌ��ŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

dŚĞ� ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞ� ďĞůŽǁ� ƐƵŵŵĂƌŝǌĞƐ� ƚŚĞ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ� ŝŶĐƵƌƌĞĚ�ďǇ� ^Ăŵ��Z��ĚƵƌŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ�
ƌĞƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͘ 

^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƌǇ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ 

dŚĞ� ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞ� ŽĨ� ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ� ƚŽ� ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚƐ� ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ� ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ� ŽŶ� ĨĞĞƐ� ƉĂŝĚ� ƚŽ� ŽƵƚƐŝĚĞ�
ƉƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂůƐ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ĂĚǀŝƐŽƌƐ͘�&ĞĞƐ�ƉĂŝĚ�ƚŽ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂůƐ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�
ĨŽƵŶĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�^ĞĐƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͘ 

^�«��ç½��Ê¥�W�ùÃ�ÄãÝ�ãÊ��ÊÄÝç½ã�ÄãÝ�;Kã«�Ù�d«�Ä�/Äò�ÝãÃ�Äã���ò®ÝÊÙÝͿ 

&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�&ŝƐĐĂů�zĞĂƌ��ŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

Investment Management Fees (by Asset Class)
Public Equity 3,812,278$     
Fixed Income 4,593,057       
Alternatives 5,489,954       
Risk Parity 1,310,294       
Inflation Hedge 5,805,281       
Cash 175,612          
       Total Investment Management Fees 21,186,476     

Other Investment Expenses
Investment Consultant 483,797          
Actuarial Consulting 94,500            
Master Custodian 330,000          
Other Professional Services 46,500            
      Total Other Investment Expenses 954,797          

Other Investment Related Expense 16,952,467     

Interest Paid on Prepaid Contribution 3,282,817       

42,376,557$                     Total Investment Expenses

 $     330,000 

          94,500 

          54,914 
          46,500 
 $     525,914 

(1)

Actuarial Consulting Services

Custodian Services
Northern Trust Corporation

Audit fees were included in administrative expenses whereas remaining
items were reported under investment expenses.

Milliman, Inc. 
Audit Services (1)

Brown Armstrong Accountancy Corporation
Other Professional Services 

Total Payments to Consultants



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  81 

 
 

EÊã�Ý�ãÊ�ã«��^çÖÖ½�Ã�Äã�Ùù�/Ä¥ÊÙÃ�ã®ÊÄ 
 
�ĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟǀĞ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ��ƵĚŐĞƚ 
dŚĞ�ƉĂƐƐĂŐĞ�ŽĨ��ƐƐĞŵďůǇ��ŝůů�ϲϬϵ�ŝŶ�KĐƚŽďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϬ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞĚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͛�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�
>Ăǁ� ŽĨ� ϭϵϯϳ͛Ɛ� ;ƚŚĞ� ��Z>Ϳ� ƐǇƐƚĞŵ� ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŝŽŶ� ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞ� ůŝŵŝƚ� ĨƌŽŵ� Ϯϯ� ďĂƐŝƐ� ƉŽŝŶƚƐ� ŽĨ� ƚŽƚĂů�
ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ƚŽ�Ϯϭ�ďĂƐŝƐ�ƉŽŝŶƚƐ�ŽĨ��ĐĐƌƵĞĚ��ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�>ŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ͘� 
 
/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�dĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ��ƵĚŐĞƚ 
WƵƌƐƵĂŶƚ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ��Z>͕� ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ� ĨŽƌ� ĐŽŵƉƵƚĞƌ� ƐŽĨƚǁĂƌĞ͕� ĐŽŵƉƵƚĞƌ� ŚĂƌĚǁĂƌĞ͕� ĂŶĚ� ĐŽŵƉƵƚĞƌ�
ƚĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚŝŶŐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ĐŽŵƉƵƚĞƌ�ƉƌŽĚƵĐƚƐ�ƐŚĂůů�ŶŽƚ�ďĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�
Ă� ĐŽƐƚ�ŽĨ� ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͘� dŚƵƐ͕� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ� ƚĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ�
ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞůǇ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƐŝŶĐĞ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ϮϬϭϭ-ϭϮ͘ 
 
WƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂů�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ��ƵĚŐĞƚ 
^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ƉƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂů� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ� ďƵĚŐĞƚ� ŝƐ� ĨƵŶĚĞĚ� ďǇ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐƐ� Žƌ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�
ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ĂƐ�ƉƌĞƐĐƌŝďĞĚ�ďǇ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŽĚĞ�Αϯϭϱϵϲ͘ϭ�ďĞůŽǁ͘ 
 
'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ŽĚĞ�Αϯϭϱϵϲ͘ϭ�ƐƚĂƚĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ͗ 
 
͞dŚĞ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�ŽĨ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŝŶŐ�ŝƚƐ�ŵŽŶĞǇƐ�ƐŚĂůů�ďĞ�ďŽƌŶĞ�ƐŽůĞůǇ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͘�dŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ƚǇƉĞƐ�
ŽĨ� ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ� ƐŚĂůů� ŶŽƚ� ďĞ� ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ� Ă� ĐŽƐƚ� ŽĨ� ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŝŽŶ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͕� ďƵƚ�
ƐŚĂůů� ďĞ� ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�Ă� ƌĞĚƵĐƚŝŽŶ� ŝŶ� ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐƐ� ĨƌŽŵ� ƚŚŽƐĞ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�Žƌ� Ă� ĐŚĂƌŐĞ�ĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ� ƚŚĞ�
ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ĂƐ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽĂƌĚ͗ 
  

;ĂͿ� dŚĞ� ĐŽƐƚƐ͕� ĂƐ� ĂƉƉƌŽǀĞĚ� ďǇ� ƚŚĞ� ďŽĂƌĚ͕� ŽĨ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů� ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶƐ� ĂŶĚ� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ� ƌĞŶĚĞƌĞĚ�
ƉƵƌƐƵĂŶƚ�ƚŽ�Αϯϭϰϱϯ͘ 

;ďͿ �dŚĞ�ĐŽŵƉĞŶƐĂƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĂŶǇ�ďĂŶŬ�Žƌ�ƚƌƵƐƚ�ĐŽŵƉĂŶǇ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵŝŶŐ�ĐƵƐƚŽĚŝĂů�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͘ 

;ĐͿ �tŚĞŶ�ĂŶ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ŝƐ�ŵĂĚĞ�ŝŶ�ĚĞĞĚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚƌƵƐƚ�ĂŶĚ�ŵŽƌƚŐĂŐĞƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĨĞĞƐ�ƐƚŝƉƵůĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĂŶǇ�
ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ĞŶƚĞƌĞĚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ďĂŶŬ�Žƌ�ŵŽƌƚŐĂŐĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĐŽŵƉĂŶǇ�ƚŽ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƐƵĐŚ�ĚĞĞĚƐ�ŽĨ�
ƚƌƵƐƚ�ĂŶĚ�ŵŽƌƚŐĂŐĞƐ͘ 

;ĚͿ ��ŶǇ�ĨĞĞƐ�ƐƚŝƉƵůĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĂŶ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ĞŶƚĞƌĞĚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ĐŽƵŶƐĞů�ĨŽƌ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚŝŶŐ�
Žƌ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƚŝŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ďŽĂƌĚ͛Ɛ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�
ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵ͕�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͛Ɛ�ƉĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂƚŝŽŶ�ŝŶ�ĂŶǇ�ĨŽƌŵ�ŽĨ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƉŽŽůƐ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞĚ�ďǇ�
Ă�ƚŚŝƌĚ�ƉĂƌƚǇ�Žƌ�ƉĂƌƚŝĞƐ͘ 

;ĞͿ dŚĞ� ĐŽŵƉĞŶƐĂƚŝŽŶ� ƚŽ� ĂŶ� ĂƚƚŽƌŶĞǇ� ĨŽƌ� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ� ƌĞŶĚĞƌĞĚ� ƉƵƌƐƵĂŶƚ� ƚŽ� ΑϯϭϲϬϳ� Žƌ� ůĞŐĂů�
ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĂƚŝŽŶ�ƌĞŶĚĞƌĞĚ�ƉƵƌƐƵĂŶƚ�ƚŽ�ΑϯϭϱϮϵ͘ϭ͘͟ 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƌǇ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ 



82  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

 

 

Kã«�Ù�®Ä¥ÊÙÃ�ã®ÊÄ 

KƚŚĞƌ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ 

^�
«�

�ç
½�
�Ê
¥�
�Ã

Ö½
Êù

�Ù
�Ö
�Ä

Ý®
ÊÄ

��
Ã
Êç

Äã
Ý�
�½
½Ê
��
ã�
��
�ù
��
ÊÝ

ã�
Ý«
�Ù
®Ä
¦�
Ö½
�Ä

�;'
�^

��
^ã
�ã
�Ã

�Ä
ã�
E
Ê͘
�ϲ
ϴͿ

 

:Ƶ
ŶĞ

�ϯ
Ϭ͕
�Ϯ
Ϭϭ

ϵ 

Co
un

ty
 o

f S
an

 
M

at
eo

59
3,

49
5,

17
2

$ 
   

91
,7

19
,9

75
$ 

1,
76

7,
18

7
$ 

   
20

2,
69

8,
76

0
$ 

2,
74

9,
84

7
$ 

   
 

29
8,

93
5,

76
9

$ 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

13
3,

05
3

$ 
   

   
   

13
3,

05
3

$ 
   

 
23

4,
37

9,
51

4
$ 

 
1,

11
0,

99
6

$ 
   

  
23

5,
49

0,
51

0
$ 

Sa
n 

M
at

eo
 

Su
pe

ri
or

 C
ou

rt
21

,1
32

,4
45

   
   

  
3,

26
5,

85
2

   
   

62
,9

24
   

   
   

   
7,

21
7,

44
8

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

,5
46

,2
24

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

62
5,

47
4

   
   

   
2,

62
5,

47
4

   
 

8,
34

5,
49

7
   

   
   

(1
,3

48
,4

78
)

   
   

 
6,

99
7,

01
9

   
   

  

Sa
n 

M
at

eo
 

Co
un

ty
 M

os
qu

it
o 

&
 V

ec
to

r 
Co

nt
ro

l 
D

is
tr

ic
t

1,
47

8,
65

5
   

   
   

  
22

8,
51

4
   

   
   

4,
40

3
   

   
   

   
  

50
5,

01
1

   
   

   
  

40
3,

32
9

   
   

   
  

1,
14

1,
25

7
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
39

4,
64

9
   

   
   

   
39

4,
64

9
   

   
 

58
3,

94
1

   
   

   
   

 
23

7,
48

2
   

   
   

   
82

1,
42

3
   

   
   

   

   
   

To
ta

l
61

6,
10

6,
27

2
$ 

   
95

,2
14

,3
41

$ 
1,

83
4,

51
4

$ 
   

21
0,

42
1,

21
9

$ 
3,

15
3,

17
6

$ 
   

 
31

0,
62

3,
25

0
$ 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

15
3,

17
6

$ 
   

  
3,

15
3,

17
6

$ 
24

3,
30

8,
95

2
$ 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

3,
30

8,
95

2
$ 

Em
pl

oy
er

Ch
an

ge
s 

of
 

A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

N
et

 
D

iff
er

en
ce

s 
Be

tw
ee

n 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

an
d 

A
ct

ua
l 

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

Ea
rn

in
gs

 o
n 

Pe
ns

io
n 

Pl
an

 
In

ve
st

m
en

ts

D
iff

er
en

ce
s 

Be
tw

ee
n 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Ec

on
om

ic
 

Ex
pe

ri
en

ce
N

et
 P

en
si

on
 

Li
ab

ili
ty

D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s 

of
 R

es
ou

rc
es

D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
Pe

ns
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e 
Ex

cl
ud

in
g 

Th
at

 A
tt

ri
bu

ta
bl

e 
to

 
Em

pl
oy

er
-P

ai
d 

M
em

be
r 

Co
nt

ri
bu

ti
on

s

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 
Ex

pe
ns

e 
Ex

cl
ud

in
g 

Th
at

 
A

tt
ri

bu
ta

bl
e 

to
 

Em
pl

oy
er

-P
ai

d 
M

em
be

r 
Co

nt
ri

bu
ti

on
s 

N
et

 
A

m
or

ti
za

ti
on

 o
f 

D
ef

er
re

d 
A

m
ou

nt
s 

fr
om

 
Ch

an
ge

s 
in

 
Pr

op
or

ti
on

 a
nd

 
D

iff
er

en
ce

s 
Be

tw
ee

n 
Em

pl
oy

er
 

Co
nt

ri
bu

ti
on

s 
an

d 
Pr

op
or

ti
on

at
e 

Sh
ar

e 
of

 
Co

nt
ri

bu
ti

on
s

Pr
op

or
ti

on
at

e 
Sh

ar
e 

of
 

A
llo

ca
bl

e 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e

To
ta

l 
D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s 

of
 

Re
so

ur
ce

s

Ch
an

ge
s 

in
 

Pr
op

or
ti

on
 a

nd
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
s 

Be
tw

ee
n 

Em
pl

oy
er

 
Co

nt
ri

bu
ti

on
s 

an
d 

Pr
op

or
ti

on
at

e 
Sh

ar
e 

of
 

Co
nt

ri
bu

ti
on

s
Ch

an
ge

s 
of

 
A

ss
um

pt
io

ns

D
iff

er
en

ce
s 

Be
tw

ee
n 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
an

d 
A

ct
ua

l 
Ec

on
om

ic
 

Ex
pe

ri
en

ce

To
ta

l D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s 

of
 

Re
so

ur
ce

s

Ch
an

ge
s 

in
 

Pr
op

or
ti

on
 a

nd
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
s 

Be
tw

ee
n 

Em
pl

oy
er

 
Co

nt
ri

bu
ti

on
s 

an
d 

Pr
op

or
ti

on
at

e 
Sh

ar
e 

of
 

Co
nt

ri
bu

ti
on

s



&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  83 

EÊã�Ý�ãÊ�ã«��Kã«�Ù�/Ä¥ÊÙÃ�ã®ÊÄ� 
 
�ĂƐŝƐ�ŽĨ�WƌĞƐĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ��ĂƐŝƐ�ŽĨ��ĐĐŽƵŶƟŶŐ 
�ŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ� ƉĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂƚŝŶŐ� ŝŶ� ^Ăŵ��Z�� ĂƌĞ� ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ� ƚŽ� ƌĞƉŽƌƚ� ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ� ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞŝƌ�
ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ƉĞƌŝŽĚƐ�ďĞŐŝŶŶŝŶŐ�ŽŶ�Žƌ�ĂĨƚĞƌ�:ƵŶĞ�ϭϱ͕�ϮϬϭϰ͕�ŝŶ�ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�
'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚĂů� �ĐĐŽƵŶƚŝŶŐ� ^ƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ;'�^�Ϳ� ^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ� EŽ͘� ϲϴ͕� �ĐĐŽƵŶƚŝŶŐ� ĂŶĚ�
&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ZĞƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�WĞŶƐŝŽŶƐ�—�ĂŶ��ŵĞŶĚŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�'�^��^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�EŽ͘�Ϯϳ͘� 
 
^Ăŵ��Z�ΖƐ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌǇ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚƐ͗�;ϭͿ�ƚŚĞ�^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ��ŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�WĞŶƐŝŽŶ�
�ŵŽƵŶƚƐ� �ůůŽĐĂƚĞĚ� ďǇ� �ŽƐƚ� ^ŚĂƌŝŶŐ� WůĂŶ͕� ;ϮͿ� ƚŚĞ� ^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ� ŽĨ� �ŽƐƚ� ^ŚĂƌŝŶŐ� �ŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�
�ůůŽĐĂƚŝŽŶƐ͕�;ϯͿ�ƚŚĞ�'�^��^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�EŽ͘�ϲϳ��ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�sĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ�ĂƐ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕�ĂŶĚ�;ϰͿ�ƚŚĞ�
'�^��^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�EŽ͘�ϲϴ��ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�sĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�Ă�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ�DĞĂƐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ��ĂƚĞ�ĨŽƌ�
�ŵƉůŽǇĞƌ� ZĞƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ� ĂƐ� ŽĨ� :ƵŶĞ� ϯϬ͕� ϮϬϮϬ͖� ŝŶ� ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ� ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ� ĂĐĐĞƉƚĞĚ� ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚŝŶŐ�
ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞƐ�;'��WͿ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�hŶŝƚĞĚ�^ƚĂƚĞƐ�ŽĨ��ŵĞƌŝĐĂ�ĂƐ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚĂů�ŽƌŐĂŶŝǌĂƚŝŽŶƐ�
ďĂƐĞĚ� ŽŶ� ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ� ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ� ďǇ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͘� dŚĞƐĞ� ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚƐ� ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ� ƚŚĞ� ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�
ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ� ĨŽƌ� ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ƌĞƉŽƌƚŝŶŐ� ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ� ƚŽ� ^Ăŵ��Z�� ƚŚĂƚ� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ� ŵĂǇ� ƵƐĞ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞŝƌ�
ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘ 
 
hƐĞ�ŽĨ��ƐƟŵĂƚĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�WƌĞƉĂƌĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĐƵŵĞŶƚƐ 
dŚĞ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĂƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚƐ͕�ŝŶ�ĐŽŶĨŽƌŵŝƚǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�'��W͕�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞƐ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�
ŵĂŬĞ�ĞƐƚŝŵĂƚĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂĨĨĞĐƚ�ĐĞƌƚĂŝŶ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚŝƐĐůŽƐƵƌĞƐ͘�,ŽǁĞǀĞƌ͕�ĂĐƚƵĂů�
ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ĚŝĨĨĞƌ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ĞƐƚŝŵĂƚĞƐ͘ 
 
�ŵŽƌƟǌĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ��ĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�KƵƞůŽǁƐ�ĂŶĚ��ĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�/ŶŇŽǁƐ�ŽĨ�ZĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ 
dŚĞ� ĚŝīĞƌĞŶĐĞ� ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ� ƉƌŽũĞĐƚĞĚ� ĂŶĚ� ĂĐƚƵĂů� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐƐ� ŽŶ� ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ� ƉůĂŶ�
ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ� ŝƐ�ĂŵŽƌƚŝǌĞĚ�ŽǀĞƌ� ĨŝǀĞ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŽŶ�Ă�ƐƚƌĂŝŐŚƚ-ůŝŶĞ�ďĂƐŝƐ͘�KŶĞ-ĨŝĨƚŚ�ǁĂƐ� ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞĚ� ŝŶ�
ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ� ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞ� ĚƵƌŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ� ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͘� dŚĞ� ƌĞŵĂŝŶŝŶŐ� ĚŝĨĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ� ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�
ƉƌŽũĞĐƚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĐƚƵĂů�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐƐ�ŽŶ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ƉůĂŶ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�Ăƚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ�ŝƐ�ƚŽ�
ďĞ�ĂŵŽƌƚŝǌĞĚ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŵĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚƐ͘� 

KƚŚĞƌ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ 

^�«��ç½��Ê¥��ÊÝã�Ý«�Ù®Ä¦��ÃÖ½Êù�Ù��½½Ê��ã®ÊÄÝ�;'�^��^ã�ã�Ã�Äã�EÊ͘�ϲϴͿ 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
Actual Actuarially Employer Net

Employer Determined Allocation Pension
Employer Contributions Contributions Percentage Liability

County of San Mateo 238,354,563$ 187,686,206$ 96.33% 593,495,172$ 

San Mateo County Superior Court 6,677,457 6,677,457 3.43% 21,132,445

San Mateo County Mosquito & 
Vector Control District 466,391 466,391 0.24% 1,478,655
       Total 245,498,411$ 194,830,054$ 100.00% 616,106,272$     

Note:  Employer a l location percentage (or proportionate share) i s  based on Actuaria l ly Determined Contributions .



84  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

�ŚĂŶŐĞƐ� ŽĨ� ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ� Žƌ� ŽƚŚĞƌ� ŝŶƉƵƚƐ� ĂŶĚ� ĚŝĨĨĞƌĞŶĐĞƐ� ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ� ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ� ĂŶĚ� ĂĐƚƵĂů�
ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ� ĂƌĞ� ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞĚ� ŽǀĞƌ� ƚŚĞ� ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ� ƌĞŵĂŝŶŝŶŐ� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ� ůŝǀĞƐ� ŽĨ� Ăůů�
ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͕�ďŽƚŚ�ĂĐƚŝǀĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ͕�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƌĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶƐ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�^Ăŵ��Z��ĂƐ�ŽĨ�
:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϴ�;ƚŚĞ�ďĞŐŝŶŶŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ĞŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵͿ͘� 
 
WƌŝŽƌ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŽĨ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚŝĨĨĞƌĞŶĐĞƐ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĐƚƵĂů�ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ�
ĂƌĞ�ĐŽŶƚŝŶƵĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞĚ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ƌĞŵĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ůŝǀĞƐ�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ�
ĐĂůĐƵůĂƚĞĚ�ĂƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ƉƌŝŽƌ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ĚĂƚĞƐ͘ 
 
dŚĞ� ŶĞƚ� ĞĨĨĞĐƚ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ĐŚĂŶŐĞ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌΖƐ� ƉƌŽƉŽƌƚŝŽŶĂƚĞ� ƐŚĂƌĞ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ĐŽůůĞĐƚŝǀĞ� ŶĞƚ�
ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ� ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ� ĂŶĚ� ĐŽůůĞĐƚŝǀĞ� ĚĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ� ŽƵƚĨůŽǁƐ� ŽĨ� ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ� ĂŶĚ� ĚĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ� ŝŶĨůŽǁƐ� ŽĨ�
ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ� ŝƐ� ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞĚ� ŽǀĞƌ� ƚŚĞ� ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ� ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ� ƌĞŵĂŝŶŝŶŐ� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ� ůŝǀĞƐ� ŽĨ� Ăůů� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ�
ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƌĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶƐ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ƉůĂŶ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ�ĂƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞŐŝŶŶŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͘ 
 
dŚĞ�ĚŝĨĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĐƚƵĂů�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƚŝŽŶĂƚĞ�ƐŚĂƌĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ĞŶĚĞĚ�ŽŶ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕�ŝƐ�ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞĚ�
ŽǀĞƌ� ƚŚĞ� ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ� ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ� ƌĞŵĂŝŶŝŶŐ� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ� ůŝǀĞƐ� ŽĨ� Ăůů� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ� ƚŚĂƚ� ĂƌĞ� ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ� ǁŝƚŚ�
ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶƐ� ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ� ƚŚĞ� ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ� ƉůĂŶ� ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ� ĂƐ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ďĞŐŝŶŶŝŶŐ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ�
ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͘ 
 
dŚĞ� ^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ� ŽĨ� WĞŶƐŝŽŶ� �ŵŽƵŶƚƐ� ďǇ� �ŵƉůŽǇĞƌ� ĚŽĞƐ� ŶŽƚ� ƌĞĨůĞĐƚ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ� ŵĂĚĞ� ƚŽ�
^Ăŵ��Z�� ƐƵďƐĞƋƵĞŶƚ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ĚĂƚĞ� ĂƐ� ĚĞĨŝŶĞĚ� ŝŶ� '�^�� ^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ� EŽ͘� ϲϴ�
WĂƌĂŐƌĂƉŚƐ�ϱϰ͕�ϱϱ͕�ĂŶĚ�ϱϳ͘��ƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ�ƚƌĞĂƚŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ͘ 

EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�KƚŚĞƌ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ 



 

 

INVESTMENT 

SECTION 



 

 



/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  87 

�ŽĂƌĚ�ŽĨ�ZĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ 
^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐΖ�ZĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ��ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ 
 
�ĞĂƌ�dƌƵƐƚĞĞƐ͗ 
 
KŶ� ďĞŚĂůĨ� ŽĨ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ƚĞĂŵ͕� /� Ăŵ� ƉůĞĂƐĞĚ� ƚŽ� ƌĞƉŽƌƚ� ŽŶ� ƚŚĞ� ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ� ĨƵŶĚ͛Ɛ�
ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ� ĂŶĚ� ƉŽƌƞŽůŝŽ� ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ƉĞƌŝŽĚ� ĞŶĚĞĚ� :ƵŶĞ� ϯϬ͕� ϮϬϭϵ͘� � dŚŝƐ� ĚĂƚĂ�ǁĂƐ�
ĐŽŵƉŝůĞĚ� ďǇ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ƐƚĂī͕� ŝƚƐ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚ͕� sĞƌƵƐ� �ĚǀŝƐŽƌǇ͕� /ŶĐ͘�
;sĞƌƵƐͿ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƚƐ�ĐƵƐƚŽĚŝĂŶ�ďĂŶŬ͕�EŽƌƚŚĞƌŶ�dƌƵƐƚ��ŽƌƉŽƌĂƟŽŶ͘�� ��ůů�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ĮŐƵƌĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ�
ŶĞƚ� ŽĨ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌ� ĨĞĞƐ͕� ĂƌĞ� ƟŵĞ-ǁĞŝŐŚƚĞĚ͕� ĂŶĚ� ĂƌĞ� ĐĂůĐƵůĂƚĞĚ� ďǇ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�
ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚ͕�sĞƌƵƐ͘� 
 
WŽƌƞŽůŝŽ�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ 
 
^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ƉŽƌƞŽůŝŽ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ� ǀĂůƵĞ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ� ƚŽ�Ψϰ͘ϳϮ�ďŝůůŝŽŶ� ĂƐ�ŽĨ� :ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕� ϮϬϭϵ͕� ĂƐ� ƚŚĞ�ŶĞƚ�
ĐŽŵďŝŶĂƟŽŶ� ŽĨ� ƉŽƌƞŽůŝŽ� ĂƉƉƌĞĐŝĂƟŽŶ� ĂŶĚ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ͕� ůĞƐƐ� ƚŽƚĂů� ĚĞĚƵĐƟŽŶƐ� ;ŝ͘Ğ͕͘� ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ�
ƉĂŝĚ͕�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟǀĞ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞ͕�ĞƚĐ͘Ϳ͕�ĂĚĚĞĚ�ĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇ�Ψϯϰϵ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵŶĚ͘ 
 
^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ƉŽƌƞŽůŝŽ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶĞĚ� ϱ͘ϰй� ŶĞƚ� ŽĨ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ� ĨĞĞƐ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ĮƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ�
ĞŶĚĞĚ� :ƵŶĞ� ϯϬ͕� ϮϬϭϵ͕� ƵŶĚĞƌƉĞƌĨŽƌŵŝŶŐ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ƉŽůŝĐǇ� ďĞŶĐŚŵĂƌŬ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ� ďǇ� ϭ͘ϯй͘� � dŚŝƐ�
ĮƐĐĂů-ǇĞĂƌ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ƌĞƐƵůƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ŶĞĂƌ�ŵĞĚŝĂŶ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ƌĞůĂƟǀĞ�ƚŽ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ƉĞĞƌƐ͕�ĂƐ�
ĚĞĮŶĞĚ�ďǇ� ůĂƌŐĞ� ;ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌ� ƚŚĂŶ�Ψϭ�ďŝůůŝŽŶ� ŝŶ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐͿ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ƉůĂŶƐ͘� �dĂďůĞ�KŶĞ�ďĞůŽǁ�ƐŚŽǁƐ�ŶĞƚ�
ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ĐŚĂƌĂĐƚĞƌŝƐƟĐƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ĨƵŶĚ�ŽǀĞƌ�ϭ͕�ϯ͕�ϱ͕�ĂŶĚ�ϭϬ-�ǇĞĂƌ�ƚƌĂŝůŝŶŐ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚƐ�ĞŶĚŝŶŐ�
:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͘���ĞƐƉŝƚĞ�ƉůĂŶ�ƵŶĚĞƌƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƐƚ�ƚǁŽ�ĮƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌƐ͕�ůŽŶŐĞƌ-ƚĞƌŵ�ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ�
ƐŚŽǁ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ŵĞĚŝĂŶ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐ�ŽǀĞƌ�ůŽŶŐĞƌ�ƟŵĞĨƌĂŵĞƐ�;ŶĂŵĞůǇ�ƚŚĞ�ϱ�ĂŶĚ�ϭϬ-ǇĞĂƌ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚƐͿ͘�� 

�ŚŝĞĨ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�KĸĐĞƌ͛Ɛ�ZĞƉŽƌƚ 

Michael Coultrip 
SamCERA 
Chief Investment Officer 



88  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

ZĞƚƵƌŶͬZŝƐŬ�DĞĂƐƵƌĞ 

�Ɛ�ĚĞƐĐƌŝďĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�KďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ�ƐĞĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�WŽůŝĐǇ�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ͕�
^Ăŵ��Z�� ĨŽĐƵƐĞƐ� ŽŶ� ͞ƌŝƐŬ-ĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚ͟� ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐ� ƚŽ� ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞ� ŚŽǁ� ŵƵĐŚ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ� ǁĂƐ� ŐĞŶĞƌĂƚĞĚ�
ŐŝǀĞŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŝƐŬ�;ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚ�ĚĞǀŝĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐͿ�ƚĂŬĞŶ�ƚŽ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ͘��dŚŝƐ�
ŝƐ�ƚǇƉŝĐĂůůǇ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞĚ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�^ŚĂƌƉĞ�ZĂƟŽ͘��dŚĞ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĂƟŽ͕�ƚŚĞ�ďĞƩĞƌ͕�ĂƐ�ŝƚ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�
ƌĞƚƵƌŶ� ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ� ƉĞƌ� ƵŶŝƚ� ŽĨ� ƌŝƐŬ� ƚĂŬĞŶ͘� � &Žƌ� ĞǆĂŵƉůĞ͕� ŝĨ� Ă� ĨƵŶĚ� ŚĂƐ� Ă� ůŽǁĞƌ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ� ƚŚĂŶ� ƚŚĞ�
ďĞŶĐŚŵĂƌŬ�ďƵƚ�ĂůƐŽ�Ă�ŵƵĐŚ�ůŽǁĞƌ�ƌŝƐŬ�ůĞǀĞů�;ĂƐ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚ�ĚĞǀŝĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐͿ͕�ŝƚ�
ŵĂǇ� ƌĞƐƵůƚ� ŝŶ�Ă�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ� ƌŝƐŬ-ĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚ�ŽƵƚĐŽŵĞ͘� ��ŽŶǀĞƌƐĞůǇ͕� ŝĨ� Ă� ĨƵŶĚ�ŚĂƐ�Ă�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ďƵƚ�
ĂůƐŽ�ƚĂŬĞƐ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƐƵƌĂƚĞ� ƌŝƐŬ� ƚŚĂŶ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞŶĐŚŵĂƌŬ͕� ƚŚĞŶ� ŝƚƐ� ƌŝƐŬ-ĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�
ŵĂǇ�ďĞ�ůŽǁĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞŶĐŚŵĂƌŬ͘��hŶĚĞƌƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƐƚ�ƚǁŽ�ĮƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŚĂƐ�
ƌĞƐƵůƚĞĚ� ŝŶ�Ă� ůŽǁĞƌ� ƌŝƐŬ-ĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ� ƌĞůĂƟǀĞ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ�ďĞŶĐŚŵĂƌŬ�ŽǀĞƌ� ƚŚĞ� ƚƌĂŝůŝŶŐ�ŽŶĞ�ĂŶĚ�
ƚŚƌĞĞ-ǇĞĂƌ� ƉĞƌŝŽĚƐ͘� � KǀĞƌ� ůŽŶŐĞƌ-ƚĞƌŵ� ƉĞƌŝŽĚƐ͕� ^Ăŵ��Z�� ŚĂĚ� Ă� ƐŝŵŝůĂƌ� ƌŝƐŬ-ĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�
ƌĞůĂƟǀĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞŶĐŚŵĂƌŬ͘� 

dĂďůĞ�KŶĞ͗�^Ăŵ��Z��dŽƚĂů�&ƵŶĚ�EĞƚ�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ��ŚĂƌĂĐƚĞƌŝƐƟĐƐ��ŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

dĂďůĞ�dǁŽ�ďĞůŽǁ�ƐŚŽǁƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ĂůůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŝŵĂƌǇ�ĐŽŵƉŽƐŝƚĞ�ƌĞůĂƟǀĞ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�
ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚŝŶŐ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͘ 
 
�ůů�ĮǀĞ�ŽĨ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ĐůĂƐƐ�ĐŽŵƉŽƐŝƚĞƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ƉŽƐŝƟǀĞ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ͘��ZŝƐŬ�WĂƌŝƚǇ�
ǁĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞƐƚ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵŝŶŐ�ĐŽŵƉŽƐŝƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶĞĚ�ϭϬ͘ϴй͕�ǁŚŝůĞ�/ŶŇĂƟŽŶ�,ĞĚŐĞ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶĞĚ�Ϯ͘ϱй�
ĂŶĚ�ǁĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽǁĞƐƚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶŝŶŐ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ĐůĂƐƐ�ĐŽŵƉŽƐŝƚĞ͘��&ŝǆĞĚ�/ŶĐŽŵĞ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶĞĚ�ϲ͘ϳй͕�ǁŚŝůĞ�WƵďůŝĐ�
�ƋƵŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ��ůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞƐ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶĞĚ�ϰ͘ϴй�ĂŶĚ�ϰ͘ϲй͕�ƌĞƐƉĞĐƟǀĞůǇ͘��� 
 
�ůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞƐ͕�ǁŚŝůĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�ƉŽƐŝƟǀĞ�ĂďƐŽůƵƚĞ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐ͕�ǁĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŽǀĞƌǁŚĞůŵŝŶŐ�ŵĂŝŶ�ĚĞƚƌĂĐƚŽƌ�
ŝŶ�ƚĞƌŵƐ�ŽĨ�ƌĞůĂƟǀĞ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ǀĞƌƐƵƐ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞŶĐŚŵĂƌŬ�;ƉƌŝŵĂƌŝůǇ�ĨƌŽŵ�ŚĞĚŐĞ�ĨƵŶĚƐͬĂďƐŽůƵƚĞ�
ƌĞƚƵƌŶͿ͘� � &ŝǆĞĚ� /ŶĐŽŵĞ� ĂŶĚ� /ŶŇĂƟŽŶ� ,ĞĚŐĞ� ĂůƐŽ� ĚĞƚƌĂĐƚĞĚ͕� ǁŚŝůĞ� ZŝƐŬ� WĂƌŝƚǇ� ŽƵƚƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĞĚ�
ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ͘ 
 

�ŚŝĞĨ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�KĸĐĞƌ͛Ɛ�ZĞƉŽƌƚ 

1 Year 3 Years 5 Years 10 Years
SamCERA Return 5.4% 8.2% 5.7% 9.3%
Benchmark Return 6.7% 9.0% 6.1% 9.7%
Excess Return (1.30)% (0.80)% (0.40)% (0.40)%

Peer Rank Return (Percentile) 52nd 79th 48th 40th

SamCERA Risk (Standard Deviation) 8.8 5.9 6.5 8.1
Benchmark Risk (Standard Deviation) 8.7 6.0 6.8 8.5

SamCERA Sharpe Ratio 0.4 1.1 0.8 1.1
Benchmark Sharpe Ratio 0.5 1.3 0.8 1.1



/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  89 

dĂďůĞ�dǁŽ͗�^Ăŵ��Z���ŽŵƉŽƐŝƚĞ�EĞƚ�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ĨŽƌ�dƌĂŝůŝŶŐ�zĞĂƌ��ŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

 

 

 

 

 

DĂƌŬĞƚ�ZĞǀŝĞǁ 
 
/ƚ� ǁĂƐ� Ă� ƚŽƉƐǇ-ƚƵƌǀǇ� ĮƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ� ǁŝƚŚ� ĂŶ� ĞƋƵŝƚǇ� ŵĂƌŬĞƚ� ĐŽƌƌĞĐƟŽŶ� ƐĂŶĚǁŝĐŚĞĚ� ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�
ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�ŵŽĚĞƐƚ�ƉŽƐŝƟǀĞ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ĨŽƌ�ŵŽƐƚ�ƌŝƐŬ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ͘���ĂƌůǇ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĮƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ͕�ƌŝƐŬ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�
ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĞĚ� ǁĞůů� ĂƐ� ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ� ĂĐƟǀŝƚǇ� ŚƵŵŵĞĚ� ĂůŽŶŐ� ;ĞƐƉĞĐŝĂůůǇ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� h͘^͘Ϳ� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� h͘^͘�
&ĞĚĞƌĂů�ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ�;ƚŚĞ�&ĞĚͿ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞĚ�ƌĂŝƐŝŶŐ�ƐŚŽƌƚ-ƚĞƌŵ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ƌĂƚĞƐ͘����ƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ϰƚŚ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ�
ŽĨ�ϮϬϭϴ͕�ƌŝƐŬ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ƐŽůĚ�Žī�ŐůŽďĂůůǇ�ĂƐ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�&ĞĚ�ƌĂŝƐŝŶŐ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ƚŽŽ�ƋƵŝĐŬůǇ͕�ĂůŽŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�
ŐĞŽƉŽůŝƟĐĂů� ĂŶĚ� ŐĞŶĞƌĂů� ŐůŽďĂů� ŐƌŽǁƚŚ� ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ͕� ƐĞŶƚ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŽƌƐ� ŇĞĞŝŶŐ� ĨŽƌ� ĚĞĨĞŶƐŝǀĞ� ĂƐƐĞƚƐ͘��
�ƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƚǁŽ�ƐƵďƐĞƋƵĞŶƚ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌƐ͕�ůŽǁĞƌ�ŐůŽďĂů�ŐƌŽǁƚŚ�ƉƌŽƐƉĞĐƚƐ�ĐŽƵƉůĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ůŽǁ�ŝŶŇĂƟŽŶ�
ƌĞĂĚŝŶŐƐ�ůĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�&ĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƉĂƵƐĞ�ŝƚƐ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ƌĂƚĞ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŝŐŶĂů�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ƌĂƚĞ�ĐƵƚƐ͘��� 
 
h͘^͘�ĞƋƵŝƟĞƐ͕�ůŝŬĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŝŽƌ�ĮƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ͕�ĂŐĂŝŶ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ƌĞůĂƟǀĞůǇ�ƐƚƌŽŶŐ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐ͕�ĂƐ�h͘^͘�ŐƌŽǁƚŚ�
ƉƌŽƐƉĞĐƚƐ� ŚĂǀĞ� ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ� ďĞĞŶ� ĨĂǀŽƌĂďůĞ͕� ĞƐƉĞĐŝĂůůǇ� ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ƌĞƐƚ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�
ǁŽƌůĚ͘� � h͘^͘� ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ� ŐƌŽǁƚŚ� ŚĂƐ� ďĞĞŶ� ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ� ƐƚĞĂĚǇ͕� ĂƐƐŝƐƚĞĚ� ŝŶ� ƉĂƌƚ� ďǇ� ƚŚĞ� ƌĞŵĂŝŶŝŶŐ�
ĞīĞĐƚƐ�ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ�ĮƐĐĂů� ƐƟŵƵůƵƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƐƐĂŐĞ�ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ�dĂǆ��ƵƚƐ�ĂŶĚ� :ŽďƐ��Đƚ� ůĂƐƚ�ǇĞĂƌ͘��
dŚĞ� ƐƚƌŽŶŐ� ĞƋƵŝƚǇ� ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ� ĐĂŵĞ� ĚĞƐƉŝƚĞ� ƐĞǀĞƌĂů� ĞǀĞŶƚƐ� ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ� ƚŚĞ� ǇĞĂƌ͕� ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�
ĞůĞǀĂƚĞĚ� ŐĞŽƉŽůŝƟĐĂů� ƌŝƐŬƐ͕� ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ� ŽǀĞƌ� ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂů� ƚƌĂĚĞ� ǁĂƌ� ŝŵƉůŝĐĂƟŽŶƐ͕� ĂŶĚ� ƌĞĐĞŶƚ�
ŚĞŝŐŚƚĞŶĞĚ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚƌĞŶŐƚŚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŐůŽďĂů�ĞĐŽŶŽŵǇ͘� 
 
dŚĞ�ďƌŽĂĚ�h͘^͘�ĞƋƵŝƚǇ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ͕�ĂƐ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ZƵƐƐĞůů�ϯϬϬϬ�/ŶĚĞǆ͕�Ă�ďƌŽĂĚ�ďĂƐŬĞƚ�ŽĨ�h͘^͘�
ƐƚŽĐŬƐ͕�ƌĞƚƵƌŶĞĚ�ϵ͘Ϭй�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ͘��>ĂƌŐĞ-ĐĂƉŝƚĂůŝǌĂƟŽŶ�ƐƚŽĐŬƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�h͘^͘�;ĂƐ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�
ƚŚĞ�ZƵƐƐĞůů�ϭϬϬϬ�/ŶĚĞǆͿ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ďǇ�ϭϬ͘Ϭй͕�ǁŚŝůĞ�ƐŵĂůůĞƌ-ĐĂƉŝƚĂůŝǌĂƟŽŶ�ƐƚŽĐŬƐ�;ĂƐ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞĚ�
ďǇ� ƚŚĞ� ZƵƐƐĞůů� ϮϬϬϬ� /ŶĚĞǆͿ� ǁĞƌĞ� ŶĞŐĂƟǀĞ͕� ƌĞƚƵƌŶŝŶŐ� -ϯ͘ϯй� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ǇĞĂƌ͘� /Ŷ� ƚĞƌŵƐ� ŽĨ� ƐĞĐƚŽƌ�
ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ͕� ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂůƐ� ;ƵƉ� ϳ͘ϲйͿ� ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ� ƚŚĞ� ŚŝŐŚĞƐƚ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ͕� ĨŽůůŽǁĞĚ� ďǇ� ĐŽŶƐƵŵĞƌ�
ĚŝƐĐƌĞƟŽŶĂƌǇ� ĂŶĚ� ƚĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ͘� � �ŶĞƌŐǇ� ;ĚŽǁŶ� -ϯ͘ϴйͿ� ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĞĚ� ƚŚĞ�ǁŽƌƐƚ� ĂŶĚ�ǁĂƐ� ƚŚĞ� ŽŶůǇ�
ƐĞĐƚŽƌ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŚĂĚ�ŶĞŐĂƟǀĞ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĮƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ͘ 
 
dŚĞ�ďƌŽĂĚ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂƟŽŶĂů�ĞƋƵŝƚǇ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ�ĂůƐŽ�ŚĂĚ�ƉŽƐŝƟǀĞ�ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĮƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ͕�ďƵƚ�ůĞƐƐ�
ƚŚĂŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�h͘^͘�ĞƋƵŝƚǇ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚƐ͘��dŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂƟŽŶĂů�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ͕�ĂƐ�
ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�D^�/���&��;DŽƌŐĂŶ�^ƚĂŶůĞǇ��ĂƉŝƚĂů�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ��ƵƌŽƉĞ͕��ƵƐƚƌĂůĂƐŝĂ͕�ĂŶĚ�&Ăƌ�
�ĂƐƚ� /ŶĚĞǆͿ͕�ǁĂƐ�ƵƉ�ϭ͘ϭй͕�ǁŚŝůĞ�ĞŵĞƌŐŝŶŐ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ�ĞƋƵŝƚǇ͕�ĂƐ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�D^�/��ŵĞƌŐŝŶŐ�
DĂƌŬĞƚƐ�/ŶĚĞǆ͕�ƌĞƚƵƌŶĞĚ�ϭ͘ϲй͘�� 

�ŚŝĞĨ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�KĸĐĞƌ͛Ɛ�ZĞƉŽƌƚ 

Composite Allocation  (%)* 
Composite 

Return
Benchmark 

Return
Excess 
Return

Public Equity 41.4 4.8% 5.0% -0.2%
Fixed Income 21.0 6.7% 8.5% -1.8%
Alternatives 11.4 4.6% 9.5% -4.9%
Risk Parity 17.4 2.5% 4.3% -1.8%
Inflation Hedge 8.3 10.8% 7.3% 3.5%

* Cash balance was 0.5% as of June 30, 2019.



90  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

dŚĞ�h͘^͘�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ�ƌĂŝƐĞĚ�ƐŚŽƌƚ-ƚĞƌŵ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ƚǁŽ�ƟŵĞƐ�ĞĂƌůǇ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĮƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ͕�ĂƐ�
ƚŚĞ� h͘^͘� ĞĐŽŶŽŵǇ� ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞĚ� ŝƚƐ� ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ� ƐƚĞĂĚǇ� ŐƌŽǁƚŚ͘� � �ƵĞ� ƚŽ� ƐůƵŐŐŝƐŚ� ŐůŽďĂů� ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ�
ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶƐ�;ĂůŽŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ůŽǁ�ŝŶŇĂƟŽŶ�ƌĞĂĚŝŶŐƐͿ͕�ƚŚĞ�&ĞĚ�ƉĂƵƐĞĚ�ŝƚƐ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ƌĂƚĞ�ŚŝŬĞ�ĐǇĐůĞ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�
ƚŚĞ�ƐĞĐŽŶĚ�ŚĂůĨ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĮƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƚĞĚ�ƌĂƚĞ�ĐƵƚƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�;ƚŚĞ�h͘^͘�&ĞĚĞƌĂů�
ZĞƐĞƌǀĞ�ĚŝĚ�ŝŶ�ĨĂĐƚ�ůŽǁĞƌ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ďǇ�Ϯϱ�ďĂƐŝƐ�ƉŽŝŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�:ƵůǇͿ͘��dŚĞ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚ�&ĞĚ�&ƵŶĚƐ�ZĂƚĞ�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŝƐ�
ŶŽǁ�;ĂŌĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�:ƵůǇ�ƌĂƚĞ�ĐƵƚͿ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�Ϯ͘ϬϬ�ƚŽ�Ϯ͘Ϯϱй͕�ƵƉ�ĨƌŽŵ�ϭ͘ϳϱ�ƚŽ�Ϯ͘ϬϬй�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞŐŝŶŶŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ�ĮƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ͘� 
 
>ŽŶŐĞƌ-ƚĞƌŵ� ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ� ƌĂƚĞƐ� ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ� ĚƵƌŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ� ǇĞĂƌ͘� � dŚĞ� ϭϬ-ǇĞĂƌ� h͘^͘� dƌĞĂƐƵƌǇ� ǇŝĞůĚ�
ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ� Ϭ͘ϴϲй�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ� ĮƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ͕� ĞŶĚŝŶŐ� Ăƚ� Ϯ͘ϬϬй͕� ĚŽǁŶ� ĨƌŽŵ� ƚŚĞ� Ϯ͘ϴϲй� ƌĂƚĞ� Ăƚ� ƚŚĞ�
ďĞŐŝŶŶŝŶŐ�ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ͘� �dŚĞƐĞ� ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ� ƌĂƚĞ�ŵŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ŚĂǀĞ� ƌĞƐƵůƚĞĚ� ŝŶ�Ă�ŇĂƩĞƌ�ǇŝĞůĚ� ĐƵƌǀĞ�
;ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŽĐĐƵƌƐ�ǁŚĞŶ�ƚŚĞ�ǇŝĞůĚ�ƐƉƌĞĂĚ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ƚŚĞ�dƌĞĂƐƵƌǇ͛Ɛ�ƚǁŽ-�ĂŶĚ�ϭϬ-ǇĞĂƌ�ŶŽƚĞƐ�ŶĂƌƌŽǁƐͿ͕�
ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�Ă�ǇŝĞůĚ�ĐƵƌǀĞ�ŝŶǀĞƌƐŝŽŶ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŽĐĐƵƌƐ�ǁŚĞŶ�ůŽŶŐĞƌ-ƚĞƌŵ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�
ƚŽ�ďĞ�ůŽǁĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ƐŚŽƌƚĞƌ-ƚĞƌŵ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ƌĂƚĞƐ͘���dŚŝƐ�ƚǇƉĞ�ŽĨ�ǇŝĞůĚ�ĐƵƌǀĞ�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚ�ŚŝƐƚŽƌŝĐĂůůǇ�
ŵĂǇ�ďĞ�Ă�ƉƌĞůƵĚĞ�ƚŽ�Ă�ǁĞĂŬĞƌ�ĞĐŽŶŽŵǇ�ĂŶĚ�ŚĂƐ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�ƉƌĞĐĞĚĞĚ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ƌĞĐĞƐƐŝŽŶƐ͘�� 
 
WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ĮǆĞĚ�ŝŶĐŽŵĞ�ƐĞĐƚŽƌƐ�ǁĂƐ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�ƉŽƐŝƟǀĞ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽǁĞƌ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�
ĚƵƌŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ� ǇĞĂƌ͘� � dŚĞ� ďƌŽĂĚ� h͘^͘� ďŽŶĚ� ŵĂƌŬĞƚ� ;ĂƐ� ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞĚ� ďǇ� ƚŚĞ� �ůŽŽŵďĞƌŐ� �ĂƌĐůĂǇƐ�
�ŐŐƌĞŐĂƚĞ� /ŶĚĞǆͿ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶĞĚ�ϳ͘ϵй�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ͕�ǁŚŝůĞ� ůŽŶŐ-ĚƵƌĂƟŽŶ�dƌĞĂƐƵƌŝĞƐ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶĞĚ�ϭϮ͘ϯй͘��
,ŝŐŚ�ǇŝĞůĚ�ďŽŶĚƐ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶĞĚ�ϳ͘ϱй�ĂƐ�ǁŝĚĞƌ�ŚŝŐŚ�ǇŝĞůĚ�ƐƉƌĞĂĚƐ�;ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ďǇ�ϮϬ�ďĂƐŝƐ�ƉŽŝŶƚƐͿ�ŽīƐĞƚ�
ƐŽŵĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽƐŝƟǀĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ůŽǁĞƌ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ƌĂƚĞƐ͘ 
 
WŽƌƞŽůŝŽ��ŚĂŶŐĞƐ 
 
�ƵƌŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ� ƐĞĐŽŶĚ� ŚĂůĨ� ŽĨ� ϮϬϭϴ͕� ^Ăŵ��Z�� ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĞĚ� ƚŚĞ� ƚĂƌŐĞƚ� ƉŽůŝĐǇ� ƉŽƌƞŽůŝŽ� ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�
ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ĂƉƉƌŽǀĞĚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ŝƚƐ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ĂůůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ͘��^Ăŵ��Z��ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ƚǁŽ�ŶĞǁ�
ůŽǁ-ǀŽůĂƟůŝƚǇ� ĞƋƵŝƚǇ�ŵĂŶĚĂƚĞƐ� ĂŶĚ� ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĞĚ� Ă� ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ� ŚĞĚŐĞ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵ͘� � � dŚĞ� ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ�
ŚĞĚŐĞ� ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵ� ǁŝůů� ďĞ� ůĞŐŐĞĚ� ŝŶƚŽ� ďǇ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ� ŚĞĚŐĞ� ƌĂƟŽ� Ăƚ� ϭϬй� ŝŶĐƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ� ŽŶ� Ă�
ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌůǇ�ďĂƐŝƐ�ƵŶƟů�Ă�ϱϬй�ƚĂƌŐĞƚ�ƌĂƟŽ� ŝƐ�ƌĞĂĐŚĞĚ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ� ŝƐ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŚŝƌĚ�
ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ŽĨ�ϮϬϭϵ͘� � /Ŷ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶ͕�^Ăŵ��Z��ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ƌĞĂů�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ŵĂŶĚĂƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂĚĞ�Ă�
ĐŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�Ă�ƉƌŝǀĂƚĞ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚ�ŵĂŶĚĂƚĞ͘ 
 
^Ăŵ��Z��ŚĞůĚ�ŝƚƐ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ƌĞƚƌĞĂƚ� ŝŶ��Ɖƌŝů͕�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŵƵĐŚ�ĚŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶ�ǁĂƐ�ĨŽĐƵƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƉůĂŶ�
ŵĂƚƵƌŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ŚŽǁ�^Ăŵ��Z��ŝƐ�ďĞĐŽŵŝŶŐ�Ă�ŵŽƌĞ�ŵĂƚƵƌĞ�ƉůĂŶ�;ǁŝƚŚ�ůĂƌŐĞƌ�ŶƵŵďĞƌƐ�ŽĨ�ŝŶĂĐƟǀĞ�
ƉĂƌƟĐŝƉĂŶƚƐ� ǀĞƌƐƵƐ� ĂĐƟǀĞ� ƉĂƌƟĐŝƉĂŶƚƐ� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� ĞǆƉĞĐƚĂƟŽŶ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ƉůĂŶ� ďĞĐŽŵŝŶŐ� ĐĂƐŚ� ŇŽǁ�
ŶĞŐĂƟǀĞ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǆƚ�ĮǀĞ�ǇĞĂƌƐͿ͘��^Ăŵ��Z��ǁŝůů�ƚĂŬĞ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝŶƚŽ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ĂƐ�ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂů�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�
ƚŽ�ŝƚƐ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽĮůĞ�ĂƌĞ�ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ƐƚĂƌƟŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƉĐŽŵŝŶŐ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƐƚƵĚǇ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�
ŝƐ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽƵƌƚŚ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ŽĨ�ϮϬϭϵ͘��� 
 
&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ͕�^Ăŵ��Z��ŵĂĚĞ�ĐŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ŶĞǁ�ƉƌŝǀĂƚĞ�ĞƋƵŝƚǇ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉƐ͕�ƚŽƚĂůŝŶŐ�
ΨϱϬ� ŵŝůůŝŽŶ͘ � dŚŝƐ� ďƌŝŶŐƐ� ƚŚĞ� ƚŽƚĂů� ĐŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ƉƌŝǀĂƚĞ� ĞƋƵŝƚǇ� ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵ� ƚŽ� Ψϰϱϳ͘ϵ�
ŵŝůůŝŽŶ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ǀĞŶƚƵƌĞ�ĐĂƉŝƚĂů͕�ďƵǇŽƵƚƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƐƉĞĐŝĂů�ƐŝƚƵĂƟŽŶƐ͘ 
 

�ŚŝĞĨ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�KĸĐĞƌ͛Ɛ�ZĞƉŽƌƚ 



/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  91 

^Ăŵ��Z��ŵĂĚĞ� ĐŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ǁŽƌƚŚ�Ψϱϱ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ� ƚŽ� ƚǁŽ�ŶĞǁ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉƐ� ŝŶ� ŝƚƐ�ƉƌŝǀĂƚĞ� ƌĞĂů�
ĂƐƐĞƚ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵ͕�ďƌŝŶŐŝŶŐ�ƚŽƚĂů�ĐŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ΨϮϬϰ͘ϴ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ͘  
 
^ƵďƐĞƋƵĞŶƚ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ĞŶĚ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ĮƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ͕� ^Ăŵ��Z�� ĐŽŵŵŝƩĞĚ� ΨϯϬ� ŵŝůůŝŽŶ� ƚŽ� Ă� ŶĞǁ�
ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ŝŶ�ŝƚƐ�ƌĞĂů�ĞƐƚĂƚĞ�ĐĂƚĞŐŽƌǇ͘ 
 
�ŽŶĐůƵƐŝŽŶ 
 
tŝƚŚ� ƚŚĞ� ďĂĐŬĚƌŽƉ� ŽĨ� ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂůůǇ� ŵŽƌĞ� ĚŝǀĞƌŐĞŶƚ� ŐƌŽǁƚŚ� ƉƌŽƐƉĞĐƚƐ� ;ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� ƌĞƐƵůƟŶŐ�
ĚŝǀĞƌŐĞŶƚ� ƉŽůŝĐǇ� ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐͿ� ĂĐƌŽƐƐ� ƚŚĞ� ŐůŽďĞ͕� ^Ăŵ��Z�� ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞƐ� ƚŽ� ďĞ� ŵŝŶĚĨƵů� ŽĨ� ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�
ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂů�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ǀŽůĂƟůŝƚǇ�ĐĂƵƐĞĚ�ďǇ�Ă�ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂů�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ŵŝƐƐƚĞƉ͘� �DŽƌĞŽǀĞƌ͕�ŐŝǀĞŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǁĞ�ĂƌĞ�
ŵŽƐƚ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƚĞ�ƐƚĂŐĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ�ĐǇĐůĞ͕�ĂŶĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƌĞĐŽƌĚ�ŚŝŐŚ�ĞƋƵŝƚǇ�ƉƌŝĐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�
h͘^͕͘�ǁĞ�ďĞůŝĞǀĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ĞǆƚƌĞŵĞůǇ�ŝŵƉŽƌƚĂŶƚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŝƐŬƐ�ŽŶĞ�
ŝƐ� ƚĂŬŝŶŐ� ŝŶ� ŐĞŶĞƌĂƟŶŐ� ƚŚĞ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ� ƐƚƌĞĂŵ� ƚŚĞǇ� ĂƌĞ� ƌĞĐĞŝǀŝŶŐ� ĨƌŽŵ� ƚŚĞŝƌ� ƉŽƌƞŽůŝŽ͘� �tŝƚŚ� ƚŚĂƚ�
ƚŚŽƵŐŚƚ�ŝŶ�ŵŝŶĚ͕�^Ăŵ��Z��ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞƐ�ƚŽ�ĂĐƟǀĞůǇ�ƌĞďĂůĂŶĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽƌƞŽůŝŽ�ƚŽ�ŝƚƐ�ůŽŶŐ-ƚĞƌŵ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�
ĂƐƐĞƚ� ĂůůŽĐĂƟŽŶ� ǁĞŝŐŚƚƐ� ƚŽ� ŬĞĞƉ� Ă� ďĂůĂŶĐĞĚ� ƌŝƐŬ� ƉŽƐƚƵƌĞ� ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ� ƌĞůǇŝŶŐ� ƚŽŽ� ŵƵĐŚ� ŽŶ� ĂŶǇ�
ƐŝŶŐůĞ�ĂƐƐĞƚ͕�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ͕�Žƌ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ƐƚƌĞĂŵ͘�� 
 
 
ZĞƐƉĞĐƞƵůůǇ�^ƵďŵŝƩĞĚ͕ 

 
 
 
 

DŝĐŚĂĞů��ŽƵůƚƌŝƉ 
�ŚŝĞĨ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�KĸĐĞƌ 
^ĞƉƚĞŵďĞƌ�ϭϯ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

�ŚŝĞĨ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�KĸĐĞƌ͛Ɛ�ZĞƉŽƌƚ 



92  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

/Äò�ÝãÃ�Äã��ÊÄÝç½ã�Äã͛Ý�Z�ÖÊÙã�ÊÄ�/Äò�ÝãÃ�Äã���ã®ò®ã®�Ý 

/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ��ŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚ͛Ɛ�ZĞƉŽƌƚ�ŽŶ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ��ĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ 



/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  93 

/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ��ŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚ͛Ɛ�ZĞƉŽƌƚ�ŽŶ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ��ĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ 



94  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ��ŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚ͛Ɛ�ZĞƉŽƌƚ�ŽŶ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ��ĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ 



/ŶƚƌŽĚƵĐƚŽƌǇ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  95 

/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ��ŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚ͛Ɛ�ZĞƉŽƌƚ�ŽŶ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ��ĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ 



96  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

^ĂŶ� DĂƚĞŽ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ� �ŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͛� ZĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ� �ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ͛Ɛ� ;^Ăŵ��Z�Ϳ� /ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� WŽůŝĐǇ� ƐĞƚƐ�
ĨŽƌƚŚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŽĨ�ZĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ͛Ɛ�;ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚͿ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƉŚŝůŽƐŽƉŚǇ͕�ĨƌŽŵ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�
ĞǆƚƌĂĐƚƐ� ŚĂǀĞ� ďĞĞŶ� ĚƌĂǁŶ͘� dŚĞ� ĨƵůů� ƉŽůŝĐǇ� ŵĂǇ� ďĞ� ǀŝĞǁĞĚ� ŽŶ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ǁĞďƐŝƚĞ� Ăƚ�
ǁǁǁ͘ƐĂŵĐĞƌĂ͘ŽƌŐ͘ 
 
/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ��ĞůŝĞĨƐ 
dŚĞ� ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ� ƐƵŵŵĂƌŝǌĞƐ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ͛Ɛ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ďĞůŝĞĨƐ� ƚŚĂƚ� ŚĂǀĞ� ŐƵŝĚĞĚ� ŝƚ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ�
ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� /ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŝůů�ŐƵŝĚĞ� ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ�ŽǀĞƌƐŝŐŚƚ�ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂŶ�
ĂƐƐĞƚƐ͘ 
 
· ^ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ĂůůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŝŵĂƌǇ�ĚƌŝǀĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƉŽƌƞŽůŝŽ�ƌŝƐŬ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ͘ 

· ^Ăŵ��Z��ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă� ůŽŶŐ-ƚĞƌŵ�ŚŽƌŝǌŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞ�ƚĞŵƉƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĚĞǀŝĂƚĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ŝƚƐ� ůŽŶŐ-
ƚĞƌŵ�ƉůĂŶ�ŝŶ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ�ƚŽ�ƐŚŽƌƚ-ƚĞƌŵ�ǀŽůĂƟůŝƚǇ͘ 

· �ǀĞƌǇƚŚŝŶŐ�ĞůƐĞ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĞƋƵĂů͕�ƐŝŵƉůŝĐŝƚǇ�ŝƐ�ƉƌĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ŽǀĞƌ�ĐŽŵƉůĞǆŝƚǇ͘ 

· &Žƌ� ƚŚŽƐĞ� ĂƐƐĞƚ� ĐůĂƐƐĞƐ�ĞǀŝĚĞŶĐŝŶŐ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ� ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐŝĞƐ͕� ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌ� ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�ŵĂǇ� ĨĂǀŽƌ�
ƚŚĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƉĂƐƐŝǀĞ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĞƐ͘ 

· �ŝǀĞƌƐŝĮĐĂƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ĨƵŶĚĂŵĞŶƚĂů͘ 

· dŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ŶŽ�ƐŝŶŐůĞ�ĚĞĮŶŝƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƌŝƐŬ͘��dŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ�ŽĨ�͚ƌŝƐŬ͛�ƚŚĂƚ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�
ĨŽƌ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞƐ͘ 

· dŚĞ�ƉŽƌƞŽůŝŽ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĚŝǀĞƌƐŝĮĞĚ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ŵĂŶǇ�ƌŝƐŬ�ĚŝŵĞŶƐŝŽŶƐ�Žƌ�ƟŵĞĨƌĂŵĞƐ͘ 

· ^Ăŵ��Z��ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ŶŽƚ�ƉƵƌƐƵĞ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ� ƚŚĂƚ�ǁŝůů�ŶŽƚ�ĂĚĞƋƵĂƚĞůǇ� ĐŽŵƉĞŶƐĂƚĞ� ŝƚ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ�
ƌŝƐŬƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ďƌŝŶŐ͘ 

· �ŽƐƚƐ�ŵĂƩĞƌ͘ 
 
/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�KďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ 
dŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ƐŚĂůů�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉ�ĂŶ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵ͕�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ� /ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ��ĞůŝĞĨƐ�ĂŶĚ�
'ĞŶĞƌĂů�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�WŽůŝĐŝĞƐ�ŝŶ�ŽƌĚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ŽďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ͗ 
 
�͘ 'ĞŶĞƌĂƚĞ� ƌŝƐŬ-ĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐ� ƚŚĂƚ� ĞǆĐĞĞĚ� ƚŚĞ� �ƐƐĞƚ� �ůůŽĐĂƟŽŶ� WŽůŝĐǇ� �ĞŶĐŚŵĂƌŬ� ;ĂƐ�

ĚĞĮŶĞĚ�ŝŶ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ�ϲ͘Ϭ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�WŽůŝĐǇͿ�ŽŶ�Ă�ŶĞƚ-ŽĨ-ĨĞĞ�ďĂƐŝƐ�ŽǀĞƌ�ĮǀĞ-ǇĞĂƌ�ƌŽůůŝŶŐ�
ƉĞƌŝŽĚƐ͘ 

�͘ �ĐŚŝĞǀĞ� Ă� ĨƵŶĚ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶ� ƚŚĂƚ� ŵĞĞƚƐ� Žƌ� ĞǆĐĞĞĚƐ� ƚŚĞ� ůŽŶŐ-ƚĞƌŵ� ĨŽƌĞĐĂƐƚ� ŽĨ� ĐĂƉŝƚĂů� ŵĂƌŬĞƚ�
ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ĂůůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�ƉŽƌƞŽůŝŽ�ďĞŶĐŚŵĂƌŬ�ŽǀĞƌ�ŵƵůƟƉůĞ�ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ� ĐǇĐůĞƐ� ;Ğ͘Ő͕͘�
ϭϱ-ϮϬ�ǇĞĂƌƐͿ͘ 

/Äò�ÝãÃ�Äã�W«®½ÊÝÊÖ«ù͕�K�¹��ã®ò�Ý͕�WÊ½®�ù͕��Ä���½½Ê��ã®ÊÄ 

/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�WŚŝůŽƐŽƉŚǇ͕�KďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ͕�WŽůŝĐǇ͕�ĂŶĚ��ůůŽĐĂƟŽŶ 



/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  97 

�͘ WƌŽǀŝĚĞ�Ă�ŵŽƌĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚĞŶƚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ƐƚƌĞĂŵ�ƚŚĂŶ�Ă�ƚƌĂĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ϲϬй��ƋƵŝƚǇͬϰϬй�&ŝǆĞĚ�/ŶĐŽŵĞ�
ƉŽƌƞŽůŝŽ�ĂƐ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞĚ�ďǇ�ůŽǁĞƌ�ƉŽƌƞŽůŝŽ�ĚƌĂǁĚŽǁŶƐ�ŽǀĞƌ�Ă�ĨƵůů�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ�ĐǇĐůĞ͘ 

/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�WŽůŝĐǇ 

dŚĞ� /ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� WŽůŝĐǇ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ƉƵƌƐƵĞƐ� ĂŶ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ� ǁŚŝĐŚ� ƌĞĚƵĐĞƐ� ƌŝƐŬ�
ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌƵĚĞŶƚ�ĚŝǀĞƌƐŝĮĐĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽƌƞŽůŝŽ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�Ă�ďƌŽĂĚ�ƐĞůĞĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĚŝƐƟŶĐƚ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�
ĐůĂƐƐĞƐ͘��ŽŶƐŝƐƚĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ��ĞůŝĞĨƐ͕�ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ͛Ɛ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ŝƐ�ƚŽ͗ 
 
�͘ �ĐŚŝĞǀĞ�ůŽŶŐ-ƚĞƌŵ�ƌŝƐŬ-ĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŝƚƐ�ĮĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�ĚƵƚǇ͘ 

�͘ WƵƌƐƵĞ� ĂŶ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ� ƚŚĂƚ� ƌĞĚƵĐĞƐ� ƚŚĞ� ǀŽůĂƟůŝƚǇ� ŽĨ� ƌĞƚƵƌŶƐ� ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ� ƉƌƵĚĞŶƚ�
ĚŝǀĞƌƐŝĮĐĂƟŽŶ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ƉŽƌƞŽůŝŽ� ĂĐƌŽƐƐ� Ă� ďƌŽĂĚ� ƐĞůĞĐƟŽŶ� ŽĨ� ĚŝƐƟŶĐƚ� ĂƐƐĞƚ�
ĐůĂƐƐĞƐ͕�ĂƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ŝŶ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ�ϲ͘Ϭ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�WŽůŝĐǇ͘�� 

�͘ &ƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ĚŝǀĞƌƐŝĨǇ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƌŝƐŬƐ͕�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ĞǆƚƌĞŵĞ�ĞǀĞŶƚƐ͕�ůŝƋƵŝĚŝƚǇ͕�ĂŶĚ�ůĞǀĞƌĂŐĞ�ďǇ�ůŽŽŬŝŶŐ�
ďĞǇŽŶĚ�ƚƌĂĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ĐůĂƐƐ�ĚĞĮŶŝƟŽŶƐ�ďǇ�ƵƟůŝǌŝŶŐ�ŵƵůƟƉůĞ�ůĞŶƐĞƐ�ŽŶ�ƉŽƌƞŽůŝŽ�ƌŝƐŬƐ͘� 

�͘ �ĚŽƉƚ� ĂŶ� ĂƐƐĞƚ� ĂůůŽĐĂƟŽŶ� ƚĂƌŐĞƚ� ƚŽ� ŐƵŝĚĞ� ƚŚĞ� ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ƉŽƌƞŽůŝŽ͕� ĂƐ�
ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ŝŶ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ�ϲ͘Ϭ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�WŽůŝĐǇ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĞǀĂůƵĂƚĞ�ŽŶ�ĂŶ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ďĂƐŝƐ͘ 

�͘ ZĞĞǀĂůƵĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƐƐĞƚ-ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƐƚƵĚǇ�ĞǀĞƌǇ�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ƚŽ�ĮǀĞ�ǇĞĂƌƐ͘ 

&͘ �ĞůĞŐĂƚĞ� ĨƵůů� ĚŝƐĐƌĞƟŽŶ͕� ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ� ǁŚĞƚŚĞƌ� ƚŽ� ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ� ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚĂů͕� ƐŽĐŝĂů͕� ĂŶĚ�
ŐŽǀĞƌŶĂŶĐĞ� ĨĂĐƚŽƌƐ͕� ŝĨ� ƐƵĐŚ� ĨĂĐƚŽƌƐ� ŚĂǀĞ� Ă� ĚŝƌĞĐƚ� ƌĞůĂƟŽŶƐŚŝƉ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ� ĂŶĚ�
ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ǀĂůƵĞ� ŽĨ� ĂŶ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ͕� ǁŚĞŶ� ĂŶĂůǇǌŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ� ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ŵĞƌŝƚƐ� ŽĨ� ĐŽŵƉĞƟŶŐ�
ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ĐŚŽŝĐĞƐ� ŽŶ� ďĞŚĂůĨ� ŽĨ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͕� ƚŽ� ĞĂĐŚ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ĞǆƚĞŶƚ�
ĂƵƚŚŽƌŝǌĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ��ŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ͘ 

'͘ �ĚŽƉƚ�ŽďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ� ƚŚĂƚ� ĞŶĐŽƵƌĂŐĞ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌƐ� ƚŽ�ŵĂǆŝŵŝǌĞ� ƚŚĞŝƌ� ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ͕�
ǁŝƚŚŝŶ� ĂĐĐĞƉƚĂďůĞ� ƌŝƐŬ� ƉĂƌĂŵĞƚĞƌƐ͕� ƌĞůĂƟǀĞ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞŝƌ� ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ƐƚǇůĞ�
ďĞŶĐŚŵĂƌŬ͘ 

,͘ ZĞĨƌĂŝŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĚƌĂƐƟĐĂůůǇ�ƐŚŝŌŝŶŐ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ĐůĂƐƐ�ĂůůŽĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƐŚŽƌƚ�ƟŵĞ�ƐƉĂŶƐ͕�ƵŶůĞƐƐ�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ŝŶ�
ƚŚĞ�ĨƵŶĚ͛Ɛ�ďĞƐƚ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ƚŽ�ĚŽ�ƐŽ͘ 

/͘ ZĞďĂůĂŶĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽƌƞŽůŝŽ�ŝŶ�ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ZĞďĂůĂŶĐŝŶŐ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ƐĞƚ�ĨŽƌƚŚ�ŝŶ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ�ϳ͘Ϭ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�WŽůŝĐǇ͘ 

/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�WŚŝůŽƐŽƉŚǇ͕�KďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ͕�WŽůŝĐǇ͕�ĂŶĚ��ůůŽĐĂƟŽŶ 



98  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

/Äò�ÝãÃ�Äã�^çÃÃ�Ùù 

/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ 

dŚĞ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƐƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĨĂŝƌ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽƌƞŽůŝŽ͛Ɛ�ƚŽƚĂů�ĨĂŝƌ�
ǀĂůƵĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĞĂĐŚ�ŵĂũŽƌ�ƚǇƉĞ�ŽĨ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ͘ 

/Äò�ÝãÃ�Äã�^çÃÃ�Ùù 

June 30, 2019 

       Assets Under    
ASSET CLASS        Management Percentage 
Public Equity 1,847,846,613$   40.0%
Fixed Income 999,477,347         21.6%
Alternatives 579,774,460         12.5%
Risk Parity 389,039,081         8.4%
Inflation Hedge 809,138,278         17.5%
      Total Net Portfolio Value 4,625,275,779$   100.0%

RECONCILIATION TO STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
Total Net Portfolio Value 4,625,275,779$   
Cash Equivalents 81,517,010            
Receivables 23,340,848            
Prepaid Expense 11,669                    
Capital Assets, Net of  Depreciation 5,979,197              
Payables (13,014,568)          
      Fiduciary Net Position as of June 30, 2019 4,723,109,935$   



/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  99 

�ƵƌŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ� ĨŝƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ͕� ^Ăŵ��Z�� ĐŽŶƚŝŶƵĞĚ� ƚŽ�
ŵĂŬĞ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ�ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ĂůůŽĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�
ƚŚĂƚ�ǁĂƐ� ůĂƐƚ� ĂƉƉƌŽǀĞĚ� ďǇ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ƉƌŝŽƌ�
ĨŝƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ͛Ɛ� ĂƐƐĞƚ� ĂůůŽĐĂƚŝŽŶ� ƌĞǀŝĞǁ͘� ^Ăŵ��Z��
ĨƵŶĚĞĚ� ƚǁŽ� ŶĞǁ� ůŽǁ-ǀŽůĂƚŝůŝƚǇ� ĞƋƵŝƚǇ� ŵĂŶĚĂƚĞƐ�
ĂŶĚ� ŽŶĞ� ƉƵďůŝĐ� ƌĞĂů� ĂƐƐĞƚƐ� ŵĂŶĚĂƚĞ͕� ĂŶĚ� ĂůƐŽ�
ŵĂĚĞ�ĐŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ŽŶĞ�ŶĞǁ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�
ŝƚƐ� ĨŝǆĞĚ� ŝŶĐŽŵĞ�ĐĂƚĞŐŽƌǇ͘� � /ŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ůĂƐƚ� ƉŚĂƐĞ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ� ŚĞĚŐĞ� ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵ� ĨŽƌ�
ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂƚŝŽŶĂů�ĞƋƵŝƚǇ�ŝƐ�ĂŶƚŝĐŝƉĂƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�
ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ�ďǇ�^ĞƉƚĞŵďĞƌ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͘�� 
 
�Ɛ� ŽĨ� :ƵŶĞ� ϯϬ͕� ϮϬϭϵ͕� ƚŚĞ� ƚĂƌŐĞƚ� ĂƐƐĞƚ� ĂůůŽĐĂƚŝŽŶ�
ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞĚ� ŝŶƚŽ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� /ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� WŽůŝĐǇ�
ĂŶĚ� ĚĞƚĂŝůĞĚ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� /ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ^ĞĐƚŝŽŶ� ŽŶůǇ�
ƌĞĨůĞĐƚƐ�ĂŶ�͞ŝŶƚĞƌŝŵ͟�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ĂůůŽĐĂƚŝŽŶ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽƌƚŝŽŶ�
ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ŶĞǁůǇ� ĂĚŽƉƚĞĚ� ĂůůŽĐĂƚŝŽŶ� ƚŚĂƚ� ŚĂƐ� ĂůƌĞĂĚǇ�
ďĞĞŶ� ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĞĚ͘� �ƵĞ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ŵƵůƚŝ-ƉŚĂƐĞĚ�
ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ͕� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� /ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� WŽůŝĐǇ� ĚŽĞƐ� ŶŽƚ�
ĐĂƉƚƵƌĞ� ƚŚĞ� ŶĞǁ� ƚĂƌŐĞƚ� ƉŽůŝĐǇ� ƐŽ� ƚŚĂƚ� ƚŚĞ� ĂĐƚƵĂů�
ĂůůŽĐĂƚŝŽŶ� ĚŽĞƐ� ŶŽƚ� ƐŝŐŶŝĨŝĐĂŶƚůǇ� ĚĞǀŝĂƚĞ� ĨƌŽŵ�
ƉŽůŝĐǇ͘ 

�ƐƐĞƚ��ůůŽĐĂƟŽŶ 

�ÝÝ�ãÝ��½½Ê��ã®ÊÄ��Ý���W�Ù��Äã�¦��Ê¥�&�®Ù�s�½ç�� 

June 30, 2019 

�ÝÝ�ã��½½Ê��ã®ÊÄ 

EŽƚĞ͗�dŚĞ�ĂĐƚƵĂů�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ĂůůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�ĮŐƵƌĞƐ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƐĞĐƟŽŶ�ƌĞŇĞĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ�ĞǆƉŽƐƵƌĞ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ� ƉůĂŶ� ĂƐ� ŽĨ� ĮƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ-ĞŶĚ͕� ĂŶĚ� ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ� ƚŚĞ� ĂůůŽĐĂƟŽŶ� ĞīĞĐƚƐ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ĐĂƐŚ� ŽǀĞƌůĂǇ� ĂŶĚ� ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ� ŚĞĚŐĞ�
ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵƐ͘ � dŚĞƌĞ�ŵĂǇ�ďĞ�ĚŝīĞƌĞŶĐĞƐ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ� ƚŚĞƐĞ�ĮŐƵƌĞƐ�ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� ĨĂŝƌ� ǀĂůƵĞƐ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�EĞƚ�
&ŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�WŽƐŝƟŽŶ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ƟŵŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂůůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�ĞīĞĐƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐĂƐŚ�ŽǀĞƌůĂǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶĐǇ�ŚĞĚŐĞ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵƐ͘ 

Asset Class
Target 
Policy

Interim 
Policy  Actual

Public Equity 37% 41% 41.4%
Fixed Income 23% 21% 21.0%
Alternatives 12% 12% 11.4%
Risk Parity 8% 8% 8.3%
Inflation Hedge 20% 18% 17.4%
Cash Equivalents 0% 0% 0.5%
   Total 100% 100% 100.0%



100  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

�ƐƐĞƚ��ůůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�;/ŶƚĞƌŝŵ�WŽůŝĐǇ�ǀƐ͘��ĐƚƵĂůͿ 

Publ ic Equity
41%

Fixed Income
21%

Alternatives
12%

Risk Parity
8%

Inflation Hedge
18%

Asset Allocation (Interim Policy)
June 30, 2019

Publ ic Equity
41.4%

Fixed Income
21.0%

Alternatives
11.4%

Risk Parity
8.3%

Inflation Hedge
17.4%

Cash Equivalents
0.5%

Actual Asset Allocation 
June 30, 2019



/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  101 

W�Ù��Äã�Ê¥���ò®�ã®ÊÄ�¥ÙÊÃ��ÝÝ�ã��½½Ê��ã®ÊÄ 

:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

�ĞŶĐŚŵĂƌŬƐ 

��Ä�«Ã�Ù»Ý 

:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

0.4%

0.0%

-0.6%

0.3%

-0.6%

0.5%

-1.0%

-0.5%

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

Public Equity Fixed Income Alternatives Risk Parity Inflation Hedge Cash

Asset Class Policy Benchmark
PUBLIC EQUITY
    Domestic Equity 53.7% Russell 3000
    International Equity 32.4% Morgan Stanley Capital International ex-United States Investable Market

Indexes (MSCI ex-US IMI)
13.9% Morgan Stanley Capital International ex-United States Investable Market

Indexes (MSCI ex-US IMI) 100% Hedged

FIXED INCOME 
    Domestic Fixed Income 66.7% Bloomberg Barclays Aggregate (BBgBarc)
    Opportunistic Credit 33.3% BBgBarc Intermediate High Yield (HY)

ALTERNATIVES 

    Private Equity 50% Russell 3000 + 3% (1-quarter lag)
    Hedge Funds/Absolute Return 50% London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) + 4%

RISK PARITY 60% Morgan Stanley Capital International World
   40% BBgBarc Global Aggregate

INFLATION HEDGE
    Real Estate 44.44% National Council of Real Estate Investment Fiduciaries Open-End Diversified

Core Equity (NCREIF ODCE)

    Private Real Asset 11.11% Blend: 50% Standard & Poor (S&P) Global Large-MidCap Commodity and 
Resource + 50% S&P Global Infrastructure + 2% (1-quarter lag)

    Public Real Asset 11.12% Bloomberg Roll Select Commodity
11.11% Standard & Poor (S&P) Global Large-MidCap Commodity and Resource
11.11% S&P Global Infrastructure

   TIPS 11.11% Barclays Treasury Inflation Protected Securities (TIPS)

CASH EQUIVALENTS 91-day Treasury-Bills



102  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ�WŽƌƞŽůŝŽ�ZĞƚƵƌŶƐ 

^�«��ç½��Ê¥�ÖÊÙã¥Ê½®Ê�Ù�ãçÙÄÝ 

WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ĂƐ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕�EĞƚ�ŽĨ�&ĞĞƐ 

Asset Class One Year Three Years Five Years
PUBLIC EQUITY 4.8% 11.3% 6.8%

Public Equity Benchmark 5.0% 12.0% 6.9%
    Domestic Equity 7.5% 13.5% 9.5%
    Domestic Equity Benchmark 9.0% 14.1% 10.0%
    International Equity 1.7% 8.6% 2.7%
    International Equity Benchmark 0.4% 9.4% 2.6%

FIXED INCOME 6.7% 4.9% 3.6%
Fixed Income Benchmark 8.5% 3.5% 3.3%
    Core Fixed Income 6.9% 3.2% 3.2%
    Core Fixed Income Benchmark 7.9% 2.3% 2.9%
    Opportunistic Credit 6.3% 8.3% 5.4%
    Opportunistic Credit Benchmark 9.6% 6.3% 4.8%

ALTERNATIVES 4.6% 7.9% 6.1%
Alternatives Benchmark 9.5% 11.2% 6.7%
    Private Equity 14.6% 17.4% 16.1%
    Private Equity Benchmark 11.8% 15.5% 12.3%
    Hedge Funds/Absolute Return -5.9% -1.8% 2.2%
    Hedge Funds/Absolute Return Benchmark 6.4% 5.6% 5.1%

RISK PARITY 10.8% 7.1% 5.1%
Risk Parity Benchmark 7.3% 8.6% 7.0%

INFLATION HEDGE (1) 2.5% 5.0% *
Inflation Hedge Benchmark 4.8% 5.4% *

    Real Estate (2) 7.0% 7.7% 10.0%
    Real Estate Benchmark 6.4% 7.6% 9.8%

    Private Real Asset (3) -6.0% -3.1% *
    Private Real Asset Benchmark 7.6% 4.8% 5.0%

    Public Real Assets (4) -0.9% * *

    Public Real Assets Benchmark 1.1% 6.0% 5.7%

    TIPS (5) 4.3% 2.6% 1.6%

    TIPS Benchmark 4.8% 2.1% 1.8%

CASH EQUIVALENTS 1.3% 1.0% 1.0%
Cash Equivalents Benchmark 2.3% 1.4% 0.9%

TOTAL 5.4% 8.2% 5.7%
Policy Benchmark 6.7% 9.0% 6.1%

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

* Return information is not available.

Return calculations were prepared using a time-weighted rate of return, net of fees, in accordance with 
the Global Investment Performance Standards. 

Total Time-Weighted Rate of Return (6)

The creation of a dedicated Inflation Hedge asset class was effective April  1, 2016.
Prior to April  1, 2016, Real Estate assets were allocated to SamCERA's allocation to a dedicated Real 
Estate asset class.
Prior to April  1, 2016, Private Real Assets were allocated as part of SamCERA's allocation to Alternatives.

The dedicated Public Real Assets were funded October 2016.
Prior to April  1, 2016, TIPS assets were allocated as part of SamCERA's allocation to Fixed Income.



/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  103 

^�«��ç½��Ê¥�dÊÖ�d�Ä��Øç®ã®�Ý��;ϭͿ 

:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ�dŽƉ�dĞŶ��ƋƵŝƟĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�&ŝǆĞĚ�/ŶĐŽŵĞ�^ĞĐƵƌŝƟĞƐ 

^�«��ç½��Ê¥�dÊÖ�d�Ä�&®ø���/Ä�ÊÃ��^��çÙ®ã®�Ý�;ϭͿ 

:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

;ϭͿ��^ĞĐƵƌŝƟĞƐ�ŽǁŶĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĂĐƟǀĞ�ĐŽŵŵŝŶŐůĞĚ�ǀĞŚŝĐůĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞ͘����ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞ�ůŝƐƚ�ŽĨ�ƉŽƌƞŽůŝŽ�������
ŚŽůĚŝŶŐƐ�ŝŶ�^Ăŵ��Z��ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞůǇ�ŚĞůĚ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ�ŝƐ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ƵƉŽŶ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚ͘ 

;ϭͿ��^ĞĐƵƌŝƟĞƐ�ŽǁŶĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĂĐƟǀĞ�ĐŽŵŵŝŶŐůĞĚ�ǀĞŚŝĐůĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞ͘�� 

Shares Company Name          Fair Value
183,223 Microsoft Corp 19,129,514$    
104,804 Apple Inc 15,873,579      

9,416      Amazon 13,645,102      
578,671 UTD O/S Bank NPV 11,039,136      
307,585 AT&T Inc 8,999,687         

77,403    Johnson & Johnson 8,802,652         
134,803 Exxon Mobile Corp 8,596,313         

78,204    Chevron Corp 8,463,903         
164,368 Verizon Communications 8,126,751         

54,409    Facebook Inc 8,035,901         
       Total Top 10 Equities 110,712,538$  

Security Coupon Maturity       Fair Value
UNITED STATES TREAS NTS 1.750 4/30/2022 7,001,167$    
UNITED STATES TREAS NTS 2.375 8/15/2024 6,948,518      
UNITED STATES TREAS 2.250 2/15/2027 6,063,800      
UNITED STATES TREAS NTS 2.250 11/15/2025 5,382,861      
UNITED STATES TREAS BD 2.375 5/15/2027 4,780,734      
UNITED STATES TREAS NTS 2.250 12/31/2023 4,704,427      
FNMA CAP DEB ZERO CPN 0.000 10/9/2019 4,491,599      
UNITED STATES TREAS NTS 2.250 3/31/2021 4,399,436      
UNITED STATES TREAS NTS 2.125 8/15/2021 4,165,030      
UNITED STATES TREAS NTS 3.500 5/15/2020 4,051,593      

51,989,165$          Total Top 10 Fixed Income



104  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

>®Ýã�Ê¥�/Äò�ÝãÃ�Äã�Ã�Ä�¦�ÙÝ 

:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

>ŝƐƚ�ŽĨ�/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�DĂŶĂŐĞƌƐ 

GROWTH DIVERSIFYING
Domestic Equity Fixed Income
BlackRock BlackRock
DE Shaw Fidelity Institutional Asset Management
Quantitative Management Associates Western Asset Management
Acadian Asset Management
PanAgora Asset Management Absolute Return

Aberdeen Standard Investments
International Equity AQR Capital Management
Baillie Gifford
BlackRock INFLATION HEDGE
Mondrian Investment Partners Public Real Assets
Parametric Portfolio Associates State Street Global Advisors

Cushing Asset Management
Private Equity
ABRY Partners Real Estate
Angeles Equity Partners Invesco
Bernhard Capital Partners PGIM
Catalyst Fund
Cevian Capital Private Real Assets
Emergence Capital Partners Blue Road Capital
General Catalyst Partners CIM Group
Great Hill Partners EnCap Investments
JLL Partners EQT Fund Management
New Enterprise Associates EverStream Energy Capital Management
Oak Hill Advisors LS Power
Sycamore Partners Quantum Energy Partners
TCW Sheridan Production Partners 
Third Rock Ventures Taurus Funds Management
Warburg Pincus

TIPS
Opportunistic Credit Brown Brothers Harriman
Angelo Gordon
Beach Point Capital Management RISK PARITY
Brigade Capital Management AQR Capital Management
Franklin Templeton PanAgora Asset Management
PIMCO
Tennenbaum Capital Partners CASH OVERLAY AND CURRENCY HEDGE
White Oak Parametric Portfolio Associates



/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  105 

^�«��ç½��Ê¥�WÙÊ¥�ÝÝ®ÊÄ�½�^�Ùò®��Ý��Ä��&��Ý 

&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�&ŝƐĐĂů�zĞĂƌ��ŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

dÊÖ�ϭϬ��ÙÊ»�Ù��ÊÃÃ®ÝÝ®ÊÄÝ 

�ŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶ�ƉĞƌ�^ŚĂƌĞ�dƌĂĚĞĚ͕�&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�&ŝƐĐĂů�zĞĂƌ��ŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ�WƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂů�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�&ĞĞƐ 

Brokerage Firm
Amount of 

Commission
Number of 

Shares Traded
Commission 

per share

Macquarie Capital (USA) 36,752$         6,189,996      $0.006

BOFA Securities, Inc 35,960           1,273,422      0.028

Morgan Stanley & Co 32,054           801,346         0.040

RBC Capital Markets, LLC 28,421           5,148,574      0.006

National Financial Markets 25,014           637,539         0.039

Goldman Sachs & Co 21,950           12,274,364    0.002

Citigroup Global Markets Inc 18,526           4,058,150      0.005

Raymond James & Associates, Inc 18,281           457,025         0.040

JP Morgan Securities LLC/JPMC 13,354           581,256         0.023

Wells Fargo Clearing Services LLC 13,270           331,757         0.040

All Other Brokerage Firms 119,822         368,771,780 0.000

   Total 363,404$      400,525,209 

Management 
Fees Fair Value

ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT

Public Equity 3,812,278$     1,847,846,613$ 

Fixed Income 4,593,057       999,477,347      

Alternatives 5,489,954       579,774,460      

Risk Parity 1,310,294       389,039,081      

Inflation Hedge 5,805,281       809,138,278      

Cash Overlay and Currency Hedge 175,612           48,011,505         

      Total 21,186,476$   4,673,287,284$ 

OTHER INVESTMENT EXPENSES

Investment Consultant 483,797$        

Actuarial Consulting 94,500             

Master Custodian 330,000           

Other Professional Services 46,500             

      Total 954,797$        



 

 

dŚŝƐ�ƉĂŐĞ�ŝƐ�ŝŶƚĞŶƟŽŶĂůůǇ�ůĞŌ�ďůĂŶŬ͘ 



 

 

ACTUARIAL 

SECTION 



 

 



�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  109 

��ãç�Ùù͛Ý���Ùã®¥®��ã®ÊÄ 

�ĐƚƵĂƌǇ͛Ɛ��ĞƌƟĮĐĂƟŽŶ 



110  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

�ĐƚƵĂƌǇ͛Ɛ��ĞƌƟĮĐĂƟŽŶ 



�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  111 

�ĐƚƵĂƌǇ͛Ɛ��ĞƌƟĮĐĂƟŽŶ 



112  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

��ãç�Ù®�½�ò�½ç�ã®ÊÄ� 

 
/ŶƚƌŽĚƵĐƟŽŶ 

^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ� �ŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͛� ZĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ��ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ� ;^Ăŵ��Z�Ϳ� ŝƐ� Ă� ĐŽƐƚ-ƐŚĂƌŝŶŐ�ŵƵůƟƉůĞ-
ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ͕� ĚĞĮŶĞĚ� ďĞŶĞĮƚ� ƉůĂŶ� ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ� ďĂƐŝĐ� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ� ƌĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ͕� ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͕� ĂŶĚ� ƐƵƌǀŝǀŽƌ�
ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƉĂƌƟĐŝƉĂƟŶŐ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ͘��ĞƚĂŝůƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ƉůĂŶ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ� ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�
&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�EŽƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ�;EŽƚĞ�ϭͿ͘�WĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ�
ĂƌĞ� ďĂƐŝĐĂůůǇ� ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ� ďǇ� Ă� ĚĞĮŶĞĚ� ĨŽƌŵƵůĂ� ƵƐŝŶŐ� ĮŶĂů� ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ� ĐŽŵƉĞŶƐĂƟŽŶ͕� ǇĞĂƌƐ� ŽĨ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͕�ĂŶĚ�ĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ͘� 
 
&ƵŶĚŝŶŐ�WŽůŝĐǇ 

dŚĞ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ� �ŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͛� ZĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ� >Ăǁ� ŽĨ� ϭϵϯϳ� ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞƐ� ƚŚĞ� ďĂƐŝĐ� ŽďůŝŐĂƟŽŶƐ� ĨŽƌ�
ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ� ĂŶĚ� ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ� ƉůĂŶ͘� dŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ŽĨ� ZĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ;ƚŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚͿ� ŝƐ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ƉŽůŝĐǇ�ďǇ�ĂĚŽƉƟŶŐ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�
ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĞĚ�ďǇ�ŝƚƐ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌǇ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ůŝĂďŝůŝƟĞƐ͘��
dŚĞ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ� ƌĂƚĞƐ�ĂĚŽƉƚĞĚ�ďǇ� ƚŚĞ��ŽĂƌĚ�ĂƌĞ� ƐƵďƐĞƋƵĞŶƚůǇ� ƚƌĂŶƐŵŝƩĞĚ͕� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ĨŽƌŵ�ŽĨ�Ă�
ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂƟŽŶ͕�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ͛Ɛ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŽĨ�^ƵƉĞƌǀŝƐŽƌƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĂĚŽƉƟŽŶ͘�� 
 
dŚĞ� ƉĂƌƟĐŝƉĂƟŶŐ� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ� ĂŶĚ� ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ� ĂƌĞ� ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďůĞ� ĨŽƌ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŶŐ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ĐŽƐƚ� ŽĨ�
ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ� ĞĂĐŚ� ǇĞĂƌ� ;ĐŽŵŵŽŶůǇ� ŬŶŽǁŶ� ĂƐ� ŶŽƌŵĂů� ĐŽƐƚͿ͘� dŚĞ� ƉŽƌƟŽŶ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ŶŽƌŵĂů� ĐŽƐƚ� ŶŽƚ�
ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ďǇ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ� ŝƐ� ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ� ;ĐŽŵŵŽŶůǇ�ŬŶŽǁŶ�ĂƐ�
ƚŚĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ŶŽƌŵĂů�ĐŽƐƚͿ͘� 
 
dŚĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂůƐŽ� ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐŝďůĞ� ĨŽƌ� ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ƐŚŽƌƞĂůůƐ� ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ� ƚŽ�ĂĐĐƌƵĞĚ� ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ� ĨŽƌ�ƉĂƐƚ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĂƌŝƐŝŶŐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ� ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞŵŽŐƌĂƉŚŝĐ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ͘�dŚĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ͛�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ� ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ� ƚŚĞ� ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ� ƐŚŽƌƞĂůůƐ� ŝƐ� ĐŽŵŵŽŶůǇ� ŬŶŽǁŶ� ĂƐ� ƚŚĞ� hŶĨƵŶĚĞĚ� �ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�
�ĐĐƌƵĞĚ�>ŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�;h��>Ϳ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ͘� 
 
�ĞŐŝŶŶŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ� ƚŚĞ� :ƵŶĞ� ϯϬ͕� ϮϬϭϬ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů� ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶ͕� ƚŚĞ� ^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ�DŽƐƋƵŝƚŽ� ĂŶĚ�
sĞĐƚŽƌ� �ŽŶƚƌŽů� �ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ� ;ƚŚĞ� �ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚͿ� ĂĚŽƉƚĞĚ� ƚŚĞ� ƐĂŵĞ� ͞ĞŶŚĂŶĐĞĚ͟� ďĞŶĞĮƚ� ĨŽƌŵƵůĂ� ƚŚĂƚ�
ĂƉƉůŝĞƐ�ƚŽ�WůĂŶƐ�ϭ͕�Ϯ͕�ĂŶĚ�ϰ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�ŽĨ�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ�;ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇͿ�'ĞŶĞƌĂů�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�
ƐĂŵĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ƉĂŝĚ�ďǇ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ƉůĂŶƐ͘��ĞĐĂƵƐĞ� ƚŚĞ�
�ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ�ĚŽĞƐ�ŶŽƚ�ƉĂƌƟĐŝƉĂƚĞ� ŝŶ�ĐŽƐƚ�ƐŚĂƌŝŶŐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ƌĂƚĞƐ͕� ƚŚĞ��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ�ŚĂƐ�Ă�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞ�
ŶŽƌŵĂů�ĐŽƐƚ�ƌĂƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�'ĞŶĞƌĂů�'ƌŽƵƉ͘ 
 
sĂůƵĂƟŽŶ�KďũĞĐƟǀĞ 

dŚĞ�ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ƚŽ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�
;ĂƐ� Ă� ůĞǀĞů� ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ� ŽĨ� ƉĂǇƌŽůůͿ� ƚŚĂƚ� ĂƌĞ� ŶĞĞĚĞĚ� ƚŽ� ƉĂǇ� Ăůů� ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ� ĨƵƚƵƌĞ� ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ� ŶŽƚ�
ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ͘��ĞƚĂŝůƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƚĞŶ�ǇĞĂƌ�ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂůůǇ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�
ĂĐƚƵĂů�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ĨŽƵŶĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ZĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƌǇ�
/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ͘ 

�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�sĂůƵĂƟŽŶ 



�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  113 

sĂůƵĂƟŽŶ�WŽůŝĐǇ 

^Ăŵ��Z��ĞŶŐĂŐĞƐ�ĂŶ�ŝŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌǇ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƟŶŐ�Įƌŵ�ƚŽ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵ�ĂŶ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ� ƌĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ� ĨƵŶĚ� ĂƐ� ŽĨ� :ƵŶĞ� ϯϬ͘� dŚĞ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů� ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶ� ĐĂůĐƵůĂƚĞƐ� ƚŚĞ� ǀĂůƵĞ� ŽĨ� ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�
ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ͕� ĂƐƐĞƐƐĞƐ� ƚŚĞ� ĨƵŶĚĞĚ� ƐƚĂƚƵƐ͕� ĂŶĚ� ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞƐ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ� ƌĂƚĞƐ� ĨŽƌ� ƉĂƌƟĐŝƉĂƟŶŐ�
ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ͘�dŚĞ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌǇ�ĂƉƉůŝĞƐ�ƐƉĞĐŝĮĐ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ŵĞƚŚŽĚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�
ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ� ĂƐ� ĐůŽƐĞůǇ� ĂƐ� ƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ� ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ� ƚŽ� ŵĞĞƚ� ĨƵƚƵƌĞ� ďĞŶĞĮƚ� ŽďůŝŐĂƟŽŶƐ� ŝŶ�
ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ� ǁŝƚŚ� ƉƌĞǀĂŝůŝŶŐ� �ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů� ^ƚĂŶĚĂƌĚ� ŽĨ� WƌĂĐƟĐĞ͘� dŚĞ� ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĞĚ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�
ƌĂƚĞƐ͕�ĂŌĞƌ�ĂĚŽƉƟŽŶ͕�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƐƵďũĞĐƚ�ƚŽ�Ă�͞ŽŶĞ�ǇĞĂƌ͟�ĚĞĨĞƌƌĂů͘�dŚƵƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�
ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ�ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶ�ǁŝůů�ďĞĐŽŵĞ�ĞīĞĐƟǀĞ�ŽŶ�:ƵůǇ�ϭ͕�ϮϬϮϬ͘� 
 
/Ŷ� ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ� ĂŶŶƵĂů� ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶ͕� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌǇ� ƌĞǀŝĞǁƐ� ƚŚĞ� ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞŶĞƐƐ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ�
ĚĞŵŽŐƌĂƉŚŝĐ�ĂŶĚ�ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ�ĞǀĞƌǇ�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�;ĐŽŵŵŽŶůǇ�ƌĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂƐ�
ĂŶ��ǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ�^ƚƵĚǇͿ͘�dŚŝƐ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĐƚƵĂů�ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌĞĐĞĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚƌĞĞ�
ǇĞĂƌƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ�ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ�ĂĐĐŽƌĚŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ͘��ĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ͕�
ƚŚĞ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌǇ� ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚƐ� ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ĂƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ� Žƌ� ŵĞƚŚŽĚƐ� ƚŚĂƚ� ǁŝůů� ďĞƩĞƌ� ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�
ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ůŝĂďŝůŝƟĞƐ͘� 
 
�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů��ŽƐƚ�DĞƚŚŽĚ 

dŚĞ�ĞŶƚƌǇ�ĂŐĞ�ŶŽƌŵĂů�ĐŽƐƚ�ŵĞƚŚŽĚ� ŝƐ�ƵƐĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌǇ� ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶ͘�
hŶĚĞƌ� ƚŚŝƐ�ŵĞƚŚŽĚ͕� ƚŚĞ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů� ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ� ǀĂůƵĞ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ƉƌŽũĞĐƚĞĚ� ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ� ŽĨ� ĞĂĐŚ� ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů�
ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶ� ŝƐ� ĂůůŽĐĂƚĞĚ� ĂƐ� Ă� ůĞǀĞů� ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů� ƉƌŽũĞĐƚĞĚ�
ĐŽŵƉĞŶƐĂƟŽŶ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ĞŶƚƌǇ�ĂŐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ�ƌĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŐĞ͘�dŚĞ�ƉŽƌƟŽŶ�ŽĨ� ƚŚŝƐ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�
ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ĂůůŽĐĂƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶ�ǇĞĂƌ�ŝƐ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶůǇ�ĐĂůůĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŶŽƌŵĂů�ĐŽƐƚ�;ƚŚĞ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�
ǀĂůƵĞ�ŽĨ�ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ�ĂĐĐƌƵŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ�ǇĞĂƌͿ͘�dŚĞ�ƉŽƌƟŽŶ�ŶŽƚ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶ�
ĚĂƚĞ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚƐ�ƚŚĞ�h��>͘� 
 
dŚĞ�ĞŶƚƌǇ�ĂŐĞ�ŶŽƌŵĂů�ĐŽƐƚ�ŵĞƚŚŽĚ�ŝƐ�ƵƐĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ďŽƚŚ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞƐ͘�
&Žƌ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞƐ͕�ƚŚŝƐ�ŵĞƚŚŽĚ�ǁĂƐ�ƐĞůĞĐƚĞĚ�ďĞĐĂƵƐĞ�ŝƚ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ�Ă�ƌĞůĂƟǀĞůǇ� ůĞǀĞů�ŶŽƌŵĂů�
ĐŽƐƚ�ƌĂƚĞ�ĂƐ�Ă�ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƉĂǇ�;ĂƐƐƵŵŝŶŐ�ŶŽ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ�Žƌ�ďĞŶĞĮƚƐͿ�ĨƌŽŵ�ǇĞĂƌ�
ƚŽ� ǇĞĂƌ͘� &Žƌ�ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů� ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞƐ͕�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚĂů��ĐĐŽƵŶƟŶŐ� ^ƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ��ŽĂƌĚ� ;'�^�Ϳ�
^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�EŽ͘�ϲϳ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŵĞƚŚŽĚ�ďĞ�ƵƐĞĚ͘ 
 
�ĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ŽŶůǇ�ĚŝīĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ŝŶ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ�ŝƐ�
ƚŚĞ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶ͘�dŚĞ�ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ĨŽƌ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ� ŝƐ�ϲ͘ϱϬй͕�ŶĞƚ�
ŽĨ�ďŽƚŚ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟǀĞ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ͖�ǁŚĞƌĞĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ĨŽƌ�
ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ŝƐ�ϲ͘ϲϳй͕�ŶĞƚ�ŽĨ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�ŽŶůǇ͘�&Žƌ�ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞƐ͕�
'�^��^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ�EŽ͘�ϲϳ�ĂŶĚ�EŽ͘�ϲϴ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶ�ďĞ�ŐƌŽƐƐ�ŽĨ�
ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟǀĞ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ͘ 
 
�ŵŽƌƟǌĂƟŽŶ�DĞƚŚŽĚ� 

�ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ� ĂƌĞ� ŝŶŝƟĂůůǇ� ĂƉƉůŝĞĚ� ƚŽǁĂƌĚ� ƚŚĞ� ŶŽƌŵĂů� ĐŽƐƚ͘� �ǆĐĞƐƐ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ� ĂƌĞ� ĂƉƉůŝĞĚ�
ƚŽǁĂƌĚ�ƚŚĞ�h��>�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵŶĚ�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�ĨƵůůǇ�ĨƵŶĚĞĚ͘�dŚĞ�h��>�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĚŝīĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�

�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�DĞƚŚŽĚƐ�ĂŶĚ��ƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ 



114  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

ƚŚĞ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů� ĂĐĐƌƵĞĚ� ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ� ;��>Ϳ� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚĞ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů� ǀĂůƵĞ� ŽĨ� ĂƐƐĞƚƐ� ;�s�Ϳ͘� dŚĞ� h��>� ŝƐ�
ĂŵŽƌƟǌĞĚ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�͞>ĞǀĞů�WĞƌĐĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�WĂǇƌŽůů͟ �ĂŵŽƌƟǌĂƟŽŶ�ŵĞƚŚŽĚ͘� 
 
dŚĞ�h��>�ĂƐ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϬϴ͕�ŝƐ�ĂŵŽƌƟǌĞĚ�ŽǀĞƌ�Ă�ĐůŽƐĞĚ�ϭϱ-ǇĞĂƌ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ĂƐ�Ă�ůĞǀĞů�ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�
ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ƉƌŽũĞĐƚĞĚ� ƐĂůĂƌŝĞƐ� ŽĨ� ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ� ĂŶĚ� ĨƵƚƵƌĞ� ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ� ŽĨ� ^Ăŵ��Z�� ŽǀĞƌ� ƚŚĞ� ƌĞŵĂŝŶŝŶŐ�
ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶ�ĚĂƚĞ͘�dŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶůǇ�ƌĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂƐ�Ă�ĐůŽƐĞĚ�ĂŵŽƌƟǌĂƟŽŶ�ŵĞƚŚŽĚ͘�
�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ŐĂŝŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ůŽƐƐĞƐ�ĂŌĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϬϴ�ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶ�ĂƌĞ�ĂŵŽƌƟǌĞĚ�ŽǀĞƌ�ŶĞǁ�ĐůŽƐĞĚ�ϭϱ-
ǇĞĂƌ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ƌĞƐƉĞĐƟǀĞ�ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶ�ĚĂƚĞƐ͘ 
 
�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů��ƐƐĞƚ�sĂůƵĂƟŽŶ�DĞƚŚŽĚ 

dŚĞ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů� ĂƐƐĞƚ� ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶ�ŵĞƚŚŽĚ�ƵƐĞĚ� ŝƐ�Ă�ϱ-ǇĞĂƌ� ƐŵŽŽƚŚĞĚ� ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƟŽŶ�ŵĞƚŚŽĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�
ϮϬй�ĐŽƌƌŝĚŽƌ͘�dŚŝƐ�ŵĞƚŚŽĚ�ƚĂŬĞƐ�ŝŶƚŽ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ĂƉƉƌĞĐŝĂƟŽŶ�;Žƌ�ĚĞƉƌĞĐŝĂƟŽŶͿ�ŝŶ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�
ƐŵŽŽƚŚ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ǀĂůƵĞƐ�ďǇ�ĂǀĞƌĂŐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆĐĞƐƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĐƚƵĂů�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ŝŶĐŽŵĞ͕�ŽŶ�Ă�ĨĂŝƌ�
ǀĂůƵĞ�ďĂƐŝƐ͕�ŽǀĞƌ�Ă�ĮǀĞ�ǇĞĂƌ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͘�dŚĞ�ƐŵŽŽƚŚĞĚ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ŝƐ�ƐƵďũĞĐƚ�ƚŽ�Ă�ϮϬй�ĐŽƌƌŝĚŽƌ͕�Žƌ�
ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ϮϬй�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĐƚƵĂů�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ǀĂůƵĞ͘ 
 
�ůů�ĚĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ŐĂŝŶƐ�ĂŶĚ� ůŽƐƐĞƐ�ĂƌĞ� ĐŽŵďŝŶĞĚ� ŝŶƚŽ�Ă� ƐŝŶŐůĞ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ� ƚŽ�ďĞ� ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞĚ�ŽǀĞƌ�Ă�ϱ-
ǇĞĂƌ� ;ϭϬ� Ɛŝǆ-ŵŽŶƚŚͿ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͘�'ĂŝŶƐ�Žƌ� ůŽƐƐĞƐ�ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ǁŝůů� ďĞ�ƵƐĞĚ� ƚŽ�ŽīƐĞƚ� ĂŶǇ�
ƵŶƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞĚ�ŐĂŝŶƐ�Žƌ�ůŽƐƐĞƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƉƌŝŽƌ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚƐ͕�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƚĞŶƚ�ƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ͕�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƌĚĞƌ�ŽĨ�ŽůĚĞƐƚ�
ƚŽ�ŵŽƐƚ�ƌĞĐĞŶƚ͘��ŶǇ�ƌĞŵĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ŐĂŝŶ�Žƌ�ůŽƐƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ŝƐ�ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞĚ�ŽǀĞƌ�Ă�ϱ-ǇĞĂƌ�;ϭϬ�Ɛŝǆ-
ŵŽŶƚŚͿ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͘� 
 
�ƐƐĞƚƐ� ƵƐĞĚ� ƚŽ� ĐĂůĐƵůĂƚĞ� ƚŚĞ� ƉƌĞůŝŵŝŶĂƌǇ�h��>� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ� ƌĂƚĞƐ� ĞǆĐůƵĚĞ� ƚŚĞ� ǀĂůƵĞƐ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ�
�ŽƵŶƚǇ�^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ��ĐĐŽƵŶƚ�;�^��Ϳ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ�^ƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�
�ĐĐŽƵŶƚ� ;�^��Ϳ͘� �ĂůĂŶĐĞƐ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞƐĞ� ƚǁŽ� ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚƐ� ĂƌĞ� ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞůǇ� ƚƌĂĐŬĞĚ� ĂŶĚ� ƐǇƐƚĞŵĂƟĐĂůůǇ�
ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞĚ� ƚŽ� ƌĞĚƵĐĞ� ƚŚĞ�ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞƐ͘�dŚĞ�ďĂůĂŶĐĞ� ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��^��� ŝƐ�ĂŵŽƌƟǌĞĚ�
ƵƐŝŶŐ�Ă�ƐŝŵŝůĂƌ�ĐůŽƐĞĚ�ĂŵŽƌƟǌĂƟŽŶ�ŵĞƚŚŽĚ�ĚĞƐĐƌŝďĞĚ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ƚŽ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŽīƐĞƚ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ�
ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ� ƚŚĞ� �ŽƵŶƚǇ͛Ɛ� h��>� ƌĂƚĞ͘� dŚĞ� ďĂůĂŶĐĞ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� �^��� ŝƐ� ĂŵŽƌƟǌĞĚ� ŽǀĞƌ� ĮǀĞ� ǇĞĂƌƐ�
ĞīĞĐƟǀĞ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϴ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŽīƐĞƚ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚƐ�ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ͛Ɛ�h��>�ƌĂƚĞ͘��ŶǇ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�
ůĂǇĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂŵŽƌƟǌĞĚ�ŽǀĞƌ�ŶĞǁ�ĮǀĞ-ǇĞĂƌ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů��^���ŽīƐĞƚ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ŝŶ�Ă�ŐŝǀĞŶ�
ǇĞĂƌ�ŝƐ�ůŝŵŝƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ͛Ɛ�h��>�ƌĂƚĞ͘ 
 
�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů��ƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ 

dŚĞ� ĂŶŶƵĂů� ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶ� ƵƐĞƐ� ƚǁŽ� ƐĞƚƐ� ŽĨ� ĂƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ͗� ĞĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ� ĂŶĚ� ĚĞŵŽŐƌĂƉŚŝĐ͘� dŚĞ�
ĂƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ� ƐĞůĞĐƚĞĚ� ĂƌĞ� ƵƐĞĚ� ƚŽ� ĞƐƟŵĂƚĞ� ƚŚĞ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů� ĐŽƐƚ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ� ƉůĂŶ� ĂŶĚ� ƚŽ�
ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ�ŶĞĐĞƐƐĂƌǇ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ͘�� 
 
· �ĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ� ĂƌĞ� ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ� ĞǀĂůƵĂƚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ� ƌĞǀŝƐĞĚ�ĂŶŶƵĂůůǇ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ� ƚŚĞ� ůĂƚĞƐƚ�

ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ͘� 
 
· �ĞŵŽŐƌĂƉŚŝĐ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ�ƵƟůŝǌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƚĞƐƚ��ǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ�^ƚƵĚǇ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�

ĂƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ� ǁŝůů� ŶĞǆƚ� ďĞ� ƌĞĂƐƐĞƐƐĞĚ� ŝŶ� ĚĞƚĂŝů� ŝŶ� ǇĞĂƌ� ϮϬϮϬ� ĂƐ� ƉĂƌƚ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ƚƌŝĞŶŶŝĂů�
ŝŶǀĞƐƟŐĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŝƐ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶůǇ�ŬŶŽǁŶ�ĂƐ��ǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ�^ƚƵĚǇ͘ 

 

�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�DĞƚŚŽĚƐ�ĂŶĚ��ƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ 



�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  115 

dŚĞ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌǇ� ĂůƐŽ� ƵƐĞƐ� ƚŚĞƐĞ� ĂƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ� ƚŽ� ĞƐƟŵĂƚĞ� ƚŚĞ� ĨƵƚƵƌĞ� ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ� ŽĨ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�
ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ� ĂŶĚ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐƐ� ŝŶ� ĂƌĞĂƐ� ƚŚĂƚ�ŵĂǇ� ĂīĞĐƚ� ƚŚĞ� ƉƌŽũĞĐƚĞĚ� ďĞŶĞĮƚ� ŇŽǁ� ĂŶĚ�
ĂŶƟĐŝƉĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐƐ͘��ŶǇ�ǀĂƌŝĂƟŽŶƐ�ŝŶ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ�
ǁŝůů�ƌĞƐƵůƚ�ŝŶ�ĐŽƌƌĞƐƉŽŶĚŝŶŐ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĞƐƟŵĂƚĞĚ�ĐŽƐƚƐ�ŽĨ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ͘� 
 
/Ŷ� :ƵůǇ� ϮϬϭϵ͕� ƚŚĞ� �ŽĂƌĚ� ĂĐĐĞƉƚĞĚ� ƚŚĞ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌǇ͛Ɛ� ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂƟŽŶ� ƌĞĚƵĐŝŶŐ� ƚŚĞ� ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�
ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ϲ͘ϱϬй�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ�ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶ͕�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ϲ͘ϳϱй�ƵƐĞĚ�ŝŶ�
ƚŚĞ� :ƵŶĞ� ϯϬ͕� ϮϬϭϴ� ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶ͘� dŚŝƐ� ĐŚĂŶŐĞ� ĐĂƵƐĞĚ� ĂŶ� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ� ŽĨ� Ψϭϳϰ� ŵŝůůŝŽŶ� ŝŶ� h��>͕� ĂŶ�
ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ� ŽĨ� ϯ͘ϳϮй� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ� ƌĂƚĞ� ĞīĞĐƟǀĞ� :ƵůǇ� ϭ͕� ϮϬϮϬ͘� dŚŝƐ� ĐŚĂŶŐĞ�ǁĂƐ��
ĂůƐŽ�Ă�ŬĞǇ�ĚƌŝǀŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌĐĞ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ϭ͘ϳй�ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ƌĂƟŽ�ĨƌŽŵ�ϴϳ͘ϱй�Ăƚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϴ�ƚŽ�
ϴϱ͘ϴй�Ăƚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͘� 
 
<ĞǇ��ĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ��ƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ 

'ĞŶĞƌĂů�tĂŐĞ�/ŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ͘�dŚĞ�ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ�ƌĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ǁĂŐĞ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞƐ�ŝƐ�ϯ͘ϬϬй͘ 
 
/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ZĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�ZĞƚƵƌŶ͘�dŚĞ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐƐ�ŽĨ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂĐĐƌƵĞĚ�
Ăƚ�ĂŶ�ĂŶŶƵĂů� ƌĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�ϲ͘ϱϬй�ĐŽŵƉŽƵŶĚĞĚ�ĂŶŶƵĂůůǇ� ;ϯ͘Ϯϱй�ƉĞƌ�Ɛŝǆ-ŵŽŶƚŚ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚͿ͕�ŶĞƚ�ŽĨ�ďŽƚŚ�
ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟǀĞ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ͘� 
 
'ƌŽǁƚŚ�ŝŶ��ĐƚŝǀĞ�DĞŵďĞƌƐŚŝƉ͘�dŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚĞĚ�ŐƌŽǁƚŚ�ŝƐ�Ϭ͘ϬϬй͘� 
 
�ŽŶƐƵŵĞƌ�WƌŝĐĞ� /ŶĚĞǆ� /ŶĨůĂƚŝŽŶ�ZĂƚĞ͘�dŚĞ�ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ�ƌĂƚĞ�ŽĨ� ŝŶŇĂƟŽŶ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ�ϮϬϭϵ�ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶ� ŝƐ�
Ϯ͘ϱϬй͘ 
 
<ĞǇ��ĞŵŽŐƌĂƉŚŝĐ��ƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ 

^ĂůĂƌǇ�/ŶĐƌĞĂƐĞƐ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘�dŚĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚĞĚ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂůĂƌǇ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ĚƵĞ�
ƚŽ�ƉƌŽŵŽƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ůŽŶŐĞǀŝƚǇ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǀĂƌŝĞƐ�ĚĞƉĞŶĚŝŶŐ�ŽŶ�Ă�ŵĞŵďĞƌ͛Ɛ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŽĨ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͕�ĂĚũƵƐƚĞĚ�
ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ�ϯй�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ǁĂŐĞ͘ 
 
ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ͘�dŚĞ�ƌĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ǀĂƌǇ�ďǇ�ĂŐĞ͘��ůů�'ĞŶĞƌĂů�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�Ăƚ�ĂŐĞ�ϳϱ�ĂŶĚ�Ăůů�^ĂĨĞƚǇ�
ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�Ăƚ�ϲϱ�ĂƌĞ�ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƟƌĞ�ŝŵŵĞĚŝĂƚĞůǇ͘��ĚĚŝƟŽŶĂůůǇ͕�ǁŚĞŶ�Ă�ŵĞŵďĞƌ͛Ɛ�ďĞŶĞĮƚ�ŝƐ�
ĞƋƵĂů� ƚŽ� Žƌ� ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌ� ƚŚĂŶ� ƚŚĞ� ϭϬϬй� ŽĨ� ĐŽŵƉĞŶƐĂƟŽŶ� ůŝŵŝƚ͕� ƚŚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ� ŝƐ� ĂůƐŽ� ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ� ƚŽ�
ƌĞƟƌĞ�ŝŵŵĞĚŝĂƚĞůǇ͘�� 
 
DŽƌƚĂůŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ��ĐƚŝǀĞ��ĂŶĚ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ZĞƚŝƌĞĚ�DĞŵďĞƌƐ� 
· DŽƌƚĂůŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ�ĂĐƟǀĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ƉƌŝŽƌ�ƚŽ�ƚĞƌŵŝŶĂƟŽŶ͘�hƐĞ�ZW-ϮϬϭϰ��ŵƉůŽǇĞĞ�DŽƌƚĂůŝƚǇ�dĂďůĞ�

ĨŽƌ� ƌĞƐƉĞĐƟǀĞ� ŐĞŶĚĞƌƐ� ǁŝƚŚ� DW-ϮϬϭϰ� hůƟŵĂƚĞ� WƌŽũĞĐƟŽŶ� ^ĐĂůĞ� ;ĂĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ĨĂĐƚŽƌ� ŝƐ�
ϭϬϬйͿ͘ 

· DŽƌƚĂůŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ�ĂĐƟǀĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂŌĞƌ�ƚĞƌŵŝŶĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƌĞƟƌĞĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ͘�hƐĞ�ZWϮϬϭϰ-
,ĞĂůƚŚǇ� �ŶŶƵŝƚĂŶƚ� DŽƌƚĂůŝƚǇ� dĂďůĞ� ĨŽƌ� ƌĞƐƉĞĐƟǀĞ� ŐĞŶĚĞƌƐ� ǁŝƚŚ� DW-ϮϬϭϰ� hůƟŵĂƚĞ�
WƌŽũĞĐƟŽŶ�^ĐĂůĞ�;ĂĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ĨĂĐƚŽƌ�ŝƐ�ϵϱйͿ͘ 

�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�DĞƚŚŽĚƐ�ĂŶĚ��ƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ 



116  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

DŽƌƚĂůŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ��ŝƐĂďůĞĚ�DĞŵďĞƌƐ 
· hƐĞ�ZW-ϮϬϭϰ�,ĞĂůƚŚǇ��ŶŶƵŝƚĂŶƚ�ĂŶĚ��ŝƐĂďůĞĚ�DŽƌƚĂůŝƚǇ�dĂďůĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƌĞƐƉĞĐƟǀĞ�ŐĞŶĚĞƌƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�

DW-ϮϬϭϰ� hůƟŵĂƚĞ� WƌŽũĞĐƟŽŶ� ^ĐĂůĞ� ;ĂĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ĨĂĐƚŽƌ� ŝƐ� ϵϱй� ĨŽƌ� ,ĞĂůƚŚǇ� ĂŶĚ� ϭϬϱй� ĨŽƌ�
�ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇͿ͘ 

DŽƌƚĂůŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ��ĞŶĞĨŝĐŝĂƌŝĞƐ 
· �ĞŶĞĮĐŝĂƌŝĞƐ� ĂƌĞ� ĂƐƐƵŵĞĚ� ƚŽ� ďĞ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ŽƉƉŽƐŝƚĞ� ƐĞǆ� ĂŶĚ� ŚĂǀĞ� ƚŚĞ� ƐĂŵĞ� ŵŽƌƚĂůŝƚǇ� ĂƐ�

'ĞŶĞƌĂů�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�;ĂĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ĨĂĐƚŽƌ�ŝƐ�ϭϬϱйͿ͘ 

^ĞƉĂƌĂƚŝŽŶ� ĨƌŽŵ� �ĐƚŝǀĞ� ^ƚĂƚƵƐ͘� dŚĞ� ƉƌŽďĂďŝůŝƟĞƐ� ŽĨ� ƚĞƌŵŝŶĂƟŽŶ� ŽĨ� ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ� ĚƵĞ� ƚŽ� ƚŚĞ�
ĐĂƵƐĞƐ� ƐƚĂƚĞĚ� ďĞůŽǁ� ĂƌĞ� ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ� ŽŶ� ƉĂŐĞƐ� ϭϭϴ-ϭϭϵ͘� �ĂĐŚ� ƌĂƚĞ� ƐŚŽǁŶ� ŽŶ� ƚŚĞƐĞ� ƉĂŐĞƐ�
ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚƐ� ƚŚĞ� ƉƌŽďĂďŝůŝƚǇ� ƚŚĂƚ� Ă� ŵĞŵďĞƌ� ǁŝůů� ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞ� ĨƌŽŵ� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ� Ăƚ� ĞĂĐŚ� ĂŐĞ� ĚƵĞ� ƚŽ� Ă�
ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶ͘�&Žƌ�ĞǆĂŵƉůĞ͕�Ă�ƌĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�Ϭ͘ϬϯϬϬ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ŵĞŵďĞƌ͛Ɛ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƌĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ�Ăƚ�ĂŐĞ�ϱϬ�
ĂƐƐƵŵĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ϯϬ�ŽƵƚ�ŽĨ�ϭ͕ϬϬϬ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ǁŚŽ�ĂƌĞ�ĂŐĞ�ϱϬ�ǁŝůů�ƌĞƟƌĞ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂŐĞ͘ 

^ĞƉĂƌĂƟŽŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĂĐƟǀĞ�ƐƚĂƚƵƐ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ŽŶĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶƐ͗ 
 
· ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ� ƌĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ͗� DĞŵďĞƌ� ƌĞƟƌĞƐ� ĂŌĞƌ� ŵĞĞƟŶŐ� ĂŐĞ� ĂŶĚ� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ� ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ� ĨŽƌ�

ƌĞĂƐŽŶƐ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͘ 

· �ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ� ǁŝƚŚĚƌĂǁĂů͗� DĞŵďĞƌ� ƚĞƌŵŝŶĂƚĞƐ� ĂŶĚ� ĞůĞĐƚƐ� Ă� ƌĞĨƵŶĚ� ŽĨ� ŵĞŵďĞƌ�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ͕�Žƌ�Ă�ĚĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ǀĞƐƚĞĚ�ƌĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ďĞŶĞĮƚ͘ 

· ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͗�DĞŵďĞƌ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞƐ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƌĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ͖�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŝƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ͘ 

· KƌĚŝŶĂƌǇ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͗�DĞŵďĞƌ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞƐ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƌĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ͖�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ͘ 

· ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĚĞĂƚŚ͗�DĞŵďĞƌ�ĚŝĞƐ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�ƌĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ͖�ĚĞĂƚŚ�ŝƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ͘ 

· KƌĚŝŶĂƌǇ�ĚĞĂƚŚ͗�DĞŵďĞƌ�ĚŝĞƐ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�ƌĞƟƌĞŵĞŶƚ͖�ĚĞĂƚŚ�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ͘ 

 

�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�DĞƚŚŽĚƐ�ĂŶĚ��ƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ 



�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  117 

��ãç�Ù®�½�D�ã«Ê�Ý��Ä���ÝÝçÃÖã®ÊÄÝ�;&ÊÙ�&çÄ�®Ä¦�WçÙÖÊÝ�ÝͿ 

�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�DĞƚŚŽĚƐ�ĂŶĚ��ƐƐƵŵƉƟŽŶƐ 

VALUATION DATE June 30, 2019
ACTUARIAL COST METHOD Entry Age Normal Cost 
ACTUARIAL EXPERIENCE STUDY July 1, 2014 to April 30, 2017
AMORTIZATION METHOD Level percentage of projected payroll

AMORTIZATION PERIOD UAAL as of June 30, 2008, is amortized over a closed 15-
year period ending June 30, 2023. Subsequent changes
in the UAAL are amortized over separate closed 15-
year layers that are determined annually.

ASSET VALUATION METHOD 5-year smoothed recognition of asset gains and losses
(determined as the difference of the actual fair value
to the expected fair value), which cannot vary more
than 20% from the fair value.

ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
Economic assumptions:

General wage increases 3.00%
Investment rate of return 6.50%
Growth in Active membership 0.00%
Inflation rate (CPI) 2.50%

Demographic assumptions:
Salary increases due to service The total expected increase in salary represents the

increase due to promotions and longevity, adjusted
for an assumed 3.00% per annum increase in the
general wage. The total result is compounded rather
than additive.

Mortality Rates are based on appropriate RP-2014 Mortality
Tables for respective genders with MP-2014 Ultimate
Projection Scale. See the valuation report as of June
30, 2019, for details.

Retirement See the valuation report as of June 30, 2019, for details.
Disability See the valuation report as of June 30, 2019, for details.
Other terminations of employment See the valuation report as of June 30, 2019, for details.
Refund of contributions on vested termination See the valuation report as of June 30, 2019, for details.

Note: The actuarial methods and assumptions were selected by the Retirement Board with the recommendation of the 
actuary.



118  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

Z�ã��Ê¥�^�Ö�Ù�ã®ÊÄ�¥ÙÊÃ���ã®ò��^�Ùò®��� 

ZĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�^ĞƉĂƌĂƟŽŶ�ĨƌŽŵ��ĐƟǀĞ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ 

Years of Other Terminations Disability Death while Active Service
Service Ordinary Vested Age Ordinary Service Ordinary Service Retirement

General Plan 1, 2 & 4 Male Members
0 0.1300 0.0000 20 0.0002 0.0004 0.0004 0.0000 0.0000
5 0.0222 0.0411 30 0.0003 0.0006 0.0005 0.0000 0.0000

10 0.0136 0.0274 40 0.0007 0.0012 0.0006 0.0000 0.0000
15 0.0086 0.0204 50 0.0011 0.0021 0.0017 0.0000 0.0300
20 0.0038 0.0152 60 0.0016 0.0029 0.0047 0.0000 0.1500

30 & Above 0.0000 0.0000 75 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 1.0000
General Plan 1, 2 & 4 Female Members

0 0.1300 0.0000 20 0.0003 0.0005 0.0002 0.0000 0.0000
5 0.0245 0.0455 30 0.0003 0.0006 0.0002 0.0000 0.0000

10 0.0149 0.0301 40 0.0007 0.0014 0.0004 0.0000 0.0000
15 0.0095 0.0225 50 0.0016 0.0030 0.0011 0.0000 0.0300
20 0.0042 0.0168 60 0.0026 0.0048 0.0024 0.0000 0.1500

30 & Above 0.0000 0.0000 75 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 1.0000
General Plan 3 Male Members

0 0.1300 0.0000 20 0.0000 0.0000 0.0004 0.0000 0.0000
5 0.0222 0.0411 30 0.0000 0.0000 0.0005 0.0000 0.0000

10 0.0136 0.0274 40 0.0000 0.0000 0.0006 0.0000 0.0000
15 0.0086 0.0204 50 0.0000 0.0000 0.0017 0.0000 0.0000
20 0.0038 0.0152 60 0.0000 0.0000 0.0047 0.0000 0.0300

30 & Above 0.0000 0.0000 75 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 1.0000
General Plan 3 Female Members

0 0.1300 0.0000 20 0.0000 0.0000 0.0002 0.0000 0.0000
5 0.0245 0.0455 30 0.0000 0.0000 0.0002 0.0000 0.0000

10 0.0149 0.0301 40 0.0000 0.0000 0.0004 0.0000 0.0000
15 0.0095 0.0225 50 0.0000 0.0000 0.0011 0.0000 0.0000
20 0.0042 0.0168 60 0.0000 0.0000 0.0024 0.0000 0.0400

30 & Above 0.0000 0.0000 75 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 1.0000
General Plan 5 & 7 Male Members

0 0.1300 0.0000 20 0.0002 0.0004 0.0004 0.0000 0.0000
5 0.0222 0.0411 30 0.0003 0.0006 0.0005 0.0000 0.0000

10 0.0136 0.0274 40 0.0007 0.0012 0.0006 0.0000 0.0000
15 0.0086 0.0204 50 0.0011 0.0021 0.0017 0.0000 0.0270
20 0.0038 0.0152 60 0.0016 0.0029 0.0047 0.0000 0.1350

30 & Above 0.0000 0.0000 75 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 1.0000



�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  119 

Z�ã��Ê¥�^�Ö�Ù�ã®ÊÄ�¥ÙÊÃ���ã®ò��^�Ùò®����;�ÊÄã®Äç��Ϳ 

ZĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�^ĞƉĂƌĂƟŽŶ�ĨƌŽŵ��ĐƟǀĞ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ 

Years of Other Terminations Disability Death while Active Service
Service Ordinary Vested Age Ordinary Service Ordinary Service Retirement

General Plan 5 & 7 Female Members
0 0.1300 0.0000 20 0.0003 0.0005 0.0002 0.0000 0.0000
5 0.0245 0.0455 30 0.0003 0.0006 0.0002 0.0000 0.0000

10 0.0149 0.0301 40 0.0007 0.0014 0.0004 0.0000 0.0000
15 0.0095 0.0225 50 0.0016 0.0030 0.0011 0.0000 0.0270
20 0.0042 0.0168 60 0.0026 0.0048 0.0024 0.0000 0.1350

30 & Above 0.0000 0.0000 75 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 1.0000
Safety and Probation Plan 1, 2 & 4 Male Members

0 0.0700 0.0000 20 0.0000 0.0015 0.0004 0.0010 0.0000
5 0.0084 0.0156 30 0.0000 0.0018 0.0005 0.0010 0.0000

10 0.0047 0.0116 40 0.0000 0.0028 0.0006 0.0010 0.0000
15 0.0018 0.0092 50 0.0000 0.0077 0.0017 0.0010 0.1500

20 & Above 0.0000 0.0000 65 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 1.0000
70 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 1.0000

Safety and Probation Plan 1, 2 & 4 Female Members
0 0.0700 0.0000 20 0.0000 0.0015 0.0002 0.0010 0.0000
5 0.0084 0.0156 30 0.0000 0.0018 0.0002 0.0010 0.0000

10 0.0047 0.0116 40 0.0000 0.0028 0.0004 0.0010 0.0000
15 0.0018 0.0092 50 0.0000 0.0077 0.0011 0.0010 0.1500

20 & Above 0.0000 0.0000 65 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 1.0000
Safety and Probation Plan 5, 6 & 7 Male Members

0 0.0700 0.0000 20 0.0000 0.0015 0.0004 0.0010 0.0000
5 0.0084 0.0156 30 0.0000 0.0018 0.0005 0.0010 0.0000

10 0.0047 0.0116 40 0.0000 0.0028 0.0006 0.0010 0.0000
15 0.0018 0.0092 50 0.0000 0.0077 0.0017 0.0010 0.0500

20 & Above 0.0000 0.0000 65 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 1.0000
Safety and Probation Plan 5, 6 & 7 Female Members

0 0.0700 0.0000 20 0.0000 0.0015 0.0002 0.0010 0.0000
5 0.0084 0.0156 30 0.0000 0.0018 0.0002 0.0010 0.0000

10 0.0047 0.0116 40 0.0000 0.0028 0.0004 0.0010 0.0000
15 0.0018 0.0092 50 0.0000 0.0077 0.0011 0.0010 0.0500

20 & Above 0.0000 0.0000 65 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 1.0000



120  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

^çÃÃ�Ùù�Ê¥�^®¦Ä®¥®��Äã���ãç�Ù®�½�^ã�ã®Ýã®�Ý��Ä��D��ÝçÙ�Ý 

^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�^ŝŐŶŝĮĐĂŶƚ��ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�^ƚĂƟƐƟĐƐ�ĂŶĚ�DĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ 

Relative
June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 Change

ACTIVE MEMBERS
Number of Members 5,377                   5,367                   0.2%              
Average Age 45.1                     45.1                     -                 
Average Credited Service 10.4                     10.6                     (1.9)%            
Total Active Payroll ($ in Thousands) $554,734 $535,938 3.5%              
Average Monthly Salary $8,873 $8,407 5.5%              

RETIRED MEMBERS
Number of Members
  Service Retirement 4,133 4,002 3.3%              
  Disability Retirement 487 472 3.2%              
  Beneficiaries 605 635 (4.7)%            
Average Age 71.2                     71.2                     -                 
Actual Retiree Benefits Paid ($ in Thousands) $223,614 $204,729 9.2%              
Average Monthly Pension $3,731 $3,510 6.3%              

NUMBER OF INACTIVE MEMBERS 1,767 1,666 6.1%              

ASSETS
Market Value of Fund ($ in Thousands) $4,723,110 $4,373,962 8.0%              
Return on Market Value 6.2%                    6.7%                    
Valuation Assets ($ in Thousands) $4,685,502 $4,351,502 7.7%              
Return on Valuation Assets 5.6%                    7.8%                    

LIABILITY VALUES ($ IN THOUSANDS)
Actuarial Accrued Liability $5,459,978 $4,970,535 9.8%              
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability $774,476 $619,033 25.1%           
Deferred Asset (Gains) / Losses $9,720 $21,496

FUNDED RATIO
Based on valuation assets 85.8%                 87.5%                 (1.9)%            



�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  121 

 

sĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ��ƐƐĞƚƐ 

sĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ��ƐƐĞƚƐ� ĂƌĞ� ƚŚĞ� ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů� ǀĂůƵĞ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ĨƵŶĚ͕� ůĞƐƐ� ƚŚĞ� ǀĂůƵĞ� ŽĨ� ĂŶǇ� ƌĞƐĞƌǀĞƐ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�
ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƐĞƚ�ĂƐŝĚĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚŝĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƉĞĐŝĂů�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ�;ŝĨ�ĂŶǇͿ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ŽƵƚƐŝĚĞ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂůůǇ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞƐ͘ 

��ãç�Ù®�½�ò�½ç�ã®ÊÄ 

:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ 

�ÖÖ½®���½��ò�½ç�ã®ÊÄ��ÝÝ�ãÝ 

:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ 

sĂůƵĂƟŽŶ��ƐƐĞƚƐ 

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

(I
n 

M
ill

io
ns

)

Actuarial Value of Valuation Assets Market Value of Fund

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

$6,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

(I
n 

M
ill

io
ns

)

Valuation Year

Actuarial Value of Valuation Assets Actuarial Accrued Liability

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability



122  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ� ůŝĂďŝůŝƟĞƐ� ƌĞŇĞĐƚ� ďĞŶĞĮƚƐ� ĂůƌĞĂĚǇ� ĞĂƌŶĞĚ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ƉĂƐƚ� ĂŶĚ� ƚŚŽƐĞ� ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ� ƚŽ� ďĞ�
ĞĂƌŶĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ďǇ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ͘ 

^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ�ĞƋƵĂů�ƚŚĞ�ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ƉůƵƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ�ďǇ�ďŽƚŚ�
ƚŚĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ͘ 

��ãç�Ù®�½�s�½ç�ã®ÊÄ—^�Ã��Z�͛Ý�Z�ÝÊçÙ��Ý 
:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

��ãç�Ù®�½�s�½ç�ã®ÊÄ—^�Ã��Z�͛Ý�>®��®½®ã®�Ý 
:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ 

�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�sĂůƵĂƟŽŶ�-�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ZĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�>ŝĂďŝůŝƟĞƐ 

Valuation 
Assets, 72%

Future 
Member 

Contributions, 
9%

Future 
Employer 

Normal Cost 
Contributions, 

7%

Future UAAL 
Contributions, 

12%

Actives, 48%

Retirees, 48%

Inactives, 4%



�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  123 

^�«��ç½��Ê¥���ã®ò��D�Ã��Ù�s�½ç�ã®ÊÄ���ã� 

EŽƚĞ͗�^ĞĞ�ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ĚĞƚĂŝůƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƉĂƌƟĐŝƉĂƟŶŐ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĐƟǀĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�^ƚĂƟƐƟĐĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ͘� 

^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ��ĐƟǀĞ�DĞŵďĞƌ�sĂůƵĂƟŽŶ��ĂƚĂ 

Valuation Date 
As of June 30, Annual Salary

Annual 
Average 
Salary

Percentage Change in 
Annual Average Salary

2019 Genera l  4,610 $476,944,186 $103,459 6.1%
Safety 530 70,890,519 133,756 1.7%
Probation 237 24,680,991 104,139 3.6%
Tota l 5,377 $572,515,696 $106,475 5.5%

2018 Genera l  4,603 $448,931,595 $97,530 3.3%
Safety 508 66,799,289 131,495 1.6%
Probation 256 25,741,800 100,554 4.0%
Tota l 5,367 $541,472,684 $100,889 3.1%

2017 Genera l  4,560 $430,613,886 $94,433 2.3%
Safety 503 65,105,116 129,434 4.1%
Probation 274 26,503,623 96,729 9.1%
Tota l 5,337 $522,222,625 $97,849 2.8%

2016 Genera l  4,421 $408,191,518 $92,330 4.7%
Safety 495 61,564,028 124,372 6.5%
Probation 271 24,034,819 88,689 2.4%
Tota l 5,187 $493,790,365 $95,198 4.8%

2015 Genera l  4,334 $382,303,295 $88,210 6.8%
Safety 479 55,917,864 116,739 -0.4%
Probation 282 24,418,977 86,592 3.1%
Tota l 5,095 $462,640,136 $90,803 5.8%

2014 Genera l  4,272 $352,918,558 $82,612 2.5%
Safety 452 52,974,475 117,200 -1.0%
Probation 280 23,514,343 83,980 0.8%
Tota l 5,004 $429,407,376 $85,813 2.2%

2013 Genera l  4,173 $338,595,633 $81,140 0.5%

Safety 452 52,233,510 115,561 -1.7%

Probation 292 23,722,165 81,240 -1.1%
Tota l 4,917 $414,551,308 $84,310 0.4%

2012 Genera l  4,361 $351,965,689 $80,708 1.9%

Safety 435 51,129,267 117,539 0.7%

Probation 299 24,554,583 82,122 1.9%

Tota l 5,095 $427,649,539 $83,935 1.8%

2011 Genera l  4,494 $355,876,715 $79,189 0.5%

Safety 446 52,073,940 116,758 2.2%

Probation 305 24,591,392 80,628 0.0%

Tota l 5,245 $432,542,047 $82,468 0.9%

2010 Genera l  4,609 $363,305,740 $78,825 1.6%

Safety 425 48,576,912 114,299 3.6%

Probation 313 25,247,595 80,663 1.3%

Tota l 5,347 $437,130,247 $81,752 1.8%

Number of Active 
Members



124  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

^ŽůǀĞŶĐǇ�dĞƐƚ 

^�«��ç½��Ê¥�Ù�ã®Ù��Ý��Ä����Ä�¥®�®�Ù®�Ý�������ãÊ��Ä��Ù�ÃÊò���¥ÙÊÃ�ã«��ÙÊ½½Ý 

Actuarial Accrued Liabilities 
Active Members

(Employer    Portion of Actuarial Accrued
Actuarial Active Member Retirees and Financed Liabilities Covered by Assets

Valuation Date Valuation Contributions Beneficiaries(1) Portion)
as of June 30, Assets (A) (B) (C) (A) (B) (C)

2010 $2,179,076 449,355$         $1,745,146 $903,952 100% 99% 0%
2011 2,405,140   485,126           1,866,219       895,382           100% 100% 6%
2012 2,480,271   498,569           2,022,791       921,193           100% 98% 0%
2013 2,618,639   534,276           2,157,590       880,884           100% 97% 0%
2014 2,993,187   584,080           2,285,328       927,634           100% 100% 13%
2015 3,343,550   628,287           2,451,544       965,955           100% 100% 27%
2016 3,624,726   679,246           2,635,409       1,047,641        100% 100% 30%
2017 3,976,717   735,102           2,811,651       1,173,097        100% 100% 37%
2018 4,351,502   783,887           3,032,813       1,153,835        100% 100% 46%
2019 4,685,502   769,137           3,369,094       1,321,747        100% 100% 41%

(1) Includes  inactive members

^Ê½ò�Ä�ù�d�Ýã 

;�ŽůůĂƌƐ�ŝŶ�dŚŽƵƐĂŶĚƐͿ 

Actuarial Accrued Liabilities 
Active Members

(Employer    Portion of Actuarial Accrued
Actuarial Active Member Retirees and Financed Liabilities Covered by Assets

Valuation Date Valuation Contributions Beneficiaries(1) Portion)
as of June 30, Assets (A) (B) (C) (A) (B) (C)

2010 $2,179,076 449,355$         $1,745,146 $903,952 100% 99% 0%
2011 2,405,140   485,126           1,866,219       895,382           100% 100% 6%
2012 2,480,271   498,569           2,022,791       921,193           100% 98% 0%
2013 2,618,639   534,276           2,157,590       880,884           100% 97% 0%
2014 2,993,187   584,080           2,285,328       927,634           100% 100% 13%
2015 3,343,550   628,287           2,451,544       965,955           100% 100% 27%
2016 3,624,726   679,246           2,635,409       1,047,641        100% 100% 30%
2017 3,976,717   735,102           2,811,651       1,173,097        100% 100% 37%
2018 4,351,502   783,887           3,032,813       1,153,835        100% 100% 46%
2019 4,685,502   769,137           3,369,094       1,321,747        100% 100% 41%

(1) Includes  inactive members

Removed from Rolls Rolls at Year-End

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
June 30, Number

Annual 
Benefits

(in 
Thousands) Number

Annual 
Benefits

(in 
Thousands) Number

Total Retiree 
Payroll  (in 

Thousands)

% 
Increase 

in Payroll

Average 
Monthly 
Benefits

2010 163 $9,076 96 $3,240 4,002 $124,888 4.9 $2,601
    2011 (2) 209 12,703 64 2,916           4,147 134,675       7.8 2,706    

2012 218 14,379 90 4,209           4,275 144,845       7.6 2,823    

2013 186 13,024 63 3,095           4,398 154,774       6.9 2,933    

2014 203 12,474 83 3,479           4,518 163,769       5.8 3,021    

2015 213 16,290 93 4,179           4,638 175,880       7.4 3,160    

2016 233 15,347 123 5,030           4,748 186,197       5.9 3,268    

2017 310 16,738 102 3,867           4,956 199,068       6.9 3,347    

2018 315 21,360 162 5,242           5,109 215,186       8.1 3,510    

2019 306 24,547 190 5,769           5,225 233,964       8.7 3,731    

  (1) Amount added to rolls includes COLAs granted in year to continuing retirees and beneficiaries.

Added to Rolls(1)

  (2) Revised from June 30, 2011 valuation for corrections.



�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  125 

�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů��ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ�ŽĨ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů��ǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ 

��ãç�Ù®�½��Ä�½ùÝ®Ý�Ê¥�&®Ä�Ä�®�½��øÖ�Ù®�Ä�� 

:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ�;�ŽůůĂƌƐ�ŝŶ�dŚŽƵƐĂŶĚƐͿ 

dŚŝƐ�ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ƉůĂŶ͘� 

^�«��ç½��Ê¥�&çÄ�®Ä¦�WÙÊ¦Ù�ÝÝ� 

;�ŽůůĂƌƐ�ŝŶ�dŚŽƵƐĂŶĚƐͿ 

 

Change In Liability 

Summary of (Gains) / Losses 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Unfunded Liability as of July 1  $619,033  $743,133  $737,570  $702,236  $803,855 

Expected Change in Unfunded Actuarial

   Accrued Liability   (153,261)   (109,756)   (110,404)     (96,454)     (76,018)
Salary (Gain) / Loss       50,472       10,401       27,685       24,707       39,129 

Retiree COLA more / (less) than Expected       21,749       12,203         7,050        (6,275)         3,648 

Asset (Gain) / Loss       46,909     (42,796)     (28,286)       27,821     (74,068)

Change due to Assumption Changes     173,944                  -     133,221       89,364                  - 

Miscellaneous Experience       15,630         5,848     (23,703)        (3,829)         5,690 

Unfunded Liability as of June 30  $774,476  $619,033  $743,133  $737,570  $702,236 

(a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) [(b-a)/c]
Actuarial Unfunded

Actuarial Value Actuarial Actuarial UAAL as a
Valuation Date of Valuation Accrued Accrued Funded Covered Percentage of
as of June 30, Assets Liability Liability (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

2010 $2,179,076 $3,098,453 $919,377 70.3% $434,295 211.69%

2011 2,405,140     3,246,727     841,587          74.1% 427,041   197.07%

2012 2,480,271     3,442,553     962,282          72.0% 418,916   229.71%

2013 2,618,639     3,572,750     954,111          73.3% 404,361   235.96%

2014 2,993,187     3,797,042     803,855          78.8% 416,274   193.11%

2015 3,343,550     4,045,786     702,236          82.6% 439,018   159.96%

2016 3,624,726     4,362,296     737,570          83.1% 472,385   156.14%

2017 3,976,717     4,719,850     743,133          84.3% 510,132   145.67%

2018 4,351,502     4,970,535     619,033          87.5% 535,938   115.50%

2019 4,685,502     5,459,978     774,476          85.8% 554,734   139.61%

Note: The ten-year schedule of actuarially determined and actual contributions can be found in 
the Financial Section under Required Supplementary Information.



 

 

dŚŝƐ�ƉĂŐĞ�ŝƐ�ŝŶƚĞŶƟŽŶĂůůǇ�ůĞŌ�ďůĂŶŬ͘ 



STATISTICAL 

SECTION 



 

 



^ƚĂƟƐƟĐĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  129 

ã«��^ã�ã®Ýã®��½�^��ã®ÊÄ 

 

/ŶƚƌŽĚƵĐƟŽŶ 

dŚŝƐ� ƐĞĐƟŽŶ� ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚƐ� ŚŝƐƚŽƌŝĐĂů� ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ� ƉĂƐƚ� ƚĞŶ� ĮƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌƐ� ĂďŽƵƚ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�
ĮŶĂŶĐĞƐ� ĂŶĚ� ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶƐ͘� ^ŽŵĞ�ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ� ŝŶ� ƚŚŝƐ� ƐĞĐƟŽŶ� ŝƐ� ĐŽŵƉŝůĞĚ� ďǇ� ^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�
ĂĐƚƵĂƌǇ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ďǇ�^Ăŵ��Z�͘ 

�ŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�&ŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�EĞƚ�WŽƐŝƟŽŶ 

�«�Ä¦�Ý�®Ä�&®�ç�®�Ùù�E�ã�WÊÝ®ã®ÊÄ� 

&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�&ŝƐĐĂů�zĞĂƌƐ��ŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ�;�ŽůůĂƌƐ�/Ŷ�dŚŽƵƐĂŶĚƐͿ 

EŽƚĞ͗� dŚŝƐ� ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞ� ǁĂƐ� ƌĞǀŝƐĞĚ� ƚŽ� ƐŚŽǁ� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ� ĂŶĚ� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ� ƐƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ�
ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞůǇ͘� /Ŷ� ƉƌŝŽƌ� ǇĞĂƌƐ͕� ƚŚĞƐĞ� ƚǁŽ� ƚǇƉĞƐ� ŽĨ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ� ǁĞƌĞ� ĐŽŵďŝŶĞĚ� ĂŶĚ� ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ� ĂƐ� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ͘� 

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Additions
        Employer Contributions $194,830 $179,627 $164,877 $170,046 $169,814 
        Employer Supplemental Contributions 50,668 27,630 33,850 21,048 10,890 
        Member Contributions 67,696 64,204 62,160 56,069 48,012 
                Total Contributions 313,194 271,461 260,887 247,163 228,716

    Investment Income (Loss), net of Expenses 271,592 280,076 436,603 24,112 111,320 
        Securities Lending Income 66 43 46 278 310
        Miscellaneous Additions 33 27 27 4,910                      - 
               Total Additions 584,885 551,607 697,563 276,463 340,346 

Deductions
        Retiree Benefits 223,614 204,728 190,364 179,498 168,109
        Member Refunds 3,571 4,326 2,876 3,366 3,357 
        Administrative Expenses 6,057 5,849 5,983 5,962 5,350 
        Information Technology Expenses 2,495 1,444 996 714 629 
        Other Expenses                      -                      - 30 11 119 
              Total Deductions 235,737 216,347 200,249 189,551 177,564 

Changes in Pension Plan Net Position $349,148 $335,260 $497,314 $86,912 $162,782 



130  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

�ŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�&ŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�EĞƚ�WŽƐŝƟŽŶ 

;ϭͿ��WƌŝŽƌ� ƚŽ� ĮƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ� ϮϬϭϮ͕� ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ� ƚĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ� ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ� ǁĞƌĞ� ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ� ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚƌĂƟǀĞ� ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ͘�
^ƚĂƌƟŶŐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĮƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ϮϬϭϮ͕�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ƚĞĐŚŶŽůŽŐǇ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞůǇ�ƚƌĂĐŬĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ͘ 

�«�Ä¦�Ý�®Ä�&®�ç�®�Ùù�E�ã�WÊÝ®ã®ÊÄ�;�ÊÄã®Äç��Ϳ 

&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�&ŝƐĐĂů�zĞĂƌƐ��ŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ�;�ŽůůĂƌƐ�ŝŶ�dŚŽƵƐĂŶĚƐͿ 

EŽƚĞ͗� dŚŝƐ� ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞ� ǁĂƐ� ƌĞǀŝƐĞĚ� ƚŽ� ƐŚŽǁ� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ� ĂŶĚ� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ� ƐƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂů� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ�
ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞůǇ͘� /Ŷ� ƉƌŝŽƌ� ǇĞĂƌƐ͕� ƚŚĞƐĞ� ƚǁŽ� ƚǇƉĞƐ� ŽĨ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ� ǁĞƌĞ� ĐŽŵďŝŶĞĚ� ĂŶĚ� ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ� ĂƐ� ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ͘� 

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Additions
        Employer Contributions        152,877        131,294        139,407 $150,475 $106,265 
        Employer Supplemental Contributions           50,000           13,014           11,543                      -                      - 
        Member Contributions 46,594 55,408 49,687 49,013 50,319 
               Total Contributions 249,471 199,716 200,637 199,488 156,584

    Investment Income (Loss), net of Expenses 482,050 326,983 (11,024) 437,654 195,412 
        Securities Lending Income 435 622 721 530 743 
        Miscellaneous Additions 179 160 29 73 41 
              Total Additions 732,135 527,481 190,363 637,745 352,780 

Deductions
        Retiree Benefits 159,342 149,266 139,208 129,835 122,141
        Member Refunds 3,214 5,750 3,627 2,474 2,736 
        Administrative Expenses 4,914 4,260 4,675 3,547 3,373 
        Information Technology Expenses (1) 731 654 325                      -                      - 
        Other Expenses 65 29                      - 10 33 
             Total Deductions 168,266 159,959 147,835 135,866 128,283 

Changes in Pension Plan Net Position $563,869 $367,522 $42,528 $501,879 $224,497 



^ƚĂƟƐƟĐĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  131 

^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞƐ�ŽĨ��ĚĚŝƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ��ĂŶĚ��ĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�&ŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�EĞƚ�WŽƐŝƟŽŶ 

^�«��ç½��Ê¥����®ã®ÊÄÝ�ãÊ�¥®�ç�®�Ùù�Ä�ã�ÖÊÝ®ã®ÊÄ��ù�^ÊçÙ�� 

;�ŽůůĂƌƐ�ŝŶ�dŚŽƵƐĂŶĚƐͿ 

^�«��ç½��Ê¥����ç�ã®ÊÄÝ�¥ÙÊÃ�¥®�ç�®�Ùù�Ä�ã�ÖÊÝ®ã®ÊÄ��ù�dùÖ� 

;�ŽůůĂƌƐ�ŝŶ�dŚŽƵƐĂŶĚƐͿ 

Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30

Employee 
Contributions

Employer 
Contributions

Investment 
Income/(Loss) Other

Total 
Additions

2010 $50,319 $106,265 $195,412 $784 $352,780 
2011 49,013 150,475 437,654 603 637,745 
2012 49,687 150,950 (11,024) 750 190,363 
2013 55,408 144,308 326,983 782 527,481 
2014 46,594 202,877 482,050 614 732,135 
2015 48,012 180,704 111,320 310 340,346 
2016 56,069 191,094 24,112 5,188 276,463 
2017 62,160 198,727 436,603 73 697,563 
2018 64,204 207,257 280,076 70 551,607 
2019 67,696 245,498 271,592 99 584,885 

Fiscal Year 
Ended June 30 

Retirement 
and  Other 

Benefits
Member
Refunds

Administrative 

Expenses (1)

Information 
Technology 

Expenses
Other

Expenses
Total 

Deductions
2010 $122,141 $2,736 $3,373 $ - $33 $128,283 
2011 129,835 2,474 3,547                           - 10 135,866 
2012 139,208 3,627 4,675 325                       - 147,835 
2013 149,266 5,750 4,260 654 29 159,959 
2014 159,342 3,214 4,914 731 65 168,266 
2015 168,109 3,357 5,350 629 119 177,564 
2016 179,498 3,366 5,962 714 11 189,551 
2017 190,364 2,876 5,983 996 30 200,249 
2018 204,728 4,326 5,849 1,444                       - 216,347 
2019 223,614 3,571 6,057 2,495                       - 235,737 

(1) Administrative expenses related to investments were classified as investment expense prior to fiscal year 2012.

    Effective June 30, 2012, such expenses are reported as administrative expenses.



132  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

�«�Ä¦�Ý�®Ä�¥®�ç�®�Ùù�E�ã�WÊÝ®ã®ÊÄ� 

&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�&ŝƐĐĂů�zĞĂƌƐ��ŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ� 

dŽƚĂů�&ŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ�EĞƚ�WŽƐŝƟŽŶ 

dÊã�½�¥®�ç�®�Ùù�E�ã�WÊÝ®ã®ÊÄ� 

:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ 

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

$2,500

$3,000

$3,500

$4,000

$4,500

$5,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

(i
n 

M
il

li
on

s)

$0

$100

$200

$300

$400

$500

$600

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

(i
n 

M
il

li
on

s)



^ƚĂƟƐƟĐĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  133 

^çÃÃ�Ùù�Ê¥�Ù�ã®Ù�����Ä�¥®ãÝ͕�Ù�¥çÄ�Ý͕��Ä��®Ä��ã®ò��Ã�Ã��ÙÝ 

^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�ZĞƟƌĞĚ��ĞŶĞĮƚƐ͕�ZĞĨƵŶĚƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�/ŶĂĐƟǀĞ�DĞŵďĞƌƐ 

RETIRED MEMBERS 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Service Retirement (1)

Number 4,697             4,604             4,458             4,257             4,160             4,052             3,965             
Annual  Al lowance $196,874,097 $179,880,342 $166,975,634 $157,513,099 $147,266,945 $139,036,410 $131,638,612
Average Monthly Payment $3,493 $3,256 $3,121 $3,083 $2,950 $2,859 $2,767

Survivor
Number 30                  29                  27                  27                  29                  30                  31                  
Annual  Al lowance $982,715 $781,459 $661,162 $652,711 $661,222 $654,972 $649,930
Average Monthly Payment $2,730 $2,246 $2,041 $2,015 $1,900 $1,819 $1,747

Death 
Number 7                    4                    1                    5                    3                    1                    1                    
Annual  Al lowance $249,751 $194,927 $26,646 $82,444 $90,635 $13,633 $39,265
Average Monthly Payment $2,973 $4,061 $2,221 $1,374 $2,518 $1,136 $3,272

Other Benefits
Number 4                    -                     1                    5                    4                    7                    8                    
Annual  Al lowance $295,600 $0 $11,138 $158,478 $51,734 $370,340 $232,593
Average Monthly Payment $6,158 $0 $928 $2,641 $1,078 $4,409 $2,423

Disability Retirement
Number 487                472                469                454                442                428                393                
Annual  Al lowance $25,211,881 $23,872,145 $22,689,813 $21,090,529 $20,038,671 $19,266,623 $16,705,247
Average Monthly Payment $4,314 $4,215 $4,032 $3,871 $3,778 $3,751 $3,542

Total Retired Members
Number 5,225             5,109             4,956             4,748             4,638             4,518             4,398             
Annual  Al lowance $223,614,044 $204,728,873 $190,364,393 $179,497,261 $168,109,207 $159,341,978 $149,265,647
Average Monthly Payment $3,566 $3,339 $3,201 $3,150 $3,021 $2,939 $2,828

REFUND 
General $3,478,748 $3,252,941 $2,511,145 $2,991,126 $3,011,758 $3,058,864 $5,161,430
Safety $92,331 $1,072,789 $364,742 $375,311 $345,253 $155,265 $588,346
      Tota l  Refund $3,571,079 $4,325,730 $2,875,887 $3,366,437 $3,357,011 $3,214,129 $5,749,776

INACTIVE MEMBERS 1,767             1,666             1,487             1,486             1,384             1,304             1,306             

(1) Included beneficiaries .

Note 2 - Data  prior to fi sca l  year 2012-13 i s  not ava i lable.
Note 1 - This  schedule i s  prepared by SamCERA based on the actual  a l lowances  disbursed.



134  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

^�«��ç½��Ê¥��ò�Ù�¦��W�ÄÝ®ÊÄ���Ä�¥®ã�W�ùÃ�ÄãÝ 

^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ��ǀĞƌĂŐĞ�WĞŶƐŝŽŶ��ĞŶĞĮƚ�WĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ 

7/1/2018 - 6/30/2019 0 - 4 5 - 9 10 - 14 15 - 19 20 - 24 25 - 29 30+
Retirees - Service and Disabilities
Reti rees  - Service and Disabi l i ties

Average Monthly Gross  Benefi t $425 $1,564 $2,484 $4,013 $5,002 $7,792 $8,675
Average Fina l  Compensation $10,219 $9,667 $8,886 $8,901 $8,823 $11,094 $10,494
Number of Reti res 11 37 49 44 45 42 32

Beneficiaries
Average Monthly Gross  Benefi t $1,218 $1,828 $1,174 $134 $2,052 $3,757 $6,841
Average Fina l  Compensation $2,906 $9,453 $5,924 $6,644 $3,854 $4,246 $8,249
Number of Beneficiaries 11 4 5 1 2 5 5

7/1/2017 - 6/30/2018 0 - 4 5 - 9 10 - 14 15 - 19 20 - 24 25 - 29 30+
Retirees - Service and Disabilities

Average Monthly Gross  Benefi t $613 $1,327 $2,192 $3,541 $5,616 $6,728 $8,213
Average Fina l  Compensation $9,353 $8,032 $7,419 $8,210 $9,470 $9,686 $9,792
Number of Reti res 12 33 57 41 35 38 41

Beneficiaries
Average Monthly Gross  Benefi t $1,962 $1,460 $1,455 $1,861 $2,640 $6,712 $4,033
Average Fina l  Compensation $4,880 $8,022 $5,806 $6,311 $6,057 $6,777 $5,995
Number of Beneficiaries 13 10 9 5 6 8 7

7/1/2016 - 6/30/2017 0 - 4 5 - 9 10 - 14 15 - 19 20 - 24 25 - 29 30+
Retirees - Service and Disabilities

Average Monthly Gross  Benefi t $388 $1,429 $2,264 $3,155 $5,501 $6,533 $6,902
Average Fina l  Compensation $6,313 $6,428 $7,311 $7,237 $9,197 $9,440 $8,334
Number of Reti res 13 35 47 37 37 32 33

Beneficiaries
Average Monthly Gross  Benefi t $1,197 $574 $1,665 $2,916 $1,299 $0 $0
Average Fina l  Compensation $2,152 $3,564 $2,251 $3,852 $3,474 $0 $0
Number of Beneficiaries 8 6 5 1 1 0 0

7/1/2015 - 6/30/2016 0 - 4 5 - 9 10 - 14 15 - 19 20 - 24 25 - 29 30+
Retirees - Service and Disabilities

Average Monthly Gross  Benefi t $350 $1,536 $2,112 $3,210 $4,563 $5,841 $7,990
Average Fina l  Compensation $4,081 $6,646 $6,410 $9,032 $7,964 $8,548 $9,322
Number of Reti res 16 47 56 54 26 28 21

Beneficiaries
Average Monthly Gross  Benefi t $1,732 $1,038 $1,368 $1,361 $3,304 $3,036 $3,554
Average Fina l  Compensation N/A $3,434 $4,173 $3,756 $5,429 $4,972 $5,372
Number of Beneficiaries 14 9 5 2 4 7 7

7/1/2014 - 6/30/2015 0 - 4 5 - 9 10 - 14 15 - 19 20 - 24 25 - 29 30+
Retirees - Service and Disabilities

Average Monthly Gross  Benefi t $564 $1,479 $2,538 $3,755 $4,264 $7,245 $6,140
Average Fina l  Compensation $4,191 $6,262 $7,158 $8,074 $7,548 $9,423 $7,752
Number of Reti res 21 35 52 35 20 38 31

Beneficiaries
Average Monthly Gross  Benefi t $1,753 $1,193 $1,120 $2,380 $2,147 $4,633 $6,036
Average Fina l  Compensation N/A $3,587 $3,867 $6,994 $4,521 $8,971 $8,071
Number of Beneficiaries 11 3 3 6 5 5 6

Years of Service Credit



^ƚĂƟƐƟĐĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  135 

^�«��ç½��Ê¥��ò�Ù�¦��W�ÄÝ®ÊÄ���Ä�¥®ã�W�ùÃ�ÄãÝ�;�ÊÄã®Äç��Ϳ 

^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ��ǀĞƌĂŐĞ�WĞŶƐŝŽŶ��ĞŶĞĮƚ�WĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ 

7/1/2013 - 6/30/2014 0 - 4 5 - 9 10 - 14 15 - 19 20 - 24 25 - 29 30+
Retirees - Service and Disabilities

Average Monthly Gross  Benefi t $1,608 $1,758 $2,384 $3,351 $4,613 $6,349 $6,713
Average Fina l  Compensation $6,920 $6,729 $6,570 $7,614 $7,740 $9,292 $7,528
Number of Reti res 16 61 49 40 32 13 18

Beneficiaries
Average Monthly Gross  Benefi t $891 $660 $1,898 $946 $4,457 $3,550 $6,239
Average Fina l  Compensation N/A $6,305 $5,433 $2,906 $7,872 $5,504 $6,611
Number of Beneficiaries 10 3 6 5 3 2 2

7/1/2012 - 6/30/2013 0 - 4 5 - 9 10 - 14 15 - 19 20 - 24 25 - 29 30+
Retirees - Service and Disabilities

Average Monthly Gross  Benefi t $643 $1,330 $2,513 $3,516 $5,226 $6,672 $7,309
Average Fina l  Compensation $5,234 $5,831 $7,321 $7,344 $8,135 $8,458 $7,818
Number of Reti rees 16 39 59 21 30 24 20

Beneficiaries
Average Monthly Gross  Benefi t $1,434 $1,747 $1,494 $1,500 $1,321 $5,182 $4,166
Average Fina l  Compensation $589 $5,140 $5,255 $4,536 $3,446 $7,516 $6,039
Number of Beneficiaries 16 2 6 4 3 1 4

7/1/2011 - 6/30/2012 0 - 4 5 - 9 10 - 14 15 - 19 20 - 24 25 - 29 30+
Retirees - Service and Disabilities

Average Monthly Gross  Benefi t $897 $1,427 $2,328 $3,597 $5,175 $5,611 $7,527
Average Fina l  Compensation $4,235 $5,896 $6,667 $7,228 $7,812 $7,344 $7,763
Number of Reti rees 19 37 47 25 47 32 29

Beneficiaries
Average Monthly Gross  Benefi t $1,789 $736 $2,382 $2,390 $1,658 $4,347 $4,878
Average Fina l  Compensation N/A $3,913 $5,200 $5,818 $4,338 $6,102 $6,464
Number of Beneficiaries 16 1 5 4 5 3 4

7/1/2010 - 6/30/2011 0 - 4 5 - 9 10 - 14 15 - 19 20 - 24 25 - 29 30+
Retirees - Service and Disabilities

Average Monthly Gross  Benefi t $577 $1,190 $2,112 $3,770 $4,881 $6,452 $8,122
Average Fina l  Compensation $3,207 $6,268 $5,895 $7,761 $7,562 $8,466 $8,322
Number of Reti rees 16 25 52 29 52 26 25

Beneficiaries
Average Monthly Gross  Benefi t $1,190 $1,407 $1,333 $2,101 $2,082 $1,951 $8,657
Average Fina l  Compensation N/A $6,549 $4,186 $5,178 $5,772 $4,457 $7,765
Number of Beneficiaries 12 1 6 3 6 1 1

7/1/2009 - 6/30/2010 0 - 4 5 - 9 10 - 14 15 - 19 20 - 24 25 - 29 30+
Retirees - Service and Disabilities

Average Monthly Gross  Benefi t $875 $1,281 $2,107 $3,932 $5,057 $6,175 $7,543
Average Fina l  Compensation $2,619 $5,480 $5,803 $7,587 $7,827 $7,818 $8,081
Number of Reti rees 9 35 33 16 41 19 24

Beneficiaries
Average Monthly Gross  Benefi t $712 $2,679 $1,485 $1,170 $2,304 $3,992 $4,413
Average Fina l  Compensation N/A $7,316 $5,457 $3,874 $5,546 $5,457 $5,166
Number of Beneficiaries 8 4 2 2 3 1 4

Years of Service Credit



136  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

�ò�Ù�¦��ÃÊÄã«½ù�Ù�ã®Ù�����Ä�¥®ã� 

&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�&ŝƐĐĂů�zĞĂƌƐ��ŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ 

 

EƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ZĞƟƌĞĞƐ�ďǇ��ĂƚĞŐŽƌǇ 

EçÃ��Ù�Ê¥�Ù�ã®Ù��Ý� 

:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ 

4398
4518

4,638 
4,748 

4,956 

5,109 
5,225 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

N
um

be
r

of
 R

et
ir

ee
s

Fiscal Years

EŽƚĞ͗�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ƉƌŝŽƌ�ƚŽ�ĮƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ϮϬϭϯ�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ͘ 

EŽƚĞ͗�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ƉƌŝŽƌ�ƚŽ�ĮƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ϮϬϭϯ�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ͘ 

$2,828 $2,939 $3,021 $3,150 $3,201 $3,339 
$3,566 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Fiscal Years

Av
er

ag
e 

M
on

th
ly

 R
et

ire
e 

Be
ne

fit



^ƚĂƟƐƟĐĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  137 

^�«��ç½��Ê¥��ò�Ù�¦��DÊÄã«½ù�^�½�Ùù�Ê¥���ã®ò��D�Ã��ÙÝ� 
&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�&ŝƐĐĂů�zĞĂƌƐ��ŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ�;ďǇ�WůĂŶ�ĂŶĚ�DĞŵďĞƌƐŚŝƉ�dǇƉĞͿ 

^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ��ǀĞƌĂŐĞ�DŽŶƚŚůǇ�^ĂůĂƌǇ�ŽĨ��ĐƟǀĞ�DĞŵďĞƌƐ 

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
General Plan 1 $9,793 $10,121 $11,305 $9,945 $9,235
General Plan 2 10,088 9,526 8,994 8,636 8,186
General Plan 3 7,872 7,462 7,484 7,173 6,747
General Plan 4 9,302 8,534 8,134 7,807 7,386
General Plan 5 10,180 9,672 8,980 8,485 7,735
General Plan 7 7,395 6,974 6,737 6,714 6,315
     Average Monthly Salary for General Plan 8,622 8,128 7,869 7,694 7,351

Safety Plan 1 0 0 14,434 15,810 14,712
Safety Plan 2 14,197 13,607 13,528 12,505 11,545
Safety Plan 4 12,391 11,894 11,381 10,729 9,919
Safety Plan 5 11,708 11,349 10,544 9,940 9,145
Safety Plan 6 0 0 0 16,793 16,010
Safety Plan 7 9,030 8,747 8,356 7,538 6,701
     Average Monthly Salary for Safety Plan 11,146 10,958 10,786 10,364 9,728

Probation 1 0 0 7,722 7,261 7,038
Probation 2 9,908 9,061 9,069 8,349 8,012
Probation 4 9,103 8,714 8,270 7,454 7,267
Probation 5 8,587 8,219 7,612 6,429 6,106
Probation 6 0 0 7,347 6,259 5,739
Probation 7 6,973 6,676 6,121 5,962 5,684
    Average Monthly Salary for Probation Plan 8,678 8,379 8,061 7,391 7,216

        Average Monthly Salary for All Plans 8,873 8,407 8,154 7,933 7,567



138  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

^�«��ç½��Ê¥��ò�Ù�¦��DÊÄã«½ù�^�½�Ùù�Ê¥���ã®ò��D�Ã��ÙÝ�;�ÊÄã®Äç��Ϳ 
&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�&ŝƐĐĂů�zĞĂƌƐ��ŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ�;ďǇ�WůĂŶ�ĂŶĚ�DĞŵďĞƌƐŚŝƉ�dǇƉĞͿ 

^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ��ǀĞƌĂŐĞ�DŽŶƚŚůǇ�^ĂůĂƌǇ�ŽĨ��ĐƟǀĞ�DĞŵďĞƌƐ 

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
General Plan 1 $8,617 $8,104 $7,843 $7,630 $7,543
General Plan 2 7,584 7,355 7,340 7,208 7,193
General Plan 3 6,300 6,254 6,138 5,968 5,818
General Plan 4 6,873 6,662 6,580 6,398 6,348
General Plan 5 6,912 6,418 5,799 N/A N/A
General Plan 7 5,721 5,433 N/A N/A N/A
     Average Monthly Salary for General Plan 6,884 6,762 6,726 6,599 6,569

Safety Plan 1 14,091 13,185 12,624 12,073 11,578
Safety Plan 2 11,191 10,935 10,892 10,789 10,548
Safety Plan 4 9,581 9,402 9,351 9,230 8,931
Safety Plan 5 8,958 8,699 9,667 N/A N/A
Safety Plan 6 14,381 12,374 N/A N/A N/A
Safety Plan 7 7,011 6,695 N/A N/A N/A
     Average Monthly Salary for Safety Plan 9,767 9,630 9,795 9,730 9,525

Probation 1 6,874 6,618 6,618 7,533 8,922
Probation 2 7,699 7,445 7,454 7,349 7,393
Probation 4 6,922 6,622 6,686 6,505 6,456
Probation 5 5,916 5,242 4,949 N/A N/A
Probation 6 5,216 4,808 5,239 N/A N/A
Probation 7 5,807 7,742 5,239 N/A N/A
    Average Monthly Salary for Probation Plan 6,998 6,770 6,844 6,719 6,722

        Average Monthly Salary for All Plans 7,151 7,026 6,995 6,872 6,813



^ƚĂƟƐƟĐĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  139 

^�«��ç½��Ê¥���ã®ò��D�Ã��ÙÝ��Ä��W�Ùã®�®Ö�ã®Ä¦��ÃÖ½Êù�ÙÝ� 
:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ 

^�«��ç½��Ê¥���ã®ò��D�Ã��ÙÝ��Ä��W�Ùã®�®Ö�ã®Ä¦��ÃÖ½Êù�ÙÝ�;�ÊÄã®Äç��Ϳ 
:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ 

^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ�ŽĨ��ĐƟǀĞ�DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�WĂƌƟĐŝƉĂƟŶŐ��ŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ� 

EŽƚĞ͗�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�^ƵƉĞƌŝŽƌ��ŽƵƌƚ�ǁĂƐ�ŽŶĐĞ�Ă�ƵŶŝƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�ŽĨ�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ͕�ďƵƚ�ǁĂƐ�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�
ďĞĐĂŵĞ�Ă�ƵŶŝƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�^ƚĂƚĞ�ŽĨ��ĂůŝĨŽƌŶŝĂ�ŝŶ�ĮƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ϮϬϭϭ-ϭϮ͘ 

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

4,350 4,343 4,303 4,170 4,092
530 508 503 495 479
237 256 274 271 282

5,117 5,107 5,080 4,936 4,853

240 239 237 231 222

20 21 20 20 20
5,377 5,367 5,337 5,187 5,095

95.17% 95.16% 95.18% 95.16% 95.25%
4.46% 4.45% 4.45% 4.45% 4.36%
0.37% 0.39% 0.37% 0.39% 0.39%

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

   Subtotal

COUNTY OF SAN MATEO
General Members
Safety Members
Probation Members

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO & VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT
General Members

SAN MATEO COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT
General Members 

                                Total Active Membership

Percentage of Membership by Employer

                              Total Percentage of Membership

County of San Mateo
San Mateo Superior Court
San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

4,014 3,906 4,078 4,476 4,589
452 452 435 446 425
280 292 299 305 313

4,746        4,650        4,812        5,227        5,327 

239 249 268 N/A N/A

19 18 15 18 20
5,004 4,917 5,095 5,245 5,347

94.84% 94.57% 94.45% 99.66% 99.63%
4.78% 5.06% 5.26% N/A N/A
0.38% 0.37% 0.29% 0.34% 0.37%

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

San Mateo County Mosquito and Vector Control District

                              Total Percentage of Membership

                                 Total Active Membership

County of San Mateo
San Mateo Superior Court

   Subtotal

SAN MATEO COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT
General Members 

SAN MATEO COUNTY MOSQUITO & VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT
General Members

COUNTY OF SAN MATEO
General Members
Safety Members
Probation Members

Percentage of Membership by Employer



140  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

�ÃÖ½Êù�Ù��Ä��D�Ã��Ù��ÊÄãÙ®�çã®ÊÄ�Z�ã�Ý�;ϭͿ� 

�ĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ�Ăƚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ 

�ŵƉůŽǇĞƌ��ŶĚ�DĞŵďĞƌ��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ZĂƚĞƐ 

34.00% 34.00%
35.49% 37.47%

34.74%

31.96%
33.76%

35.31% 33.67%
37.86%

9.71% 10.32% 10.52% 10.55% 11.42% 11.92% 12.07% 12.40% 12.11% 12.46%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015  (2) 2016 (2) 2017 2018 2019

As
 a

 %
 o

f P
ay

ro
ll

Employer Contribution Rate Member Contribution Rate

;ϭͿ�dŚĞ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ�ĂƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶ�ĚĂƚĞ�ǁŝůů�ďĞĐŽŵĞ�ĞīĞĐƟǀĞ�Ă�ǇĞĂƌ�ůĂƚĞƌ͘�&Žƌ�ĞǆĂŵƉůĞ͕�ƚŚĞ�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ�ĂƐ�ŽĨ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϵ͕�ǁŝůů�ďĞĐŽŵĞ�ĞīĞĐƟǀĞ�ŽŶ�:ƵůǇ�ϭ͕�ϮϬϮϬ͘ 
 
;ϮͿ�dŚĞ�^ƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ZĂƚĞƐ�ƌĞŇĞĐƚ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ŶĞŐŽƟĂƚĞĚ�ƐƵďƐĞƋƵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ϮϬϭϱ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�
ϮϬϭϲ�ǀĂůƵĂƟŽŶƐ͘ 

;ϭͿ��dŚĞ�dŽƚĂů��ŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�^ƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ZĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�ϯϳ͘ϴϲй�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŐŐƌĞŐĂƚĞ�ƌĂƚĞ�ĨŽƌ�Ăůů�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ͘ 

�ÃÖ½Êù�Ù��ÊÄãÙ®�çã®ÊÄ�Z�ã�Ý�¥ÊÙ��½½�W½�ÄÝ��ÊÃ�®Ä����Ý���W�Ù��Äã�¦��Ê¥��Êò�Ù���W�ùÙÊ½½ 

Employer Statutory Contribution Rate July 1, 2020 (1) July 1, 2019 Change

Gross Normal Cost 23.73% 22.68% 1.05%

Less: Member Contributions (12.46)% (12.11)% (0.35)%
Employer Normal Cost 11.27% 10.57% 0.70%

UAAL Amortization 26.59% 23.10% 3.49%

   Total Employer Statutory Contribution Rate 37.86% 33.67% 4.19%

Statutory Contribution Rate by Employer

County of San Mateo 38.06% 33.85% 4.21%

San Mateo County Superior Court 35.22% 31.03% 4.19%

San Mateo County Moswuito & Vector Control District 12.58% 12.13% 0.45%

Fiscal Year Beginning



^ƚĂƟƐƟĐĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  141 

,®ÝãÊÙù�Ê¥��ÃÖ½Êù�Ù�^ã�ãçãÊÙù��ÊÄãÙ®�çã®ÊÄ�Z�ã�Ý 

,ŝƐƚŽƌǇ�ŽĨ��ŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�^ƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ZĂƚĞƐ 

General Members
(District) 

Normal UAAL Total Normal UAAL Total Normal UAAL Total

10.05% 16.35% 26.40% 10.05% 16.35% 26.40% 11.70% 16.35% 28.05%

9.71% 16.41% 26.12% 8.70% 16.41% 25.11% 11.97% 16.41% 28.38%

9.98% 20.17% 30.15% 8.96% 20.17% 29.13% 11.68% 20.17% 31.85%

9.74% 22.35% 32.09% 8.92% 22.35% 31.27% 11.70% 22.35% 34.05%

10.12% 20.27% 30.39% 9.14% 20.21% 29.35% 11.72% 21.16% 32.88%

General Members
(District) 

Normal UAAL Total Normal UAAL Total Normal UAAL Total

8.67% 18.37% 27.04% 9.04% 19.54% 28.58% 11.75% 19.54% 31.29%

8.91% 19.81% 28.72% 9.09% 21.30% 30.39% 12.02% 12.50% 24.52%

9.58% 20.55% 30.13% 9.65% 22.58% 32.23% 12.32% 12.37% 24.69%

9.22% 19.32% 28.54% 9.27% 21.76% 31.03% 12.13% 0.00% 12.13%

9.93% 22.18% 32.11% 10.01% 25.21% 35.22% 12.58% 0.00% 12.58%

Notes:

General Members
(Nurses & UAPD)

General Members
(County & Court)

Valuation 
Date

June 30

2019

2014

Valuation 
Date

General Members
(Court) 

General Members
(County) 

June 30

2010

2016

2011

2012

2013

2015

2017

2018

1. Contribution rates shown are those calculated in the corresponding actuarial valuation. In some cases, actual 
contributions were higher.

2. Beginning with the 2010 actuarial valuation, the Mosquito and Vector Control District adopted the same benefit 
formula and member contribution rates as Plan 1, 2 and 4 General County members (excluding cost sharing and COLA 
sharing on member rates).              

4. Beginning with the 2012 actuarial valuation, Plan 1, 2, and 4 Probation members (excluding Managers) contribute 
25% of the cost of COLA, in addition to current member rates and cost sharing.

3. Beginning with the 2011 actuarial valuation, Plan 1, 2, and 4 members of the California Nurses Association (CNA) 
contribute 25% of the cost of COLA, in addition to current member rates and cost sharing.    

9. Effective July 1, 2018, the Board of Supervisors contribute 50% of the cost of COLA, in addition to current member 
rates and cost sharing. Additionally, pick-up contributions were eliminated.        

8. Effective October 2016, all  members (except those with benefits negotiated under Board of Supervisors bargaining 
unit, and District members) contribute 50% of the cost of COLA, in addition to current member rates and cost sharing. 
This is reflected in 2016 values.              

5. Beginning with the 2013 actuarial valuation, Plan 1, 2, and 4 members of the Union of American Physicians & 
Dentists (UAPD) contribute 25% of the cost of COLA, in addition to current member rates and cost sharing. In 2011 and 
2012, these members contributed the same as County General members.              

6. Beginning with the 2015 actuarial valuation, Plan 1, 2, and 4 members of the UAPD and the CNA, and Probation 
members (Managers) contribute 50% of the cost of COLA, in addition to current member rates and cost sharing.           

7. Effective with the first pay period after June 30, 2016, all  members (except those with benefits negotiated under Court 
Interpreters and Board of Supervisors bargaining units, and District members) contribute 50% of the cost of COLA, in 
addition to current member rates and cost sharing. Additionally, pick-up contributions are discontinued for members 
with benefits negotiated under the PDA bargaining unit.               



142  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

,®ÝãÊÙù�Ê¥��ÃÖ½Êù�Ù�^ã�ãçãÊÙù��ÊÄãÙ®�çã®ÊÄ�Z�ã�Ý�;�ÊÄã®Äç��Ϳ 

,ŝƐƚŽƌǇ�ŽĨ��ŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�^ƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ZĂƚĞƐ 

Probation Members
(Managers)

Normal UAAL Total Normal UAAL Total Normal UAAL Total

19.01% 44.50% 63.51% 19.85% 21.62% 41.47%

18.87% 41.75% 60.62% 19.50% 22.30% 41.80%

19.05% 48.51% 67.56% 19.99% 26.71% 46.70%

18.51% 50.33% 68.84% 18.33% 29.32% 47.65% 17.85% 29.32% 47.17%

18.99% 46.48% 65.47% 18.92% 28.09% 47.01% 18.79% 28.09% 46.88%

15.14% 43.58% 58.72% 15.31% 26.77% 42.08% 17.23% 26.77% 44.00%

16.31% 44.25% 60.56% 15.94% 31.72% 47.66%

17.28% 45.57% 62.85% 17.42% 32.87% 50.29%

16.98% 44.68% 61.66% 16.95% 32.88% 49.83%

18.02% 50.87% 68.89% 17.97% 42.55% 60.52%

Notes:

9. Effective July 1, 2018, the Board of Supervisors contribute 50% of the cost of COLA, in addition to current member 
rates and cost sharing. Additionally, pick-up contributions were eliminated.        

8. Effective October 2016, all  members (except those with benefits negotiated under Board of Supervisors bargaining 
unit, and District members) contribute 50% of the cost of COLA, in addition to current member rates and cost sharing. 
This is reflected in 2016 values.              

5. Beginning with the 2013 actuarial valuation, Plan 1, 2, and 4 members of the Union of American Physicians & 
Dentists (UAPD) contribute 25% of the cost of COLA, in addition to current member rates and cost sharing. In 2011 and 
2012, these members contributed the same as County General members.              

6. Beginning with the 2015 actuarial valuation, Plan 1, 2, and 4 members of the UAPD and the CNA, and Probation 
members (Managers) contribute 50% of the cost of COLA, in addition to current member rates and cost sharing.           

7. Effective with the first pay period after June 30, 2016, all  members (except those with benefits negotiated under Court 
Interpreters and Board of Supervisors bargaining units, and District members) contribute 50% of the cost of COLA, in 
addition to current member rates and cost sharing. Additionally, pick-up contributions are discontinued for members 
with benefits negotiated under the PDA bargaining unit.               

4. Beginning with the 2012 actuarial valuation, Plan 1, 2, and 4 Probation members (excluding Managers) contribute 
25% of the cost of COLA, in addition to current member rates and cost sharing.

3. Beginning with the 2011 actuarial valuation, Plan 1, 2, and 4 members of the California Nurses Association (CNA) 
contribute 25% of the cost of COLA, in addition to current member rates and cost sharing.    

2015

2014

2019 Same as Probation (exclude Managers)

2016

June 30

Same as Probation (exclude Managers)

Same as Probation (exclude Managers)

1. Contribution rates shown are those calculated in the corresponding actuarial valuation. In some cases, actual 
contributions were higher.

2. Beginning with the 2010 actuarial valuation, the Mosquito and Vector Control District adopted the same benefit 
formula and member contribution rates as Plan 1, 2 and 4 General County members (excluding cost sharing and COLA 
sharing on member rates).              

Same as Probation (exclude Managers)

2018

2010

2012

Same as Probation (exclude Managers)

Same as Probation (exclude Managers)

2011

2017

2013

Same as Probation (exclude Managers)

Probation Members
(excluding Managers) 

Safety Member
Valuation 

Date



COMPLIANCE 

SECTION 



 

 



�ŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  145 

^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�&ƵŶĚĞĚ�ZĂƟŽ 

���®ã®ÊÄÝ�ãÊ��Ä�����ç�ã®ÊÄÝ�¥ÙÊÃ�^�Ã��Z�͛Ý�E�ã�WÊÝ®ã®ÊÄ 

&Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�&ŝƐĐĂů�zĞĂƌƐ��ŶĚĞĚ�:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ 

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

$800,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

(I
n 

Th
ou

sa
nd

s)

Additions

Deductions

Net
Increase
(Decrease)

^�Ã��Z�͛Ý�&çÄ����Z�ã®Ê 

:ƵŶĞ�ϯϬ 

70.3%

74.1%
72.0% 73.3%

78.8%
82.6% 83.1% 84.3%

87.5% 85.8%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

90.0%

100.0%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Fiscal Years



146  | SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

�ƵĚŝƚŽƌ͛Ɛ�ZĞƉŽƌƚ 



�ŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ 

2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT |  147 

�ƵĚŝƚŽƌ͛Ɛ�ZĞƉŽƌƚ 



 

 

dŚŝƐ�ƉĂŐĞ�ŝƐ�ŝŶƚĞŶƟŽŶĂůůǇ�ůĞŌ�ďůĂŶŬ͘ 



 

 

PHOTO CREDIT 

�ŽǀĞƌ͗��ƐƐŽƌƚĞĚ�ŝŵĂŐĞƐ�ĐŽƵƌƚĞƐǇ�ŽĨ�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�^D�Ds���^ƚĂī͘  

;ůĞŌ�ƚŽ�ƌŝŐŚƚͿ  

ϭ͘ WŚŽƚŽŐƌĂƉŚĞƌ�ƵŶŬŶŽǁŶ͕�;ϭϵϱϵͿ͘�KůĚ��ŽƵƌƚ�,ŽƵƐĞ͘�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�,ŝƐƚŽƌŝĐĂů�
�ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ��ŽůůĞĐƟŽŶ͘� 

Ϯ͘ DĞůĞŶĂ͕�:ŽĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�dŝŵĞƐ�dƌŝďƵŶĞ�;ϭϵϴϳͿ͘��Ăƌů�,ŝůů͕�^ƵƉĞƌǀŝƐŝŶŐ��ǀŝĚĞŶĐĞ�

dĞĐŚŶŝĐŝĂŶ͕�ŵĂŬŝŶŐ�ĮŶŐĞƌƉƌŝŶƚ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌŝƐŽŶƐ͘�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�,ŝƐƚŽƌŝĐĂů�
�ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ��ŽůůĞĐƟŽŶ͘ 

ϯ͘ WŚŽƚŽŐƌĂƉŚĞƌ�ƵŶŬŶŽǁŶ�;ϭϵϱϵͿ͘�tŽƌŬŵĞŶ�ĐůĞĂŶ�ǁĂůŬƐ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�^ƵƉĞƌŝŽƌ��ŽƵƌƚ�,Ăůů�

ŽĨ�:ƵƐƟĐĞ͘�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�,ŝƐƚŽƌŝĐĂů��ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ��ŽůůĞĐƟŽŶ͘ 

ϰ͘ DĞůĞŶĂ͕�:ŽĞ�;ϭϵϵϭͿ͘�ϵϭϭ��ŵďƵůĂŶĐĞ��ŝƐƉĂƚĐŚ��ĞŶƚĞƌ͕��ĂǁŶ�^ƉƌĂǇ͘�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ�

�ŽƵŶƚǇ�,ŝƐƚŽƌŝĐĂů��ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ��ŽůůĞĐƟŽŶ͘ 

ϱ͘ �ĞƉ͕��ůĂŶ�;ϭϵϴϴͿ͘�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ��ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ�tŽƌůĚ�
dƌĂĚĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�DĞĞƟŶŐ͘�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�,ŝƐƚŽƌŝĐĂů��ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ��ŽůůĞĐƟŽŶ͘  

ϲ͘ WŚŽƚŽŐƌĂƉŚĞƌ�ƵŶŬŶŽǁŶ�;ϭϵϴϲͿ͘�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�^ŚĞƌŝīƐ͘�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�
,ŝƐƚŽƌŝĐĂů��ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ��ŽůůĞĐƟŽŶ͘ 

ϳ͘ DĐ'ŽǀĞƌŶ͕�ZĞŐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�dŝŵĞƐ�dƌŝďƵŶĞ�;ϭϵϴϬͿ͘�,ĞůĞŶ��ŽůůŝŐŶŽŶ�ĐŚĞĐŬŝŶŐ�ƵŶƉĂŝĚ�

�Ž͘�ĮŶĞƐ͘�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�,ŝƐƚŽƌŝĐĂů��ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ��ŽůůĞĐƟŽŶ͘ 

ϴ͘ �ŽƵƌƚĞƐǇ�ŽĨ�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�DŽƐƋƵŝƚŽ�ĂŶĚ�sĞĐƚŽƌ��ŽŶƚƌŽů��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ�^ƚĂī͘ 

ϵ͘ &ŝƐŚĞƌ͕�sĞƌŶ͘�;ƵŶĚĂƚĞĚͿ�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŽĨ�^ƵƉĞƌǀŝƐŽƌƐ�ĚŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŶŐ�

ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�Ϯϱ�ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚ�ƌĂŝƐĞ�ƚŽ�Ă�ƉĂĐŬĞĚ�ŚŽƵƐĞ͘�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�,ŝƐƚŽƌŝĐĂů�
�ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ��ŽůůĞĐƟŽŶ͘ 

/ŶƚƌŽĚƵĐƚŽƌǇ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ͗�WŚŽƚŽŐƌĂƉŚĞƌ�ƵŶŬŶŽǁŶ�;ůĂƚĞ�ϮϬƚŚ�ĐĞŶƚƵƌǇͿ͘�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�
'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ��ĞŶƚĞƌ͘�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�,ŝƐƚŽƌŝĐĂů��ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ��ŽůůĞĐƟŽŶ͘ 

&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ͗��ŽƵƌƚĞƐǇ�ŽĨ�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ͘  

/ŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ͗��ŽƵƌƚĞƐǇ�ŽĨ�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�DŽƐƋƵŝƚŽ�ĂŶĚ�sĞĐƚŽƌ��ŽŶƚƌŽů��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ�
ƐƚĂī͘ 

�ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ͗�WŚŽƚŽŐƌĂƉŚĞƌ�ƵŶŬŶŽǁŶ�;ůĂƚĞ�ϮϬƚŚ�ĐĞŶƚƵƌǇͿ͘�^ĂŶ��ĂƌůŽƐ��ŝƌƉŽƌƚ͘�^ĂŶ�

DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�,ŝƐƚŽƌŝĐĂů��ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ��ŽůůĞĐƟŽŶ͘  

^ƚĂƟƐƟĐĂů�^ĞĐƟŽŶ͗�DĞůĞŶĂ͕�:ŽĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�dŝŵĞƐ�dƌŝďƵŶĞ�;ϭϵϴϳͿ͘��ĞŶŶǇ��Ğů�ZĞ͕�^ƵƉĞƌǀŝƐŝŶŐ�

�ƌŝŵŝŶĂůŝƐƚ͕�ĂŶĚ��ůůŝŽƚ�<ĂůůŵĂŶ͕��ƌŝŵŝŶĂůŝƐƚ͕�ŝĚĞŶƟĨǇŝŶŐ�ĚƌƵŐƐ�ďǇ�ĐŽŵƉƵƚĞƌ͘�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ�
�ŽƵŶƚǇ�,ŝƐƚŽƌŝĐĂů��ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ��ŽůůĞĐƟŽŶ͘�  

�ŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ͗�<ĂĚŽĐŬ�;ϭϵϵϭͿ͘�^ƉĞĞĚ�ǁĂƌŶŝŶŐ͕�ZĂŶŐĞƌ��͘��ƌŽĐŬƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌŝĚĞƌ��͘�

ZŚŽĂĚƐ͘�^ĂŶ�DĂƚĞŽ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�,ŝƐƚŽƌŝĐĂů��ƐƐŽĐŝĂƟŽŶ��ŽůůĞĐƟŽŶ͘ 



 

 

 

dŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ĨŽƵŶĚ�
ŽŶ�^Ăŵ��Z�͛Ɛ�ǁĞďƐŝƚĞ͘ 

ǁǁǁ͘ƐĂŵĐĞƌĂ͘ŽƌŐ 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

Board of Retirement 

1 

October 29, 2019 Agenda Item 7.3 

TO:  Board of Retirement 

FROM: Scott Hood, Chief Executive Officer  

SUBJECT: Policy for Acceptance of Electronic Signatures 

Recommendation 
Adopt a resolution approving the “Policy Allowing for the Use and Acceptance of 
Electronic Signatures for Documents Submitted by a Member.”   

Background 
Pursuant to Government Code section 31527(i), this Board recently adopted Regulation 
5.13 which authorizes the use of electronic signatures and provides that: 

“The Board may use and accept a document requiring a signature that is 
submitted by a member using an electronic signature, if the document and 
electronic signature are submitted using technology the Board deems 
sufficient, as set forth in a policy adopted by the Board, to ensure its integrity, 
security, and authenticity. A document submitted pursuant to the Board-
adopted policy shall be given the same force as a signed, valid original 
document.” 

Following the adoption of Regulation 5.13, staff created a “Policy Allowing for the Use 
and Acceptance of Electronic Signatures for Documents Submitted by a Member” (Policy) 
for the Board’s consideration and adoption. 

Discussion 
The “MySamCERA” online portal and mobile app have capabilities for members to 
conduct certain actions electronically regarding their accounts, such as changing their 
federal and state tax withholdings and certain active member beneficiary designations. 
And, in the future, members may be able to submit interactive documents using 
electronic signatures.  

The attached Policy provides that the Chief Executive Officer will determine that the 
software and processes used by SamCERA with regard to any electronic signature 
transaction shall validate and authenticate that it is the member who is submitting the 
document and satisfy the following criteria: 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

Board of Retirement 
 

 

2 

 

 
 Integrity 
• Discreet logging of electronic signature transactions 
• Printable e-signed documents provided to the member 
• E-signed documents stored as part of the member record 
 
 Security 
• Encrypted communication utilizing Secure Sockets Layer (SSL), authentication 

certificates, or comparable cipher and secure data communication techniques 
•  Data security systems including firewalls, anti-hacking, anti-virus, intruder detection, 

 and intruder prevention 
 

 Authenticity 
• Multi-factor member authentication 
• Extended Validation (EV) site certificate or comparable site authentication technique 
• Confirmation communication 
 
Attachment 
Resolution adopting Policy Allowing for the Use and Acceptance of Electronic Signatures 
for Documents Submitted by a Member  



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

 

POLICY ALLOWING FOR THE USE AND ACCEPTANCE OF ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES 

FOR DOCUMENTS SUBMITTED BY A MEMBER 

 

 

1. For those transactions where the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) determines the use and 

acceptance of documents from a member containing an electronic signature is appropriate, 

shall oversee the development, maintenance and application technology designed and capable 

of ensuring the integrity, authenticity and security of such transactions. 

 

2. The technology used by SamCERA shall remain proprietary and confidential in an effort to 

protect and enhance the security of such system.  The Chief Executive Officer will determine 

that the software and processes used by SamCERA with regard to any electronic signature 

transaction shall satisfy the following criteria: 

 

a. Integrity 

• Discreet logging of electronic signature transactions 

• Printable e-signed documents provided to the member 

• E-signed documents stored as part of the member record 

 

b. Security 

• Encrypted communication utilizing Secure Sockets Layer (SSL), authentication 

certificates, or comparable cipher and secure data communication techniques 

• Data security systems including firewalls, anti-hacking, anti-virus, intruder 

detection, and intruder prevention 

 

c. Authenticity 

• Multi-factor member authentication 

• Extended Validation (EV) site certificate or comparable site authentication 

technique 

• Confirmation communication 

 

3.  Each transaction involving a document submitted to SamCERA containing an electronic 

signature shall be confirmed by a communication to the member. 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

Board of Retirement 
 

  

 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING A POLICY  
ALLOWING FOR THE USE AND ACCEPTANCE OF ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES  

FOR DOCUMENTS SUBMITTED BY A MEMBER  
 

 RESOLUTION 2019 -__ 
 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code section 31527(i), this Board adopted regulation 5.13 

which provides that the Board “may use and accept a document requiring a signature that is 

submitted by a member using an electronic signature, if the document and electronic signature 

are submitted using technology the Board deems sufficient, as set forth in a policy adopted by 

the Board, to ensure its integrity, security, and authenticity.  A document submitted pursuant 

to the Board-adopted policy shall be given the same force as a signed, valid original document”; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, SamCERA’s “MySamCERA” online portal and mobile app have capabilities for 

SamCERA members to conduct certain actions electronically regarding their accounts and there 

may be future additional ability for members to use electronic signatures; and  

 

WHEREAS,  for those electronic transactions where SamCERA Chief Executive Officer determines 

that the use and acceptance of member documents containing an electronic signature is 

appropriate,  the Board through the adoption of Regulation 5.13 has determined that the use of 

an electrotonic signature will have the same force and effect as a signed valid document; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed the attached “Policy Allowing for the Use and Acceptance of 

Electronic Signatures for Documents Submitted by a Member” (Policy) which describes the 

technology to be developed, maintained and required for each document containing and 

electronic signature; and 

 

WHEREAS,  the Board has determined that the Chief Executive Officer be delegated the authority 

to apply the criteria set forth in the Policy to any technology to be used on documents 

submitted by a member to SamCERA containing an electronic signature, which will ensure its 

integrity , security , and authenticity so as to give it the same force and effect as a signed valid 

original documents 

  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board hereby adopts the attached “Policy Allowing for the 

Use and Acceptance of Electronic Signatures for Documents Submitted by a Member.”  

*  *  *  *  *  * 

 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

Board of Retirement 
 

  

 

Regularly passed and adopted, by the San Mateo County Employees’ Retirement Association, 

Board of Retirement, on October 29, 2019. 

Ayes, Trustees:                  

Noes, Trustees:             

Absent, Trustees:         

Abstain, Trustees:        

 

_______________________________ 

Al David, Board Secretary 



SAN MATEO COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

Board of Retirement 

 

 

 
October 29, 2019       Agenda Item 7.4 
 
 
TO: Board of Retirement   
                          

FROM: Gladys Smith, Assistant Executive Officer  
 
SUBJECT: Approval of Board of Retirement Meeting Schedule for 2020 
 
 
Recommendation 
Approve the meeting schedule of the Board of Retirement for calendar year 2020. 
 
Background 
Board regulation 3.4 provides that the regular meetings of the Board shall be held on the Fourth 
Tuesday of each month and shall begin at 10:00 am.  It further provides that the Board may cancel 
and/or approve a change in the date, time and/or location of meetings within the County, if the 
proposed change is included on the agenda of a regular meeting. 
 
Historically, the Board combines its November and December meetings due to conflicts with the 
Thanksgiving and Christmas holidays, and has combined the meetings in May and June due to 
conflicts with the Memorial Day holiday.  It is prudent to anticipate these changes by adopting a 
meeting schedule and placing it on the SamCERA website to provide public notice.   
 
Consistent with recent years, the 2020 proposed schedule includes: 

• Eleven total meetings (includes two meeting days for the retreat); 

• Holding most of the meetings on the fourth Tuesday of the month; 

• Convening the meetings at 10:00 a.m., except for the Board/Staff Retreat meetings; 

• Holding the annual Board/Staff Retreat on March 24 (fourth Tuesday) and March 25, with 
regular business taken up at 9:00 a.m., Tuesday, March 24; 

• Holding no meeting in May 2019; 

• Holding the June meeting on June 2, the first Tuesday of that month, rather than June 23 
to space the time between the April and June meeting; 

• Holding no meeting in November due to the Thanksgiving Day holiday; and 

• Holding the December meeting on December 8, 2020, the second Tuesday of that month; 
because of the holidays and to space the time between the October and December 
meetings. 

 
Attachment  
2020 SamCERA Board Meeting Schedule 

  



2020 SamCERA Board Meeting Schedule 
All meetings to be held at  

100 Marine Parkway, Suite 160 
Redwood City, CA  94065 

 

MONTH DAY WEEK & DAY TIME 

JANUARY 28 FOURTH TUESDAY 10:00 A.M. 

FEBRUARY 25 FOURTH TUESDAY 10:00 A.M. 

MARCH 
(BOARD/STAFF 

RETREAT) 

24 & 25 FOURTH TUESDAY & 
WEDNESDAY 

9:00 A.M. BUSINESS 
ITEMS, FOLLOWED 

BY RETREAT ON 
MARCH 24 

APRIL 28 FOURTH TUESDAY  10:00 A.M. 

MAY NO MEETING NONE  

JUNE 2 FIRST TUESDAY 10:00 A.M. 

JULY 28 FOURTH TUESDAY 10:00 A.M. 

AUGUST 25  FOURTH TUESDAY 10:00 A.M. 

SEPTEMBER 22 FOURTH TUESDAY 10:00 A.M. 

OCTOBER 27 FOURTH TUESDAY 10:00 A.M. 

NOVEMBER  NO MEETING NONE  

DECEMBER 8 SECOND TUESDAY 10:00 A.M. 

 


	1910 Board Agenda
	The Board of Retirement
	Benefit & Actuarial Services 
	Consideration of Agenda Items, if any, removed from the Consent Agenda 
	5.1
	Annual Review of SamCERA’s Actuarial Services Firm, Milliman, Inc (**Set for a time certain of 12:00 PM)
	5.2
	Report on Preliminary Monthly Portfolio Performance for the Period Ended 9/30/19
	Report on Opportunistic Credit Manager Annual Reviews
	Report on Inflation Hedge Manager Annual Reviews
	Report on Midstream Energy Update
	Approval of Asset Allocation Policy Portfolio Implementation
	Board & Management Support 
	Management Reports
	Consideration of Disability Items, if any, Removed from the Consent Agenda
	Conference with Legal Counsel - Existing Litigation (Govt. Code section 54956.9) In Re Sheridan Holding Company II, LLC et al., US Bankruptcy Court-Southern District, Case No. 19-35198(MI)
	Report on Actions Taken in Closed Session

	19-10-1.1 Administration of the Oath of Office
	19-10-1.1 Reappointments From BOS Memo
	19-10-3.1 Minutes 092419
	19-10-4.1 CONS2019 October
	San Mateo County Employees' Retirement Association
	Board of Retirement
	FROM:         Elizabeth LeNguyen, Retirement Benefits Manager

	19-10-4.10 Approval of Resolution Authorizing Contract For K and L Gates LLP
	19-10-4.10 Resolution K & L Gates
	19-10-4.11  SACRS Business Meeting Topics
	19-10-4.11 SACRS Fall Business Meeting Packet 2019
	Cover
	SACRS Fall Conference Biz Mtg Agenda 2019
	Item 1
	Item 2
	SACRS Spring Biz Meeting Minutes 2019
	Item 3
	SACRS Financials August 2019 1
	SACRS Financials August 2019 2
	SACRS Financials August 2019 3
	SACRS Financials August 2019 4
	Item 4
	Item 5
	2019-08-16_SACRS Legislative Committee _Ad Hoc Report_Employer Liabilities_FINAL
	Omnibus Bill Summary_Letterhead
	SB 783 Bill Draft_V5_Approved by Legislative Committee
	Amend Section 31631.5:

	SB 783 Bill Matrix_v5_Approved by Legislative Committee
	Sheet1

	LACERA Leg Proposal 1 Nonservice Connected 2019
	SACRS 2020 Legislative Platform-NSCD
	Item 6
	SACRS 2020-2021 Election Notice
	Item 7
	Item 8
	Item 9
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 13
	No Printed Items
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	19-10-4.12 Memo Legislative Update
	19-10-5.2 Annual Review of SamCERA's Actuarial Services Firm, Milliman, Inc
	19-10-5.2 Milliman's Response to Questions for Annual Actuarial Consultant Evaluation
	19-10-6.1 Preliminary Monthly Portfolio Performance Report for the Period Ended September 30, 2019
	19-10-6.1 Verus Capital-Markets-Update Sept 19
	Slide Number 1
	Market commentary
	Major asset class returns
	U.S. large cap equities
	Domestic equity size and style
	Fixed income
	Global markets
	Commodities
	Appendix
	Periodic table of returns
	S&P 500 sector returns
	Detailed index returns
	Slide Number 13

	19-10-6.1 Northern Trust Preliminary Monthly Performance Report for September 30, 2019
	19-10-6.3 Report on Inflation Hedge Manager Annual Reviews
	19-10-6.3 SSgA Meeting Notes - 2019
	Research Meeting Notes
	Notes and Analysis
	Firm:
	Team/People:
	Process/Philosophy
	The SamCERA liquid real asset portfolio is a customized account managed by SSgA that includes the following allocation.
	1/3rd Bloomberg Roll Select Commodities
	1/3rd S&P Global LargeMid Commodity and Resources Index
	1/3rd S&P Global Infrastructure Index
	The three strategies are passive investments meant to replicate their respective indices.  SSgA’s Global Beta Solutions team manages the three individual products in daily-valued institutional commingled funds.  The three index products have a targete...
	The ISG team will handle allocating, rebalancing and trading the three index products with a goal of minimizing tracking error to the policy index.  SSgA will rebalance the portfolio semi-annually back to target.  SSgA manages the portfolio for an all...
	Performance


	19-10-6.3 Cushing Meeting Notes - 2019
	Research Meeting Notes
	Notes and Analysis
	Firm:
	Team/People:
	Process/Philosophy
	Performance


	19-10-6.4 Report on Midstream Energy Update
	19-10-6.4 Versus Midstream Energy Market Update
	19-10-6.5 Approval of Asset Allocation Policy Portfolio Implementation
	19-10-7.1 Acceptance of Financial Audit Management Report
	19-10-7.1 Financial Audit Report Final
	19-10-7.2 Approval of SamCERAs CAFR
	19-10-7.2  CAFR Final
	19-10-7.3 Memo Adopting Electronic Signature Policy
	19-10-7.3 Policy Allowing for the use and Acceptance of Electronic Signatures
	19-10-7.3 Reso Electronic signature policy
	19-10-7.4 BOR Meeting Schedule for 2020



